
The YouTube channel "City of Franklin WI" will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so
that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.

https://www .youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING*

FRANKLIN CITY HALL - COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

AGENDA**
WEDNESDAY NOVEMBER 6, 2024 AT 6:30 P.M.

A. Call to Order, Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance.

B. Citizen Comment Period.

C. Approval of Minutes: Regular Common Council Meeting of October 15, 2024.

D. Hearings.

E. Organizational.

F. Letters.

G. Reports and Recommendations:
1. A Resolution Imposing Conditions and Restrictions for the Approval of a Special

Use for a Sixteen Unit Supportive Housing Development, Resident Community
Center, and Community Hub Facility, Upon Property Located at O S 31st St,
TKN 761-9992-002. (By Amy Hansel, Communities of Crocus, Applicant,
Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance, property owner).

2. Annual Report of the City of Franklin's Tourism Commission Activity and 2025
Budget.

3. A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute an Environmental Service
Recycling Agreement with Veolia ES Technical Services LLC.

4. Clear Channel Outdoor Media Volition Franklin Contract.
5. A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute a 2024 Health Department

Project Agreement with Emmons Business Interiors.
6. Accept and execute the Wisconsin Statewide Health Information Network (WISHIN)

Agreement for 2024-2025.
7. A Resolution Imposing Conditions and Restrictions for the Approval of a Special

Use for a Physical Fitness Facility Upon Property Located at 7199 S. 76th Street
(Black Duck Partners, Applicant).

8. A Resolution to amend Resolution No. 2022-7873 Imposing Conditions and
Restrictions for the Approval of a Special Use for a Condominium Complex
development use upon property located at 9524 S. Sophia Court . (Stephen R. Mills,
Loomis & Ryan, Inc., Applicant, Home Path Financial Limited Partnership, property
owner).



Common Council Meeting Agenda
November 6, 2024
Page 2

9. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2023-2569, an Ordinance Adopting the 2024
Annual Budget for the Capital Improvement Fund to Transfer $150,000 of
Contingency Appropriations to Highway Capital Equipment Appropriations for the
Increasing Project Costs Associated with the Department of Public Works Building
Expansion Project.

10. A Resolution imposing conditions and restrictions for the approval of a Special Use
for Tsunami Express Car Wash, a carwash facility located at 6449 S. Whitnall Edge
Road (Tsunami Express Car Wash, Applicant).

11. Request for the Common Council to approve the filing of an application for a Unified
Development Ordinance text amendment for An Ordinance to amend $15-10.0102
Membership, of the Unified Development Ordinance to Change the Plan
Commission Membership to remove the City Engineer Member and in place thereof
Provide an Alderperson to Serve on the Plan Commission.

12. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2023-2569, an Ordinance Adopting the 2024
Annual Budget for the Capital Outlay Fund to Transfer $6,262 of Contingency
Appropriations to Capital Equipment Appropriations for the Purchase of a
Replacement Survey Controller.

13. An Ordinance to amend $10-12 Personnel Committee, B. Composition and C. Term,
to Remove Two ofthe Alderperson Membership Positions.

14. A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute a Development Agreement for
Public Infrastructure Improvements with Franklin Public Schools at 8429 W. Forest
Hill Avenue, TKN 838-9978-001.

15. A Resolution for Acceptance of a Water Main Easement at Franklin Public Schools,
Franklin, WI, TKN 838-9978-001.

16. A Resolution for Acceptance of a Storm Water Facilities Maintenance Agreement
and a Storm Water Management Access Easement for 8429 W. Forest Hill Avenue,
TKN 838-9978-001.

17. Finance Committee Recommended Changes to the 2025 Mayor's Recommended
Budget.

18. A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute an Addendum to Facilitate
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funding for the Multimedia Communications &
Engineering, Inc. Agreement for Fiber Optic Ring Design and Construction Project
Management Services, the Fiber Optic Management, LLC Agreement for Fiber Optic
Maintenance Services, the Telepacific Corp. Communications Network and Firewall
Services Agreement, the Ringcentral, Inc. Unified Communications Services
Agreement, the Landmark Structures, I, LP Elevated Water Storage Tank Contract B,
the Dorner, Inc. Water Transmission Main Contract A, the Vinton Construction
Company Water Transmission Main Contract C, and the Johnson Controls, Inc.
Energy Savings Performance Contract, each entered into with the City.

19. Approval of Pay Application 2 and Reimbursement Request #2 for the 2024 PPII
Sump Pump Project - MMSD Funding Agreement M10005FRO 1.

20. Agreement for Professional Services to provide Assessment Services between the
City of Franklin and Accurate Appraisal, LLC. The Common Council may enter
closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(l)(e), for competitive and bargaining
reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to the Agreement for Professional



Common Council Meeting Agenda
November 6, 2024
Page 3

Services to provide Assessment Services between the City of Franklin and Accurate
Appraisal, LLC entered into on February 7, 2022, and the performance thereof, and
the investing of public funds and governmental actions in relation thereto, and
pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel for the Common
Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with
respect to litigation in which it is likely to become involved, and to re-enter open
session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it
deems appropriate.

H. Licenses and Permits: License Committee Meeting of November 6, 2024.

I. Bills.
Request for Approval of Vouchers and Payroll.

J. Adjournment.

Notice Is given that a mayorrty of the Tourism Commuss1on may attend thus meeting to gather mnformation about an agenda item over
which the Tourism Comm1ss1on has dec1son-making responsibility Thus may constitute a meeting of the Tourism Commuss1on, per State
ex rel Badke v Greendale Village Board, even though the Tourism Comm1ss1on wll not take formal action at thus meeting

Supporting documentation and details of these agenda 1tems are avalable at Caty Hall during normal business hours

[Note Upon reasonable notice, efforts wll be made to accommodate the needs of disabled mndrvduals through appropr1ate aids and
services For additional information, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500 ]

REMINDERS:

November 7
November 19
November21
November 28 & 29
December 3
December 5
December 17
December 19
December 24 & 25
December 31
January 1

Plan Commission
Common Council
Plan Commission
City Hall Closed-Thanksgiving
Common Council
Plan Commission
Common Council
Plan Commission
City Hall Closed-Christmas
City Hall Closed-New Year's Eve
City Hall Closed-New Year's Day

6:00 p.m.
6:30 p.m.
6:00 p.m.

6:30 p.m.
6:00 p.m.
6:30 p.m.
6:00 p.m.



BLANK PAGE



ROLL CALL A.

CITIZEN COMMENT B.

MINUTES C.
OCTOBER 1, 2024

MAYORAL E.
APPOINTMENTS

INFORMATIONAL G.1.
UPDATE FROM CITY
ASSESSORS

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

OCTOBER 15, 2024
MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Franklin Common Council was held on
October 15, 2024, and was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor
John R. Nelson in the Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W.
Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were
present: Alderman Peccarelli, Alderwoman Eichmann, Alderman
Hasan, Alderwoman Day, Alderman Barber and Alderman Craig. Also
in attendance were Director of Administration Kelly Hersh, City
Attorney Jesse A. Wesolowski and City Clerk Shirley Roberts.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:32 p.m. and was closed at
6:40p.m.

Alderman Hasan moved to approve the minutes of the Common
Council meeting of October 1, 2024, as presented. Seconded by
Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Hasan moved to confirm the following Mayoral
Appointments: James McWilliams, 4645 W. Sherwood Dr., Ald. Dist.
4 -Technology Commission, 3 year unexpired term expiring 04/30/25.
Seconded by Alderwoman Day. On roll call, all voted Aye; motion
carried

This document is informational only. Receive and put on file.

OAKCREEK
FRANKLIN JOINT
SCHOOL DISTRICT
INFORMATION
PRESENTATION

FOX GLEN
CORPORATE CENTRE
SPECIAL EXCEPTION

ORD 2024-2643
AMEND THE UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT
ORDINANCE
PLANNED

G.l.A. This item is for information only. No action requested.

G.2. Alderwoman Day moved to adopt the standards, findings and decision
of the City of Franklin Common Council upon the application of John
Spitz, Fox Glen Corporate Centre, LLC Applicant, for a special
exception to certain natural resource provisions of the City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance. Seconded by Alderwoman
Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.

G.2.A. Alderman Peccarelli moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2024-2643, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 15-3.0434 OF THE UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT NO. 29 (WELLNESS CENTER - MARK E.
CARSTENSEN INC.) TO ALLOW EDUCATIONAL SERVICES AS
A PERMITTED USE AND TO ALLOW A BUILDING ADDITION



Common Council Meeting
October 15, 2024
Page 2

DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT

ACQUISITION OF G.3.
ARMORED RESCUE
VEHICLE FOR THE
FRANKLIN POLICE
DEPARTMENT

APPOINT MR. GLEN G.4.
BEARDSLEY AS
INTERIM SEWER AND
WATER
SUPERINTENDENT

IMMUNIZATION G.5.
COVID SUPPLEMENT
3 GRAND PERIOD
EXTENSION

2024 DIVISION OF G.6.
PUBLIC HEALTH
CONSOLIDATED
CONTRACTS

RES. 2024-8214 G.7.
ISSUE CHANGE
ORDER NO.3 TO
DORNER,INC

ORD. 2024-2644 G.8.
AMEND BUDGET IT
NON-PERSONNEL
SERVICES

RES. 2024-8215 G.9.
RESCIND
ACCEPTANCE OF A
STROM WATERS
FACILITIES

AND SITE CHANGES (ISLAMIC SOCIETY OF MILWAUKEE,
APPLICANT) (ISLAMIC FOUNDATION OF GREATER
MILWAUKEE, PROPERTY OWNER) (8910 S. 102" STREET).
Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to approve the acquisition of an
armored rescue vehicle for the Franklin Police Department via the
LESO program. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. On roll call, all voted
Aye. Motion carried

Alderman Barber moved to approve the appointment of Mr. Glen
Beardsley as Interim Sewer & Water Superintendent with an interim
salary of $85,000 annually and authorize the payout of accrued
compensatory time at the current Operator wage. Seconded by
Alderman Hasan. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried

Alderman Hasan moved to approve the acceptance of the 2024-2025
Immunization COVID Supplement 3 Grant. Seconded by Alderman
Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Day moved to approve the acceptance of the 2024-2025
Division of Public Health Consolidated Contract Grants for the
Franklin Health Department. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann.
All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to approve Resolution No. 2024-8214,
A RESOLUTION TO ISSUE CHANGE ORDER NO. 3 TO
DORNER, INC. FOR THE WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN
(CONTRACT A) ALONG S. LOVERS LANE TO REDUCE TOTAL
PROJECTS COSTS BY $64,231. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2024-2644, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2023-2569, AN
ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2024 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR
THE GENERAL FUND TO RE-APPROPRIATE FUNDS FROM IT
DATA PROCESSING SERVICES TO OTHER IT NON
PERSONNEL SERVICES. Seconded by Alderwoman Day. On roll
call, all voted Aye. Motion carried

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to adopt Resolution No. 2024-8215 , A
RESOLUTION TO RESCIND RESOLUTION NO. 2024-8120, A
RESOLUTION FOR ACCEPTANCE OF A STORM WATER
FACILITIES MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT AND EASEMENTS
FOR SANITARY SEWER, STORM WATER MANAGEMENT



Common Council Meeting
October 15, 2024
Page 3

MAINTENANCE
AGREEMENT

APPROVAL OF 2025 G.10.
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT-
RELATED
COVERAGES

RES. 2024-8216 G.11.
SURPLUS ENERGY
PURCHASE
AGREEMENT

ACCESS, AND WATER MAIN AT 9410 S. 76TH STREET AND
7520 W. RYAN ROAD (TKNS 884-9997-000 & 884-9998-000),
AND TO REPLACE IT WITH A RESOLUTION FOR
ACCEPTANCE OF A STORM WATER FACILITIES
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT AND EASEMENTS FOR
SANITARY SEWER, STORM WATER MANAGEMENT ACCESS,
AND WATER MAIN AT 9410 S. 76TH STREET AND 7520 W.
RYAN ROAD (TKNS 884-9001-000, 884-9002-000 & 884-9003
000). Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Mayor Nelson called a recess at 8:27 p.m.

Mayor Nelson reconvened at 8:33 p.m.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to approve the 2025 employee benefit
insurance renewals as outlined, including health, dental, life, long-term
disability, and Nice Healthcare plan adjustments. Authorize the
Director of Administration to finalize contracts and implement
necessary updates to the Employee Handbook. Seconded by Alderman
Hasan. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2024-8216, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
EXECUTE A SURPLUS ENERGY PURCHASE AGREEMENT
WITH WISCONSIN ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY FOR THE
FRANKLIN LIBRARY BUILDING FACILITIES, AND ANOTHER
ONE FOR THE FRANKLIN FIRE DEPARTMENT BUILDING
FACILITIES IN FURTHERANCE OF THE MASTER ENERGY
SERVICES AGREEMENT AND THE PERFORMANCE
CONTRACT PREVIOUSLY ENTERED INTO WITH JOHNSON
CONTROLS, INC., TO IMPLEMENT ENERGY EFFICIENCY,
SAFETY, SECURITY AND RENEWABLE ENERGY MEASURES
AT VARIOUS CITY BUILDINGS AND INFRASTRUCTURE.
Seconded by Alderman Hasan. On a roll call, Alderman Craig,
Alderman Barber, Alderwoman Day, Alderman Hasan and
Alderwoman Eichmann voted Aye, Alderman Peccarelli abstained.
Motion carried. (5-0-0-1)

CHANGES TO THE
2025 MAYOR'S
RECOMMENDED
BUDGET

CLOSED SESSION

G.12. Alderwoman Eichmann moved to amend the 2025 Mayor's
Recommended Budget for resources and expenditures by Fund and
appropriation unit as detailed on the attached schedule be included in
the Proposed 2025 City of Franklin, WI Budget for the Public Hearing
scheduled for November 12, 2024. Seconded by Alderman Barber.
On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

G.13. Alderwoman Eichmann moved to enter closed session at 8:48 pm
pursuant to Wis. Stat. $19 .85(1 )(g), to confer with legal counsel for the



MISCELLANEOUS
LICENSES

VOUCHERS AND
PAYROLL

ADJOURNMENT

H.

I.

J.

Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to be
adopted by the body with respect to the City ofFranklin v BPCMaster
Developer, LLC andMichael Zimmerman, Milwaukee County Circuit
Court Case No. 24-CV-7479 litigation, and to reenter open session at
the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it
deems appropriate. Seconded by Alderman Barber. On roll call,
Alderman Craig, Alderman Barber, Alderman Hasan, Alderwoman
Eichmann and Alderman Peccarelli voted Aye, Alderwoman Day
voted No, motion carried. (5-1-0)

Upon reentering open session at 9:38 pm; Alderman Barber motioned
to direct staff to proceed as discussed in closed session. Seconded by
Alderman Peccarelli. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to approve the following licenses of the
License Committee Meeting of October 15, 2024:

Grant 2024-25 New Operator License to Jennifer Gjerseth, Emanuel
Hernandez, & Lisandra Rodriguez; and
Grant Temporary Class "B Beer 7 Temporary "Class B" Wine to St
Martin of Tours Church-Fall Harvest Fest, Jennifer Drzewiecki, 7963
S116" St, 11/9/24.

Seconded by Alderman Craig. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Hasan moved to approve City vouchers with an ending date
of October 10, 2024, in the amount of$2,009,210.41, and payroll dated
October 4, 2024 in the amount of $515,215.72 and payments of the
various payroll deductions in the amount of $285,169.20 plus City
matching payments, and estimated payroll dated October 18, 2024 in
the amount of$500,000 and payments of the various payroll deductions
in the amount of $525,000, plus City matching payments, and
estimated payroll dated November 1, 2024 in the amount of $465,000
and payments of the various payroll deductions in the amount of
$260,000 plus City matching payments. Seconded by Alderman
Barber. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to adjourn the meeting of the
Common Council at 9:57 p.m. Seconded by Alderman Peccarelli.
All voted Aye; motion carried.

Common Council Meeting
October 15, 2024
Page 4

CITY OF FRANKLIN
V. BPC MASTER
DEVELOPER, LLC
AND MICHAEL
ZIMMERMAN



APPROVAL

REPORTS&
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS
AND RESTRICTIONS FORTHE

APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FORA
SIXTEEN UNIT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING
DEVELOPMENT, RESIDENT COMMUNITY

CENTER, AND COMMUNITY HUB
FACILITY, UPONPROPERTY LOCATED

ATOS 31ST ST, TKN 7619992 002
(BY AMYHANSEL, COMMUNITIES OF
CROCUS, APPLICANT, NORTHWESTERN
MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE, PROPERTY

OWNER)

MEETING
DATE

11/06/2024

ITEM NUMBER

Aid. Dist.

3

At the October 17, 2024 regular meeting, following a public hearing, the Plan
Commission carried a motion to recommend approval of this application for a Special
Use to allow for the development of a sixteen-unit supportive housing development,
resident community center, and community Hub facility upon property located at OS.
31st Street, zoned B-4 S. 27th St. Mixed Use Commercial District.

At that same meeting, the Plan Commission adopted a motion to recommend approval
of a related Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment (CMP) and Rezoning for three
additional lots to the south of this property. These items are scheduled for the
December 3, 2024 Common Council meeting, to allow for the required notice period
for the CMP amendment.

This Special Use application is being presented today, separately from the other
applications to accommodate the applicant's development schedule. Proposed
phasing is as follows:

Lot Phase Address &2 TKN Dev. Acreage App.(s) Zoning
A 1 0S31STST Care Homes 18.4 SU B-4 s. 27th

7619992002 & Services St. Mixed Use
B 2 0 S 31ST ST Apartments 10.3 CMPa, R-6 and

7619994005 RZ OL-1
C 3 0 S 35TH ST Townhome 8.4 CMPa, R-6 and

7619997003 duplex RZ OL-1
D 3 7521 S. 31st St. Duplex 5.7 CMPa, R-6 and

786 9981 004 RZ OL-1
Total 42.9



The item was initially presented at the August 22,
2024 Plan Commission meeting. During the Public
Hearing, residents and Commissioners shared
concerns and requests for additional information
that resulted in the application being tabled. Plan
Commission materials for this item for the Special
Use are provided here with staff reports from both
meetings. The October 22 staff report primarily
focuses on responses to these comments.

For Phase One, the Special Use application before
the Common Council today, the applicants are
proposing four (4) four-unit residence buildings, for

a final total of sixteen dwelling units. The gross density of this proposed multifamily
development is 0.86 units per acre (16 unit / 18.5 acres = 0.86), well within the
allowable density of the R-8 district of 8 units per acre, and in fact less than the nearby
single-family neighborhood, which has a gross density of approximately 2.5 units per
acre (16 unit/ 6.25 acres= 2.5).

Elements of the Centre at Crocus Community Center, and proposed uses for the Hub
facility are generally Permitted uses in B-4 zoning. The Community Center will
include offices, medical and home health care services, vocational schools, physical
fitness and dance studios, and other recreational uses. Staff recommends that this
Special Use approval allow for the additional primary uses typically allowed in the B
4 district that are related to healthcare, offices and nonprofit organizations, and
physical fitness facilities in the Hub Building.

In general, this lot has enough developable area to accommodate the applicants
proposed design and density, even taking into account natural resources and other
restrictions on the site. Approval of a Site Plan application will be required prior to
construction.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution 2024- imposing conditions and restrictions
for the approval of a Special Use to allow for the development of a sixteen-unit
supportive housing development, resident community center, and community Hub
facility upon property located at O S. 31st Street, zoned B-4 S. 27th St. Mixed Use
Commercial District (BY AMY HANSEL, COMMUNITIES OF CROCUS,
APPLICANT, NORTHWESTERN MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE, PROPERTY
OWNER)

Department of City Development: MX



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 08-15-24]

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE
APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A SIXTEEN UNIT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING
DEVELOPMENT, RESIDENT COMMUNITY CENTER, AND COMMUNITY HUB

FACILITY, UPON PROPERTY LOCATED ATOS 31ST ST, TKN 7619992002
(BY AMY HANSEL, COMMUNITIES OF CROCUS, APPLICANT, NORTHWESTERN

MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE, PROPERTY OWNER)

WHEREAS, Amy Hansel, Communities of Crocus having petitioned the City of
Franklin for the approval of a Special Use to allow for the development of a sixteen unit
supportive housing development, resident community center, and community Hub facility
upon property located at 0 S. 31 Street, zoned B-4 S. 27th St. Mixed Use Commercial
District. The property which is the subject of the application bears Tax Key No. 761 9992
002 and is more particularly described as follows:

Lot I of certified survey map no. 7905 recorded in the office of the register of
deeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin on April 11, 2007 as document no.
9415687, said certified survey map being a part of the southwest l /4 and the
southeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of section 12, township 5 north, range 21
east, in the city of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.; and

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of §15-9.01030. of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan
Commission on the 22" day of August, 2024, and the Plan Commission thereafter having
determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to certain
conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use upon
such conditions, pursuant to §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in
harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive
Master Plan; that they will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that
they will not interfere with the development of neighboring property; that they will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services; that they will not cause undue traffic
congestion; and that they will not result in damage to property of significant importance to
nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions,
meet the standards set forth under §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Amy Hansel, Communities of Crocus,



AMY HANSEL, COMMUNITIES OF CROCUS - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-
Page2

for the approval of a Special Use for the property particularly described in the preamble to
this Resolution, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and
restrictions:

1. That this Special Use is approved only for the use of the subject property by Amy
Hansel, Communities of Crocus, successors and assigns, for a sixteen-unit
supportive housing development, resident community center, and community Hub
facility, pursuant to those plans City file-stamped August 12, 2024 and annexed
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

2. Amy Hansel, Communities of Crocus, successors and assigns, shall pay to the
City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review
fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of
Franklin, for the Amy Hansel, Communities of Crocus, sixteen-unit supportive
housing development, resident community center, and community Hub facility
Special Use, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any violation of this provision
shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to § 15-
9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and
remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the Amy Hansel,
Communities of Crocus sixteen-unit supportive housing development, resident
community center, and community Hub facility Special Use for the property
located at 0 S 31 Street TKN 761 9992 002: (i) being in compliance with all
applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and
(ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like,
required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this
approval.

4. The applicants shall obtain approval of a site plan for full development of this lot.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Amy Hansel, Communities of
Crocus, successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply with
one or any of the conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution, following a ten
(10) day notice to cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the Common Council,
upon notice and hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted under this
Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or
restriction of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than
$2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as
may be specified therein from time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a



AMY HANSEL, COMMUNITIES OF CROCUS - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-
Page 3

separate violation. Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of
that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such
Special Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9.0103 of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to $15-9.0103G. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall
be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution,
unless the Special Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit
for such use.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day 0f? 2024.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this_day of,2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



CITY OF FRANKLIN
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of August 22, 2024

Frankin
t o n $ I N

CMP Amendment, Rezoning, Special Use

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the applications for Comprehensive Master
Plan Amendment, Rezoning, and Special Use. Recommended Conditions of Approval are provided
in the draft Resolution(s).

Project Name:
Property Owner:
Applicant:
Property Address/Tax Key Number:

Aldermanic District:
Agent:
Zoning District:

Use of Surrounding Properties:

Application Request:
Staff Planner:

Communities of Crocus
Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance
Amy Hansel, Communities of Crocus
7521 S. 31°St./786 9981 004; and
0 S 35TH ST/ 761 9997 003; and
OS 31ST ST/ 761 9994 005; and
0 S 31ST ST/ 761 9992 002
District 3
Kevin Allenbach, RA, HGA Architects
7521 S. 31°St./786 9981 004: R-6 and OL-1
0 S 35TH ST/ 761 9997 003: R-6 and OL-1
OS 31ST ST/ 761 9994 005: R-6 and OL-1
0$31STST/761 9992 002:B-4 S. 27st. MU
Commercial
FW on all lots
R-6 (North and West)
R-6 and OL-1 (South)
B-4 S. 27 St. MU Commercial (East)
BP Business Park and OL-1
CMP Amendment, Rezoning and Special Use
Marion Eeks, AICP

APPLICATION DESCRIPTION
The applicant, Communities of Crocus, is seeking approval of a multifamily residential
development with supportive services for adults with autism and similar Intellectual
Developmental Disabilities (IDDs) and their families. The proposed development includes
supportive housing for individuals with IDDs, buildings with services for residents, and standard
housing for their families. Other buildings will include office spaces and community education
and recreation facilities.

The applications before the Commission today are requests for a Special Use to allow for
development of residential facilities and a community building on the north-most lot of the



development. Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment and Rezoning are required so that all lots
are zoned B-4 Mixed Use Commercial. The applications include conceptual site plans; future
development will require site plan approval. The proposed development will occur over multiple
phases, which are described in the applicants submittals.

Lot Phase Address & TKN Dev. Acreage App.(s) Zoning
A 1 0 S 31 ST ST Care Homes 18.4 SU B-4 S. 27th St.

761 9992 002 & Services Mixed Use
B 2 0 S 31ST ST Apartments 10.3 CMPa, R-6 and

761 9994 005 RZ OL-1
C 3 0 S 35TH ST Townhome 8.4 CMPa, R-6 and

761 9997 003 duplex RZ OL-1
D 3 7521 S. 31st St. Duplex 5.7 CMPa, R-6 and

786 9981 004 RZ OL-1
Total 42.9

These lots are currently owned by
Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance, and do
not have buildings on them. There are a
variety of natural resources including a
tributary of the Root River, floodplain,
woodland, and wetlands. In addition, lots A,
B, and C contain constructed wetlands which
were installed as part of a project with the
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District
(MMSD) to increase stormwater capture in
the area. Lots A, B, and C have frontage on
both 31st and 35th Streets, but access to
35th Street is limited by the presence of a
stream.

The project is located on lands west of
NWML and the Statesmen multifamily
development, as well as the Master Halco
ladder company. To the north and west
single-family residential neighborhoods, as
well as vacant land. The lots contain a
significant natural resource buffer on their
western side, as the presence of floodplain

limits developable area. The applicants are not proposing any impacts to floodplain for this
development.

The surrounding area has a Future Land Uses of Mixed Use to the north and east, which

2



includes residential, commercial, and institutional uses. To the south of the development are
single family homes with a future land use designation of Office. To the west are single family
homes with residential future land use, and vacant land that Is designated recreational. All
areas include natural resource future land use. (See Locator Maps)

PROJECT ANALYSIS

Approval of the full development requires a Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment,
Rezoning, Special Use permits and Site Plan. The applicant is currently seeking approval
for a Special Use for lot A, and CMP Amendment and Rezoning on the remamnmng lots. City
Development staff has the following comments and concerns about this proposal. Detailed
comments to the applicant are provided in the Staff Comments memo attached.

Special Use
Phase one of the project is the core mission of thus development: housing and community
facilities for adults with IDDs. Subsequent phases will include additional housing for adults with
IDDs, amenities, and housing for families and caregivers of residents in supportive housing. The
applicants have provided detailed information on their work and vision with their application
submittal.

This property is already zoned B-4 South 27h Street Mxed Use district, which allows for
multifamily development under the same standards as the R-8 Multifamily zoning district.
Special Use approval Is required by the zoning for all such developments. Mixed use
developments typically combine residential development with other use types such as retail
or offices

For Phase One, the applicants are proposing four (4) four-unit residence buildings, for a final
total of sixteen dwelling units. The gross density of this proposed multifamily development
is 0.86 units per acre (16 unit/ 18.5 acres = 0.86), well within the allowable density of the R-8
district of 8 units per acre, and in fact less than the nearby single-family neighborhood, which
has a gross density of approximately 2.5 units per acre (16 unrt/ 6.25 acres = 2.5)

Elements of the Centre at Crocus community center, and proposed uses for the Hub fac1l1ty
are generally Permitted uses in B-4 zoning. The Centre will include medical offices, home
health care services, vocational schools, physical fitness and dance studios, and other
recreational uses Staff recommends that thus Special Use approval allow for the additional
primary uses typically allowed in the B-4 district that are related to healthcare, offices and
nonprofit organizations, and physical fitness facilities in the Hub Building.

Subsequent phases will require separate zoning approval.

Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment and Rezoning
The City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan designates the properties to be rezoned
as "Office" with areas of "Natural Resources". The Natural Resource designation is not

3



intended to preclude development, but to note the presence and importance of natural
resources on the property. The property may be developed according to the standards of
adjoining Future Land Uses with consideration to UDO natural resource protection standards
The Office designation only permits office uses. In order to revise the zoning at this location,
the Comprehensive Master Plan must also be updated to allow for housing. There are
properties immediately adJacent to these lands that have Mixed Use future land use; Planning
recommends that these lots also receive the same designation, to allow for rezoning to B-4
Mixed Use.

The choice to change the zoning of any property Is a key decision point for the community.
These properties are currently zoned R-6 Suburban Single-Family Residence District and OL
1 Office Overlay District, which do not allow for multifamily development, or community
housing. Many of the services proposed for Lot A would be allowed, but mixed-use
development is not permitted under this district, and thus a rezoning of these properties is
necessary to allow for the development.

Franklin has relatively limited area zoned for multi-family development, and recently opted to
rezone a comparable acreage from R-8 Multifamily to M-1 Industrial to allow for business
development. As the recent Housing Report notes, with the current rate of development,
Franklin currently has a low vacancy rate, and will have a housing shortfall by 2040. This
proposal offers an opportunity to increase housing opportunity and provide options for
familtes with children with IDDs to stay in Franklin over the long term.

Site Plan
The applicants must submit a Srte Plan application for Plan Commission approval of final
project designs for Phase One The Site Plan will have to complywith the terms of the Special
Use approval and comply with the dimensional requirements of B-4 zoning Subsequent
phases will require separate approval.

Recommendation

All resolutions are drafted with a standard set of condition relating to development timelines
and requirements, approvals from other Jurisdictions and departments, etc. Staff
recommends the following additional conditions based on review of these appl1cat1ons for
compliance wrth the Unified Development Ordinance:

CMP Amendment: None.

Rezoning: None. This request is the key decision point for the proposed development. Rezoning
applications must comply with the standards of the Comprehensive Master Plan and Zoning
Ordnance
Special Use:

• Approval of a Site Plan and provision of cross access, conservation, and landscape
bufferyard easements at the time of a this review.

4



Staff recommends approval of the applications, subject to conditions in the draft legislative
documents.

Exhibits:

• Zoning Information District Standards Handout - B-4 Mixed Use Commercial
• Applicant Exhibits

5



#+rank«in
wt Co N $ t N

CITY OF FRANKLIN
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of October 17, 2024

Items E.2 & E.3

#rakain
wt 0 n % + N

CMP Amendment, Rezoning, Special Use

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the applications for Comprehensive Master Plan
Amendment, Rezoning, and Special Use. Recommended Conditions of Approval are provided in the draft
Resolution(s).

Project Name:
Property Owner:
Applicant:
Property Address/Tax Key Number:

Aldermanic District:
Agent:
Zoning District:

Use of Surrounding Properties:

Application Request:
Staff Planner:

APPLICATION BACKGROUND

Communities of Crocus
Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance
Amy Hansel, Communities of Crocus
7521 S. 31°St./ 786 9981 004; and
0 S 35TH ST/ 761 9997 003; and
0 S 31ST ST/ 761 9994 005; and
0 S 31ST ST/ 761 9992 002
District 3
Kevin Allenbach, RA, HGA Architects
7521 S. 31"St./ 786 9981 004: R-6 and OL-1
0 S 35TH ST/ 761 9997 003: R-6 and OL-1
0 S 31ST ST/761 9994 005: R-6 and OL-1
0$31STST/761 9992 002:B-4 S. 27st. MU
Commercial
FW on all lots
R-6 (North and West)
R-6 and OL-1 (South)
B-4 S. 27St. MU Commercial (East)
BP Business Park and OL-1
CMP Amendment, Rezoning and Special Use
Marion Eeks, AICP

The applicant, Communities of Crocus, is seeking approval of a multifamily residential
development with supportive services for adults with autism and similar Intellectual
Developmental Disabilities (IDDs) and their families. The proposed development includes
supportive housing for individuals with IDDs, and buildings with services for residents. Other
buildings will include office spaces and community education and recreation facilities. Future
phases will include additional supportive housing and community facilities, as well as standard
housing for families.

1



The applications before the Commission today are
for a Special Use to allow for development of
residential facilities and a community building on the
north-most lot of the development, and a
Comprehensive Master Plan {CMP) Amendment and
Rezoning so that all lots are zoned B-4 Mixed Use
Commercial. The applications include conceptual site
plans; future development will require Site Plan
approval. The proposed development will occur over
multiple phases, which are described in the
applicant's prior Plan Commission packet.

Lot Phase Address & TKN Dev. Acreage App.(s) Zoning
A 1 0 $ 31ST ST Care Homes 18.4 SU B-4 S. 27th St.

761 9992 002 & Services Mixed Use
B 2 0 $ 31ST ST Apartments 10.3 CMPa, R-6 and

7619994 005 RZ OL-1
C 3 0 S 35TH ST Townhome 8.4 CMPa, R-6 and

761 9997 003 duplex RZ OL-1
D 3 7521 S. 31st St. Duplex 5.7 CMPa, R-6 and

786 9981004 RZ OL-1
Total 42.9

This application was presented to Plan Commission on August 22, 2024, and public hearings were
held at the meeting for the Special Use and Rezoning. A public hearing is required for the
Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment; this hearing will be scheduled after the Plan
Commission makes a recommendation on the application.

PUBLIC AND COMMISSIONER COMMENTS
At the August meeting, members of the community provided comment during the public
hearings. They expressed concerns about the project which generally fell into several categories:
possible impacts to natural resources and the floodplain, the movement and storage of water
{stormwater designs) on the property, and the safety of the autistic adults in residence.
Commissioners shared their concerns about the natural resources including the presence of
environmental corridor on the lots, as well as the location of easements, that might limit
developable area.

2



The items were tabled as a result, so that staff and the applicant could prepare additional
information regarding natural resources, stormwater, and general design of the development.

PROJECT ANALYSIS

Approval of thefull development will require a Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment, Rezoning,
Special Use permits and Site Plan. The applicant is currently seeking approval for a Special Use for
lot A, and CMP Amendment and Rezoning on the remaining lots. City Development staff provided an
analysis of the applications and comments at the previous meeting. The packet for that meeting is
available on the City of Franklin Website: https://www.franklinwi.gov/Departments/Elected
Offi cials/Boards-omissions/P I an-Commission. htm

To address resident and Commissioner concerns, the applicant has provided the attached
supplementary submittal. Planning has the following responses to the discussion:

Easements - Planning staff provided the applicants with copies of easements on the lots, which
have been incorporated into their supplementary exhibits, including the boundaries of the
limited-term conservation easement protecting the constructed wetlands on the properties.

Environmental Corridor and natural resource features-The site includes an area identified by the
Southeast Wisconsin Regional Plan Commission (SEWRPC) as Secondary Environmental Corridor.
The areas with designation contain natural resources such as woodland, wetlands, and other
water resources including FEMA flood hazard areas. These features are located on the western
portion of the lot, adjacent to 35" street. There are also artificial and naturally occurring
wetlands, which have been delineated by wetland experts. The applicant has provided exhibits
depicting the location of these features.

The UDO obliges residents and developers to protect natural resources and has strict
requirements that limit the degree to which they may be impacted. Any request to impact a
water resource, or to remove significant areas of woodland, will necessitate a Natural Resource
Special Exception (NRSE) which is a variance that requires Common Council approval. Floodplain
impacts require an analysis to demonstrate that the impacts will not raise flood elevations
elsewhere along the floodplain.

Developers must also protect the natural resources via conservation easements. These
easements are required as part of the approval of a Site Plan (a necessary future application for
this development), an NRSE, or with a plat.

Stormwater - The applicant has provided a supplemental stormwater concept for Commission
consideration. Planning and engineering reviewed the draft concept on September 18, 2024, and
the Engineering department offers the following comment:

On September 18, GRAEF (on behalf of the City's Engineering Department) met with the
applicants engineer to discuss the project. The exhibits submitted, for use at the Plan
Commission meeting, generally coincide with the direction provided at the September 18th

3



meeting and generally demonstrates that the site will be able to comply with the City's
stormwater requirements.

The applicant has also contacted the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewer District who is the regional
authority for stormwater facilities and has provided information about that meeting.

Fully engineered stormwater designs are an element of a Site Plan, which is typically the trigger
for the developers to apply to the Engineering department for their review and approval. It
would be premature, punitive, and prohibitively costly to produce fully engineered development
plans at this stage in the project, when it is not certain that the proposal will receive approvals,
and future phases are only conceptual. Requiring them now is outside the scope of the
application requests before the Commission.

Owner notification - There were also questions about notification of the owners of the
development lots. All City of Franklin Planning applications require signature by the property
owner or a representative. All applications were signed by the Director of Asset Management at
Northwestern Mutual Real Estate, Bryan Konyn. Copies of the signed applications were included
in the August 22 Plan Commission Packet.

Fair Housing- Some neighbors have expressed concerns about the safety of residents with IDDs
living in proximity to wetlands or other natural resources. With regard to the type of facility, or
status of the residents, it is illegal to discriminate on the basis of disability, age, or other
protected classes, and no party can use these categories in evaluating housing uses or making
housing policy. Commissioners and the public may refer to WI Department of Administration
guidance on the subject here: https://doa.wi.gov/Pages/LocalGovtsGrants/Fair-Housing.aspx
or the US Department of Housing and Urban Development here:
https://www.hud.gov/program offices/fair housing equal opp/fair housing act overview#
Who Is Protected? While neighborhood concerns may be well-meaning, they run afoul of
these protections.

Further, there are licenses and other qualifications that supportive housing facilities must meet
that are not part of the land use review of the development, and are regulated by State and
local agencies with the appropriate expertise to evaluate them.

Approval process and Future Applications
The key decision points and scope of discussion for Plan Commission fall under their powers to
make recommendations and decisions regarding land use in the City of Franklin. The applicant is
currently seeking approval for a Special Use for lot A, and CMP Amendment and Rezoning on the
remaining lots. For these applications, the Commission should consider whether the project
conforms to the allowable density and use categories for lots with B-4 zoning or require mitigating
conditions, and whether the allowable future land use for lots to be rezoned aligns with the
community's goals for the uses, density, and overall development of the City.

The applicants must submit a Site Plan application for approval of final project designs for Phase

4



One. The Site Plan will have to comply with the terms of the Special Use, and comply with the
dimensional requirements of B-4 zoning. Subsequent phases will require separate review and
approval. If the CMP Amendment and Rezoning are approved, future development on the three
southern lots (Phases 2 and 3) will also require review and approval of a Special Use for the
density and other site features, and a Site Plan for the design of the development.

As a point of information, in addition to Planning review of applications, all development in the
City must undergo several stages of review by many departments. Engineering evaluates the
capacity and functioning of site infrastructure such as stormwater and facilities like public water
and sewer, as well as aspects of the development process such as grading plans. Inspection
Services enforces the Building Code and reviews building permits for all residential and
commercial development, including features like the plumbing of stormwater, location and
height of fences etc. As noted earlier, other government agencies also have review over aspects
of development, and these requirements must be met for the development to proceed.

Recommendation

All resolutions are drafted with a standard set of condition relating to development t1melines and
requirements, approvals from other jurisdictions and departments, etc. Staff recommends the
following additional condrtions based on revew of these applications for compliance with the Unified
Development Ordinance:

CMP Amendment: None

Rezoning: None. This request s the key decision point for the proposed development. Rezoning
applications must comply wth the standards of the Comprehensive Master Plan and Zoning
Ordinance.

Special Use: Approval of a Site Plan and provision of cross access, conservation, and landscape
bufferyard easements at the time of review.

Staff recommends approval of the applications, subject to conditions in the draft legislative
documents

Exhibits:

• Applicant Exhibits

5



TKN: 761 9992 002

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 312.5 625 1,250 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared bya professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and maynot be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



TKN: 761 9992 002

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 312.5 625 1,250 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



City of Franklin
Department ofCity Development

Date:
To:
From:
RE:

July 25, 2024
Amy Hansel, Communities of Crocus
Department of City Development. Marion Eeks, AICP, Principal Planner.
Staff Comments, CMP Amendment, Rezoning and Special Use
7521 S. 31°St./ 786 9981 004; and
0 S 35TH ST/ 761 9997 003; and
0 S 31ST ST/ 761 9994 005; and
0 S 31ST ST/ 761 9992 002

Please be advised that city staff has reviewed the above application received on June 12,
2024, for a proposed CMP Amendment, Rezoning and Special Use to allow for development
on lots located on S. 31°St. The following comments are for your review and consideration.
Note: HGA Architects Responses are in RED below comments - where responses are
required.

The current zoning of the sites are:

• 7521S.31"St./786 9981 004: R-6 and OL-1
• 0 S 35TH ST/ 761 9997 003: R-6 and OL-1

• 0 S 31ST ST/ 7619994 005: R-6 and OL-1

• 0S31ST ST/761 9992 002: B-4 S. 27St. MU Commercial
• FW on all lots

CMP Amendment & Rezoning:

1. The City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan designates the property with TKN
761 9992 002 as "Mixed Use" with areas of "Natural Resources". This lot does not require
an Comprehensive Master Plan (CMP) amendment or rezoning for the proposed
development.

2. The City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan designates the properties with TKN
761 9994 005, 761 9997 003, and 786 9981 004 as "Office" with areas of "Natural
Resources", This narrowly-tailored land use limits the utility of the area while not offering
opportunities for less-intense mixed or residential uses. Office uses are allowed in all
commercial zoning districts including B-4 S. 27"St. MU Commercial.

3. The lots meet the dimensional requirements of their proposed zoning. Staff suggests that
the lots should be combined in future as the B-4 district encourages this and it would
eliminate sideyards, however it is not required at this time.
HGA Note: The owner is considering this and will likely submit to combine the lots in the
future.

4. Landscape bufferyards are required on property lines adjacent to parcels with different
zoning. They must be recorded by separate document subject to Common Council



City of Franklin
Department of City Development

approval; the template for this is attached. These easements will be required at the time
of a Site Plan.
HGA Note: We will submit the Landscape Bufferyard Easement application with the Site
Plan submittal.

5. Conservation Easements will be required for natural resources to be protected, and must
be depicted on future Site Plans. The template for this is attached. These easements will
be required at the time of a Site Plan.
HGA Note: We will submit the Conservation Easement applications with the Site Plan
submittal.

6. Cross access easements must be provided between all development lots. These may be
privately recorded. These easements will be required at the time of a Site Plan.

7. HGA Note: We will submit the Cross Access Easement applications with the Site Plan
submittal.

Site Plan Concept

8. Full site plan review will be required at the time of development. Please let staff know if
you have questions about any specific aspect of the Site Plan approval process. General
review standards may be found in UDO Division 15-7.O100. Staff does not have additional
comments on the proposed concept.

9. Note that this property is located in the South 27th Street Design Overlay District.

Special Use: Residential development in B-4 zoning requires Special Use approval (Section 15
3.0304 and Special Use Table 15-3.0603.). The current Special Use request is for the lot with TKN
761 9992 002

10. Please clarify which lots are subject to the application for Special Use approval. Legal
Description provided is just for TKN 761 9992 002 (the northern lot) but the application
form indicates all lots.
HGA Response: The Special Use approval is being requested for the northern lot only, TKN
761-9992-002.

11. The applicant has provided responses to General Standards for Special Uses; staff does
not have any specific comments on the responses.

12. Standards for development to mitigate impacts to neighboring zoning such as bufferyards
and lighting controls will apply at the time of Site Plan review.
HGA Response: we will follow all City of Franklin requirements and will work hard to
mitigate impacts to the neighboring properties.

13. Proposed gross density for all proposed developments is well within UDO requirements
under the R-8 multifmaily residential standards. Net density requirements will be evaluated
at the time of Site Plan review. Do you anticipate net density to exceed 8 units per acre
for any portion of the development?

2



City ofFranklin
Department ofCity Development

HGA Response: No, we do not anticipate net density to exceed 8 units per acre for any
portion of the development.

Wetlands and other environmental features: This development site contains a branch of the
Root River, floodplain, a wetland complex, as well as woodlands.

14. A Natural Resource Protection Plan will be required for any land division or change to
property lines, or for any Site Plan.
HGA Response: we will submit the Natural Resource Protection Plan with our Site Plan.

15. Note that any impacts to wetland and their buffer and setbacks must be restored.
Impacts to natural resources beyond the standards of UDO Part 4 will require a Natural
Resource Special Exception (NRSE).
HGA Response: Understood and we will comply.

Engineering Department Comments:

Separate Engineering plan submission is required for review and approval.

HGA Response: Understood and we will comply.

Fire Department Comments: Rezoning

The Fire Department is supportive of this project. However, the cumulative effect of this and
several other residential developments will pose a significant challenge in maintaining industry
standard emergency response times to fire and medical emergencies throughout the City,
without an increase in Firefighter/Paramedic staffing.

Recommended Conditions of Approval

Note that all resolutions are drafted with a standard set of condition relating to development
timelines and requirements, approvals from other jurisdictions and departments, etc. Staff may
recommend additional conditions based on review of these applications for compliance with the
Unified Development Ordinance.

Attachments:

1. Conservation Easement Template
2. Buffferyard Easement Template

3



Communities of Crocus
7521 South 31t Street {Parcels 761-9992.-002; 761-9994-005, 761-9997-003; 786-9981-004)
Project Narrative for City of Franklin
Submitted with Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment / Rezoning / Special Use Applications
Prepared by HGA Architects {HGA Inc.)
Updated August 12, 2024

Narrative Introduction
This narrative is to provide details and support the following Communities of Crocus Applications:
Speclal Use Application.
The project is submitting a Special Use Application to provide information on the Care Homes and
Centre building, which require a Special Use Permit per City of Franklin Section 15-3.0304 and
Special Use Table 15-3.0603. This Special Use Application 1s for the northern parcel, TKN: 761-992
002.
Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment Application.
This project is submitting a Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment Application to
modify/amend the current Comprehensive Master Plan that was previously approved for this site.
Rezoning Application.
The project is submitting a Rezoning Application to reclassify the three {3) southern parcels on the site
(761-9994-005 is zoned R-6 wth OL-1; 761-9997-003 is zoned R-6 with O1-1; 786-9981-004 is zoned R
with OL- I), to a B-4Zoning. The northern parcel (761-9992-002) is currently zoned B-4, so the
reclassification of the southern parcels to B-4 would give the B-4 zoning classification to all of the
parcels.

The narrative has the following sections:
I. Site
II Owner Information
III. Proposed Use of Site
IV. Buildings Proposed for Site
V. Project Phasing
VI Site Considerations

I. Site.
The site is located at 7521 South 31st Street in the City of Franklin. The property stretches between South
31st and South 35/h Street, just south of West Minnesota Avenue, and contains the following four (4)
parcels (starting with the northern most parcel and moving south) that total approximately 45 acres·

761-9992-002 1s zoned B-4
761-9994-005 is zoned R-6 with OL-I
761-9997-003 is zoned R-6 with OL-1
786-9981-004 1s zoned R-6 with OL-I

The Root River traverses through the western portion of the site near 35/h Street and much of the
property (about 2/3 of the site) is wetlands and heavily treed woodlands. There is a pond that
straddles the southern parcels and two detention ponds that were constructed by MMSD in 2019 to
help mitigate and control rainwater run-off across the property headed to the Root River at the
western edge of the property. The eastern 1 /3 (approximately 12- 13 acres) is gently sloping



(east to west) farm fields and that Is where the proposed development will take place. There are no
planned structures, roads, or infrastructure proposed in the wetlands or woodlands on the bottom 2/3
of the site. Communities of Crocus has a Purchase Agreement to buy the property from current
owner, Northwestern Mutual

II. Owner Information.
Communities of Crocus (CoC) is a nonprofit (501)(c)(3) started by Amy Hansel and Emily (Trevor)
Peters Both are parents of children on the autism spectrum and/or with Down Syndrome. The mission
of Communities of Crocus is to create supportive homes of choice for adults ( 18 years of age and
above) with autism and similar intellectual and developmental disabilities that give them a sense of
pride, accomplishment, and dignity by providing housing and supportive services within a natural
environment.

Communities of Crocus is led by a Board that includes the following:
• Amy Hansel (President) Amy has spent the past 26 years as a civil servant working for the
Federal Government. She has extensive experience building relationships with people from
various backgrounds, at all levels and from all over the world.
• Emily Peters (Vice President) Emily is a 25-year sales executive at the Xerox Corporation
working with Fortune 1000 companes in the Midwest where she has maintained long
lasting relationships with her clients and built trust as an advisor of business solutions.
• Andy Palec (Director). Andy has over three decades of experience managing complex
real estate projects from inception through to successful completion. Currently a Vice
President with Milwaukee-based lrgens Partners, he has pnor involvement with different types
of medical real estate and housing, from independent living for seniors to assisted living and
skilled nursing care throughout the US.
• Rechelle Chaffe (Director). Rachelle serves as the Executive Director of Autism Society SE WI
and has family members on the spectrum. She hos championed for Autism awareness,
education and supports by providing programs and services that benefit the Autism
community She brings a passion for advocacy efforts to work every day.
• Chris Zirbes (Director). Chris has developed a successful professional career of working for
small community, family-owned banks and is a Senior Vice President of commercial lending
at Horicon Bank. He is also a proud member of the Wauwatosa Mayfair Rotary.

Ill. Proposed Use of the Site.

The goal is to create a community with a range of housing and support programs for adults (18 years
and above) with autism or similar intellectual and developmental disabilities. However, an equally
important goal of the project is to provide natural supports by offering market rate housing
opportunities for the parents/family members of the residents and others who chose to live In the
community and participate in the lives of these unique individuals.

In addition, Communities of Crocus will provide an educational support building {called the
Supportive Hub) where the residents and others mn the greater community, Including adults with autism



and similar intellectual and developmental disabilities, can get the support and services they need to
live as independently as possible. In addition, the Hub will provide services and support for parents,
family members, caregivers, and others involved in the continuum of care for these individuals.

The residents living in the CARE homes and the APTS at Communities of Crocus will have a broad
range of abilities and needs and Coe will meet those needs through diverse housing options that will
include the following:

HfCtCommun 1es o rocus ousing Types

Name of Building Description Number of Number of
Building Buildings/ Units Buildings / Units
Type For Adults with For Parents/

Autism /IDD Family

Care Homes The CARE Homes are designed for Three Homes, each

autistic adults with complex or
with four (4) one
bedroom Apts = 12

higher levels of need, including up total Apts.

to 24/7 services and support. The
Plans are in place

home includes additional to add a fourth
centralized and private support/ home in the future.

engagement space for staff/
Future total= 16

residents

Apartments The APTS are for individuals wIth 32 one-bedroom
autism and similar intellectual apartments
and developmental dlsab1hties 1-Try it apartment
who, with the help of 1-four-bedroom respite
individualized services and apartment
support, are able to live more
independently, navigate the Total = 34 apartments
greater community, and with the potential for
engage in work and other 36, see below
lifelong learming opportunities

*Plans are to look into
adding two additional
one-bedroom
apartments for
resident support staff

Duplex 6-7 duplexes for
Homes total of 12-14

Units

Townhomes 8 Townhomes for
a total of 8 Units



Totals 52 Units for Adults 20 -22 Units for
with Autism Family Members

or Caregivers

IV. Buildings Proposed for the Site.
The goal for the Communities of Crocus development is to provide options for housing and
support/resources spaces so that adults with autism and similar disabilities can hve as independently
as possible in a community that also provides options for their parents/family members and other
interested parties to lwve in the same community. The entire Communities of Crocus project is designed
to feel like a residential community that fits in with the neighborhood to the north and west. The Care
Homes and Centre at Crocus are one-story buildings surrounded by expansive lawn areas with
landscaping buffers surrounding the buildings and screening views. The building exteriors will be
constructed with a blend of masonry (bnck) and cement board siding. They will feature a
combination of flat and gently sloped roofs meant to recall the mid-century modern architectural
style that features homes with lots of windows and daylight, and large roof overhangs that stretch out
and stay low to the ground.

Care Homes (Phase 1).
Each Care Home is 0a 6,000 SF single-story residence for adults with autism and each home
features four (4) fully independent one-bedroom apartments with a central commons
space. The four (4) one-bedroom apartments are each approximately 650 square feet,
are fully ADA accessible, and include a kitchen, living room, bedroom, and bathroom
Each apartment has an exterior porch off of the living room, connecting each of the
apartments to the outdoor lawn areas. The central area provides a gathenng space for
the residents with a shared hv1ng room / gaming area and an additional shared kitchen,
laundry room, and sensory room Another shared amenity are two lounges, or 'Relax and
Ready Rooms', that contain soft seating, a desk, and provide an additional enclosed
lounge space for residents and staff. In addition, the common space includes an office
area for the staff who will be supporting the residents, a nurse's office, restroom,
mechancal, and storage rooms.

Centre at Crocus (Phase 1 ).
The Center is a 15,000 square-foot single story building with a basement The Centre is
intended to be a support building for the Care Homes where the 12 residents who live in the
Homes {and others wth similar needs in the greater community) will engage in lifelong
learning, social engagement, and therapeutic opportunities. The Centre has spaces or zones
for recreation, life skills training, therapy, art and music-making, relaxation, and leisure. It is
envisioned that the residents will move through the zones over the course of the day with 3-4
residents in each zone at a tme Defined Centre zones include:
• Recreation Zone: this space includes a large open area with a track space for walking and
tncycle use, as well as a central area with fitness equipment such as stationary bikes and
ellipticals. There is also a separate Jungle Gym Room wuth an adult srze climbing structure, a
heated therapy pool with supporting locker rooms, showers, and changing rooms
• Life Skills Tramnng Zone. this space features a kitchen area used for demonstrating
cooking, nutnt1onal classes and. cleaning skills The kitchen will serve as an eating and



learning area and provide an opportunity to decrease health inequities for this population.
This area will also include a separate personal care area where individuals can engage in
health and hygiene Instruction.
• Art+ Music Zone: this space will feature a large room for art classes with tables for painting,
drawing, and sculpture-making, cabinets for art storage, and countertops with double-bowl
sinks. The music and media room will feature spaces for musical instruments, as well as
shelving for a small library of books. Both rooms con also be used as art and music therapy
spaces.
• Leisure Zone: this zone features quiet places to hang-out and relax. Spaces will allow for
watching movies, playing video games, or just relaxing with friends.
• Therapy Zone. this space is dedicated for therapists to hold speech, art, music, or
general therapy sessions with the residents.

The Centre will have a full-time director, as well as office spaces and conference room for
residents, staff, or aides to use for meetings.
The partial basement below the one-story Centre is envisioned to provide mechanical
spaces, a safe zone/shelter in case of tornado or weather events, and also future program
space, should it be needed.

Hub (Phase 1).
The Hub is an approximately 17,000 square-foot single story building. The Hub is envisioned to
serve the broader Frankhn and Milwaukee County community with educational and training
programs. The Communrtes of Crocus offices will be in the Hub, and it is envisioned that
several Continuum of Care communrty partners will also have space in the building. The
spaces in the Hub will include:

• Communities of Crocus Administrative Offices
• Family Resource Center with books, videos, and other publications and resources
This area will include shelving areas for resources, a reading room, reception area,
and a meeting room
• Caregiver Training Suite
• Life Skills Suite including a kitchen and mock-up bathrooms, bedroom, and
laundry room for use in Life Skills training classes
• Game Room and Maker Space
• Support and public spaces including lobby, restrooms, sensory rooms, and staff
lounge
• Multi-purpose Room for lectures, training, seminars, and events
• Partner Suite I: a suite for a community partner to lease space that includes
offices, meeting area, and open space for program requirements
• Partner Suite 2: a suite for a community partner to lease space that includes
offices, meeting area and open space for program requirements.

Apartments (Phase 2).
The Apartment Building will be for adults with autism and smmlar intellectual and
developmental disabilities who are able to lve more independently wth the help of services
and support. Many of these 1ndiv1duals would work in the community, and a small number



may also drive The apartment building is n early concept design, so plans and elevations are
not yet complete. The apartment building is envisioned to be either a two-story building (with
an underground basement level for parking) or a three-story building (with parking and a
lobby on the main level with two (2) levels of apartments above. The building will feature
mostly one-bedroom apartment units along with several two-bedroom units for a total of 32
apartments The building would also have an apartment manager unit (possibly two) and
that person would function as a resident assistant who would provide support for the
residents, as well as a Try-it-out unit and a respite 4-bedroom apartment. The total unit count
in the apartment building is 36 units Architecturally it would use a similar blend of materials as
the Care Homes and Centre, such as bnck and siding and it will feature sloped and flat roofs
to compliment the rest of the community.
Community Pavilion (Phase 2).
An open-air, covered pavilion is planned to be surrounded by approximately 400 - 500
square feet of an open lawn area. It could be used to host Crocus and other community
events geared to the greater community, including a farmer's market. The structure would
include some support spaces such as restrooms and storage area.
Duplex Homes (Phase 3).
The project proposes that up to seven duplex market-rote homes be built for parents, family
members, and other interested parties of the adults living in the CARE Homes or APTS. Each
of the homes are planned to be duplexes, built on basements with two-car garages, having
approximately 1,600-2,000 square feet
Townhomes (Phase 3).
The project proposes that 8 townhomes be built as a part of Phase 3 The townhomes would
likely be 2 ½ or 3 stories with a two-car garage on the lowest level Currently shown as two
buildings, each with four (4) units along South 31st Street.

V. Project Phasing.

The project is proposed to be constructed mn 3 phases; however, fundraising efforts will impact the
timing of how the community will develop and when structures are built. Ihe phases are currently
planned as follows:

Phase 1 : will be focused on development of the northern parcel (76 l-9992-002) that will include the
following:

• Main entry off of South 31t Street and private street
• Care Homes
• Centre at Care
• Parking lot between the Centre and the HUB

Phase 2: will be focused on development of the second parcel (761-9994-005) and will include the
following:

• Extension of the pvate streets and the addition of a second entry/egress onto South 31st Street
Supportive Housing Hub· Apartment Building

• Community Pavilion
Phase 3: will be focused on the development of the southernmost parcels (761-9997-005; 786-9981-
004) and wl include the following.

• Extension of the private roads



• 7 Duplex homes
• 8 Townhomes

VI. Site Considerations.
Stormwater.
The project will need to comply with all City of Franklin storm water requirements. We
envision providing an underground storm water storage system somewhere on our site.

Landscape.
Today the 45-acre site has extensive woodlands and many natural features. It 1s important to
note that the Communities of Crocus development is not proposing any buildings be
constructed in the westem 2/3rd of the site where the woodlands, wetlands and Root River
are located. All of the development is located on the eastern and open and gently sloping
3rd of the site along 31t Street. The project will meet all City landscape requirements and will
provide a landscape buffer along the north property edge to the residential houses

Traffic/Streets.
Upon completion of all phases of the Communities of Crocus development there will be at
total of 74 housing units added. Many of the units will be occupied by adults with autism who
will not drive or need a car, however, there will be visitors to the Hub and staff who work at
the Centre and Care Home The project will construct a new entrance to the Community
which will align with the entrance/egress from the Statesmen Apartments directly across the
street. The internal development streets will be private roads and are proposed to be 24'
wide. An addrtonal entry/exit wll also be added as part of Phase 2 to serve the souther
parcels including the apartment building. Given the two entry/exit points along South 31st and
the low density for the srte, it is anticipated that traffic on the street wll be minimally affected

Utilities.
The project intends to tie into the electric, water, telecommunications, and sanitary utilities
that are located in and along South 31st Street. The connections will be worked out with the
City of Franklin and Utility providers as the site plan is developed. The utilities design will
comply with all City and utility requirements

Lighting.
The project will need to comply with all City of Franklin lighting requirements We recognize
that at public meetings with the neighborhood there were lots of concerns expressed
about light pollution In response, the project commits to keeping any required lighting
poles as low as possible and to using full cut-off lighting fixtures along any street or in
parking areas. The project will use an exterior lighting control system to ensure that any
redundant extenor lighting is turned off as early as possible in the evening.

Fencing.
The four Care Homes and their lawn areas are proposed to be fenced to ensure that the



residents stay on the Communities of Crocus property. The fence is proposed as a 6' tall
painted decorative metal fence and it wll be buffered by additional landscaping. The
fenced area will completely enclose the Care Homes and provide a secure connection
to the Centre so that residents of the Care Homes can safely move between the
Center and their apartments.
w.\forms\cores201 8\normal dotm



t
J
0
4

o

-z
(/) z
Q) -
(/) _J

O
....c z
Q_ <(
(/) O::'.
::, LL

>9 uuw
4- O::'.
0 f
(/) (f)
QJ .µ

·- (/)-4)

No
::, I
E r
E :=)
0 0u (f)

~
y
L.[)
r----

X
(l)V'l (l)

(l) .j...l > (l) 0.. u
C .j...l 0E (l) C E :::, 0..O 0 E ::> C 0 0 (/)C I (l) e.g ..c ..c0 .j...l C (l)

0 I... I... C u u(l) .j...l

5 (l)C .j...l I... C ..0 0 > C (l) C
0 $ 0 (l) :::, 0.. 0 0 9 0 I... (l)
0.. u u I <( u 0.. 0:: (.J LL

■ ■ ■ ■ Bl ■ ■ ■ II ■
■

(f)
=:)
u
0
O::'.
u
LL
0
(f)
w
f-
z <(:=)

CJ~
> I
0u



DIVISION 15-3.0700

SECTION 15-307)1

SPECIAL USE STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS

GENERAL STANDARDS FOR SPECIAL USES

A.

I.

General Standards. No special use permit shall be recommended or granted pursuant to
this Ordinance unless the applicant shall establish the following:

Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent. The proposed use and
development will be in harmony with the general and specific purposes for which this Ordinance
was enacted and for which the regulations of the zoning district in question were established
and with the general purpose and intent of the City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan or
element thereof.

Response: This objective is understood andmutually sharedby the owner in theproposed use
of the development. Along with the Special Use Application, we have also submitted a
Comprehensive Master Plan application that shows how the proposed development will be
configured and how it is in harmony with the surrounding neighborhood, we have also
submitted a RezoningApplication which is requesting the three southern parcels (761-9994-
005; 761-9997-003; 786-9981-004) be rezonedfromR-6 with OL-1 to B-4..

2. No Undue Adverse Impact. The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue
adverse or detrimental effect upon or endanger adjacent property, the character of the area, or the
public health, safety, morals, comfort, and general welfare and not substantially diminish and impair
property values within the community or neighborhood.

Response: It is the owner's wish to maintain the aesthetics of a neighborhood community
with this development. Communalfacilities and abundant green spaces will be providedfor
use by both the on-site residents and the public, with the intent to bring dedicated services to
an underservedpopulation in the GreaterMilwaukee Area.

3. No Interference with Surrounding Development. The proposed use and development will be
constructed, arranged, and operated so as not to dominate the immediate vicinity or to interfere
with the use and development of neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning
district regulations.

Response: No interference with the surrounding developments is anticipated during
construction nor operations of thisproposedfacility.

4. Adequate Public Facilities. The proposed use and development will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services such as streets, public utilities including
public water supply system and sanitary sewer, police and fire protection, refuse disposal, public
parks, libraries, schools, and other public facilities and utilities or the applicant will provide
adequately for such facilities.

Response: This development is located within the Oak Creek-Franklin Joint School District
and will be served by the City of Franklin Police and Fire Departments. Public Utilities,
including water, sanitary sewer, and storm sewer are all located within the Public Right-of
Way ofS 31Street. An underground electric utility is located on the eastern side ofthe S
3J51 Street Right-of-Way. Additional utilities will be coordinated as needed with their

Page I 1



respective providers.

5. No Traffic Congestion. The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic
congestion nor draw significant amounts of traffic through residential streets. Adequate
measures will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize traffic
congestion in the public streets.

Response: No entrances to the site are proposed along residential roadways. The overall
development will ultimately have two entry/egress drives are proposed to be constructed to
connect to S 3JS1 St. There will be adequate on-site parkingfor the buildings proposed. While
the site contains 45 acres, the housing units being proposed isfor 74 housing units, plus staff
and visitors. Many of the residents will not drive and the anticipated traffic in and out of the
property is anticipated to be light.

6. No Destruction of Significant Features. The proposed use and development will not result in
the destruction, loss, or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of significant
importance.

Response: No destruction or impact to significant natural, scenic, or historic features will
occur without adequate mitigation to repair and improve upon features affected by the
construction activities of this site. All of the building are being constructed along the S 31
Street on the eastern third of the site. The woodland and wetland areas on the western two
thirds of the site are not being developed.

7. Compliance with Standards. The special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the
applicable regulations of the district in which it is located, except as such regulations may,
in each instance, be modified by the Common Council pursuant to the recommendations ofthe
Plan Commission. The proposed use and development shall comply with all additional
standards imposed on it by the particular provision of this Division and Ordinance authorizing
such use.

Response: The owner intends for the proposed development to comply with all applicable
regulations and standards within the property's district. Any proposed deviation to these
standards will be addressed in accordance with the City's policies and guidelines.

B. Special Standards for Specified Special Uses. When the zoning district regulations authorize
a special use in a particular zoning district and that special use is indicated as having special
standards, as set forth in Section 15-3.0702 and 15-3.0703 of this Division, a Special Use
Permit for such use in such zoning district shall not be recommended or granted unless the
applicant shall establish compliance with all such special standards.

Response: Understood. It is the owner's intent to comply with all established special use
standards setforth in the noted Sections.

C. Considerations. In determining whether the applicant's evidence establishes that the foregoing
standards have been met, the Plan Commission and the Common Council shall consider the
following:

Page I 2



1. Public Benefit. Whether and to what extent the proposed use and development at the particular
location requested is necessary or desirable to provide a service or a facility that is in the interest
of the public convenience or that will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or
community.

Response: There is a great needfor housingfor adults with autism and similar disabilities.
This project will help meet that need and will also benefit the community with
educational resources and training for community members who have family or
friends with autism.

2. Alternative Locations. Whether and to what extent such public goals can be met by the location
ofthe proposed use and development at some other site or in some other area that may be more
appropriate than the proposed site.

Response: The selection of this site came after a long search to find a suitable site with a
natural environmentfor housing located in Milwaukee County.

3. Mitigation ofAdverse Impacts. Whether and to what extent all steps possible have been taken
to minimize any adverse effects ofthe proposed use and development on the immediate vicinity
through building design, site design, landscaping, and screening.

Response: The proposed development will be mind/ully designed to reduce thepotentialfor
adverse impacts to the surrounding properties. Landscaping buffers are proposed along the
northernproperty boundary to minimize disturbances to the adjacent residential lots, and the
existing tributary ofRootRiver that runs along the western side ofportion ofthe siteprovides
a natural wooded buffer to the residential lots located across 35/ t to the west. The
proposed buildings in this development will be offset away from S 3JS1 St, allowing for
additional landscaping opportunities, and also screening the majority of the proposed
parking areasfrom view ofthe public right-of-way in accordance with the City ofFranklin
Code. The buildings that are being proposed to the adjacent northern and southern
residential neighbors are all one-story residential buildings.

4. Establishment of Precedent of Incompatible Uses in the Surrounding Area. Whether the
use will establish a precedent of, or encourage, more intensive or incompatible uses in the
surrounding area.

Response: The proposed development is very compatible with its surroundings. The design
of the site places single story residential buildings/homes adjacent to the residential
neighborhoods that already exist there andplaces an apartment building and townhomes to
the center ofthe site near the Statemen Apartments directly to the east. It is not the owner's
intent to influence anyfuture proposed developments in the surrounding areas in any way
that would negatively impact the City or its residents.

Page I 3



--- - C C0 "" 0 E z; 0 0 "" ... .., E ~ 1=':.. 0C ·;::; C 0 C QI
0 0 .El » • 0 ·- 0 e QI QI ± ·;::;
a: 5 a: co ~ "' a: "O a: t C "'C vi ~ dv > ffi E QI .,, a, >0 0 E .,

0 e G ,. - QJV, 0  w >. a. "E "' .., ::E a. 6g % ::E wz ... "' QI C ) .,, ...
w 0 V, 0 ni V, .,,

a, "" J::
., .., ~t 3 QI

i .., C g ::EC 5
0 QI C %E ti ~

NQI E 0u N~ z :, -, £QI z.D Iu: ::E w
I z

2
I

d I
0 Ia.

I
I
I

• d

Vl E:::,u QI
0 ~ct'. "" ...u V, C 0 ..,
LL

.., ·- 0 :.. .., "" "" ... >- E ---- <iiC "O a: C C C 0 • k C ;:0 £g ffi E .!:! QJ 5 ·- 0 C .!:! £ QI QI
E "O a: g ai ~

..,
CVl 6g e vi C ff QI <(w g QI ti E De

5 V, o>E % ] V, c:- u "E "' ::E V, "O<ii "' QI t;, (._Jz ., C 0 E V, E 0
:::>- E ::E g .D a, E 0u: ., 2>2%3 "' ::E :, Is° :, ::Eo:>: z z
U<.,

w
ct'.
3
';;:

~wu



I
I

- - !

ill■
111■.11■lll"a
!
I
p

1
iI: l,•·········r
I' i I
Ii I •·•·•·•· .•:

I. I:·•········•· (lIEI#MIMIIIulb%#iii%iii%ill

llliilm■
I" --
1

0
0
0..

--,

f
f

r
1

1
l

, i

j
' !, r

I·: !■...--.·. -.·· :•. !

IHlilil

l
I
iI :n· "
i :••••IE

I

I

I
I

QI)
C C

C

"E '5 "C 5 0
.,,_ ~::;;- ... 5 .g... t:l ·;:; C 0 E

£ 0 "' vi C co "' ·- 0 C -~ C "'
0 ... 0 0 ;: "' > "C CX: g ai

0 QI 0 >
0 co C ±- E 0 i3 QI e ±- t; 0 QI

: CX: w QI E 8 ~ E "C "C w "' - g a 0.. w
w 0 E 0 C E ti, i 2 % et::

o ::, g .,, ::, 0 £ £
E 0.. u: QI <( >- <( 3: 5 "' Es Vl

u..

z 1-- u Vl ..., ::, 5
0 QI

"
Vl 2

z
t
N
0
N

~-

wz::;

(/)
:::,u
0 e5
Ct'. "' 0u ~ ex:
LL
0 QI)

(/)
C

UJ '5 ...
E C E 0..

C <(
% z ex: QI

z ::, C
u.. E 0..

:::i- <(
QI E C)

::E::l s g u et::

::E "I QI "' 5
::, u..

o:-: 2 2 o <( I
UC>

u:

UJ
Ct'.
6
z
~z
UJu



wct:
6
z
w
f::zwu

a
~u
u..
0

to
Ez
:'.)
:,:
:,:
8

C
0

5
iii.
0

OD
C:
'i3
vi
~,.
0
CD-C:

"'E
"'u

"'.0u::

C:
- OD,._ > C.

0
~ C 0 ·;;; --.. = ·.:;

"' ,. ;: vi ,.
Q.I ·- 0 C: u ct:
~

"O a: -"' >
)ij E E i £ ± u "'E C:

C: w
ti, :3 u 0 CD 0 -u 5 u /

V) -"' "'u s :;:·c
CD

"O •
o E0 ,.
:;: ...J

>
0 3
.0

E -o
5 •z

"O
0
0:;:
"O,.
0
E
::,

<(

a
ro

E O
ou C:

-"' 0
G OEs

r-1

ti
1:Il
i/
t
] I

11
i',1

I

r1
!i
ii I
iJ
I' i

ii i,

i I ~

ii 1

1

f: I

ll
Ii
Ii
I'
ti
11
]j
1.j

fl
ii

i

i
I'I
ti

-C:

"'E
"'u
:;;
.0u::

C:
0z
>
"'w

<(
(_J
I

N
0
N

wz
2



N
0

wz
2

£
5z

C
0

·;;
"'>
.'!'

c
o·;;
"'>.,
5
£
::,
0
V)

0

N

C
0

>.
ui

Vl::,
u i
0 C

er: 0 "Eu u
u._ ---- "'
0 ~ 0

Vl
>

.., "'C ...
LU

QJ 5 C C

E
C QJ QJ <(E C .....

"' 0 E sz E ... 0 QJ-- u V) cr: u V) CJ
:.:::S: -" E E :;;

..,
-5;

59
C

o:! u:: 5 2
.:! QJ "' .a 5 QJ I5 : QJ

U<.O
V) I G 5

wer:
5
z
w
~zwu



r

t
N
0
N

D.E:l.

0
0
"'0
0..
f-

------'--"--'----II;-,-.:.~.~.,.-==I .g..
>
Q)

0-1.-l--'----l w~~
"'w

ai a.
C IO
E Og
u 0g
±5

Iw
-g
:,:

(/)::,u

.., .... :;;-

0

C 0 u
"'

e

·- 0

<(

u
C E

& ~
u..

0 ~
C E 'E

0

t g
5 ..

lJ
(/)

V)

QJ C .;
w

%
~ Vl g .0

I
E

Q) .. u:
z

E
2 2

::i-
::E::l ::,::E:'1

<i:O:!
UCI

'"',::,r
'w
I>·e=
10::•o!n.
•Q.e



r

v
N
0
N

5
wz
2

C
0·;::;
"'>
"'c,
£
5z

C
0·;::;
"'>
"'w
£
::,
0
V)

0
0a:
0
<l.r-

....
0
ii.
E
"'QJ
V)

OD
C
5
C

"'t;;
ni
1u
::i:

>- C.
0 0cuE .·- u..C C
U 0
>- u~ --3°
"'::i:

C
0

~w
3

C. .... ::;;;-
(/) "' 0

::,
u 0 u

u u a: s
0

C 0
a: 0 <l. z
u u r- ...
u.. -- C C

0 3 s: 0

(/)
... >- "' t

UJ
C OD QJ ::i:

E ... QJ C C % <(
C 5 E

z 0 8 5::, E ± E E e O % "E u
5 -"

::,

5 ::, % "' z
0 z a .0 0 .!c! I
u

u: co ±5

ID::,
I
w
>
~
0a.a.::,
U)



fl! 3 8

-
w I-

£ ±5

*"'\ 3E ..-
<( I! i

0 ....I:,: I

I :, o <C X ! ><0 a. z _ w

l' ,.
&3 t::<'5 ~~ J wI i 0..:;; jl en "'.. w

0..

_J



Communities of Crocus
7521 South 315' Street (Parcels 761-9992-002, 761-9994-005, 761-9997-003, 786-9981-004)
PrQJect Narrative for City of Franklin
Submitted with Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment/ Rezoning / Special Use Applications
Prepared by HGA Architects (HGA Inc )
Updated October 7, 2024

Updated Site Narrative
Commun1t1es of Crocus, Inc aims to create a supportive neighborhood for adults with autism and
similar intellectual disablrties mn Franklin, Wisconsin The project is being proposed for 7521 South 31st
Street on the approximately 45-acre site owned by Northwestern Mutual Insurance Company The
development will be built in phases, beginning wIth Phase 1 Thus minutial construction will include both
the Care at Crocus and Centre at Care Care at Crocus will consist of three single-story homes
featuring four one-bedroom apartment units each with a private kitchen and bathroom, shared l1v1ng
spaces, laundry facilities, a nurses' station, a sensory room, and calming areas Supplementing these
fac11it1es, Centre at Care will be a 15,000 square foot facility designed for both residents and the
broader autism community, offering recreational areas, a therapy pool, and spaces for various
therapies including art and music therapy, alongside adm1nistrat1ve offices Phase 1 also includes a
Supportive Hub providing services such as life skills training and caregiver support for residents and
thenr families along with office space for Communities of Crocus, Inc as well as community partners
with similar missions Future phases will include an apartment building for adults who can live
independently with support, as well as townhomes and ranch condos family members of residents to
promote a close-knit in-community support system Add1t1onally, a planned future phase will add a
community pavilion, which 1s planned as an area for gatherings, farmers markets, and other events,
many of which will be open to the broader Franklin community The goal of the proiect ,s to provide a
holistic approach to housing and support that fosters a sense of purpose and community
engagement for mndrvduals with autism and their families

A key factor for the Communities of Crocus leadership was for the site of their new development to
prominently feature the natural environment It was important to select a site ,n Southeastern
W1scons1n where residents could connect with nature in a meaningful way The property search
focused around the Milwaukee County area where there 1s a substantial need for housing options for
adults with autism and their families The Communities of Crocus team looked at and evaluated
multiple locations in Southeast Wisconsmn, Including several properties mn Oak Creek, Franklin, and
South Milwaukee, a site 1n Mt Pleasant, and a site 1n Kenosha, all were tested and ruled out due to
factors such as site constraints, cost, lack of transportation options, and/or lack of natural amen1t1es
and buldable area The Northwestern Mutual properties on South 31st Street were chosen not only for
their close proximity to transportation, stores, and other community facilities, but also for the existing
natural environment and abundant green space that was so desired for the wellness and enJoyment
of the residents, creating a true community for all who will call this site home

The buldable area for this site 1s directly fronting South 31st Street It 1s important to note that many
natural features located on these properties will restrict development beyond the limits proposed by
this project The floodway associated with the East Branch of the Root River, which runs north-to-south
along the western limits of the property, will prevent further construction along South 35th St



Addlt1onally, a Secondary Environmental Corridor established by the Southeast WIscons1n Regional
Planning Commission (SEWRPC), further encompasses the property from the nght-of-way line along
South 35th St eastward towards the center of the site While not off1c1ally protected at this time, future
updates to the City of Franklin's Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) are expected to require
mrtigaton of thus Cordor for any lands impacted by development and construction activities
Furthermore, two ex1st1ng detention basins built in 2022 by the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage
D1stnct (MMSD) fall under a10-year conservation easement intended to protect the constructed
wetlands established w1th1n them Communities of Crocus choose this site because of its natural
beauty Their goal Is to leave the western two-thirds of the site as woodlands and wetlands restricting
their bu1ld1ngs to the area along South 31st Street

Communities of Crocus Is aware of concerns that have been brought to the City by local residents,
many of whom live In the vIc1nity of the project site These questions have largely focused on impacts
to the environmental resources on site, as well as concerns regarding stormwater design and the
potential for flooding impacts to the surrounding properties Communities of Crocus Is committed to
preserving the 1ntegnty of this site and its natural resources, and has met with both the City of Franklin
and MMSD to ensure that their development will not create negative impacts to the neighboring
properties and will preserve the ex1st1ng features of this site to the fullest extent
• Stormwater run-off from this development will be captured on-site via a combination of green

infrastructure practices to meet the requirements set forth by the City of Franklin's Stormwater
Management Ordinance

• Proposed developments w1th1n the City of Franklin must also meet the requirements of MMSD
Chapter 13, which places addlt1onal restnct1ons on the peak flows and/or volumes of
stormwater produced by new developments

• In meeting the requirements of both MMSD and the City of Franklin Stormwater Management
Ordinance, stormwater run-off generated by this site will not exceed that of ex1st1ng
condrtions, ensunng no negative impacts wll be caused to the capacity of the existing MMSD
ponds nor the ex1st1ng floodway of the Root River East Branch

• The design team met with MMSD on September 19, 2024, as well as on earlier phone calls
MMSD Is fully aware of the project and saw no issues with the project as proposed The
proposed development respects the MMSD easements and all other easements and
restnct1ons on the site MMSD will be kept informed of the design intent of this project and any
effects on their existing stormwater facilities on-srte Their approval will be required prior to
construction to ensure these basins maintain the integnty of their designed function The
developer will be responsible for the restoration of disturbed features within these conservation
easements due to the construction activrty of this srte

• Any small areas of impact made by this development or its related construction activ1t1es to
ex1st1ng wetlands and their surrounding 30-foot buffer will be mitigated at a rate of 1 5x the
acreage disturbed, per the requirements set forth mn the UDO, Section 15-4 0103

It s the vision of Communities of Crocus and its leadership to provide residents wth a continuum of
care that not only caters to the needs of the mndrvduals, but also promotes a strong connection to
nature and the outdoors The innate beauty of the site 1s highly valued by all involved In the project,
and through maintaining a reduced density across the site as well as allocating the western two-thirds
of the property to the ex1st1ng woods and wetlands, Communities of Crocus ma1nta1ns a fervent
commitment to preserving these qualities that the community as grown to cherish



Communities of Crocus
7521 South 31° Street (Parcels 761-9992-002, 761-9994-005, 761-9997-003, 786-9981-004)
Project Narrative for City of Franklin
Submitted wth Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment / Rezoning / Special Use Applications
Prepared by HGA Architects (HGA Inc )
Updated August 12, 2024

Narrative Introduction
This narrative Is to provide details and support the following Communities of Crocus Apphcat1ons:

Special Use Application.
The project is submitting a Special Use Application to provde information on the Care Homes and
Centre building, which require a Special Use Permit per City of Franklin Section 15-3 0304 and
Special Use Table 15-3 0603 This Special Use Apphcat1on Is for the northern parcel, TKN 761-992-
002
Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment Application.
Thus project is submitting a Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment Application to
modify/amend the current Comprehensive Master Plan that was previously approved for this site
Rezoning Application.
The project is submitting a Rezoning Application to reclassify the three (3) southern parcels on the site
(7 61-9994-005 Is zoned R-6 with OL-1, 761-9997-003 Is zoned R-6 with OL-1, 786-9981-004 IS zoned R-6
wth OL-1), to a B-4 Zoning The northern parcel (761-9992-002) is currently zoned B-4, so the
reclass1f1cat1on of the southern parcels to B-4 would give the B-4 zoning classification to all of the
parcels

The narrative has the following sections
I Site
II Owner Information
Ill Proposed Use of Site
IV Buildings Proposed for Site
V Project Phasing
VI Site Considerations

I. Site.
The site Is located at 752 l South 31st Street mn the City of Franklin The property stretches between South
31stand South 35/h Street, Just south of West Minnesota Avenue, and contains the following four ( 4)
parcels (starting with the northern most parcel and moving south) that total approximately 45 acres

761-9992-002 Is zoned B-4
76 l-9994-005 Is zoned R-6 with OL-1
761-9997-003 Is zoned R-6 with OL-1
786-9981-004 IS zoned R-6 with OL-1

The Root River traverses through the western portion of the site near 35th Street and much of the
property (about 2/3 of the site) Is wetlands and heavily treed woodlands There Is a pond that
straddles the southern parcels and two detention ponds that were constructed by MMSD In 2019 to
help m1t1gate and control rainwater run-off across the property headed to the Root River at the
western edge of the property The eastern 1 /3 (approximately 12- 13 acres) Is gently sloping



(east to west) farm fields and that is where the proposed development will take place There are no
planned structures, roads, or infrastructure proposed mn the wetlands or woodlands on the bottom 2/3
of the site Communities of Crocus has a Purchase Agreement to buy the property from current
owner, Northwestern Mutual

II. Owner Information.
Communities of Crocus (CoC) s a nonprofit (501 )(c)(3) started by Amy Hansel and Emily (Trevor)
Peters Both are parents of children on the autism spectrum and/or with Down Syndrome The mIssIon
of Communities of Crocus Is to create supportive homes of choice for adults (18 years of age and
above) with autism and s1m1lar intellectual and developmental disab1ht1es that give them a sense of
pride, accomplishment, and dignity by providing housing and supportive servtces within a natural
environment

Communities of Crocus is led by a Board that includes the following
• Amy Hansel (President) Amy has spent the past 26 years as a cIvl servant working for the
Federal Government She has extensive expenence building relat1onsh1ps with people from
various backgrounds, at all levels and from all over the world
• Emily Peters (Vice President) Emily Is a 25-year sales executive at the Xerox Corporation
working with Fortune 1000 companies in the Midwest where she has ma1nta1ned long
lasting relationships with her clients and built trust as an advisor of business solutions
• Andy Polee (Director). Andy has over three decades of expenence managing complex
real estate proiects from 1ncept1on through to successful completion Currently a Vice
President with Milwaukee-based lrgens Partners, he has pnor involvement with different types
of medical real estate and housmng, from independent lvmng for senors to assisted lvng and
skilled nursing care throughout the US
• Rechelle Chaffe (Director). Rechelle serves as the Executive Director of Autism Society SE WI
and has family members on the spectrum She has championed for Autism awareness,
education and supports by providing programs and services that benefit the Autism
community She brings a passion for advocacy efforts to work every day
• Chris Zirbes (Director). Chris has developed a successful professional career of working for
small community, family-owned banks and Is a Senor Vice President of commercial lending
at Horicon Bank He Is also a proud member of the Wauwatosa Mayfair Rotary

Ill. Proposed Use of the Site.

The goal Is to create a community with a range of housing and support programs for adults ( 18 years

and above) with autism or s1m1lar intellectual and developmental d1sab1ht1es However, an equally

important goal of the proJect Is to provide natural supports by offering market rate housing

opportunutes for the parents/family members of the residents and others who chose to live In the

community and partc1pate n the lives of these unique mdvduals

In addition, Communities of Crocus will provide an educational support building (called the

Supportive Hub) where the residents and others in the greater community, including adults with autism

and similar intellectual and developmental dlsab1l1t1es, can get the support and services they need to

live as independently as possible In add1t1on, the Hub will provide services and support for parents,



family members, caregivers, and others involved in the continuum of care for these 1ndiv1duals

The residents l1v1ng In the CARE homes and the APTS at Communities of Crocus will have a broad

range of abilities and needs and Coe will meet those needs through diverse housing options that will

include the following

THfCltlommun es o rocus ous ng Types

Name of Building Description Number of Number of
Building Buildings / Units Buildings / Units
Type For Adults with For Parents/

Autism /IDD Family

Care Homes The CARE Homes are designed for Three Homes, each
with four (4) one-

autistic adults with complex or bedroom Apts = 12
higher levels of need, including up total Apts

to 24/7 services and support The
*Plans are In place

home includes addrtional to add a fourth
centralized and private support/ home in the future

engagement space for staff/
Future total = 16

residents

Apartments The APTS are for individuals with 32 one-bedroom
autism and smmlar intellectual apartments
and developmental dlsab1ht1es 1-Try 1t apartment
who, with the help of 1-four-bedroom respite
mndrvdualzed servces and apartment
support, are able to live more
independently, navigate the Total = 34 apartments
greater community, and with the potential for
engage mn work and other 36, see below
lifelong learning opportunities

*Plans are to look into
adding two additional
one-bedroom
apartments for
resident support staff

Duplex 6-7 duplexes for
Homes total of 12-14

Units

Townhomes 8 Townhomes for
a total of 8 Units

Totals 52 Units for Adults 20 -22 Units for
with Autism Family Members

or Caregivers

C



IV. Buildings Proposed for the Site.
The goal for the Communities of Crocus development Is to provide options for housing and
support/resources spaces so that adults with autism and similar disabilities can lrve as mndependently
as possible 1n a community that also provides options for their parents/family members and other
Interested parties to live in the same community The entire Communities of Crocus project is designed
to feel like a res1dent1al community that fits In with the neighborhood to the north and west The Care
Homes and Centre at Crocus are one-story bu1ld1ngs surrounded by expansive lawn areas with
landscapmg buffers surrounding the buldmngs and screening vews The building exterors will be
constructed with a blend of masonry (brick) and cement board siding They will feature a
comb1nat1on of flat and gently sloped roofs meant to recall the mid-century modern architectural
style that features homes with lots of windows and daylight, and large roof overhangs that stretch out
and stay low to the ground

Care Homes {Phase 1).
Each Care Home Is a 6,000 SF single-story residence for adults with autism and each home
features four (4) fully independent one-bedroom apartments with a central commons
space The four (4) one-bedroom apartments are each approximately 650 square feet,
are fully ADA accessible, and include a kitchen, living room, bedroom, and bathroom
Each apartment has an exterior porch off of the living room, connecting each of the
apartments to the outdoor lawn areas The central area provides a gathering space for
the residents with a shared lrvmng room / gaming area and an additional shared kitchen,
laundry room, and sensory room Another shared amenity are two lounges, or 'Relax and
Ready Rooms', that contrnn soft seating, a desk, and provide an additional enclosed
lounge space for residents and staff In addition, the commons space includes an office
area for the staff who will be supporting the residents, a nurse's office, restroom,
mechanical, and storage rooms

Centre at Crocus (Phase 1 ).
The Center Is a 15,000 square-foot single story building with a basement The Centre 1s
intended to be a support bu1ld1ng for the Care Homes where the 12 residents who live 1n the
Homes (and others with sImIlar needs In the greater community) will engage 1n lifelong
learning, social engagement, and therapeutic opportunities The Centre has spaces or zones
for recreation, hfe skills training, therapy, art and mus1c-mak1ng, relaxation, and leisure It 1s
env1s1oned that the residents will move through the zones over the course of the day with 3-4
residents In each zone at a time Defined Centre zones include
• Recreation Zone this space includes a large open area with a track space for walking and
tricycle use, as well as a central area with fitness equipment such as stationary bikes and
ellipticals There is also a separate Jungle Gym Room with an adult size climbing structure, a
heated therapy pool with supporting locker rooms, showers, and changing rooms
• Life Skills Training Zone this space features a kitchen area used for demonstrating
cooking, nuintonal classes and, cleaning skills The kutchen will serve as an eating and
learning area and provide an opportunity to decrease health mnequities for thus population
This area will also include a separate personal care area where individuals can engage In
health and hygiene instruction
•Art+ Music Zone this space will feature a large room for art classes with tables for pa1nt1ng,



drawing, and sculpture-making, cabinets for art storage, and countertops with double-bowl
sinks The music and media room will feature spaces for musical instruments, as well as
shelving for a small library of books Both rooms can also be used as art and music therapy
spaces
• Leisure Zone this zone features quiet places to hang-out and relax Spaces will allow for
watching moves, playng vdeo games, or just relaxing with fends
• Therapy Zone this space 1s dedicated for therapists to hold speech, art, music, or
general therapy sessions with the residents

The Centre will have a full-time director, as well as office spaces and conference room for
residents, staff, or aides to use for meetings
The partial basement below the one-story Centre 1s env1s1oned to provide mechanical
spaces, a safe zone/shelter 1n case of tornado or weather events, and also future program
space, should 1t be needed

Hub (Phase 1).
The Hub is an approximately 17,000 square-foot single story building The Hub is envisioned to
serve the broader Franklin and Milwaukee County community with educational and tra1n1ng
programs The Communities of Crocus offices wll be mn the Hub, and tt is envisioned that
several Continuum of Care community partners will also have space in the building The
spaces In the Hub will include

• Communities of Crocus Administrative Offices
• Family Resource Center with books, videos, and other pubhcat1ons and resources
This area will include shelving areas for resources, a reading room, reception area,
and a meetng room
• Caregiver Training Suite
• Life Skills Suite including a kitchen and mock-up bathrooms, bedroom, and
laundry room for use 1n Life Skills training classes
• Game Room and Maker Space
• Support and public spaces including lobby, restrooms, sensory rooms, and staff
lounge
• Multi-purpose Room for lectures, training, seminars, and events
• Partner Suite l a suite for a community partner to lease space that includes
offices, meeting area, and open space for program requirements
• Partner Suite 2 a suite for a community partner to lease space that includes
offices, meeting area and open space for program requirements

Apartments (Phase 2).
The Apartment Building will be for adults wth autism and similar intellectual and
developmental disab1ht1es who are able to live more independently with the help of services
and support Many of these individuals would work in the community, and a small number
may also drve The apartment building is mn early concept design, so plans and elevations are
not yet complete The apartment building Is envisioned to be erther a two-story building (wnth
an underground basement level for parking) or a three-story bu1ld1ng {with parking and a
lobby on the main level with two (2) levels of apartments above The building will feature
mostly one-bedroom apartment units along with several two-bedroom units for a total of 32



apartments The building would also have an apartment manager unit (possibly two) and
that person would function as a resident assistant who would provide support for the
residents, as well as a Try-it-out urnt and a respite 4-bedroom apartment The total unit count
mn the apartment building is 36 units Architecturally it would use a similar blend of materials as
the Care Homes and Centre, such as brick and siding and 1t will feature sloped and flat roofs
to compliment the rest of the community

Community Pavilion (Phase 2).
An open-air, covered pavlon is planned to be surrounded by approximately 400 - 500
square feet of an open lawn area It could be used to host Crocus and other community
events geared to the greater community, including a farmer's market The structure would
include some support spaces such as restrooms and storage area
Duplex Homes (Phase 3).
The project proposes that up to seven duplex market-rate homes be built for parents, family
members, and other interested parties of the adults living In the CARE Homes or APTS Each
of the homes are planned to be duplexes, built on basements with two-car garages, having
approximately 1,600-2,000 square feet-
Townhomes (Phase 3).
The project proposes that 8 townhomes be built as a part of Phase 3 The townhomes would
likely be 2 ½ or 3 stones with a two-car garage on the lowest level Currently shown as two
buildings, each wth four (4) units along South 31st Street

V. Project Phasing.
The project Is proposed to be constructed mn 3 phases, however, fundrais1ng efforts will impact the
timing of how the community will develop and when structures are built The phases are currently
planned as follows

Phase 1 will be focused on development of the northern parcel (761-9992-002) that will include the
following

• Main entry off of South 31s Street and private street
• Care Homes
• Centre at Care
• Parking lot between the Centre and the HUB

Phase 2 will be focused on development of the second parcel (761-9994-005) and will include the
following

• Extension of the private streets and the add1tIon of a second entry/egress onto South 31t Street
Supportive Housing Hub· Apartment Building

• Communrty Pavlon
Phase 3 will be focused on the development of the southernmost parcels (761-9997-005, 786-9981
004) and will include the following

• Extension of the pnvate roads
• 7 Duplex homes
• 8 Townhomes



VI. Site Considerations.
Stormwater.
The project will need to comply with all City of Franklin storm water requirements We
envIsIon providing an underground storm water storage system somewhere on our site

Landscape.
Today the 45-acre site has extensive woodlands and many natural features It Is important to
note that the Communities of Crocus development is not proposing any bu1ld1ngs be
constructed mn the western 2/3rd of the site where the woodlands, wetlands and Root River
are located All of the development is located on the eastern and open and gently sloping
3rd of the site along 31/Street The project will meet all Crty landscape requirements and will
provide a landscape buffer along the north property edge to the residential houses

Traffic/Streets.
Upon completion of all phases of the Communities of Crocus development there will be at
total of 74 housing units added Many of the unuts wll be occupied by adults wrth autism who
will not dnve or need a car, however, there will be v1s1tors to the Hub and staff who work at
the Centre and Care Home The proJect will construct a new entrance to the Community
which will align with the entrance/egress from the Statesmen Apartments directly across the
street The internal development streets will be pnvate roads and are proposed to be 24'
wide An additional entry/exit will also be added as part of Phase 2 to serve the southern
parcels 1nclud1ng the apartment building Given the two entry/exit points along South 31stand
the low density for the site, 1t Is anticipated that traffic on the street will be minimally affected

Utilities.
The project mtends to tie into the electnc, water, telecommunications, and sanitary utilities
that are located mn and along South 31t Street The connections will be worked out with the
City of Frankln and Utity provders as the site plan is developed The utilities design will
comply with all Crty and utility requirements

Lighting.
The project wll need to comply wth all City of Franklin lighting requirements We recognze
that at pubhc meetings with the neighborhood there were lots of concerns expressed
about hght pollution In response, the project commits to keeping any required lIght1ng
poles as low as possible and to using full cut-off lighting fixtures along any street or In
parking areas The project will use an exterior lghtng control system to ensure that any
redundant extenor lighting Is turned off as early as possible In the evening

Fencing.
The four Care Homes and their lawn areas are proposed to be fenced to ensure that the
residents stay on the Communities of Crocus property The fence Is proposed as a6' tall
painted decorative metal fence and 1t will be buffered by additional landscaping The
fenced area will completely enclose the Care Homes and provide a secure connection
to the Centre so that residents of the Care Homes can safely move between the
Center and their apartments
w \forms\corres2018\normal dotm



[Ms
PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT

September 27, 2024

Amy Hansel - President, CEO, Communities of Crocus

Kevin Allebach, RA - Principal, HGA

Patricia Chin - Civil Engineering Associate, HGA

Subject: Letter of Support agreeing to the meeting held at MMSD between MMSD, Communities
of Crocus, and HGA

This letter supports and agrees to the meeting notes for the meeting held at MMSD on
September 19th between MMSD, Communities of Crocus and HGA. The Milwaukee
Metropolitan Sewerage District (MMSD) is committed to working with partners like Communities
of Crocus to promote a cleaner environment.

MMSD is a regional government agency that provides water reclamation and flood management
services for about 1 1 million people in 28 municipalities in the greater Milwaukee area. We
serve 411 square miles that cover all, or segments of, six watersheds. Established by state law,
MMSD is governed by 11 commissioners and has taxing authority

Please work with Andy Kaminski of my staff who can be reached at 414-225-2245,
akaminski@mmsd.com, to address any questions about this effort.

Sincerely,

Andy Kaminski, PE
Senior Project Manager

Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District
260 W. Seeboth Street, Milwaukee, WI 53204-1446

414-272-5100 www.mmsd.com $

.,,,,,,.0
~1'1(1/1'



Meeting Minutes: Communities of Crocus - MMSD Informational Meeting
Date & Time Thursday, September 19, 2024, 2pm
Location
Attendees

Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District, 260 W Seeboth St
Andy Kaminska, PE - Sen1or Project Manager, MMSD
Amy Hansel - President, CEO, Communities of Crocus
Kevin Allebach, RA - Principal, HGA
Patricia Chin - Crvl Engineering Associate, HGA

Key DIscuss1on Pomnts

Background mnformation on the existing MMSD Wetlands
a Wetlands were designed and constructed as part of a community based Green

Infrastructure (GI) program aimed at implementing GI solutions at a larger and
faster scale

b Funding for the project was contingent upon wetland creation
c The design of the existing wetlands did not account for future mmpervous cover

cons1derat1ons., instead leaving that to the future developer
2 Additional information regarding the wetlands

a The wetlands are encompassed by a L1m1ted Term Conservation Easement,
created with the intent of protecting the wetlands established with their
construction

b The Conservation Easement establishes protocols and schedules for
maintenance of the wetlands

1 Timelmne
The first 5 years of the easement term the wetlands w1 II be
maintained by Corvas Infrastructure Solutions (CIS)

2 The remaining 5 years will require the landowner of the property
to uphold the maintenance procedures

11 Maintenance
Maintenance currently consists of full mowing twice per year
(early Spring and late Fall), along with occasional herb1c1dal
treatments to remove invasive species

2 Wetlands should generally be left undisturbed outside of these
actIvIt Ies to allow wetland vegetation to take hold

3 Maintenance will theoretically be the most costly during the first 3
years while wetland vegetation Is being established

3 Impacts of the Communities of Crocus Development
a The exIstIng ponds limit access to the natural lows on site to outlet stormwater

from thus site We discussed the feasibility/requirements for this development to
discharge to the ponds as a transitory means to reach the floodplain

1 The conservation easement was established with the intent to protect
and maintain the wetlands MMSD feels that rt will be possible to outlet
to the wetland ponds, but will need to review any designs and alternative
options for discharge, so long as



Any wetlands disturbed by this construction are restored by the
developer

2 Rip-rap 1s added at discharge points to m1t1gate potential for
erosion Issues

a Any erosion issues that arise will be the responsibility of
the developer to repair

3 Stormwater release rates are in compliance with the standards
set forth by the City of Franklin

a No concerns regarding changes to the flow rates and
affects on the wetland plantings

4 Wetland capacity 1s confirmed following the add1t1on of flows
from the new development

5 Drivable access to the wetlands 1s preserved for maintenance
and upkeep purposes

4 Additional items discussed
a Encroachment into the Conservation Easement with construction equipment and

site grading 1s perm1ss1ble so long as the overall drainage patterns to the
wetlands are not altered and wetland integrity 1s maintained

b Total Suspended Solids (TSS)
1 Potential for usage of the ponds to address phosphorus reduction, will

need approval from MMSD & City of Franklin
11 Sediment deposit cannot negatively impact the wetlands and would

need to be addressed prior to release of stormwater into the wetlands
c Likelihood of high groundwater in this area will make infiltration of stormwater

difficult, discussed potential options for alternative GI opportunities
1 Rain Guardian Turret an outfall structure used to collect sediment prior
to discharge This would require regular maintenance to remove
sediment buildup

nu Varation to Bioswale design to improve TSS removal despite high
groundwater

Next Steps
1 Official approval from MMSD will be required to move forward with any construction

proposed w1th1n the l1m1ts of the Conservation Easement
2 A memo should be submitted to MMSD at the 30% design stage requesting perm1ss1on

to connect through the ponds The memo will include
a Statement of intent
b Proposed actions to incorporate GI-based stormwater management practices
c Llm1tat1ons of the site and development that 1nh1b1t GI practices
d Alternative means that have been explored and the reason for being discounted



<(
lJ
I - Xw

e i !i a, lr .
' 1 ; e
i %1 ~i I# !i Hi •
I # ~

iy • hi .. ~ il i Ji l:: H l:tt .,3 i 'ii 'I· iii ; .. ~ • :il i #! lj i#! I i,, i! l !•j
" • UI H #4H ; ~ ' 'II ( \ \' \ ' ' ' \

) \ );I ') I

\ \ \ \ ( \ \

®

,..
j

®

0

e

0

e

0

0

®

M -M- -M

.AR± L"_

®

_J



<(
C)
I -

2as
....J 1-W :C
t-<CU.X
W WU. Was

w <(
o m,_

w
V,

N

Xw

ii
€

®

®®®i
la

0

e

€

0

e

0

vs we vs vs vs h@devs vs

rtrtrt
I @ l®l®I ® I® I®
i i i i i i

_J



<( h f ~,~ I
3 t, a

CJ
~ .;;::;
w

*
..,

I 5 ~ t;i

I JI
a' t

,. z ; •,. j8 ..
Xw

®

!

®

e

0

0

e

e

®

® I " i
, .,., .,, ~;:-..0 •~•, ,..., , .._,.,,, ..,,~ .,,• ._ ~ _,., ._, .., l

®

_J



<(
CJ
I

Xw

! [ j

! 8 i,
: i ##
~ • mh !•i 1;
:; ! oil

ii • l•;; %£
,; i ±I?
H 1•3

' ,a;ii < l□ \ \ -,
\ \

I I '/~ \ \\

®

e

0

0

ia
® ®

M e

.AR± L",

®

_J



± ttP 8 ~ Pi

<( - - -1 0 i;i t)),~ ! I I I I 0 ,.:,

CJ a. z1- "' "' £
I I "' .':l

I i- ! 8 ff /

LO

Xw

_J



<(
CJ
I

e

• hi#i 'i

EE.es

- j
I
i

i

®

<D

Xw

_J



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATION

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Annual Report of the City of Franklin's Tourism
Commission Activity and 2025 Budget

MEETING DATE

November 6, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

,3.
The Chair of the Tourism Commission, Lance Schafer, Director ofEconomic Development, John Regetz,
and associates will report on the activities and expenditures of the Tourism Commission for 2024 and
submit its 2025 annual budget as stipulated in Franklin City Ordinance 2016-2244.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

No action requested. This presentation is for providing an annual report from the Tourism Commission.

Economic Development Department-jgr,



TOURISM COMMISSION
Fund 17

DEPARTMENT: Tourism Commission

PROGRAM MANAGER: Director of Economic Development/ Tourism Commission

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION:

The Franklin Tourism Commission was created by ordinance on December 6, 2016, pursuant to
Wis. Stat. § 66.0615. The Commission is responsible for coordinating tourism promotion and
tourism development within the City and is made up of 5 members, including at least one
representative of the Wisconsin hotel and motel industry. The Commission is staffed by the
Director of Economic Development.

SERVICES:

• The Tourism Commission will use the room tax appropriated to the Commission for tourism
promotion and tourism development in the City;

• The Tourism Commission has contracted with Engage Franklin to promote the City and the
Tourism businesses located in the City and provide transient tourist informational services;

• Engage Franklin will conduct marketing projects, including advertising media buys, creation
and distribution of printed or electronic promotional tourist materials, or efforts to recruit
conventions, sporting events, or motor-coach groups;

• The Tourism Commission will undertake tangible municipal development including, but not
limited to, a convention center, research and specific promotions, as well as assisting local
tourism entities with a grant program;

• The Tourism Commission will submit a report to the Common council on or before
November 1 of each year itemizing its expenditures and proposing its budget for the
following year.

STAFFING:

ACTIVITY MEASURES:

Activity 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 * 2025 *
Room Taxes 359,042 207,271 406,681 471,578 481,215 495,700 510,600
-All Funds

Estimate; # Tourism Commission revenue projections

BUDGET SUMMARY:
1. 2018 was the first year of budget expenditures for the Commission with an outlay for tourism

and city branding.
2. The 2025 budget was prepared by the Director of Economic Development with direction

from the Tourism Commission.
3. Commission expenditures are regulated by Wis. Stats. § 66.0615 and must be used to

pursue tourism development and tourism promotion activities.



<t 0) 0 0 C') cooooooooo-o lO t CX)
..... 0) ..... s:f"O 0 0 lO lO
2 o o 0)0 o CX) ....... "!.

" 0)0 0 coo C') -.:t' ..... CX)
N ..- t lO 0) ..... (0 .......

N :::J > C') (Y) Ngs5
<( <(

t o3 ± ..... OOs;tOOOOOOs;f"O 0 CX) (Y)

- >l
CX) 0 0) t lO <ON ....... .....
<0_ q o ON N CX) N lO 0

N C1l '=:'. 0) N 0 0 N 0N :::J >g ..... N lO (0 (0
(V) C')

<( <(

00 0 0 lO 0 0000000 lO lONO N
to v O<OIO

'
0000000 ..... 0

co lO O ..- 0000000 ....... ................... r-: co Soi-ooo o5 CX)lO ..- (0
(V) C') (0 (Y) ..... t

N (Y)

0 lO N
00 0
0 CX) 0o o
lO ..- C')

C')

00000
OOIOOIO
OONO<O

-- GN

0000
OOIOO
OONN'

-- S

0 lO 0
lO I'-- lO
CX) (0 ..... 'oo

c:!i

(0
0co
#
(Y)

0
0
0)o
3

00
00
0)0
coVN.
(V) .....
(V)

<00
00
CX) 0

co --s;j" .....
(Y)

I-
V,

S
IO (J Wuu O
o go
N :::,Ii: ca

w
C

Cl I-
20

<t LI <(
3i&
N <( 0:::

uI O>- LL

I-en+ olvu OozoN ::,t:: co
w
Cl

..,.
8....s
t
(!)
C::,
ca

i
C
IO
N
0
N
z
0
G6
V,=:i:
0u
:i:
V,
o2
:::,
0
I-

co
(V)
co
lO
'.....

lO
(0
0
,-!.

0:::wco
5::,
z
_J

D

z
0
~z
(.)en
w
Cl



TOURISM COMMISSION 2024 ACTIVITIES

• Amended Naming Rights Agreement with Engage Franklin to accommodate formation
schedules;

• Collaborated with Engage Franklin on Room Tax revenue stream;
o Working with Finance Director to distribute Room Taxes on 70%/30% shares with

the Tourism Commission and 75% thereof to Engage Franklin;

• Created Tourism Commission Grant Fund to support tourism projects that create hotel stay
nights;

o Updated Guidelines and developed application form;
o Awarded funds to three small events, Engage Franklin will handle in the future
o Funded printing of two Parks Dept. pamphlets
o Entertained three capital projects, one under consideration

ROOM TAX REVENUE FLOW TO ENGAGE FRANKLIN

• Tourism Commission gets money from overnight hotel stays (split with City)

• Tourism Commission recognizes there is more same day tourism to Franklin than overnight

• Tourism Commission funds Engage Franklin to explore those tourism opportunities (75/25)

• Engage Franklin reports progress and activities to Tourism Commission

• Franklin and Franklin businesses benefit.

CITY OF FRANKLIN TOURISM COMMISSION



Thank you for your interest in working with the Franklin Tourism Commission.

Mission Statement:

The Tourism Commission mission is to promote the City of Franklin, Wisconsin as the premiere destination
in Southeastern Wisconsin for fun, business, and entertainment & recreation.

Our Core Values:

• MARKET: We engage in marketing activities designed to increase tourism awareness.
• BRAND: We brand Franklin as a place that has a high quality of life for both residents and

visitors.
• WELCOME: We support visitors and businesses.
• DEVELOP: We partake in activities designed to bring additional revenue streams to the

commission and city.

Please keep in mind that by state statute, Tourism Commission funds must be used for tourism
promotion and development that is likely to generate paid overnight stays at local hotels .

• • •
If you would like to request funds or assistance from the Tourism Commission, we invite you to present
at one of our monthly meetings, as our agenda allows. Please keep in mind the above mission and core
values when making your request, and be prepared to provide answers to the following questions:

• Requesting Organization & Contact Info
• Event/Project Description & Timing
• Impact on Lodging. How does your request translate to overnight tourism for the City? (i.e.

how will this request get us "heads in beds"?)
• Event/Project Budget. Please include the full budget for your event or project as well as the

amount you are requesting from the Tourism Commission. If necessary, prioritize your needs
clearly so we know where you need the most support.

• Use of Funding Support. Please describe in detail how the funds from the Tourism Commission
will be specifically utilized.

You may choose to present a written document or presentation, or you may talk to each of these points,
but please make sure all the above questions will be answered when making your request.

FRANKLIN TOURISM COMMISSION



CITY OF FRANKLIN
TOURISM GRANT PROGRAM

APPL/CATION

Date

Tourism Commission Use Only

Application Number:

Amount Requested:

Section 1: Applicant Information I Description ofOrganization
Applicant

Address City State ZIP Code

Authorized Representative Title Telephone Number

Contact Person Title Telephone Number

E-Mail Address Fax Number

Background of organization

Mission and Objectives of organization

Target Markets of organization



TOURISM GRANT PROGRAM - GRANT APPLICATION

Section 2: ProjectInformation
Project Title

Detailed Project Description

Expected Outcomes

What are the project's attendance goals

Please identify how this project/program will specifically be able to generate paid overnight stays in hotels
within the City of Franklin, WI.

What are the Specific Geographic and MarketTargets for the Project?

2



TOURISM GRANT PROGRAM - GRANT APPLICATION

Section 2: Project information (Continued)
Timeline For Implementation

Staffing Requirements

Section 3: Financial Information
Plans For Sustaining the Project's Funding Upon the Expiration ofthe Grant

List Project Funding Sources, Amounts and Budget Percentage

Explain in Detail How the Tourism Commission Funds will be used in the Project.

3



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN
OFFICIALS TOEXECUTE AN ENVIRONMENTAL
SERVICE RECYCLING AGREEMENT WITH
VEOLIA ES TECHNICAL SERVICES LLC.

MEETING DATE
11/6/2024

ITEM NUMBER

Background: The City of Franklin Health Department has outdated medical supplies in need
of recycling. Upon contacting the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District in regards of
ways to recycle this waste, they directed us to Veolia ES Technical Services LLC for our
recycling needs.

Recommendation: The Director of Health and Human Services recommends approval to
execute the 2024 Veolia ES Technical Services LLC Environmental Services Recycling
agreement with a one time total cost of $1,124.96.

Fiscal Note: The funds to recycle these medical supplies will be allocated from the Health
Department's currentmedical supply budget.

The contract has been sent to the City of Franklin legal counsel for review in September 2024
with no changes recommended.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Adopt Resolution 2024- .A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute the
2024 Veolia ES Technical Services LLC Environmental Services Recycling agreement with a
one time total cost of $1,124.96.

Health Department: LG



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2024

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
draft 11/6/2024

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO EXECUTE AN
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH VEOLIA ES TECHNICAL

SERVICES LLC FOR WASTE DISPOSAL.

WHEREAS, the City is in need of disposing of outdated medical supplies; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin Health Department contacted the Milwaukee
Metropolitan Sewerage District in regards to recycling this waste; and

WHEREAS, the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District directed the Franklin Health
Department to Veolia ES Technical Services LLC for such services; and

WHEREAS, Veolia ES Technical Services LLC offers recycling services for such
medical supplies and waste, and the Common Council having determined the services to be
provided by an experienced service provider are in the public interest.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the City of Franklin Health Department Agreement with Veolia
ES Technical Services LLC, be and the same is hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor, Director of Finance and Treasurer and
City Clerk be and the same are hereby authorized to execute and deliver such agreement.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of2024.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
thisday of2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



Docusign Envelope ID 52F2D05-6A9E-4BAD-B485-E056ACE00DO3

AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT, is made and entered into this 2"" day of October 2024, between the City
of Frankl1, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklmn, Wisconsin 53132 (hereinafter "CLIENT") and
(hereinafter "CONTRACTOR?""), Veola Es Technical Services, LLC, W6490B Spec1alty Dr.,
Greenville, WI 54942 whose principal place of business is environmental services and waste
recycling.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR is duly qualified and experienced as a municipal services
contractor and has offered services for the purposes specified in this AGREEMENT; and

WHEREAS, m the judgment of CLIENT, it is necessary and advisable to obtam the services
of the CONTRACTOR to provide mercury waste recycling;

NOW, THEREFORE, m consideration of these premises and the following mutual
covenants, terms, and conditions, CLIENT and CONTRACTOR agree as follows:

I. BASIC SERVICES AND AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION

A. CONTRACTOR shall provide services to CLIENT for mercury recyclmg, as
described in CONTRACTOR's proposal to CLIENT dated October 2, 2024,
annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Attachment A.

B. CONTRACTOR shall serve as CLIENT's professional representative in matters
to which this AGREEMENT applies. CONTRACTOR may employ the services
of outside consultants and subcontractors when deemed necessary by
CONTRACTOR to complete work under this AGREEMENT followmg approval
by CLIENT.

C. CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor and all persons furnishing services
hereunder are employees of, or independent subcontractors to, CONTRACTOR
and not of CLIENT. All obligations under the Federal Insurance Contnbution Act
(FICA), the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA), and income tax
withholding are the responsibility of CONTRACTOR as employer. CLIENT
understands that express AGREEMENTS may exist between CONTRACTOR
and its employees regarding extra work, competition, and nondisclosure.

D. During the term of this AGREEMENT and throughout the period of performance
of any resultant AGREEMENT, includmg extensions, modifications, or additions
thereto, and for a period of one (1) year from the conclusion of such activity, the
parties hereto agree that neither shall solicit for employment any technical or
professional employees of the other without the prior wntten approval of the
other party.

II. FEES AND PAYMENTS

Page-1



Docusign Envelope ID 52F28D05-6A9E-4BAD-B485-E056ACE00D03

CLIENT agrees to pay CONTRACTOR, for and mn cons1deration of the performance of Bas1c
Services further described mn Attachment A, with a not-to-exceed budget of $1,709.96, subject to the
terms detailed below:

A. CONTRACTOR may bill CLIENT and be paid for all work satisfactorily
completed hereunder on a monthly basis. CLIENT agrees to pay
CONTRACTOR's mvoice withm 30 days ofmvoice date for all approved work.

B. Total price will not exceed budget of $1,709.96. For services rendered, monthly
mvoices will include a report that clearly states the hours and type of work
completed and the fee earned during the month bemg invoiced.

C. In consideration of the faithful performance of this AGREEMENT, the
CONTRACTOR wll not exceed the fee for Bas1c Services and expenses without
written authonzation from CLIENT to perform work over and above that
described mn the original AGREEMENT

D. Should CLIENT find deficiencies in work performed or reported, 1t will notify
CONTRACTOR m writing within thirty (30) days of receipt of mvoice and
related report and the CONTRACTOR will remedy the deficiencies within thirty
(30) days of recervmgCLIENT's review. This subsection shall not be construed
to be a limitation of any rights or remedies otherwise available to CLIENT.

III. MODIFICATION AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A. CLIENT may, mn wnting, request changes mn the Basic Services required to be
performed by CONTRACTOR and require a specification of mcremental or
decremental costs prior to change order agreement under this AGREEMENT.
Upon acceptance of the request of such changes, CONTRACTOR shall submit a
"Change Order Request Form" to CLIENT for authorization and notice to
proceed signature and return to CONTRACTOR. Should any such actual
changes be made, an eqmtable adjustment will be made to compensate
CONTRACTOR or reduce the fixed price, for any incremental or decremental
labor or direct costs, respectively. Any clamm by CONTRACTOR for adjustments
hereunder must be made to CLIENT in writmg no later than forty-five (45) days
after receipt by CONTRACTOR of notice of such changes from CLIENT.

IV. ASSISTANCE AND CONTROL

A. Lauren Gottlieb will coordinate the work of the CONTRACTOR, and be solely
responsible for communication within the CLIENT's organization as related to all
issues onginatmg under this AGREEMENT.

B. CLIENT will timely prov1de CONTRACTOR wIth all available information
concerning PROJECT as deemed necessary by CONTRACTOR.

C. CONTRACTOR wll appoint, subject to the approval of CLIENT, Terry Gerner
CONTRACTOR's Project Manager and other key providers of the Basic
Services. Substitution of other staffmay occur only with the consent of CLIENT.

Page-2



Docusign Envelope ID 52F2BD05-6A9E-4BAD-B485-E056ACE00D03

V. TERMINATION

A. This AGREEMENT may be terminated by CLIENT, for its convenience, for
any or no reason, upon written notice to CONTRACTOR. This
AGREEMENT may be terminated by CONTRACTOR upon thirty (30) days
written notice. Upon such termination by CLIENT, CONTRACTOR shall be
entitled to payment of such amount as shall fairly compensate
CONTRACTOR for all work approved up to the date of termination, except
that no amount shall be payable for any losses of revenue or profit from any
source outside the scope of this AGREEMENT, mcludmg but not limited to,
other actual or potential agreements for services with other parties.

B. In the event that this AGREEMENT is terminated for any reason,
CONTRACTOR shall dehver to CLIENT all data, reports, summaries,
correspondence, and other wntten, printed, or tabulated material pertaining in
any way to Basic Services that CONTRACTOR may have accumulated. Such
material is to be delivered to CLIENT whether in completed form or in
process. CLIENT shall hold CONTRACTOR harmless for any work that is
incomplete due to early terminaton.

C. The nghts and remedies of CLIENT and CONTRACTOR under this section
are not exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law or appearing in any other article of ths AGREEMENT.

VI. INSURANCE

The CONTRACTOR shall, during the hfe of the AGREEMENT, mamtam insurance coverage with
an authorized msurance earner at least equal to the mmimum hmits set forth below:

A. General/Commercial Liabihty (Must
have General/Commercial)

$1,000,000 per each occurrence for bodily mjury,
personal injury, and property damage
$2,000,000 per general aggregate,

CITY shall be named as an addtonal mnsured on a
prmary, non-contrbutory basis

B. Automobile Liability (Must have $1,000,000 combined single limit
auto lablty)

CITY shall be named as an additional insured on a
prmary, non-contrbutory bass

C. Contractor's Pollution Ltabihty (If $1,000,000 per occurrence
applcable) $2,000,000 aggregate

CITY shall be named as an additional insured on a
pnmary, non-contnbutory basis

Page-3



Docusign Envelope ID 52F2BD05-6A9E-4BAD-B485-E056ACE00DO3

D. Umbrella or Excess L1ability $10,000,000 per occurrence for bodily myury,
Coverage for General/Commercial, personal injury, and property
Automobile Liability, and Contractor's
Pollution Liabihty

CITY shall be named as an additional nsured on a
primary, non-contrbutory basis.

E. Worker's Compensation
Employers' L1abluty (Must
workers compensation)

and Statutory
have

Contractor wll provide a waver of subrogaton
and/or any rights of recovery allowed under any
workers' compensation law.

F. Professional Liability (Errors & $2,000,000 single limit
Omissions) (Ifapplicable)

Upon the execut1on of this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall supply CLIENT with a suitable
statement certifying said protection and defining the terms of the policy issued, which shall specify
that such protection shall not be cancelled without thirty (30) calendar days prior notice to CLIENT,
and nammg CLIENT as an additional insured as required above.

VII. INDEMNIFICATION AND ALLOCATION OF RISK

A. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold
harmless CLIENT, CLIENT'S officers, directors, partners, and employees from and
agamst costs, losses, and damages (mcludmg but not limited to reasonable fees and
charges of engmeers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and reasonable
court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the negligent
acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR'S officers, directors,
partners, employees, and consultants mn the performance of CONTRACTOR'S
services under this AGREEMENT.

B. Nothmg contamed within this AGREEMENT is intended to be a waiver or estoppel
of the contractmg mumcipality CLIENT or its insurer to rely upon the limitations,
defenses, and immunities contained withm Wisconsin law, including those contained
within Wisconsm Statutes §§ 893.80, 895.52, and 345.05. To the extent that
indemmfication is available and enforceable, the municipahty CLIENT or its msurer
shall not be liable mn mndemnuty or contribution for an amount greater than the hmits
ofliability for mun1c1pal claims established by Wisconsin Law.

VIII. TIME FOR COMPLETION

CONTRACTOR shall commence work immediately havmg received a Notice to Proceed as of
October 15, 2024.

IX. DISPUTES

This AGREEMENT shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsin.
The venue for any actions arising under this AGREEMENT shall be the Circuit Court for Milwaukee

Page-4



Docusign Envelope ID 52F2BD05-6A9E-4BAD-B485-E056ACE00D03

County. The prevaihng party shall be awarded its actual costs of any such httgation, includmg
reasonable attorney fees.

X. RECORDS RETENTION

CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records pertaining to this AGREEMENT durmg the term of this
AGREEMENT and for a penod of 7 years followmg its completion. Such records shall be made
available by the CONTRACTOR to CLIENT for inspection and copying upon request.

XI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. Professionalism. The same degree of care, skull and diligence shall be exercised mn the
performance of the services as is possessed and exercised by a member of the same
profession, currently practicing, under similar circumstances, and all persons
providmg such services under this AGREEMENT shall have such active
certifications, licenses and permissions as may be required by law.

B. Pursuant to Law. Notwithstanding anythmg to the contrary anywhere else set forth
within this AGREEMENT, all services and any and all materials and/or products
provided by CONTRACTOR under this AGREEMENT shall be in compliance with
all applicable governmental laws, statutes, decisions, codes, rules, orders, and
ordmances, be they Federal, State, County or Local.

C. Conflict of Interest. CONTRACTOR warrants that neither it nor any of its affiliates
has any financial or other personal mterest that would conflict in any manner with the
performance of the services under this Agreement and that neither it nor any of its
affihates will acquire directly or indirectly any such interest. CONTRACTOR
warrants that it will immediately notify the CLIENT if any actual or potential conflict
of mterest arises or becomes known to the CONTRACTOR. Upon receipt of such
notification, a CLIENT review and written approval is reqmred for the
CONTRACTOR to continue to perform work under this Agreement.

D. This AGREEMENT may only be amended by wntten instrument signed by both
CLIENT and CONTRACTOR.

XII. CONTROLLING TERMS AND PROVISIONS

The aforesaid terms and prov1sons shall control over any conflicting term or prov1s1on of any
CONTRACTOR proposal, Attachment, Exhibit, and standard terms and provisions annexed hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed on the day
and year first above written.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

BY _

PRINT NAME John R Nelson

TITLE Mayor

{ADocuSlgned by•

· ±MKe RothPRINT NAME _

ts""""v
Page-5



Docusign Envelope IP. 52F2B005-6A9E-4BAP-B485-E056ACEOOD03

DATE 10/15/2024

BY _

PRINT NAME. Damelle L. Brown

TITLE D1rector of Finance and Treasurer

DATE

BY: _

PRINT NAME. Shirley J Roberts

TITLE City Clerk

DATE

Approved as to form

Jesse A Wesolowski, Caty Attorney
[)']',

DATE

Page-6



APPROVAL

Reports and
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Clear Channel Outdoor Media
Volition Franklin Contract

MEETINGDATE
11/06/2024

ITEM NUMBER

W4.
Background: Volition Franklin's primary mission is to reduce youth misuse of substances
including, alcohol, tobacco and other drugs. Volition Franklin strives to ensure youth have the
tools and knowledge to make the healthy decisions as they enter their adolescence and
beyond.

Analysis: Volition Franklin utilizes a variety of communication methods to share community
substance misuse prevention messaging, including print media such as billboards. Clear
Channel Outdoor Media is currently the only provider in outdoor marketing with billboards
located within the Franklin city limits. Volition Franklin has available grant funding to pursue
two billboards promoting safe medication disposal and mental health awareness.

The contract agreement has been reviewed by the City attorney and approved for signature
pending Council approval.

Fiscal Note: The contract total of $2,620 will be paid by a current Drug Free Communities
Grant. There will be no impact to the City of Franklin budget for these expenses

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

The Director of Health and Human Services requests a motion to approve the execution of the Clear Channel
Outdoor Media Volition Franklin Contract

Health Department: MC



Clear Channel Outdoor
VERSION 276829 10/22/2024 8O2 AM CDT

SALES CONTRACT

ACCOUNT EXECUTIVE
Inna Cromer
lnnaCromer@clearchannel com

ADVERTISER

Volition Franklin (#400904)
9229 W Loomis Rd
Franklin, WI 53132-9630

MILWAUKEE

OOH SERVICES

CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR, LLC
908 Silvernail Rd
Pewaukee, WI 53072

BILL TO

Volition Franklin (#400904)
9229 W Loomis Rd
Franklin, WI 53132-9630

ORDER #1240329-MKE
Volition Franklin - 2025 - 03/31/2025

Product

Poster

Poster

Display

#001369 - Hwy 100 SS 0.3ml EIO 76th
St FIE - 1 - 10'522'8°

#001370 -Hwy 100 SS O 3mi E/0 76th
St FIE - 2 - 10'5" 22'8"

4/28/2025 4-Week $1,200.00 1 0 $1,200 00

EIEIEIIAIIIEIRINE
3/31/2025 4-week $1,200.00 10 $1,200.00

PRODUCTION SERVICES

Description

Milwaukee eco poster

Milwaukee eco poster

COMMENTS

4/28/2025 $110 00 $110 00

MIMIEEIEEEIEI
3/31/2025 1 $11000 $110.00

Our records indicate that a tax-exempt cert ificate has been provided on your behalf to one or more Clear Channel markets associated with this
contract Based on that cert ificate, taxes were omitted from this contract. If the cert ificate 1s no longer valid or is not valid with respect to a
specific market or for specific services, applicable taxes will be added to your Invoice and you will be responsible for payment of such taxes

SUMMARY
Description Cos

OOH Services

Production Services

$2,400 00

$220 00
TOTAL $2620 00

Page 1 of 7



VERSION 276829 10/22/2024 8'02 AM CDT

DELIVERY OF PRODUCTION MATERIALS TO CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR
Please dellver production materials to the following addresses (based on your campaign's locations)·

Market Inventor Descri tion Address Contact Name Phone Number
Milwaukee 908 Silvernail Rd, Pewaukee,

Wl,53072
(773) 843-2000

Page 2 of 7



VERSION 276829 10/22/2024 802 AM CDT

[TERMS & CONDITIONS
1 DEFINED TERMS, As used in this Contract, these terms shallhave the meanings set forth below·
Advertising Materials' shall mean all Printed Advertising Materials, Digital Advertising Materials and Full Motion Digital Advertising Materials, as each is defined in Section 4
Campaign" shall mean the advertising campaign described in the Contract.
'CC Portal' shall mean the software utilized by Clear Channel and authorized Customers to serve and deliver Dynamic Content to non-motion digital signs as more thoroughly described in Section
42
Clear Channel' shall mean Clear Channel Outdoor LLC a Delaware limited liability company and its successors and assigns
Commencement Date shall mean the date identified as the commencement date of the Campaign in the Contract.
Confidential Information" shall mean any non public information relating to or disclosed by a party arising from or in connection with this Contract.
Contract" shall mean the applicable sales contract for advertising services these terms and conditions and all guidelines expressly referred to herein all as the same may be modified from time to
time
'Customer' shall mean the advertiser and any agency or buying service named in the Contract.
'Delivery Date shall mean the date(s) for the delivery of Advertising Materials as set forth In the Contract.
Dynamic Content' shall mean data and information feeds supplied by or on behalf of the Customer such as sports scores weather or traffic information
Full Motion Spec Sheet" shall mean lhe unique special instructions sheet associated with each fullmotion digital sign
Impressions Deliverables' means a Campaign delivered by Clear Channel without the guarantee of specific Sign(s) nor specific quantities of Sign(s)
'Quantity Deliverables' means a Campaign delivered by Clear Channel without the guarantee of specific Sign(s)
Sign' or Signs' shall mean the sign or signs identified In the Contractfor the placement of the advertising for the Campaign

2. PAYMENT
a Customer shall pay in advance for the services covered by this Contract unless otherwise expressly agreed to in writing
b If Clear Channel has extended credit to Customer Clear Channel shall from time to time at Intervals following the Commencement Date bill the Invoice to' Customer at the e-mail address set

forth in the Contract, or to the address provided by Customer ifCustomer chooses to receive invoices by mail.
c Payment by Customer for services rendered hereunder is due within 30 days of the date of the invoice unless otherwise agreed to in writing
d Past due accounts shall be charged Interest from the date of the invoice at a per annum rate of 12% or the highest rate allowed by applicable law whichever is less.
e I! Customer disputes any charges or notices any errors on an invoice Customer shall contact Clear Channel via email sent to ccobilling@clearchannel.com within 10 days of the invoice date

stating the Invoice number amount and description of the alleged dispute or error and provide any supporting documentation as may be reasonably required by Clear Channel All invoice charges
shall be considered valid if Customer fails to timely provide notice to Clear Channel of any dispute or error as required herein

f If Customer is past due in payment of any amount. Clear Channel may change the terms of payment by giving Customer written notice If Clear Channel refers this Contract for collection
Customer shall pay all collection costs incurred by Clear Channel Including reasonable attorney's fees and court costs

3. RIGHTS, OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER AGREEMENTS OFTHE PARTIES

3 1 OF CUSTOMER
a Customer represents and warrants to Clear Channel that

(1) at all times hereunder all of Customer's products and services, Advertising Materials and to the extent applicable all Dynamic Content, shall comply with all applicable federal stale and
local laws and regulations,

(2) Customer is the rightful owner or licensee of the advertising content and the advertising content (i) does not infringe violate or misappropriate any trademark, patent. copyright, trade
secret or any other intellectual property right of any third party (ii) does not contain libelous material and (iii) includes any disclaimers that may be required by applicable laws statutes, ordinances
rules and regulations

(3) if the Customer entering into this Contract is an agency or buying service it has the right to grant the rights and licenses granted herein and the right. power and authority to enter into this
Contract on behalf of the advertiser All legal obligations arising under this Contractare and shall be binding on said agency or buying service and the advertiser and

(4) if this Contract is entered into by an agency or buying service as Customer on behalf of an advertiser. such agency or buying service is liable for invoice payments only to the extent it has
been paid by the advertiser The agency or buying service hereby assigns to Clear Channel all of its rights title and interest in any claim it may hereafter have for non payment by advertiser or in the
event of a bankruptcy by the advertiser for payment under this Contract and agrees not to file any protest to such claim of Clear Channel

3 2 OF CLEAR CHANNEL
a Clear Channel at its sole discretion may reject or remove any advertising material artor copy for any reason or no reason at any time during the term of this Contract In such case (i) Clear

Channel and/or Customer may terminate this Contract and Clear Channel will reimburse Customer any prepaid amounts made by Customer to Clear Channel for the unexpired portion of the
Contract and (ii) unless Clear Channel's rejection or removal is due to Customer or Customer's advertising material Customer shall be entitled to receive from Clear Channel a sum equal to the
actual non-cancelable out-of-pocket costs necessarily incurred by Customer for production of Advertising Materials whichwas not displayed

b Subject to Clear Channel's right to remove posted copy all approved Advertising Materials shallbe posted installed and maintained by Clear Channel or its designee in accordance with the
terms of the Contract.

c Clear Channel shall furnish to Customer proof of performance as follows (1) Permanent Bulletin(s) one close-up photo or digital print for each creative execution within a bulletin campaign
including a performance report, (2) Rotary Bulletin{s) one close-up and one approach photo or digital print for each rotary start location and each creative execution including a performance report
Rotation cycles shall not be photographed unless the creative copy changes, (3) Poster(s) one close-up photo or digital print for each creative execution within a poster campaign including a
performance report and a completion report listing all locations/designs, and (4) Digital a performance reportconfirming the execution of the display(s) as contemplated in the Contract.
d Clear Channels obligations under this Contract are subject to and subordinate to the terms and conditions of any applicable leases and allother agreements, licenses and permits relating to

any Signs and to applicable federal state and local laws and regulations.
e If Advertising Materials are timely delivered Clear Channel shall complete posting or vinyl installation of the displays no later than 5 working days after the display date specified in the Contract

and commence billing on the date copy is fully displayed
f For non-digital Signs illumination will only be provided if Illumination is indicated on the Contract and will be from dusk until midnight. unless a dollar amount appears next to 'Extended

Illumination"• provided that in all cases illumination hours will be limited to those hours prescribed by applicable law
g Clear Channel reserves the right to preempt Customer's copy for special events or breaking news
h TOTHE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW CLEAR CHANNEL MAKES NOWARRANTIES OFANY KIND EXPRESS IMPLIED OR STATUTORY ABOUTTHE SERVICES DESCRIBED IN

THIS CONTRACTAND DISCLAIMS ALLWARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITYOR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE OR PURPOSE

3 3 SANCTIONS COMPLIANCE
a OFAC Representation Customer is and during the 6 years prior to the date of this Contract has been in compliance with all laws administered by the US Department of the Treasury's Office

of Foreign Assets Control ("OFAC ) or any other national or international governmental or inter-governmental organization with applicable jurisdiction over this Contract or the Customer imposing
economic sanctions and trade embargoes(' Economic Sanctions Laws') against designated countries ("Embargoed Countries") regimes, entities and persons (collectively Embargoed Targets')
Customer is not, and during the 6 years prior to lhe date of this Contract has not been an Embargoed Target or otherwise in breach of any Economic Sanctions Law

b OFAC Compliance Customer shall comply with all Economic Sanctions Laws Without limiting the generalityof the foregoing Customer shall not (a) directly or indirectly engage Clear Channel
on behalf of or redirect the Advertising Materials or any portion of the Advertising Materials or advertising content to or via an Embargoed Target or (b) broker finance or otherwise facilitate any
transaction In relation to the Advertising Materials In violation of any Economic Sanctions Law

3.4 PREVENTION OF ECONOMIC CRIME AND ANTI-CORRUPTION COMPLIANCE
a Customer will carry out its obligations under this Contract in compliance with all applicable laws relating to the prevention of bribery fraud tax evasion conflicts of interest, insider dealing and

money laundering (including without limitation applicable lobbying anti bribery anti-monopoly and government contracting laws rules and regulations and all applicable laws prohibiting fraud or
falsification of business documents and records) concerning interaction with public officials and private entities and Individuals U1at are from time to time In force Including but not limited to:

• The US Foreign Corrupt Practices Act 1977 and
• Any other applicable local state federal or international laws applicable to the operation of thus Contract or the Customer ( together "Applicable Economic Crime Laws")

b Customer shall ensure that all of Its shareholders, officers directors employees agents, and any other persons or entitles acting on Its behalf In connection with the operation of this Contract
(collectively the 'Customer Representatives ) do so only in compliance Applicable Economic Crime Laws Customer shall be responsible for the observance and performance by the Customer
Representatives of the Applicable Economic Crime Laws

4 CONTENT, PRODUCTION AND DELIVERY

41 PRINTED ARTWORK AND PRODUCTION MATERIALS
a Printed Advertising Materials' is defined as materials of qualityand in quantity as specified in the Production Contract ,f apphcable or as otherwise agreed lo by the parties to meet the needs

hereunder at places designated by Clear Channel shipping charges prepaid and Inweight tensile strength opacity size and sort. Customer shall be responsible for any and all costs in connection
with the creation, production and delivery to Clear Channel of the Printed Advertising Materials as contemplated under this Contract (but not less than a minimum quantity of one complete set of
materials and instructions for every display to be posted or vinyl installed)
b Customer shall deliver Printed Advertising Materials to Clear Channel not less than 5 business days prior to such Commencement Date If Clear Channel is printing the Advertising Materials

Customer shall deliver the creative file and any other required materials to Clear Channel not less than 15 business days prior ta the Commencement Date Clear Channel may require additional lime
for the delivery of Printed Advertising Materials as required under the circumstances including without limitation if third party approval for the Printed Advertising Materials is required

c II Customer requests within 60 days after the last date of the display of the Customers Printed Advertising Materials Clear Channel shall return any of the Customer's Printed Advertising
Materials in its possession to Customer at Customer's sole cost and expense and in 'as is condition If Customer does not so request, Clear Channel is hereby granted the right, at its sole oplion to
dispose of all such Printed Advertising Materials at any time after such 60-day period

Page 3 of 7



VERSION 276829 10/22/2024 8:02 AM CDT
4 2 NON-MOTION DIGITAL CONTENT, PRODUCTION AND RELATED MATTERS
a Customer shall be obligated to produce and deliver to Clear Channel any and all advertising copy or artwork, images, displays illuslrations reproductions and similar advertising materials in

digital format along with any copy instructions or similar directions, in uncompressed .jpg format, RGB color mode and in 4001400 pixels for Digital Bulletins 4005840 pixels for Digital Premiere
Panels 1920x1080 pixels for shelters or as otherwise agreed to by the parties (collectively the Digital Advertising Materials"). AI Digital Advertising Materials in form for proper execution of the
purpose of this Contract shall be delivered by Customer for receipt by Clear Channel no later than two (2) business days prior to the Commencement Date and through such method of delivery as
shall be designated by Clear Channel unless the Commencement Date is less than 2 business days from execution of this Contract. in which case Clear Channel shall inform Customer of the
deadline to deliver the Digital Advertising Materials to Clear Channel prior to the Commencement Date Customer shall be responsible for any and all costs in connection with the creation production
and delivery to Clear Channel of the Digital Advertising Materials as contemplated under this Contract
b Upon the written request of Customer Clear Channel in its sole discretion may permit the Customer to provide Dynamic Content for the CC Portal by providing the Customer with a password

to the CC Portal In no event shall the unavailability Inactivity or inoperablllly of the CC Portal constitute a breach of this Contract or provide Customer any right, claim remedy or otherwise under lhis
Contract or at law

c Customer acknowledges and agrees that (1) Clear Channel shall include such filtering technology in the CC Portal as ii shalldeem appropriate in its sole discretion to filter inappropriate
content from being served or delivered to Signs by Customer and (2) upon the occurrence of a breach of this Contract by Customer Clear Channel may in addition to all other remedies available to
It, and in its sole and absolute discretion revoke Customer's password and shut down its access to the CC Portal

4.3 FULL MOTION DIGITAL CONTENT, PRODUCTION AND RELATED MATTERS
a Customer shall be obligated lo produce and deliver to Clear Channel any and alladvertising copy or artwork images displays, illustrations, reproductions and similar advertising materials in

digital format along with any copy instructions or similar directions in compliance with the production specifications and in the manner provided by Clear Channel on the Full Motion Spec Sheet(s)
(collectively the "Full Motion Digital Advertising Materials")

b All Full Motion Digital Advertising Materials in form for proper execution of the purpose of this Contract shall be delivered by Customer for receipt by Clear Channel no later than five (5)
business days prior lo the Commencement Date Clear Channel shall make commercially reasonable efforts to review load and schedule property formatted Full Motion Digital Advertising Materials
not delivered by the deadline however Clear Channel reserves the right to delay the posting date of Customer's Full Motion Digital Advertising Material by one (1) business day for each day of delay
in the receipt of such materials without any rate proration or extension of the term
c. Any special feature requests such as but not limited to (i) synchronized audio (Ii) timed broadcast, (iii) where available use of a crowd camera, and (iv) streaming services are subject to

permits where applicable and additional charges above the standard media rate Clear Channel does not guarantee the availability of any special features tn addition no adjustment to Iha media
rate will be made should any special feature fail lo operate at Customer's desired performance level during the Customer's advertising campaign

4.4 QUANTITY DELIVERABLES
a Unless stated otherwise in the Contract for Campaigns sold on a Quantity Deliverables basis, Clear Channel shallhave sole discretion to select the mix ot Sign(s) and modify that mix during

the Campaign to deliver the guaranteed deliverables. Any Contract that specifies a quantity including without limitation a Target Rating Points (TRP) amount or the number of Slgn(s) that will display
Customer's advertising copy is sold on a Quantity Deliverables basis unless clearly indicated otherwise in the Contract.

4.5 IMPRESSIONS DELIVERABLES
Unless stated otherwise In the Contract, for Campaigns sold on an Impressions Deliverables basis Clear Channel shall have sole discretion to select the mix of Sign(s) and modify that mix during

the Campaign to deliver the Impressions Deliverables. Impressions delivered shall be calculated at the end of each performance period as defined by Clear Channel and on the basis of 2023
Geopath Impressions for the Sign(s) selected If Clear Channel does not deliver the required number of Impressions during the Campaign, Clear Channel shall not be in breach of the Contract,
however Customer shall not be charged for the portion of Impressions that were not delivered If applicable, Clear Channel shall refund to Customer any prepaid amounts for the portion of
Impressions that were not delivered Unless stated otherwise in the Contract, if Clear Channel overdelivers on the number of Impressions Customer's payment obligation shall be capped at the
amount shown in the Maximum Cost column of the Contract. Any Contract that specifies Impressions is sold on an Impressions Deliverables basis unless clearly indicated otherwise in the Contract.

4.6 ARCHIVAL MATERIALAND RIGHTTOUSE.
Clear Channel may keep Advertising Materials as it deems fit for Clear Channel's own archival purposes Customer authorizes Clear Channel to use a picture or photograph of Clear Channel's

Sign or Signs displaying the Campaign for Clear Channel's promotional advertising or prospective sales purposes with clients prospective clients or for internal use

4 7 CHANGE OUTOF ADVERTISING MATERIALS.
Customer may request replacement advertising copy change outs subsequent to the initial advertising copy Clear Channel may charge Customer for any work associated with complying with

Customer's request for replacement advertising copy change outs as part of the advertising services provided by Clear Channel to Customer

4.8 RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS
The provision of advertising services by Clear Channel to Customer does not transfer any ownership rights of any advertising structure. Customer acknowledges and agrees that no lease or

license shall arise from the provision of advertising services

5. DISRUPTION OF PERFORMANCE, LOSS OF USE
a Except as otherwise provided herein if Clear Channel is unable to perform any of its obligations hereunder as a result of a force majeure labor dispute law government action or order or

simular causes beyond Clear Channel's reasonable control Clear Channel shall promptly notify the Customer Customer's sole and exclusive remedy for a delay or failure to perform under this
subsection 5(a) shall be receipt of services of substantially equivalent value towhat was lost as a consequence of such delay or failure to perform In no event shall such a delay or failure to perform
constitute a breach of this Contract or provide Customer with any other right, claim or remedy under this Contract or at law
b Clear Channel shall promptly notify Customer if the lights illuminating a printed Sign are not operating during pennitted hours of operations for which lights are required to view the content of the

advertising posted on that Sign Customer's sole and exclusive remedy for such a lighting outage shall be a credit against the charges due hereunder in an amount equivalent to 25% of the charges
set forth in the Contract for the period during which the lights did not operate. In no event shall such a lighting outage constitute a breach of this Contract or provide Customer any other right clamm or
remedy under this Contract or at law

c If any Sign selected for inclusion in the Campaign shallnot be operational as of the Commencement Date or becomes unavailable for use for any reason whatsoever or is converted to a
different technology during the Campaign Clear Channel shall promptly notify the Customer and the parties will discuss replacing such Sign with an alternate Sign In no event shall Clear Channel's
failure to make a Sgn available hereunder in the circumstances described herein constitute a breach of this Contract or provide Customer any other right, claim or remedy under this Contract or at
law but Customer shall be entitled to a refund of any prepaid amounts made by Customer to Clear Channel for any impacted Sign that becomes inoperable unavailable or is converted to different
technology

6. TERMINATION
a Clear Channel may by providing 14 days advance written notice to Customer and if Customer fails to cure such breach prior to expiration of the 14 days terminale this Contract (1) upon

material breach by Customer (except for breach of Customer's obligation to deliver Advertising Materials to Clear Channel) or (2) if any monies to be paid by Customer to Clear Channel are past due
Clear Channel's notice shall set forth a summary of the alleged breach and Clear Channel agrees to provide any supportingdocumentation as may be reasonably requested by Customer In addition
Clear Channel may upon written notice to Customer terminate this Contract if Advertising Materials have not been received by Clear Channel on or before the date required herein Upon any
termination under this section (a) all unpaid accrued charges hereunder shall immediately become due and payable and in addition Customer shall pay Clear Channel as liquidated damages and
not as a penalty (i) 100% of the amount payable hereunder for the portion of the Campaign to run in the 60 day period after such termination and (ii) 50% of the amount payable hereunder for the
portion of the Campaign to run thereafter

b Customer may by providing 14 days advance written notice to Clear Channel and if Clear Channel falls to cure such breach prior to expiration of the 14 days terminate this Contract upon
material breach by Clear Channel Customer's notice shall set forth a summary of the alleged breach and Customer agrees to provide any supporting documentation as may be reasonably requested
by Clear Channel Upon such termination, Clear Channel shall reimburse Customer any prepaid amounts made by Customer to Clear Channel for the unexpired portion of the Contract and pay to
Customer as liquidated damages and not as a penalty and as Customer's sole and exclusive remedy a sum equal to the actual non-cancelable out-of-pocket costs necessarily Incurred by
Customer prior to the date of termination for production and delivery to Clear Channel of the Advertising Materials hereunder which were not displayed
c. Except as otherwise specified herein this Contract is non-cancellable and neither party shallbe liable to the other party for incidental, indirect, consequential or punitive damages or lost profits

7 INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS
Customer shall defend hold harmless and indemnifyClear Channel its parenls subsidiaries and affiliates, and their respective officers directors employees, agents and designees from any and all
claims actions causes of action losses liabilities, demands damages, penalties fines costs and expenses including without limitation any incidental indirect consequential punitive or statutory
damages or lost profits to a third party arising from connected with or related to (l) Customer's Advertising Materials and Dynamic Content, including infringement in any manner of any copyright,
patent trademark, trade secret or other right of any third party presentation of any material or information that violates any law or regulation or failure to include any disclaimer that may be required
by applicable laws statutes, ordinances rules and regulations or (ii) Customer's products and services.

8 GENERAL
a It is agreed that the laws of the State of NewYork shall govern the construction and interpretation of this Contract and the rights and obligations set forth herein The parties hereto irrevocably

waive any and all rights to trial by jury in any proceeding arising out of or relating to this Contract.
b Customer may not assign or transfer this Contract without first obtaining the written consent of Clear Channel nor is Clear Channel required to post, install or maintain any material under this

Contract for the benefit of any person or entityother than the Customer named In the Contract.
c Each party agrees that it shall always take reasonable steps at least substantially equivalent to the steps it takes to protect its own proprietary information to prevent duplication or disclosure of

Confidential Information of the other party other than by or to its employees or agents who must have access to such Confidential Information to perform such party's obligalions hereunder
d This Contract contains the entire understanding between the parties and except as expressly provided herein cannot be changed or terminated unless expressly agreed lo in writing and

signed by Customer and Clear Channel
e The failure of Clear Channel or Customer to enforce any of the provisions of this Contract shall not be construed as a general relinquishment or waiver of that or any other provision.
f All notices hereunder shall be in writing deemed given on the date of dispatch and addressed to Customer and Clear Channel at the addresses listed in the Contract
g The invalidity or unenforceability of any portion of this Contract shall not affect the remaining provisions hereof

Page 4 of 7



h This version of the contract supersedes any previous contract associated with this Order number Any previous contracts are null and void
VERSION 276829 10/22/2024 8'02 AM CDT

Page 5 of 7



VERSION 276829 10/22/2024 8.02 AM CDT
~TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR PRODUCTION AND/OR CREATIVE DESIGN SERVICES

These Terms and Conditions ("Terms ) govern the provisionof production and/or creative design services (the Services ') by Clear Channel Outdoor LLC ("CCO") to you ('Customer). If you are
entering into these Terms on behalf of a company you represent and warrant that you are an authorized signatory for your company and all subsequent references to 'you' shall mean the company
on whose behalf you are agreeing to these Terms Your use of the Services constitutes your acknowledgment that you have the legal authority to bind yourself to these Terms You acknowledge and
agree that you have read and are hereby bound by these Terms and agree to comply with all applicable laws, regulations and/or rules with regard to your use of the Services These Terms are
incorporated into the contract between CCO and Customer for Services (the 'Contract')

1 Services, Content, Production and Delivery
a Services CCO shall deliver the results of the production and/or creative design services (the 'Deliverables") as set forth In the Contract. Customer shall deliver any Customer Content to CCO by
such deadline as required by CCO All Customer Content shall meet any formatting requirements or other technical specifications provided by CCO CCO may require additional time for the delivery
of Customer Content as required under the circumstances or if the Customer Content does not conform to CCO's formatting requirements and technical specifications If CCO is providing creative
design services CCO agrees to provide up to three (3) sets of revision at no cost to Customer Any further creative work undertaken by CCO shall incur additional fees at CCO s then standard rates
'Customer Content' means all materials, information artwork, images, displays Illustrations reproductions, and similar Information provided by Customer for use In the preparation of and/or
incorporation in the Deliverables 'Production Services' refers to lhe services associated with printing the advertising creative on vinyl or other material 'Creative Design Services refers to the
services associated with creating and designing content and imagery for the advertising creative

2 Customer's Obligations
For Services provided hereunder Customer agrees to promptly (a) provide clear instructions and Customer Content to CCO within the timeframe requested by CCO (b) provide Customer Content
in a format and resolution reasonably required by CCO (c) provide finished and proofread Customer Content in a form suitable for reproduction or incorporation into the Deliverables and (d)
proofread Deliverables At various stages throughout the Term of this Contract CCO may ask Customer to confirm acceptance of any aspect of the Deliverables Acceptance is important as it will be
relied on by CCO In the course of fulfilling Its obligations under this Contract Any modification change or update (collectively 'Modification ) by Customer to any aspect of the Deliverables after
Customer's acceptance may affect the Fees and result in the delay of completion of the final Deliverables Any such Modification shall not relieve Customer from any obligations under any other
Contract between Customer and CCO

3 Fees, Invoicing
In consideration of Customer's receipt of the Services hereunder Customer shall pay the applicable fees invoiced by CCO (the "Fees") Customer shall pay any additional charges for changes to the
Services or Deliverables requested by Customer which are outside the scope of Services In the event of any such changes CCO may extend or modify any delivery schedule or deadline noted on
the Contract CCO will invoice Customer on a monthly basis in arrears for the Fees which shall be due and payable 15 days from the receipt of invoice Payments made more than 15 days after lhe
due date will be subject to a past due charge of 1.5% per month (or the highest amount permitted by law whichever Is less) The Fees exclude applicable laxes for the Services performed by CCO
in accordance wllh these Terms

4 Intellectual Property Rights
All Services provided by CCO hereunder shall be for the exclusive use of Customer Customer acknowledges and agrees that CCO Materials are a valuable asset to CCO and such materials are
and shall remain the sole and exclusive property of CCO Notwithstanding the foregoing and subject to Customer's payment of all Fees for the Services CCO grants Customer a non-exclusive
worldwide royalty free license to use any CCO Materials incorporated into the Deliverables solely for utilizing the Deliverables for their intended purpose Except for the rights expressly granled
herein this Contract does not transfer from CCO to Customer any CCO Materials or other intellectual property of CCO and all rights titles and interests in and to the same shall remain solely with
CCO 'CCO Materials means any data images programming computer code proprietary software methodologies techniques tools photographs illustrations, graphics audio clips, text, scripts
applets procedures, improvements and other materials made conceived licensed or developed by CCO prior to the effective date of the Contract, or after the effective date of the Contract and
outside the scope of the Contract.
Subject to full payment under this Contract all intellectual property rights to any Deliverables (but expressly excluding rights to Third PartyMaterials and CCO Materials) developed by CCO pursuant
to this Contract shall belong to Customer OWNERSHIP TO THE DELIVERABLES IS VESTEDWITH CUSTOMER ONLYWHEN FULL PAYMENT IS RECEIVED BY CCO CCO IS THE OWNER
OF ALL MATERIALS CREATED FOR CUSTOMER UNTIL FULLANO FINAL PAYMENT IS RECEIVED Such Deliverables shall be deemed lo be a 'work made for hire To the extent any such
Deliverable is determined not to be "work made for hire CCO hereby irrevocably and exclusively assigns transfers and conveys to Customer all intellectual property rights, in and to any and all such
Deliverables
It is agreed by CCO and Customer that any Third Party Materials must be approved and purchased or licensed by Customer Customer shall assume responsibility and ownership of all purchased
Third Party Materials Any costs related to Third Party Materials shall be deemed Fees under the Contract. After the Deliverables have been delivered to Customer CCO will not be held liable or
responsible for any unlawful use or alteration of Third PartyMaterials by Customer 'Third Party Materials' means proprietary third partymaterials which are incorporated into the Deliverables
includingwithout limitation stock photography and illustration

5. Representations and Warranties, Disclaimer
a Customer Representations and Warranlies. Customer represents and warrants that (i) Customer has full corporate power and authority to enter into this Contract and to carry out its obligations
hereunder· and (ii) any Customer Content furnished by or on behalf of Customer to CCO for inclusion in the Deliverables are owned by Customer (or Customer has permission from the rightful owner
to use such materials) and will not violate infringe or misappropriate any rights of any third party and Customer will hold harmless protect and defend CCO and its subcontractors from any suit or
claim arising from the use of such materials
b CCO Representations and Warranties. CCO represents and warrants that. () it will perform the Services in a professional and workmanlike manner and (ii) except for Third Party Materials and
Customer Content, the Deliverables shall be the original work of CCO and lo the best of CCO s knowledge, the Deliverables do not infringe the rights of any party and will not violate the rights of
third parties
c. No Other Warranties TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW CCO MAKES NO OTHERWARRANTIES OF ANY KIND EXPRESS IMPLIED OR STATUTORY ABOUT THE SERVICES AND
DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITYOR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE OR PURPOSE

6 Indemnification
a By CCO CCO shall defend hold harmless and indemnify Customer its parents subsidiaries and affiliates, and their respective officers. directors employees agents and designees (the
Customer lndemnitees'} from and against any losses, damages, liabilities. claims, deficiencies actions, judgments interest awards, penalties, fines costs or expenses of whatever kind including
reasonable attorneys fees (collectively "Damages") incurred by the Customer lndemnitees from any claim of a third party resulting from CCO's breach of any representation warranty or covenant in
this Contract
b. By Customer Customer shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify CCO its parents subsidiaries and affiliates and their respective officers directors employees agents and designees (the
'CCO lndemnitees") from any and all Damages incurred by the CCO lndemnilees from any claim of a third party resulting from (i) Customer's breach of any representation warranty or covenant in
this Contract, (ii) CCO's use of Customer Content and (iii) use by Customer of Third PartyMaterials or Deliverables beyond their intended and authorized use

7 Limitation of Liability; Disclaimer
EXCEPT FOR EACH PARTY'S INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS IN NO EVENT WILL EITHER PARTY'S TOTAL CUMULATIVE LIABILITY TO THE OTHER PARTY HEREUNDER EXCEED
THE FEES PAID OR PAYABLE BY CUSTOMER IN NO EVENT WILL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR ANY INDIRECT SPECIAL INCIDENTAL PUNITIVE EXEMPLARY OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES INCLUDING LOSS OF PROFITS LOSS OF USE BUSINESS INTERRUPTION OR LOSS OF DATA IN CONNECTIONWITH OR ARISING OUT OF THESE
TERMS REGARDLESS OF WHETHER ARISING UNDER CONTRACT TORT ORANY OTHER THEORY EVEN IF SUCH PARTYHAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH
DAMAGES

8 Term, Termination
a Term The Contract shall continue In effect until the completion of the Services
b Termination by CCO The Contract may be terminated by CCO if (I) Customer breaches any material provision of these Terms and falls to cure such breach within 1 o days of notice of such
breach or (ii) any monies to be paid by Customer to CCO are past due by more than 30 days Upon any termination under this section CCO shall be compensated for the Services performed
through the effective date of termination
c. Termination by Customer The Contract may be terminated by Customer if CCO breaches any material provision of these Terms and falls to cure such breach within 10 days of notice of such
breach Upon such termination CCO shall pay lo Customer as liquidated damages and not as a penally and as Customer's sole and exdusive remedy a refund of any fees pre-paid for Services
and Deliverables not provided prior lo the effective date of termination

9 Miscellaneous
a Governing Law Venue It is agreed that the laws of the State of New York shall govern the construction and interpretation of these Terms and the rights and obligations set forth herein The
parties hereto irrevocably wave any and all rights to trial by jury in any proceedingarising out of or relating to these Terms
b Subcontracting Customer acknowledges and agrees that CCO may use contractors and consultants to perform the Services hereunder- provided that CCO s use of a contractor or consultant
shall not release CCO from any duty or liability to fulfill its obligations under these Terms
c. Assignment Customer may not assign or transfer the Contract without first obtaining thewritten consent of CCO
d Survival The parties rights and obligations under Sections 3 45 6 and 7 shall survive termination or expiration of the Contract.
e Entire Understanding These Terms and the Contract contains the entire understanding between the parties relating to the Services and except as expressly provided herein cannot be changed
or terminated unless expressly agreed to in writing and signed by Customer and CCO
f Relationship The relationship between Customer and CCO created by the Contract shall be one of independent contractors and neither party shall be deemed an employee of the other for any
purpose nor shall anything contained herein be construed as constituting a partnership or joint venture between Customer and CCO
g Waiver The failure of CCO or Customer to enforce any of the provisions of these Terms shall not be construed as a general relinquishment or waiver of that or any other provision The invalidity
or unenforceability of any portion of these Terms shall not affect the remaining provisions hereof
h Notices All notices hereunder shall be in writing deemed given on the date of dispatch and addressed to Customer and CCO at the addresses listed in the Contract.

Page 6 of 7



VERSION 276829 10/2212024 8.02 AM CDT
i Force Majeure lf either party is unable to fulfill its obligations hereunder or unable to fulfill its obligations in a timely matter as a result of a Force Majeure Event {excluding the failure to make
payments as required hereunder) such failure will not be treated as a breach of the Contract, provided that the partypromptly informs the other party of the reason or reasons for such delay The
term "Force Majeure Event' shall mean an act of war or terrorism a riot, civil disorder or rebellion a fire flood earthquake pandemic or similar act of God or a strike lockout, similar labor dispute
or other factors or forces outside of the parties reasonable control

SIGNATURES

VOLITION FRANKLIN

Signature

Name

Date

CLEARCHANNEL OUTDOOR, LLC

Signature

Name

Date

Page 7 of 7



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN
OFFICIALS TO EXECUTE A 2024 HEALTH
DEPARTMENT PROJECT AGREEMENT WITH
EMMONS BUSINESS INTERIORS.

MEETING DATE
11/6/2024

ITEM NUMBER

Background: The City of Franklin Health Department serves residents daily. Many of these
daily encounters include clinical services and counter services. These services involve regular
distribution of materials which pose storage challenges within the department. The need for
new and additional storage within the Health Department has been an ongoing issue of space
with storing counter-service items, general office supplies, and other grant-funded supplies
which need to be readily accessible for the general public. Currently the Health Department is
utilizing a combination of built-in storage cabinets and filing cabinets. The current built in
storage is very old and is becoming less and less functional. The filing cabinets do not offer
adequate storage space and are not designed for the present storage needs.

The Franklin Health Department was awarded grant funding to update various components
of the Health Department for improved functionality and workflow efficiencies. These
renovations include updated cabinetry within the Health Department as well as within Exam
Rooms one, two, and three in the Health Wing. The updates to the clinical spaces will improve
service delivery and workflow. The Franklin Health Department offers vaccines for the
Vaccines for Children Program through these spaces for those who need access to vaccination
and are uninsured or underinsured. We also offer other vaccinations and services within the
space and the cabinets will allow for storage of clinic supplies.

The Health Department met with five different companies for quotes on the project. One did
not submit a price quote and of the four remaining, Emmons Business Interiors (EBI) was
selected based on pricing and their design concept capturing the functionality need. The
project price is $33,817.85. The standard form has been completed, and the agreement has been
sent to the City Attorney for review.

Recommendation: The Director of Health and Human Services recommends approval to
execute the 2024 Emmons Business Interiors agreement.

Fiscal Note: The Franklin Health Department was awarded grant funding to cover the total
cost of this project of $33,817.85.

The contract has been sent to the City of Franklin legal counsel for review.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED



Adopt Resolution 2024-A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute the
2024 Emmons Business Interiors agreement with a one time total cost of $33,817.85.

Health Department: LG



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY
draft 11/6/2024

RESOLUTION NO. 2024

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO EXECUTE A 2024 HEALTH
DEPARTMENT PROJECT AGREEMENT WITH EMMONS BUSINESS INTERIORS

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin Health Department serves residents daily; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin Health Department services involve distribution of
materials and clinical services which pose storage challenges within the department; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin Health Department has been awarded a grant to update
the storage and cabinetry within the Health Department to address these challenges; and

WHEREAS, Emmons Business Interiors was selected for the project based on pricing,
and the design concept capturing the functionality need, and the Common Council having
determined the services to be provided by an experienced service provider are in the public
interest.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the City of Franklin Health Department Agreement with
Emmons Business Interiors, be and the same is hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor, Director of Finance and Treasurer and
City Clerk be and the same are hereby authorized to execute and deliver such agreement.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of2024.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
thisday of2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT, is made and entered into this_ day ofNovember 2024, between the
City of Franklin, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 53132 (hereinafter "CLIENT") and
Emmons Business Interiors, (hereinafter "CONTRACTOR"), whose principal place of business is
N 115W 18500 Edison Drive, Germantown, WI 53022.

WITNESS ETH

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR is duly qualified and experienced as a municipal services
contractor and has offered services for the purposes specified in this AGREEMENT; and

WHEREAS, in the judgment ofCLIENT, it is necessary and advisable to obtain the services
of the CONTRACTOR to provide ordering and installation of cabinetry within the Franklin Health
Department and Health Wing Exam Rooms 1, 2, and 3;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and the following mutual
covenants, terms, and conditions, CLIENT and CONTRACTOR agree as follows:

I. BASIC SERVICES ANDAGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION

A CONTRACTOR shall provide services to CLIENT for cabinetry in the Health
Department and Health Wing Exam Rooms 1, 2, and 3, as described in
CONTRACTOR's proposal to CLIENT dated October 31, 2024, annexed hereto
and incorporated herein as Attachment A.

B. CONTRACTOR shall serve as CLIENT's professional representative in matters
to which this AGREEMENT applies. CONTRACTOR may employ the services
of outside consultants and subcontractors when deemed necessary by
CONTRACTOR to complete work under this AGREEMENT following approval
by CLIENT.

C. CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor and all persons furnishing services
hereunder are employees of, or independent subcontractors to, CONTRACTOR
and not ofCLIENT. All obligations under the Federal Insurance Contribution Act
(FICA), the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA), and income tax
withholding are the responsibility of CONTRACTOR as employer. CLIENT
understands that express AGREEMENTS may exist between CONTRACTOR
and its employees regarding extra work, competition, and nondisclosure.

D. During the term ofthis AGREEMENT and throughout the period ofperformance
ofany resultant AGREEMENT, including extensions, modifications, or additions
thereto, and for a period ofone (1) year from the conclusion of such activity, the
parties hereto agree that neither shall solicit for employment any technical or
professional employees of the other without the prior written approval of the
other party.

II. FEES AND PAYMENTS

Page-1



CLIENT agrees to pay CONTRACTOR, for and in consideration of the performance of Basic
Services further described in Attachment A, with a not-to-exceed budget of $33,817.85, subject to
the terms detailed below:

A. CONTRACTOR may bill CLIENT and be paid for all work satisfactorily
completed hereunder on a monthly basis. CLIENT agrees to pay
CONTRACTOR's invoice within 30 days of invoice date for all approved work.

B. Total price will not exceed budget of$33,817.85. For services rendered, monthly
invoices will include a report that clearly states the hours and type of work
completed and the fee earned during the month being invoiced.

C. In consideration of the faithful performance of this AGREEMENT, the
CONTRACTOR will not exceed the fee for Basic Services and expenses without
written authorization from CLIENT to perform work over and above that
described in the original AGREEMENT.

D. Should CLIENT find deficiencies in work performed or reported, it will notify
CONTRACTOR in writing within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice and
related report and the CONTRACTOR will remedy the deficiencies within thirty
(30) days of receiving CLIENT's review. This subsection shall not be construed
to be a limitation of any rights or remedies otherwise available to CLIENT.

III. MODIFICATION AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A. CLIENT may, in writing, request changes in the Basic Services required to be
performed by CONTRACTOR and require a specification of incremental or
decremental costs prior to change order agreement under this AGREEMENT.
Upon acceptance of the request of such changes, CONTRACTOR shall submit a
"Change Order Request Form" to CLIENT for authorization and notice to
proceed signature and return to CONTRACTOR. Should any such actual
changes be made, an equitable adjustment will be made to compensate
CONTRACTOR or reduce the fixed price, for any incremental or decremental
labor or direct costs, respectively. Any claim by CONTRACTOR for adjustments
hereunder must be made to CLIENT in writing no later than forty-five (45) days
after receipt by CONTRACTOR of notice of such changes from CLIENT.

IV. ASSISTANCE AND CONTROL

A. Franklin Health Department will coordinate the work of the CONTRACTOR, and
be solely responsible for communication within the CLIENT's organization as
related to all issues originating under this AGREEMENT.

B. CLIENT will timely provide CONTRACTOR with all available information
concerningPROJECT as deemed necessary by CONTRACTOR.

C. CONTRACTOR will appoint, subject to the approval of CLIENT, Steven Mast
CONTRACTOR's Project Manager and other key providers of the Basic
Services. Substitution of other staffmay occur only with the consent of CLIENT.

Page-2



V. TERMINATION

A. This AGREEMENT may be terminated by CLIENT, for its convenience, for
any o» no reason, upon written notice to CONTRACTOR. This
AGREEMENT may be terminated by CONTRACTOR upon thirty (30) days
written notice. Upon such termination by CLIENT, CONTRACTOR shall be
entitled to payment of such amount as shall fairly compensate
CONTRACTOR for all work approved up to the elate oftermination, except
that no amount shall be payable for any losses ofrevenue or profit from any
source outside the scope ofthis AGREEMENT, including but not limited to,
other actual or potential agreements for services with other parties.

B. In the event that this AGREEMENT is terminated for any reason,
CONTRACTOR shall deliver to CLIENT all data, reports, summaries,
correspondence, and other written, printed, or tabulated material pertaining in
any way to Basic Services that CONTRACTOR may have accumulated. Such
material is to be delivered to CLIENT whether in completed form or in
process. CLIENT shall hold CONTRACTOR harmless for any work that is
incomplete due to early termination.

C. The rights and remedies ofCLIENT and CONTRACTOR under this section
are not exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law or appearing in any other article ofthis AGREEMENT.

VI. INSURANCE

The CONTRACTOR shall, during the life ofthe AGREEMENT, maintain insurance coverage with
an authorized insurance carrierat least equal to the minimum limits set forth below:

A. General/Commercial Liability (Must $1,000,000 per each occurrence for bodily injury,
have General/Commercial) personal injury, and property damage

$2,000,000 per general aggregate,

CITY shall be named as an additional insured on a
primary, non-contributory basis.

B. Automobile Liability (Must have $1,000,000 combined single limit
auto liability)

CITY shall be named as an additional insured 011 a
primary, non-contributory basis.

C. Contractor's Pollution Liability (If $1,000,000 per occurrence
applicable) $2,000,000 aggregate

CITY shall be named as an additional insured on a
primary, non-contributory basis.

Page-3



D. Umbrella or Excess Liability $10,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury,
Coverage for General/Commercial, personal injury, and properly
Automobile Liability, and Contractor's
Pollution Liability

CITY shall be named as an additional insured on a
primary, non-contributory basis.

E. Worker's Compensation
Employers' Liability (Must
workers compensation)

and Statutory
have

Contractor will provide a waiver of subrogation
and/or any rights of recovery allowed under any
workers' compensation la,

F. Professional Liability (Errors & $2,000,000 single limit
Omissions) (dfapplicable)

Upon the execution of this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall supply CLIENT with a suitable
statement certifying said protection and defining the terms of the policy issued, which shall specify
that such protection shall not be cancelled without thirty (30) calendar days prior notice to CLIENT,
and naming CLIENT as an additional insured as required above.

VII. INDEMNIFICATION AND ALLOCATION OFRISK

A. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold
harmless CLIENT, CLIENT'S officers, directors, partners, and employees from and
against costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to reasonable fees and
charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and reasonable
court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the negligent
acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR'S officers, directors,
partners, employees, and consultants in the performance of CONTRACTOR'S
services under this AGREEMENT.

B. Nothing contained within this AGREEMENT is intended to be a waiver or estoppel
ofthe contracting municipality CLIENT or its insurer to rely upon the limitations,
defenses, and immunities contained within Wisconsin law, including those contained
within Wisconsin Statutes $$ 893.80, 895.52, and 345.05. To the extent that
indemnification is available and enforceable, the municipality CLIENT or its insurer
shall not be liable in indemnity or contribution for an amount greater than the limits
ofliability for municipal claims established by Wisconsin Law.

VIII. TlME FOR COMPLETION

CONTRACTOR shall commence work immediately having received a Notice to Pmcced as of
November 7, 2024.

IX. DISPUTES

This AGREEMENT shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the State ofWisconsin.
The venue for any actions arising under this AGREEMENT shall be the Circuit Court for Milwaukee

Page-4



County. The prevailing party shall be awarded its actual costs of any such litigation, including
reasonable attorney fees.

X. RECORDS RETENTION

CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records pertaining to this AGREEMENT during the term of this
AGREEMENT and for a period of 7 years following its completion. Such records shall be made
available by the CONTRACTOR to CLIENT for inspection and copying upon request.

XI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. Professionalism. The same degree of care, skill and diligence shall be exercised in the
performance of the services as is possessed and exercised by a member of the same
profession, currently practicing, under similar circumstances, and all persons
providing such services under this AGREEMENT shall have such active
certifications, licenses and permissions as may be required by law.

B. Pursuant to Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary anywhere else set forth
within this AGREEMENT, all services and any and all materials and/or products
provided by CONTRACTOR under this AGREEMENT shall be in compliance with
all applicable governmental laws, statutes, decisions, codes, rules, orders, and
ordinances, be they Federal, State, County or Local.

C. Conflict of Interest. CONTRACTOR warrants that neither it nor any of its affiliates
has any financial or other personal interest that would conflict in any manner with the
performance of the services under this Agreement and that neither it nor any of its
affiliates will acquire directly or indirectly any such interest. CONTRACTOR
warrants that it will immediately notify the CLIENT if any actual or potential conflict
of interest arises or becomes known to the CONTRACTOR. Upon receipt of such
notification, a CLIENT review and written approval is required for the
CONTRACTOR to continue to perform work under this Agreement.

D. This AGREEMENT may only be amended by written instrument signed by both
CLIENT and CONTRACTOR.

XII. CONTROLLING TERMS AND PROVISIONS

The aforesaid terms and provisions shall control over any conflicting term or provision of any
CONTRACTOR proposal, Attachment, Exhibit, and standard terms and provisions annexed hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed on the day
and year first above written.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

BY: _

PRINT NAME: John R. Nelson

TITLE: Mayor

PRINT NAME: A S .-.a ae2Ara
Page-5



)\'][;

BY: _

PRINT NAME: Danielle L. Brown

TITLE: Director of Finance and Treasurer

DATE:

BY: _

PRINTNAME: Shirley J. Roberts

TITLE: City Clerk

DATE:

Apprnvcd as to form:

Jesse A. Wesolowski, City Attorney
[)']'],__-

•KL2aa/

Page-6



Emmons Business Interiors
Nl 15 Wl 8500 Edison Drive
Germantown, WI 53022
Phone: (262)255-5500
www.ebiweb.com
Prepared For:

Franklin Health Department
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

CONTACT
Sales I Steve Mast
smast(@cowiweb.com
414-425-9101

Designer { Samantha Stadler
sstadler(@ebiweb.com
206-042

EB8EMMONS

I BUSINESS
INTERIORS

Your Space. Our Business.
QUOTE

Millwork Options
10/31/2024
9:25:20 AM

Valid Until: 30 Days From Above

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Exam Room l

Exam Room l

Exam Room l

Exam Room l

Exam Room l

Exam Room l

Exam Room l

Exam Room l

2 Plastic Laminate Splash, 4" x 96" Rectangle w/ Square Corners
Folkstone
Matching 3mm Edgeband

Plastic Laminate Top, 24" X 87" Rectangle w/ Square Corners
Folkstone
Matching 3mm Edgeband

Base Filler, 6"W x 48"H
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

LH Door Base Cabinet, 1 Adj. Shelf, 1 drawer, 18"W x 22"Dx 34.5"H,
Unfinished ends, Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

Double Door Base Cabinet, 1 Adj. Shelf, 1 Drawer, 24"Wx 22"D x 32.5"H.
Unfinished ends, Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

Sink Base w/ Fixed Panel, 36"W22"D x 34.5"H, Unfinished ends,
Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

Base Filler, 9"Wx 48"H
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

6 Ignition Sled Bse Guest Chair
Fixed
Nylon Glide
4-Way Brownstone
Grade 1 Uph
Emphasis
Graphite
Black

Preside 29.5H Footed Base for 30x60 Top
Pl Paint Opts
Fossil

$140.00

$256.67

$23.33

$523.16

$628.14

$535.16

$29.94

$287.45

$472.00

$280.00

$256.67

$23.33

$523.16

$628.14

$535.16

$29.94

$1,724.70

$472.00

Exam Room 1
Exam Room l

R:\EBI\EBI Designers\01 Project Folder\Franklin Health Department\206-042 Franklin Health Dept
Administrator\5- Specs\206-042_10.14.24.pmx

Page 1 of 6



at#%
10 Exam Room l Preside 60Wx 30D Rectangular Shaped Laminate Top $295.94 $295.94

2MM/Flat
Fossil
No Grommets
Grd L1 Standard Laminates
Handspun Pearl

11 Exam Room 1 Kick Trim Panel, 96"W x 4"H, Field Cutting Required $69.61 $69.61
Black

12 Exam Room 1 2 Wall Return Filler, 6"W 14"D x 30"H $67.67 $135.34
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

13 Exam Room 1 2 Double Door Wall Cabinet w/ Adj. Shelves, 24"W 14"D x 30"H, $449.56 $899.12
Unfinished Ends, Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

14 Exam Room l Double Door Wall Cabinet w/ Adj. Shelves, 30"Wx 14"D x 30"H, $479.94 $479.94
Unfinished Ends, Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

Subtotal for: Exam Room l $6,353.05

Exam Room 2
15 Exam Room 2 Plastic Laminate Splash, 4" x 96" Rectangle w/ Square Corners $140.00 $140.00

Folkstone
Matching 3mm Edgeband

16 Exam Room 2 Plastic Laminate Top, 24" X 51" Rectangle w/ Square Corners $201.83 $201.83
Folkstone
Matching 3mm Edgeband

17 Exam Room 2 2 Base Filler, 6"W x 48"H $23.33 $46.66
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

18 Exam Room 2 Double Door Sink Base w/ Fixed Panel, 48"W x 22"D x 34.5"H, Finished $665.83 $665.83
Left End, Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

19 Exam Room 2 Kick Trim Panel, 96"W4"H $69.61 $69.61
Black

20 Exam Room 2 2 Wall Return Filler, 6"W x 14"D x 30"H $67.67 $135.34
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

21 Exam Room 2 Double Door Wall Cabinet, 1 Verticle Divider & Adj. Shelves, 48"Wx14"D $712.16 $712.16
x 30"H, Finished Left End, Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

Subtotal for: Exam Room 2 $1,971.43

R:\EBI\EBI Designers\01 Project Folder\Franklin Health Department\206-042 Franklin Health Dept
Administrator\5- Specs\206-042_10.14.24.pmx

Page 2 of 6



Exam Room 3
22 Exam Room 3 2 Plastic Laminate Splash, 4" x 96", Rectangle w/ Square Corners $140.00 $280.00

Folkstone
Matching 3mm Edgeband

23 Exam Room 3 Plastic Laminate Top, 24" x 41" Rectangle w/ Square Corners, Field Joint $229.44 $229.44
& Sink Cut Out
Folkstone
Matching 3mm Edgeband

24 Exam Room 3 Plastic Laminate Top, 24" x 96" Rectangle w/ Square Corners, Field Joint $279.61 $279.61
Folkstone
Matching 3mm Edgeband

25 Exam Room 3 Base Filler, 6"Wx 48"H $23.33 $23.33
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

26 Exam Room 3 Pedestal Option to Edge Any Side, 22Wx 34.5"H $89.44 $89.44
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

27 Exam Room 3 Curved Pedestal Support, 22"Wx 35"H $89.44 $89.44
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

28 Exam Room 3 Double Door Base Cabinet, 1 Adj. Shelf, One Drawer, 36"W x 22"Dx $783.70 $783.70
32.5"H, Finished Right End, Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

29 Exam Room 3 Double Door Sink Base w/ Fixed Panel, 36"W x 22"D x 34.5"H, Unfinished $535.16 $535.16
Ends, Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

30 Exam Room 3 Double Bowl Drop In Sink, 23.25" x 18.5" x 10", Faucet To Be Supplied By $474.06 $474.06
Others

31 Exam Room 3 2 Ignition Sled Bse Guest Chair $287.45 $574.90
Fixed
Nylon Glide
4-Way Brownstone
Grade 1 Uph
Emphasis
Graphite
Black

32 Exam Room 3 2 Kick Trim Panel, 96"W x 4"H $69.61 $139.22
Black

33 Exam Room 3 2 Wall Return Filler, 6"Wx 14"D x 30"H $67.67 $135.34
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

34 Exam Room 3 2 Double Door Wall Cabinet w/ Adj. Shelves, 30"Wx 14"D x 30"H, $479.94 $959.88
Unfinished Ends, Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

R:\EBI\EBI Designers\01 Project Folder\Franklin Health Department\206-042 Franklin Health Dept Page 3 of 6
Administrator\5- Specs\206-042_10.14.24.pmx



35 Exam Room 3 2 Double Door Wall Cabinet w/ Adj. Shelves, 36"Wx 14"D x 30"H, $511.05 $1,022.10
Unfinished Ends, Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

Subtotal for: Exam Room 3 $5,615.62

Large Storage A
36 Large Storage A Plastic Laminate Top, 24" x 60" Rectangle w/ Square Corners $192.11 $192.11

Folkstone
Matching 3mm Edgeband

37 Large Storage A 2 Three Drawer Base Cabinet, 30"W x 22"D x 34.5"H, Unfinished Ends, Non $684.83 $1,369.66
Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

38 Large Storage A Tackboard for 60" WWallmount Tackboard $205.32 $205.32
Grd A Fabric
Reflection
Pewter

39 Large Storage A 2 Kick Trim Panel, 96"W x 4"H $69.61 $139.22
Black

40 Large Storage A 2 Tall Return Filler, 6"Wx 22"Dx $52.11 $104.22
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

41 Large Storage A Double Door Tall Cabinet w/ Fixed Shelf and Adj. Shelves, 36"Wx 22"D x $1,252.61 $1,252.61
34.5"H, Finished Right End, Non Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

42 Large Storage A Double Door Tall Cabinet w/ Fixed Shelf, and Adj. Shelves, 36"Wx 22"D x $1,252.61 $1,252.61
84"H, Finished Left End, Non Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

43 Large Storage A 2 Double Door Wall Cabinet w/ Adj. Shelves, 30"W x 14"D, 30"H, Unfinished $456.94 $913.88
Ends, Non Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3MM Edgeband

Subtotal for: Large Storage A $5,429.63

Large Storage B
44 Large Storage B Plastic Laminate Top, 20" x 73" Rectangle w/ Square Corners, Field Joint $279.61 $279.61

Folkstone
Matching 3mm Edgeband

45 Large Storage B 2 Plastic Laminate Top, 22" x 68" Rectangle w/ Square Corners, Field Joint $250.44 $500.88
Folkstone
Matching 3mm Edgeband

46 Large Storage B Plastic Laminate Top, 22" 70" Rectangle w/ Square Corners, 2 Field $267.94 $267.94
Joints
Folkstone
Matching 3mm Edgeband

R:\EBI\EBI Designers\01 Project Folder\Franklin Health Department\206-042 Franklin Health Dept
Administrator\5- Specs\206-042_10.14.24.pmx

Page 4 of 6



47

48

49

50

51

52

53

Large Storage B

Large Storage B

Large Storage B

Large Storage B

Large Storage B

Large Storage B

Large Storage B

Double Door Base Cabinet w/ Verticle Divider and 4 Adj. Shelves, 48"W x
18"D x 39"H, Finished Left End, Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

3 Double Door Base Cabinet w/ Verticle Divider and 4 Adj. Shelves, 36"Wx
l 8"D x 39"H, Unfinished Ends, Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

Double Door Base Cabinet w/ Verticle Divider and 4 Adj. Shelves, 48"W x
18"D x 39"H, Unfinished Ends, Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

Double Door Base Cabinet w/ Verticle Divider and 4 Adj. Shelves, 36"Wx
18"D x 39"H Finished Left End, Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

Double Door Base Cabinet w/ Verticle Divider and 4 Adj. Shelves, 36"W x
18"D x 39"H, Finished Right End, Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

3 Kick Trim, 96"W x 4"H
Black

Kick Trim Panel, 96"W x 4"H
Black

$814.05

$674.87

$744.48

$744.44

$744.44

$69.61

$69.61

$814.05

$2,024.61

$744.48

$744.44

$744.44

$208.83

$69.61

Subtotal for: Large Storage B $6,398.89

55

56

Short Storage
Wall

Short Storage
Wall

2 Plastic Laminate Top, 20" x 56" Rectanglew/ Square Corners, Field Joint
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

3 Double Door Base Cabinet w/ Verticle Divider and 4 Adj. Shleves, 36"W x
18"D, 39"H, Finished Both Ends, Non Locking
Sleeping In
Matching 3mm Edgeband

2 Kick Trim Panel, 96"W x 4"H
Black

$227.11

$767.67

$69.61

$454.22

$2,303.01

$139.22

Short Storage Wall
54 Short Storage

Wall

X. DESIGN
57 X. DESIGN

Y. FREIGHT

DESIGN SERVICES - FREE OF CHARGE

Subtotal for: Short Storage Wall

$0.00

Subtotal for: X. DESIGN

$2,896.45

$0.00

$0.00

58 Y. FREIGHT WBM FREIGHT $1,402.78 $1,402.78

R:\EBI\EBI Designers\01 Project Folder\Franklin Health Department\206-042 Franklin Health Dept
Administrator\5- Specs\206-042_10.14.24.pmx

Page 5 of 6



59 Y. FREIGHT HON FREIGHT - FREE $0.00

Subtotal for: Y. FREIGHT

$0.00

$1,402.78

Z. INSTALL
60 Z. INSTALL DELIVERY & INSTALLATION FOR HON ITEMS INCLUDED PER UW

CONTRACT #23-5665
$0.00 $0.00

61

62

Z. INSTALL

Z. INSTALL

DELIVERY & INSTALLATION FOR WBM ITEMS

LABOR TO REMOVE EXISTING CABINETRY IN EXAM ROOM 1, EXAM
ROOM 2, AND LARGE STORAGE A

$2,500.00

$1,250.00

$2,500.00

$1,250.00

ZZ. CONTRACT

Subtotal for: Z. INSTALL $3,750.00

63 ZZ.CONTRACT HON UW CONTRACT #23-5665 $0.00

Subtotal for: ZZ. CONTRACT

GRAND TOTAL

$0.00

$0.00

$33,817.85

Applicable Sales Tax is additional.
EBI Terms and Conditions apply.

Authorized Customer Signature.

printed fame J [jta

)a[e,

R:\EBI\EBI Designers\01 Project Folder\Franklin Health Department\206-042 Franklin Health Dept
Administrator\5- Specs\206-042_10.14.24.pmx

Page 6 of 6



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Reports and
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Wisconsin Statewide Health Information Network
(WISHIN) agreement for 2024-2025

MEETING DATE
11/06/2024

ITEM NUMBER

Me»
Background: The Wisconsin Statewide Health Information Network (WISHIN) is a statewide
health information network that connects physicians, clinics, hospitals, pharmacies, and
clinical laboratories across the state. The system supports statewide electronic health
information exchange critical for timely client care and communications.

Local Health Departments across the state utilize WISHIN in daily work for workflow
efficiencies for mandated services.

The contract has been sent to the City attorney for review.

Recommendation: The Director of Health and Human Services recommends approval to
accept and execute the WISHIN agreement for 2024-2025.

Fiscal Note: Grant funds will support the WISHIN one time onboarding fee of $1,500 and the
2024-2025 contract fee of $3,000.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

The Director of Health and Human Services requests a motion to approve the acceptance and
execution of the Wisconsin Statewide Health Information Network contract.

Health Department: LG



City of Franklin Public Health Department

WISHIN DATA SHARING

PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

CONFIDENTIAL



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Recitals 3

Agreement. 3

1 Grant of Right to Use Services 3
2 Access to the System 4
3 Making Information Available through the System 9
4 Business Associate Prov1s1ons 11
5 Computer Systems 11
6 Policies and Procedures 12
7 Training Costs 12
8 Fees and Charges 12
9 Confidential Information 12
10 Disclaimers. 13
11 Warranties, Limitations of Liability and Indemnification 14
12 Insurance 16
13 Term, Modification, Suspension, Termination 16
14 Dispute Resolution 17
15 Applicable Law 17
16 Legal Comphance 17
17 No Assignment 17
18 Supervening Circumstances 18
19 Severab1hty 18
20 Notices 18
21 Waver ... 18
22 Complete Understanding .18
23. Intended Third-Party Beneficiaries 18
24 Intentionally Blank .. 18
25 Signature Authority 18
26 No Federal or State Exclusion 19
27 Definitions 19
28 Rules of Construction 22

Signatures 23

Attachment 1 Products and Services 24

Schedule 1 to Attachment 1 Elected Products and Services Requirements 25

Attachment 2 Software Maintenance and Support, Service Levels and Credits 33

Attachment 3 Description of the System, Third-Party Software 38

Attachment 4 Permitted Uses Approved Use Cases 40

Attachment 5 Subscription and Service Fees 42

Attachment 6 Business Associate Provisions 44

Attachment 7 SAMPLE WISHIN Direct+ Organization Representative Identify Verification Form 48

PA014 Confidential 2



DATA SHARING PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

This Data Sharing Participation Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into between the Wisconsin Statewide
Health Information Network, Inc, a Wisconsin non-profit corporation {"WISHIN"}, and the undersigned
participant on behalf of itself and its Affiliates {"Participant"} {collectively, the "Parties"}, as of
______ {the "Effective Date"}

RECITALS

WISHIN 1s organized to improve the quality, safety and timeliness of health services, reduce medical and
prescription errors, and reduce health care costs by fac11itating the sharing of health information 1n a manner
that complies with all applicable laws and regulations, including without limitation those protecting the
privacy and security of personal health information WISHIN owns and operates an electronic
communication network for use by {a} health care providers in delivering of health care or health plan
services to patients, and {b} by other persons to whomWISHIN permits access in accordance with WISHIN
pol1c1es and applicable law The goal of the network 1s to support the public and charitable purposes of
WISHIN by improving public health and using technology to promote efficiency in the delivery of health care
services

Among Participant's responsibilities Is preventing and controlling disease and injury Participant represents
that it constitutes a "public health authority" under HIPAA and that Part1c1pant 1s authorized under HIPAA
and state law to collect and receive protected health information to carry out those public health act1v1t1es

Participant has requested that WISHIN provide Part1c1pant with access to Health Data that will enable
Participant to carry out its public health activities WISHIN agrees to provide Health Data to Participant for
those Other Participants who have authorized WISHIN to do so and for so long as authorized by the
respective Other Participant

Participant agrees that, for those public health act1v1t1es, 1t will only access such Health Data that Is
necessary for Participant to perform its public health activities and that it will only access such Health Data
for so long as 1t 1s a "public health authority" under HIPAA and 1s authorized under HIPAA and state law to
collect and receive protected health information to carry out those public health act1v1t1es Part1c1pant further
agrees that 1t will use such Health Data in accordance with HIPAA and/or other applicable federal law
{including federal orders relating to public health} and Wisconsin law {including applicable orders issued by
the State of Wisconsin relating to public health} Part1c1pant's access to and use of such Health Data shall
otherwise comply with the Participation Agreement

Either party may terminate the access to such Health Data upon reasonable advance written notice to the
other

Part1c1pant desires to have access to WISHIN's System and Services, as such access and Services are
Identified mn Attachment 1 to this Agreement

Capitalized terms that are not defined when first used in this Agreement have the meanings set forth in
Section 27

AGREEMENT

1. Grant of Right to Use Services.

11 Access During the Term, WISHIN grants
to Participant and Participant accepts.

a) a non-exclusive, nontransferable {except as
provided herein) sublicense to access and
use the System, and

b) a non-exclusive, nontransferable {except as
provided herein) subllcense to use any other
computer software furnished by WISHIN

Such access and use Is subject to Participant's
compliance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement and the WISHIN Pol1c1es and
Procedures

PA014 Confidential 3



Participant has no rights to the System except for
the limited rights to access and use the System
expressly granted by this Agreement

12 Restrictions Participant shall not (a) use
the System for time-sharing, rental, or service
bureau purposes, (b) make the System or Services,
in whole or in part, available to any other person,
entity or business, other than as set forth m this
Agreement, (c) copy, reverse engineer, decompile
or disassemble the System, in whole or in part, or
otherwise attempt to discover the source code to
the software used in the System, or (d) modify the
System or combine the System with any other
software or services not provided or approved by
WISHIN

1 3 Change and Termination WISHIN
reserves the right to change the Services or the
System Changes to the System or the Services
that materially reduce, limit, or modify adversely the
functionality or levels of service provided, or any
changes m the Permitted Purposes (collectively,
"Material Changes"), shall not be made without
the prior approval of WISHIN's Board of Directors
and Participant Advisory Board Approval Such
approvals shall include a determination of whether
1t 1s technically feasible and financially reasonable
for WISHIN to allow a System participant to opt out
of part1c1patmg m the change while still remammg a
System participant

Material Changes shall not be made without at least
ninety (90) days prior written notice to Participant,
which notice shall include whether rt is technically
feasible and financially reasonable for Participant to
opt out of the change while still being a System
participant If there 1s a change to Permitted
Purposes, Participant may then (a) to the extent
that the WISHIN Board of Directors and the
Participant Advisory Board have determined that rt
1s technically feasible and financially reasonable for
WISHIN to implement, proh1b1t Other Part1c1pants
from using Participant's Shared Information for the
newly-approved Permitted Purpose, by g1vmg
WISHIN written notice of such prohibition at least
thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of the
newly-approved Permitted Purpose, or (b) 1f such
Implementation Is not technically feasible and
financially reasonable or Participant disagrees with
any other Material Change, Participant may elect to
terminate this Agreement as of the effective date
of the Material Change by written notice to WISHIN
that 1s given at least thirty (30) days prior to the
effective date of such Material Change

1 4 Third-Party Software WISHIN represents
that tt has all licenses and rights necessary from
third parties related to Third-Party Software and
Services, provided under this Agreement and
required for Part1c1pant to use System and any such

PA014

Third-Party Software and Services that are used
related to the System This Agreement shall not be
construed to hm1t any use of open-source software
In accordance with the applicable free software
license, provided, however, that all such open
source software shall be subJect to the security
and performance standards applicable to WISHIN
under this Agreement

1 5 Support WISHIN shall provide support
and assistance to Participant in using the System
and the Services, m accordance with Attachment
2, Software Maintenance and Support, and the
Policies and Procedures

2. Access to the System.

21 Permitted Uses Subject to the terms of
this Agreement, Participant may access and use
the System and use the Services only for
Permitted Purposes Health Care Payers'
Permitted Purpose is solely to receive and use
Health Data n accordance with Attachment 4, as
the same may be amended from time to time by
the approval of the WISHIN Board of Directors and
Participant Adv,sory Board Approval Health Care
Payers shall not otherwise have the r,ght to use
the WISHIN Pulse feature of the System or
otherwise access Health Data

22 Prohibited Uses. Participant and its
Authorized Users shall comply with the following
restrictions with respect to the System and the
Services

a) Participant shall not knowingly reproduce,
publish or distribute content in connection
with the System that infringes any third
party's trademark, copyright, patent, trade
secret, publicity, privacy or other personal
or proprietary right

b) Part1c1pant shall be responsible for its own
compliance with all applicable laws,
mcludmg laws relating to maintenance of
privacy, security and confidentiality of
patient and other health information and
the prohtbrton on the use of
telecommunications facilities to transmit
illegal, obscene, threatening, libelous,
harassing or offensive messages, or
otherwise unlawful material

c) Part1c1pant shall not knowingly (1) abuse
or misuse the System or the Services,
Including gaining or attempting to gain
unauthorized access to the System or.
except m accordance with accepted
practices, altering or destroying
information m the System, {II) use the
System or Services m such a manner that

4Confidential



PA014 Confidential

the Participant shall have a perpetual,
irrevocable right to use any such merged
Health Data in the Part1c1pant's normal
course of business, and (111) any other
Participant may, subject to the limitations
on its Permitted Purposes, incorporate
such Health Data into its own records and
use such Health Data solely for its
Permitted Purposes and as otherwise
hm1ted in this Agreement (for example, for
a Health Care Payer, solely in accordance
with use cases in Attachment 4 applicable
to Health Care Payers, and for public
health departments as limited in Section
2 4(a)) The foregoing shall not be
construed as a release of any ownership
rghts Participant has to data that rt
contributes to the System Subject to the
foregoing, all data, including but not
limited to clinical information and patient
data provided by Part1c1pant m support of
thus Agreement, either mn its original form
or de-1dent1fied, including all content and
other matenals comprising the data
("Part1c1pant's Data") are owned by, and
shall remain the sole property of
Part1c1pant This Agreement does not
convey to WISHIN or any other party any
title in or to, or ownership of, the
Participant Data or of any part thereof, and
subject to the Permitted Purposes,
WISHIN 1s proh1b1ted from selling or
transferring the Participant Data to any
party Participant understands and
agrees that WISHIN may disclose
Participant Data to WISH I N's
Subcontractors, as necessary for WISHIN
to carry out its obligations under this
Agreement as long as WISHIN ensures
that, and will remain responsible for, any
and all of its Subcontractors' compliance
with the terms of this Agreement, as
applicable Upon termination or expiration
of this Agreement, WISHIN shall destroy
or return, and ensure that its
Subcontractors destroy or return, any
Participant Data to Participant, or, If
WISHIN determines that returning or
destroying such data 1s not possible, as
approved by Part1c1pant, WISHIN shall
extend the protections of this Agreement,
Including the Business Associate
Agreement attached hereto, to such
Participant Data and not permit any further
uses and disclosures of such data

c) Aggregation and Subpoenas

() Participant shall not use the System to
create, produce, or compile records or
data of any Other Part1c1pants for the

5

a) Participant shall be solely responsible for
Part1c1pant's own compliance with any
applicable regulatory requirements related
to the preservation, privacy and security of
Its own records that reside on Participant's
own systems, Including without limitation
data backup, disaster recovery, and
emergency mode operation Participant
acknowledges that WISHIN does not
undertake to provide such services related
to records that reside on Participant's own
systems Notwithstanding the foregoing,
WISHIN shall provide data backup,
disaster recovery services and emergency
mode operation for the System, including
all Health Data and Confidential
Information, as set forth in the Policies and
Procedures and as otherwise provided in
this Agreement

b) As permitted by this Agreement, HIPAA
and other applicable law (1) Part1c1pant
may transmit, access and use Health Data
for a Permitted Purpose, (u) any Participant
that 1s a Health Care Provider may merge
relevant parts of such Health Data into its
own patient medical records, in which case

interferes with other users' use of the
System, or (111) permit the introduction into
the System of any program, routine, or data
{such as viruses or worms) that does or
may disrupt or in any way impede the
operation of the System, or alter or destroy
any data within it

d) Notwithstanding any provision to the
contrary in this Agreement, Part1c1pant
shall not use the System or Services for the
purpose of exploiting the data of Other
Participants to solicit, or make a targeted
marketing to, any patients of any Other
Participants, to compare patient volumes,
prices, practice patterns, or make any other
comparison or to aggregate data from
Other Participants for any similar
exploitation by itself or third parties

e) Participant shall not use the System or the
Services in volaton of this Agreement, the
Policies and Procedures or any applicable
laws of the United States of America, the
State of Wisconsin or any other applicable
state's laws

f) All of the foregoing restrictions and
proh1b1t1on on uses of the System shall
equally apply to WISHIN and its
contractors

2 3 Part1c1pant's Own Systems



24

purpose of furnishing such records to
third parties, except for a Permitted
Purpose or to a business associate of
Participant for a Permitted Purpose,

() If Participant is subpoenaed or
otherwise ordered to use the System
for the purpose of comp1hng the data of
Other PartIcIpants that are not already
contained In Participant's records,
Participant's shall immediately notify
WISHIN prior to making any disclosure
and shall not make any such
disclosure, unless required to do so by
court order, until WISHIN and such
other interested parties or Other
PartIc1pants that are impacted by such
disclosure have an opportunity to
appear or intervene and protect their
respective interests

Other Participants

a) Subject to and without hm1tmg the
Permitted Purposes, WISHIN mItIally may
permit System participation to the
following

(1) Health care providers as defined
by HIPAA m 45 CFR 160 103,

(11) Medical groups,

(111) Hospitals,

(iv) Independent laboratories,

(v) Independent radiology service
providers,

(vi) Chan pharmacies,

(vu) Independent pharmacies,

(vu) Long-term care facilities,

(x) Home health care programs,

(x) Pubhc health departments for
Treatment purposes,

(xI) Pubhc health departments for
pubhc health reporting purposes,

(Ii) State-contractedWisconsin Family
Care, Partnership, PACE, SSI-MedIca1d
and Dually EhgIble Special Needs Plan (D
SNP) Managed Care Organ1zat1ons for the
purposes of delivering or coordinating care
for the members covered under such
contracts,

Confidential

(x) Quality organizations not owned
by a Health Care Payer, but solely to
receive and use Health Data mn
accordance with Attachment 4, as the
same may be amended from time to time
by the approval of the WISHIN Board of
Directors and Participant Advisory Board
Approval Qua/tty Organ,zattons shall not
otherwise have the right to use the
WISHIN Pulse feature of the System or
otherwise access Health Data, and

(xiv) Health Care Payers, but solely to
receive and use Health Data mn
accordance with Attachment 4, as the
same may be amended from time to time
by the approval of the WISHIN Board of
Dtrectors and Participant Advisory Board
Approval Health Care Payers shall not
otherwise have the nght to use the
WISHIN Pulse feature of the System or
otherwise access Health Data

(xv) Life, dIsab1hty income, long-term
care, and critical illness insurance
companies and organizations that request
and receive health mformat1on on behalf
of such msurers but solely to request,
receive and use Health Data mn strct
compltance with· (A) an authortzat1on that
has been executed by the appltcable
Individual, (B) the Gramm-Leach-Bliley
Act and all other appltcable federal, state
and local laws and regulations relating to
the pnvacy, secunty and use of personal
information, and (C) Attachment 4, as the
same may be amended from time to time
by the approval of the WISHIN Board of
Drectors and Participant Advisory Board
Approval These insurance compames
and other organrzatons shall not
otherwise have the nght to use the System
or otherwise access Health Data

Not all categories of participants Will have
the same rights to access and use the
System Access and use rights will be
based on the nature of the partIcIpant and
its appropriate need to use the System,
consistent wth the Privacy Rule

b) This list of eligible participant types may
be modified by the Board of Directors of
WISHIN and Participant Advisory Board
Approval upon at least ninety (90) days
pnor written notice to Participant, which
notice shall include whether It Is
technically feasible and financially
reasonable for a Participant to opt out of
sharing Health Data with the new
participant types while continuing to be a
System participant If there Is a change

6PA014



25

to the eligible participant types, Participant
may then (a) to the extent that the
WISHIN Board of Directors and the
Participant Advisory Board have
determined that 1t 1s technically feasible
and financially reasonable forWISHIN to
implement, proh1b1t the new, eligible
participant types from using Participant's
Shared Information, by giving WISHIN
written notice of such prohibition at least
thirty (30) days prior to the effective date
of the newly-approved part1c1pant type(s),
or (b) if such implementation is not
technically feasible and financially
reasonable, Part1c1pant may elect to
termmate this Agreement as of the
effective date of the change to eligible
participant types, by written notice to
WISHIN that IS given at least thirty (30)
days prior to the effective date of such
change

c) All Participants shall be required to sign a
participation Agreement containing
substantially similar obligations to those
contained m this Agreement, including the
obligation to comply with the Policies and
Procedures and to be responsible for any
business associate, contractor, or
workforce member who accesses and
uses the System or Services as
Authorized Users on its behalf

Safeguards

a) Part1c1pant and WISHIN shall each
implement and maintain reasonable and
appropriate administrative, physical and
technical safeguards to comply with its
obligations under HIPAA and other
applicable law Participant's safeguards
also shall comply with WISHIN's
Participant Safeguard Checklist and the
other Policies and Procedures

b) Part1c1pant shall promptly notify WISHIN of
any Security Incident relating to the System
of which Part1c1pant becomes aware, or
any unauthorized use or disclosure of
Information within or obtained from the
System and shall cooperate with WISHIN
In investigating the incident and shall take
such acton, as is practicable, to mitigate
any breach or suspected breach WISHIN
shall promptly notify PartIc1pant of any
Security Incident relating to Participant's
Shared Information of which WISHIN
becomes aware, or any unauthorized use
or disclosure of Part1c1pant's Shared
Information and shall cooperate with
Participant in investigating the incident and

26

shall take such action, as is practicable, to
m1t1gate any breach or suspected breach

The parties acknowledge and agree that
this section constitutes notice by
Part1c1pant to WISHIN of the ongoing
existence and occurrence of attempted
but Unsuccessful Security Incidents (as
defined below) for which no add1tIonal
notice to WISHIN shall be
required "Unsuccessful Security
Incidents" shall include, but not be limited
to, pings and other broadcast attacks on
Participant's firewall, port scans,
unsuccessful log-on attempts, denials of
service and any combination of the above,
so long as no such incident results in
unauthorized access, use or disclosure of
PHI

Compliance

a) WISHIN authorizes Part1c1pant to use the
Participant ID assigned to It by WISHIN or
WISHIN's designated agent Participant
acquires no ownership rights in the
Part1c1pant ID or any Authorized User ID,
and the Participant ID and Authorized
User IDs may be revoked or changed
upon as much notice as reasonably
practicable only for security reasons in
WISHIN's reasonable discretion
Participant shall adopt and mamntamn
reasonable security precautions for its
Part1c1pant ID and its Authorized User IDs
intended to prevent their disclosure to and
use by unauthorized persons Part1c1pant
shall use reasonable efforts to prevent any

7

Part1c1pant and WISHIN each are responsible for
their own and their respective employees',
subcontractors', and agents' compliance with the
terms of this Agreement, HIPAA, the Policies and
Procedures, and other applicable laws and
regulations Part1c1pant shall be solely responsible
for the authorized use of the system by
Part1c1pant's Authorized Users WISHIN Is solely
responsible for the System and Services provided
by WISHIN, its subcontractors or agents
hereunder

As between Participant and Other Participants,
each shall be responsible for its acts and
omissions and not for the acts or omissions of any
Other Participant Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary in this Agreement, Participant and Other
Participants shall not be liable for any act or
om1ss1on 1f a cause of action for such act or
omission ts otherwise prohbrited by applicable law

2 7 Authorized Use

PA014 Confidential



member of its workforce from using an
Authorized User ID that Part1c1pant has
assigned to another person

b) Participant may permit Participant's
Authorized Users to use the System and
the Services on behalf of Participant,
subject to the terms of this Agreement and
the Policies and Procedures Participant
shall

() Conduct a reasonable process to
determine that granting an mdrvdual
access to the System as an Authorized
User is appropriate Keep a current list
of its current and past Authorized User
IDs and to whom each has been
assigned,

(11) Obtain a unique Authorized User ID
from the System for Participant to
assign each Authorized User and take
efforts to ensure that each such person
has access to the System only under
his or her Authorized User ID

(ui) Tramn all Authorized Users regarding
the confidentiality requirements of this
Agreement and the Policies and
Procedures relating to their access to
and use of the System, and be
responsible for their compliance with
such requirements,

(Iv) Take such disciplinary acton as rt may
deem appropriate against any
Authorized User who violates the
confidentiality provisions of thus
Agreement or the Policies and
Procedures,

(v) Report to WISHIN v1olat1ons of the
confidentiality requirements set forth m
this Agreement by Part1c1pant's
Authorized Users

(v) Promptly disable and revoke the
Authorized User ID upon the
termination of employment or change
of role of any Authorized User (or if the
ind1v1dual 1s not an employee, of the
termination of the relationship or role
with Participant which required that the
ind1v1dual access the System),

(vii) Take prompt steps so that any
Authorized User whose access has
been revoked or restricted shall have
no further access to the System
consistent with the revocation or
restriction

29
Users

Discipline and Termination of Authorized

2 8 Rights of Authorized Users An
Authorized User shall have no rights to access the
System, or to use the Services or any Health Data
or other information made available therefrom,
other than those permitted under this Agreement
and as authorized by Part1c1pant Any such rights
of an Authorized User shall cease and terminate
upon the removal of that Authorized User's access
privileges for any reason

a) Participant shall require that all of its
Authorized Users use and access the
System only m strict compliance with this
Agreement and the Policies and
Procedures

b) Participant shall take appropriate
d1sc1plinary action, up to and mcludmg
termination, agamnst any of its Authorized
Users who volate their use restrictions,
confidentiality obligations or the Policies
and Procedures

c) WISHIN may terminate System access of
any Authorized User temporarily or on a
permanent basis 1f WISHIN determines
such termination 1s necessary for security
reasons When terminating access of a
Participant's Authorized User, WISHIN
shall notify Participant and explain the
basis and support for its action

2 10 Termination of a Participant Following
discussion with a Participant and a reasonable
opportunity to cure (tf such cure is possible),
WISHIN may terminate that Participant's access to
the System on a temporary or permanent basis for
privacy and security breaches or for failure to take
reasonable remedial action when a breach Is
discovered, including, without limitation (1) failure
to cooperate in mitigating damages, (Ii) failure to
appropriately d1sc1phne an Authorized User or
other person under the Part1c1pant's control for
security or privacy violations, or (ui) other actions
that undermine the confidence of Other
Part1c1pants m the effectiveness of System
safeguards When terminating access, WISHIN
shall explain to Part1c1pant the basis and support
for its action Permanent termination of
Participant's access shall terminate this
Agreement

2 11 Professional Respons1b1hty WISHIN 1s
responsible for maintaining the Integrity of
Part1c1pant's Shared Information (and Other
Participants' Health Data) that 1s submitted into the
System Without limiting the foregoing, Participant
shall be solely responsible for the medical,

PA014 Confidential 8



PA014 Confidential

a) Sens1t1ve Data Will Be Disclosed Only ma
Medical Emergency "Sens1t1ve Data"
means Health Data that the disclosing
part1c1pant has flagged or otherwise
prominently identified as sensitive
pursuant to the following subsection (b)
Sens1t1ve Data shall be released through
the System only when the requesting
System participant has certified that the
subject individual has a medical
emergency

Nothing in thus Section 3 3 or otherwise in
this Agreement requires Part1cIpant to
release into the System or otherwise
provide any Sens1t1ve Data or other Health
Data when Participant believes that
releasing or otherwise providing the same
may violate any law or regulation

b) Promment ldent1ficat1on of Sens,t,ve Data
and Prohibition on Re-D1sclosure,
Reportmg of Release of Sensitive Data
When releasing any Sensitive Data mnto
the System, the discloser of the
information shall prominently identify the
Health Data as being Sensitive Data, In
accordance with WISHIN's related
Pohc1es and Procedures When
transmitting the Sensitive Data, WISHIN
then shall flag or note that re-disclosure of
the Sensitive Data is prohibited without
patient consent or statutory authorization

c) Notation of Disclosure mn Patient's
Records WISHIN shall maintain a
separate Sens1t1ve Data disclosures audit
log for Participant and each of the Other
Part1c1pants that will include the name of
the person to whom the Sensitive Data
was released and their affilIatIon to any
health care fac1hty, and the date of the
release

d) No Psychotherapy Notes, AODA Records
Maintained mn Connection with a Federally
Assisted AODA Program, or Records of
HIV Results from a Compelled Test All
Participants shall not release into the
System any Psychotherapy Notes or HIV
test results when the test results were
obtained from a test that was compelled
under Section 252 15(5g) of the
Wisconsin Statutes as a result of a
circumstance involving a "significant
exposure " AII Participants also shall not
release into the System any records
subject to 42 CFR Part 2 (1e , AODA
records maintained in connection wIth a
federally-assisted AODA program),
unless the Policies and Procedures are

9

professional, and technical services 1t provides and
WISHIN makes no representations concerning the
completeness, accuracy or ut1hty of any information
provided by Other Participants, or concerning the
quahficat1ons or competence of md1v1duals who
placed It there WISHIN has no hab1hty for the
medical services or advice Participant provides to
Participant's patents

2 12 Cooperation Part1c1pant shall reasonably
cooperate with WISHIN in the admin1strat1on of the
System, including providing reasonable assistance
in evaluating the System and collecting and
reporting data reasonably requested by WISHIN for
purposes of administering the System Participant
further agrees to reasonably cooperate on any
Issues relating to WISHIN's participation in the
eHealth Exchange (formerly the Nat1onw1de Health
Information Network) and any regional health
information exchange or network

3. Making Information Available through
the System.

31 Purpose of System The purpose of the
System Is to fac1htate the sharing of patient health
Information among All Participants

3 2 Sharing of Data. Following approval from
the Part1c1pant Advisory Board in accordance with
Section 1.3 and upon at least 60 days' advance
written notice to All Part1c1pants, WISHIN shall from
time to time issue Pohc1es and Procedures for the
sharing of Health Data, including standards for

a) The kinds of data to be shared and the
required format for such data,

b) The data made available through the
System being complete or 1dent1fied as
being incomplete,

c) Data being made available through the
System in a timely manner, and

d) When the ava1lab1hty of data shared
through the System 1s controlled by the
Participant, availability to other users

e) Notwithstanding the foregoing or any
changes to the Policies and Procedures for
sharing of data, the foregoing shall not be
construed to permit WISHIN to change the
Permitted Purposes without following the
procedures in Section 1 3, or otherwise
permit WISHIN to share Part1c1pant's data
in a manner not expressly permitted in this
Agreement

3 3 Sens1t1ve Data, Including Behavioral Health
and AODA Records



amended to expressly permit the release of
such records

3 4 Accuracy and Format of Data Participant
shall use reasonable efforts intended to ensure that
Part1c1pant's Shared Information

a) Is current, accurate and (subject to any
restrictions imposed by law or thus
Agreement, including Section 3 9)
complete, or 1f 1t 1s incomplete that the
record contains an appropriate indication to
that effect, and

b) Complies with any requirements of the
Policies and Procedures

35 Sharing of Participant's Shared
Information Participant authorizes WISHIN to use
and disclose Part1c1pant's Shared Information only
for the Permitted Purposes and as follows

a) WISHIN may disclose Part1c1pant's Shared
Information to Other Participants that are
Public Health Authorities for public health
activities, as permitted by applicable law
and to the extent consistent with use cases
in Attachment 4 or as otherwise authorized
by Partcpant in writing.

b) WISHIN may use and disclose Participant's
Shared Information for the proper
management and administration of
WISHIN and the System, and to carry out
WISHIN's legal responsib1ht1es WISHIN
may also disclose Participant's Shared
Information for such purposes 1f the
disclosure 1s required by law and WISHIN
gves Participant notice of (and to the
extent legally perm1ss1ble, the right to
object to) any such disclosure prior to
making the disclosure Without limiting the
foregoing, WISHIN may permit access to
the System by WISHIN's authorized
personnel solely for the purpose of
providing the Services hereunder

In order for WISHIN to facilitate the sharing of
patient health information among Participant and
Other Participants, WISHIN Is authorized to
manage authorized requests for, and disclosures
of, PHI among Participant and Other Participants,
create and maintain a master patient index, provide
a record locator or patient matching service,
provide a longitudinal or community view of
patients' information, standardize data formats,
implement business rules to assist m the
automation of data exchange, and facilitate the
1dent1f1cat1on and correction of errors in health
1nformat1on records

3 6 Disclosures and Add1t1onal Use
Part1c1pant agrees that any disclosure through the
System pursuant to Section 3 5 Is a disclosure
made by WISHIN as a business associate, as
defined in HIPAA, of a Part1c1pant

3 7 Reliance on Representations Participant
acknowledges that in granting access to the
System for the purposes as set forth m this
Agreement, WISHIN will rely on the assurances of
Participant and the Other Participants (and, with
respect to any other health information exchange
or network for which WISHIN has an
lnterExchange Data Sharing Agreement, each
such exchange/network and Its participants and
their author1zed users) as to (@) their Identity and
credentials, (11) the purposes for which they are
accessing the System, and (ui) the nature and
extent of the information they request and to which
they will have access, including that all requests
comply with HIPAA's mmImum necessary
standard Part1c1pant acknowledges that,
although the System will contain certain technical
safeguards against misuse of the System, WISHIN
will rely to a substantial extent on the
representations and undertakings of Part1c1pant,
Other Part1c1pants, Authorized Users and, to the
extent applicable, the exchanges/networks and
their part1c1pants and their authorized users for the
above-referenced health information exchanges
and networks (collectively, "System Users")
Part1c1pant agrees that WISHIN shall not be
responsible for any unlawful access to or use of
Participant's Shared Information by any System
Users resulting from m1srepresentatIon to WISHIN
or breach of Agreement or v1olat1on of the Policies
and Procedures by any of the System Users

3 8 Compliance with Privacy Rule Participant
and WISHIN shall comply with the standards of the
Privacy Rule in permitting any of its Authorized
Users access to the System Participant and
WISHIN acknowledge that other federal and state
laws impose add1t1onal restrictions on the use and
disclosure of certain types of health information or
health information pertaining to certain classes of
individuals Participant and WISHIN shall comply
with the minimum necessary standard under
HIPAA when requesting information through the
System Partcpant is responsible for ensuring
that Participant's Shared Information may properly
be disclosed for the purposes set forth m this
Agreement In particular, Participant shall

a) Not make available through the System
any information subject to any restriction
on use or disclosure that would be
proh1b1ted under applicable law,

b) Obtain any necessary consents,
authorizations or releases from individuals

PA014 Confidential 10



legally required for making their health
information available through the System,
and

c) Include such statements (rf any) in
Participant's notce of privacy practices as
may be legally required in connection with
Part1c1pant's use of the System

39 Individuals' Rights Except as provided In
the next paragraph Part1c1pant shall be solely
responsible for affording individuals ther rghts with
respect to PartIcIpant's Shared Information, such as
the rights of access and amendment, or requests
for special restrictions on the use or disclosure of
health information, and WISHIN shall not accept or
process any requests from ind1v1duals for the
exercise of such rights Partcipant shall not
undertake to afford an ind1v1dual any rights with
respect to any information in the System other than
Participant's Shared Information

Notwithstanding the foregoing paragraph, WISHIN
shall administer an md1v1dual's ab1hty to opt out (the
"Opt Out") of the full sharing hrs/her PHI that is mn
the System WISHIN will administer an ind1v1dual's
request to Opt Out with respect to PHI in the
System In such case, Other Part1c1pants will have
access to the PHI only in certain emergency and
other sItuatIons as established by the Policies and
Procedures WISHIN shall also comply with the
requirements in the Business Associate Agreement
related to any disclosures of an ind1v1dual's PHI

3 10 Rights in Data As between WISHIN and
Participant, all Participant's Shared Information that
Is sent through, or entered into, the System by
Part1c1pant shall be deemed to be the exclusive
property of Part1c1pant. WISHIN shall not- claim
any rights with respect to such Participant's Shared
Information, use or authorize any third-party to use
such data, or take any action with respect to such
data that ts Inconsistent with thus Agreement
WISHIN waives any and all statutory or common
law hens It may now or subsequently have with
respect to such Part1c1pant's Shared Information
PartIcIpant may retrieve, transport and deliver to
third parties PartIc1pant's Shared Information, and
all manipulations of such data associated with the
System and Services and Part1c1pant's Shared
Information contained in WISHIN's archived data
files

4. Business Associate Provisions.

4 1 Compliance with Privacy and Security
Rules In using, disclosing and affording access to
Participant's Shared Information in accordance with
this Agreement, WISHIN shall comply with the
Privacy Rule and the Security Rule and other

applicable Wisconsin and federal laws and
regulations

42 Business Associate ProvIstons WISHIN
and Participant agree to the terms and condrtons
of the HIPAA Business Associate Provisions set
forth in Attachment 6 to this Agreement or as
otherwise agreed in writing by the parties

5. Computer Systems.

51 Participant's Equipment, Auditing

a) In order to use the System, Participant
acknowledges that 1t may be necessary
for 1t to acquire, install, configure and
maintain the hardware, software and
communications systems (the
"Equipment") listed or described in any
Technical Requirements or the Policies
and Procedures, as the same may be
amended from time to time If Participant
elects to implement its use of the System,
Part1c1pant shall comply with the
spec1ficat1ons set forth in any Technical
Requirements or the Policies and
Procedures If WISHIN not1f1es
Part1c1pant that ,ts Equipment for the
1mplementat1on and use of the System Is
incompatible with the System and not in
accordance with any Technical
Requirements or the Policies and
Procedures, Participant shall either
eliminate the incompatibility or terminate
this Agreement and WISHIN may suspend
Services to Participant until Participant
does so

b) WISHIN and Participants shall perform
their respective auditing activities as
required by the Policies and Procedures

52 Participant's Actions Participant Is
responsible for any damage to WISHIN's
computer system, loss of data, and any damage to
the System caused solely by the negligence of an
Authorized User of Participant or a member of
Participant's workforce where Participant would
otherwise be responsible for the negligent acts or
om1ss1ons of such Authorized User under the
principles of employment or agency law

5 3 WISHIN Assistance From time-to-time,
WISHIN may separately contract with PartIcIpant
for the provision of goods or services mn connection
wth Participant's Implementation or use of the
System, provided, however, such goods or
services contracts shall not (and shall not be
deemed or construed to) alter or amend any
provisions of thus Agreement

PA014 Confidential 11



6. Policies and Procedures. and payable to WISHIN within thirty (30) days
following Participant's receipt of WISHIN's invoice

8 3 Taxes All charges and fees shall be
exclusive of all federal, state, municipal, or other
government excise, sales, use, occupational, or
like taxes now in force or enacted in the future, and
Participant agrees to pay any tax (excluding taxes
on WISHIN's net income) that WISHIN may be
required to collect or pay now or at any time in the
future and that are imposed upon the sale or
delivery of items and services purchased under
this Agreement Notwithstanding the foregoing, If
Part1c1pant 1s exempt from most sales and use
taxes and 1t will not be responsible for the payment
of any such taxes to WISHIN 1f It timely provides
WISHIN with a valid exemption certificate WISHIN
shall cooperate with Part1c1pant as reasonably
necessary to establish with a relevant taxing
authority Part1c1pant's exemption from tax on the
goods and services purchased under this
Agreement In the event such exemption Is
rejected, Part1c1pant shall pay for taxes imposed in
conjunction with this Agreement, mcludmg sales,
use, excise and smmlar taxes based on or
measured by charges payable under this
Agreement and imposed under authority of
federal, state or local taxing jurisdictions ThIs
Participant obligation specifically excludes foreign,
federal, state and local taxes based upon
WISHIN's revenues, net income, number of
employees, or corporate existence

8 4 Other Charges Part1c1pant Is responsible
for any charges Part1c1pant incurs to connect to the
System, such as telephone and equipment
charges, fees charged by third-party vendors of
products and services WISHIN shall be solely
responsible for all costs and expenses related to
its hardware, software, telecommunications
connections, data storage, data security and any
third-party licenses required to provide the System
and Services and fulfill WISHIN's oblIgatIons
under this Agreement Participant s not
responsible for any portion of WISHIN's
obligations and 1t 1s not a guarantor or surety of
WISH I N's debts or financial dealings

8 5 No Payment for Protected Health
Information All fees charged by, paid to or
collected by or on behalf of WISHIN under this
Agreement shall be for the rights of Participant and
Other Participants to access and use the System
and Services as described in this Agreement
WISHIN shall not offer or pay or solicit or receive
any remuneration, directly or 1nd1rectly, in return
for Participant's Shared Information

9. Confidential Information.

6 1 WISHIN Is solely responsible for the
development of the Pohc1es and Procedures, which
shall be subject to approval of the Board and
Participant Advisory Board in accordance wth
Section 13 WISHIN shall notify Participant of any
changes in the Pohc1es and Procedures at least
ninety (90) days prior to the 1mplementatIon of the
change However, 1f the change is required in order
for WISHIN or Part1c1pant to comply with applicable
laws or regulations or 1f the Board of Directors
directs, WISHIN may implement the change and
provide notice to Participant wthin a shorter period
of time that WISHIN determines 1s appropriate
under the circumstances If Part1c1pant 1s unable or
unwilling to comply with or implement such Policies
and Procedures, Participant may elect to suspend
its use of the System or terminate this Agreement
Immediately without cause upon written notice to
WISHIN and receive a pro-rata refund of
Subscription and Service Fees that Participant has
paid in advance for the balance of the then-current
term as such refund Is further described in Section
13 2

6 2 The Policies and Procedures, as amended
from time to time, are incorporated by reference
into, and made a part of, this Agreement

7. Training Costs.

Except for such standard training as WISHIN
provides as part of WISHIN's 1mplementat1on
services, Participant shall be solely responsible for
the participation and costs of training Participant's
personnel related to the System and its use If
Part1c1pant contracts with WISHIN for such training,
WISHIN shall be responsible for providing the
appropriate training sessions, instructors, study
materials needed to participate and scheduling
training sessions at times and places reasonably
acceptable to Participant When offered, Participant
may contract with WISHIN for customized training
materials Customized training materals are
subject to additional fees

8. Fees and Charges.

81 Subscription and Service Fees Participant
shall pay to WISHIN the undisputed Subscription
and Service Fees and Miscellaneous Charges set
forth in Attachment 5 during the Term and
continuation of this Agreement WISHIN may
change its Subscription and Service Fees and
Miscellaneous Charges for any renewal term upon
thirty (30) days' prior notice to Participant of such
change

8 2 Payment The Subscription and Service
Fees and any Miscellaneous Charges shall be due
PA014 Confidential 12



9 1 Neither party shall disclose the Confidential
Information of the other party or any Other
Participant to any other person and shall not use
any Confidential Information of the other party or
any Other Part1c1pant except for the purpose of this
Agreement, or as required by applicable statute,
regulation, court order or subpoena (Jud1c1al and
admmIstratIve) Except as otherwise permitted by
this Agreement, neither party shall at any time,
during or after the Term of this Agreement, directly
or indirectly, divulge or disclose Confidential
Information of the other party or any Other
Part1c1pant for any purpose or use Confidential
Information for its own benefit or for the purposes
or benefit of any other person without the prior
written consent of such party or Other Part1c1pant
Participant or WISHIN shall promptly advise the
other party in writing of any improper disclosure,
misappropriation, or misuse of the other party's or
any Other PartIc1pant's Confidential Information by
any person, which may come to Participant's or
WISHIN's attention. WISHIN shall 1mmed1ately
notify in writing any Other Participant whose Health
Data is disclosed, misappropriated, or mrsused

9 2 Participant and WISHIN each agree that
(a) 1f It fails to comply with its obligations set forth in
this Section 9, the other party will suffer irreparable
harm, and (b) monetary damages will be
inadequate to compensate the other party for any
such breach. Accordingly, Part1c1pant and WISHIN
agree that Participant and WISHIN will, in addition
to any other remedies available to 1t at law or in
equity, be entitled to the issuance of inJunct1ve relief
to enforce the prov1s1ons of this Section 9,
Immediately and without the necessity of posting a
bond

93 Thus Section 9 will survive the termination
or expiration of this Agreement for any reason

10. Disclaimers.

1 O 1 Accuracy of Patient Record Matching
Participant acknowledges that there could be errors
or mismatches when matching patient identities
between disparate data sources Part1c1pant 1s
responsible for using reasonable efforts under the
circumstances to attempt to verify that any Health
Data Participant accesses or receives relates to a
particular individual as intended by Participant and
for the Immed1ate destruction of any Health Data
obtained inadvertently

Patients inappropriately matched must be reported
by Participant, wrthmn a reasonable time after
discovery by Part1c1pant, to WISHIN Support All
inappropriate matches will be corrected by WISHIN
or ,ts subcontractor within 24 hours of being
reported

Patient records that should be matched but aren't
may be identified by Participant or by WISHIN
WISHIN will monitor probable patient matches
using a Probable Match Queue The Probable
Match Queue shows matches that have between
85% and 95% probability of being a match based
on the patient matching algorithms provided m the
system (called "Probable Matches") WISHIN will
work wth Participants to submit corrected patient
information through the Part1cIpant's interfaces In
order to correct patient match issues If Participant
1s not able to submit corrected information,
WISHIN wll obtain written permission from
Part1c1pant(s} forWISHIN to force the match (note
that thus may require the permission from multiple
Participants) Within 7 business days of
Participant or WISHIN 1dent1fying a Probable
Match, WISHIN will begin work with PartIcIpant(s)
to correctly match the patient

102 Incomplete Medical Record. Accuracy of
Health Data All Part1c1pants acknowledge that
Health Data may not include the md1v1dual's full
and complete medical record or history

Without limiting WISHIN's obligations to maintain
the accuracy, integnty and completeness of
information as submitted into the System by All
Participants and Participant's obligations under
Section 3 4, nothing in this Agreement shall be
deemed to Impose responsibility or liability on
Participant or WISHIN related to the clinical
accuracy, content or completeness of any Health
Data Notwithstanding the foregoing, WISHIN
acknowledges that Part1c1pant's Shared
Information Is to be used and the related Health
Data Is disclosed as a clinical information
management and d1agnost1c tool only and that its
use by WISHIN, and Other Participants requires
the involvement of trained md1v1duals WISHIN
further acknowledges and agrees that PartIcIpant
does not represent that PartIcIpant's Shared
Information 1s sufficient in and of itself to diagnose
disease, prescribe treatment, or perform any other
tasks that constitute the practice of medicine
Therefore, WISHIN acknowledges that PartIcIpant
a} has no control of or responsIbIhty for WISH I N's
or any Other Participant's use of the PartIcIpant's
Shared Information and related Health Data and b)
has no knowledge of the specIfIc or unique
circumstances under which PartIcIpant's Shared
Information will be used after disclosure by
WISHIN The parties and Other Participants agree
that, by furnishing Participant's Shared
Information, Participant is not providing medical
services to patients and is not engaged mn the
practice of medicine The receipt of Health Data
does not absolve Part1c1pant and Other
Participants of their obligations to exercise
independent medical Judgment in rendering health
care services to ,ts patients and that the

PA014 Confidential 13



professional duty to the patent mn providing
healthcare services hes solely with the healthcare
professional providing the services Participant
makes no warranty as to the nature or quality of the
Participant's Shared Information made available to
Other Participants and permitted third parties by
WISHIN

10 3 Carner Lines PartIcIpant acknowledges
that access to the System will be provided over
various facilities and communications lines, and
information will be transmitted over local exchange
and internet backbone earner lines and through
routers, switches, and other devices owned,
maintained, and serviced by third-party earners,
ut1lit1es, internet service providers (collectively,
"Carner Lines") are beyond WISHIN's control
Except to the extent encompassed by a service
level standard and service level credit, WISHIN
assumes no l1ab1hty for or relating to the integrity,
privacy, security, confidentiality, or use of any
information while It Is transmitted on the Carner
Lines, or any delay, failure, interruption,
interception, loss, transm1ssIon, or corruption of any
data or other information attributable to
transmission on the Carrier Lines

104 Other Participants Participant
acknowledges that Other Part1c1pants have access
to the System and Services Such Other
PartIcIpants have committed to comply with the
Policies and Procedures concerning use of the
System, however, the actions of such Other
PartIc1pants and their Authorized Users are beyond
WISH I N's control Part1c1pant agrees that WISHIN
Is not liable for any impairment of the privacy,
security, confidentiality, integrity, ava1lab1hty, or
restricted use of any information on the System
resulting from any actions or failures to act of Other
Participants

10 5 Patient Care Without lImItmg any of
WISHIN's obligations under this Agreement,
Participant is solely responsible for all of its patient
care decisions resulting from or involving the use of
the System or the Services, and neither Participant
nor any other person shall have any claim or cause
of action against WISHIN as a result of patient care
rendered or withheld m connection with the use of
the System or the Services PartIcIpant
acknowledges that Health Data is disclosed
through the System as a clinical information
management and dIagnost1c tool only and that its
use by Part1cIpant requires the involvement of
trained individuals Participant further
acknowledges and agrees that WISHIN and the
Other PartIcIpants do not represent that the Health
Data provided through the System Is sufficient m
and of itself to diagnose disease, prescribe
treatment, or perform any other tasks that constitute
the practice of medicine Participant agrees that, in

furnishing Health Data, Other Part1c1pants and
WISHIN are not providing medical services to
patients and are not engaged in the practice of
medicine

11. Warranties, Limitations of Liability and
Indemnification.

111 Warranties WISHIN represents and
warrants the following

a) WISHIN has the authority to enter into this
Agreement

b) WISHIN has all appropriate and adequate
rights to grant the rights and sublicenses
set forth m Section 1

c) WISHIN will perform the Services required
under this Agreement mn a professional
and workmanlike manner

d) Neither the Services nor the maintenance,
support and operation of the System shall
be performed outside of the geographic
limits of the United States of America

e) The System will perform in material
compliance with the manuals, technical
specifications and user instructions
describing the functionality, features,
operation, and use of the System The
System will be mamntamned as a secure
system and will maintain the accuracy,
integrity and completeness of the
information as submitted into the system
by All Part1cIpants WISHIN will perform
the Services required under this
Agreement in a professional and
workmanlike manner In accordance with
industry standards Except as otherwise
provided m this Agreement, WISHIN's
exclusive obligation, and Participant's
exclusive remedy, in the event of a breach
of this warranty will be for WISHIN to
promptly and accurately re-perform the
applicable Services not in compliance with
the warranty, provided WISHIN receives
written notice from Participant of such
breach within thirty (30) calendar days
after such Services were originally
performed

OTHER THAN AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN
THIS AGREEMENT, WISHIN MAKES NO
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES TO
PARTICIPANT REGARDING THE SYSTEM, THE
SERVICES, THE HEALTH INFORMATION MADE
AVAILABLE THROUGH THE SYSTEM AND
SERVICES OR ANY OTHER DELIVERABLES
PROVIDED BY WISHIN OR OTHERWISE

PA014 Confidential 14



REGARDING THIS AGREEMENT ANY IMPLIED
WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE
EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED THE FOREGOING
WARRANTIES ARE EXCLUSIVE AND IN LIEU OF
ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS, IMPLIED
OR STATUTORYWISHIN WILL ALSO TAKE
COMMERCIALLY REASONABLE STEPS TO
PERMIT PARTICIPANT TO RECEIVE THE
BENEFITS OF ANY WARRANTIES THAT MAY BE
OFFERED BY THIRD PARTIES

THE HEALTH INFORMATION MADE AVAILABLE
THROUGH THE SYSTEM IS PROVIDED "AS
AVAILABLE" FROM ALL PARTICIPANTS AS
SUBMITTED INTO THE SYSTEM

112 Unauthorized Access. Lost or Corrupt
Data EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY OR
RESULTING FROM WISHIN'S NEGLIGENCE,
GROSS NEGLIGENCE, WILLFUL MISCONDUCT
OR BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT, WISHIN IS
NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR UNAUTHORIZED
ACCESS TO PARTICIPANT'S TRANSMISSION
FACILITIES OR EQUIPMENT BY INDIVIDUALS
OR ENTITIES USING THE SYSTEM OR FOR
UNAUTHORIZED ACCESS TO, OR
ALTERATION, THEFT, OR DESTRUCTION OF
PARTICIPANT'S DATA FILES, PROGRAMS,
PROCEDURES, OR INFORMATION THROUGH
THE SYSTEM

113 Limitations of Liability Subject to Sections
3 7 and 10, the limitations of liability set forth in this
Agreement shall not apply to WISHIN'S intellectual
property indemnification or a party's confidentiality
obl1gat1ons (including under HIPAA), a party's gross
negligence or willful misconduct, claims for property
damage or personal inJury (other than claims for
personal injury or death arising from medical care
or advice) or to the extent of a liable party's
insurance proceeds (or, 1f there are no such
proceeds, the amount of any insurance coverage
required) under this Agreement EXCEPT AS SET
FORTH IN THE FOREGOING SENTENCE (a)
NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE
OTHER FOR INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL,
EXEMPLARY OR CONSEQUENTIAL
(INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO LOSS OF
PROFIT OR GOODWILL) DAMAGES OF ANY
KIND IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT
THE FURNISHING, PERFORMANCE OR USE OF
THE SYSTEM, SERVICES OR ANY OTHER
DELIVERABLE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT,
WHETHER ALLEGED AS ARISING UNDER A
BREACH OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHER
LEGAL THEORY, EVEN IF THE OTHER PARTY
HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF
SUCH DAMAGES, AND (b) A PARTY'S TOTAL
LIAIBILITY FOR ANY DIRECT DAMAGES SHALL
NOT EXCEED AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO THE

PA014

114 WISHIN's
Indemnification

Intellectual Property

Confidential

FEES PAID OR PAYABLE BY PARTICIPANT TO
WISHIN UNDER THIS AGREEMENT FOR THE
TWELVE MONTH PERIOD PRECEDING THE
EVENT GIVING RISE TO THE CLAIM

a) Intellectual Property Indemnity WISHIN
(either directly or through the licensor of
the System Software) shall defend,
indemnify, and hold harmless Participant
against any third-party clamms and
damages, Judgments, awards and costs
(including reasonable attorneys' fees)
awarded against Participant and arising
out of or related to any claim that
Participant's use of the System Software
or the Services infringes any copyright,
trademark or U S patent or
misappropriates any trade secret of any
third party, including but not limited to any
reasonable expense incurred by
Participant in assisting WISHIN (or the
licensor of the System Software) in
defending against such clamm Participant
shall give WISHIN (u) written notice within
a reasonable time after the earlier of
Participant receiving notice of a
threatened clamm and Participant bemng
served with legal process mn an action
asserting any such claim, (11) reasonable
assistance mn defending the clamm, and ()
authority to settle such clamm, provided,
however, that Participant may, at its sole
discreton and expense, participate mn the
defense of any claim or action and any
negot1at1ons for settlement WISHIN (or
the licensor of the System software) shall
not settle any such claim without
Participant's consent (which shall not be
unreasonably withheld) unless the
settlement 1s solely m exchange for a
monetary payment by WISHIN (or the
licensor of the System software) and fully
releases Participant

b) Additional Remedies In the event that the
System or Services, or any portion of the
System or Services, are held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to Infringe or
constitute the wrongful use of any third
party's proprietary rights or If WISHIN
determines that the System or Services
(or any part of the System or Services)
may infringe or constitute the wrongful use
of a third party's proprietary rights,
WISHIN may instruct Part1c1pant and its
Authorized Users to cease using the
System or Services (or portion of the
System or Services) and Participant and

15



its Authorized Users shall cease using such
System or Services WISHIN also shall.
(i) replace the System or Services, with
equally suitable and functionally equivalent
non-mfrmg1ng System or Services,
(11) modify the System or Services so that
they are equally suitable and functionally
equivalent to the alleged infringing System
or Services so that the use of such modified
System or Services by Authorized Users Is
not mfringing or wrongful, or (ni) procure for
Participant and its Authorized Users the
right to continue using the System or
Services. In the event WISHIN determines
that the foregoing remedies are not
commercially feasible or reasonable,
WISHIN may terminate this Agreement and
refund to Part1c1pant all fees pre-paid by
Participant

c) Limitation Notwithstanding the terms of
Section a), WISHIN will have no liability for
an infringement or msappropration clamm
to the extent caused by Part1c1pant's or an
Authorized User's use of the Services or
System other than materially in accordance
with thus Agreement

d) Other Third-Party Software and Services
WISHIN does not warrant any Other Third
Party Software, but WISHIN will take
commercially reasonable steps to permit
Participant to receive the benefits of any
warranties that may be offered by third
parties

e) Exclusive Remedy THIS SECTION 114
SETS FORTH THE ENTIRE LIABILITY
AND OBLIGATION OF WISHIN, AND
PARTICIPANT'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY
AGAINST WISHIN, WITH RESPECT TO
ANY INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
INFRINGEMENT

12. Insurance.

121 Participant Insurance Participant shall
obtain and maintain such policies of general
liability, errors and om1ss1ons, and professional
liability insurance with reputable insurance
companies and with limits of not less than
$1,000,000 per claim and $3,000,000 in the annual
aggregate The terms of this section shall not be
deemed to l1m1t the liability of Participant hereunder

122 WISHIN Insurance WISHIN shall maintain
In effect, insurance with a earner with an AM Best's
financial performance rating ("fpr'') of A- or higher
and a minimum financial size category ("fsc") of VII
or higher In the event coverage 1s denied or
reimbursement of a properly presented claim 1s

disputed by the earner for insurance described
above, upon written request, WISHIN shall provide
Participant with a certified copy of the involved
insurance policy or policies within ten (10)
business days of receipt of such request The
terms of this section shall not be deemed to limit
the liability of WISHIN hereunder WISHIN shall
provide, at WISHIN's sole cost and expense,
throughout the term of this Agreement, the
following insurance types and limits issued by an
insurance company authorized to do business in
all applicable states (a) general liability insurance
in a minimum amount of $1,000,000 per claim and
$2,000,000 in the annual aggregate, (b) umbrella
insurance, following the form of general habIhty
insurance, at a minimum of $11,000,000 in the
aggregate, (c) automobile liability insurance in a
minimum amount of $1,000,000 per accident, for
owned and non-owned vehicles, (d) worker's
compensation and employer's liability insurance in
amounts required in accordance with applicable
laws within the state that work 1s being performed,
(e) fidelity bond insurance in a minimum amount of
$25,000 per claim and in the annual aggregate, (f)
professional liability (e and o) insurance in a
minimum amount of $1,000,000 per claim and
$3,000,000 in the annual aggregate, and (g)
privacy and network security (Cyber Liability) loss
arising out of or in connection with loss or
disclosure of Confidential Information or PHI, m a
minimum amount of $3,000,000 million per loss
The required limits may be satisfied by a
combination of primary and excess policies

13. Term; Modification; Suspension;
Termination.

131 Term The initial term of this Agreement
shall commence on the Effective Date and
continue for a period of one ( 1) year, and
thereafter shall renew for successive one-year
renewal terms until terminated as provided in this
Section

13.2 Termination upon Notice In addition to
the provisions of Section 1.3, WISHIN or
Part1c1pant may terminate this Agreement at any
time without cause upon snty (60) days prior
written notice to the other party If this Agreement
Is terminated without cause by ether party or with
cause by Participant, Participant shall be entitled
to a refund of any Subscription and Service Fees
that Part1c1pant has paid in advance for the then
current term of the Agreement

13 3 Termination for Cause Either party may
terminate this Agreement in the event of a material
breach of this Agreement which Is not cured to the
reasonable satisfaction of the other party within
thirty (30) days of delivery of notice of the breach,
provided that, If the breach Is capable of cure but

PA014 Confidential 16



not within thirty (30) days, this Agreement shall not
be terminated as long as the party in breach
commences to cure the breach within thirty (30)
days, and diligently pursues the cure to completion

13 4 Intentionally Blank

135 Judicial or Administratve Procedures
Either party may terminate this Agreement
1mmedIately upon notice to the other 1f (a) the
other party 1s named as a defendant in a criminal
proceeding for a volaton of federal or state law,
(b) a finding or stipulation that the other party has
violated any standard or requirement of federal or
state law relating to the privacy or security of health
Information ts made in any administratrve or civil
proceeding; or (c) the other party 1s excluded from
partIcIpatIon in a federal or state health care
program

136 Obligations After Termination

a) Upon termination of this Agreement,
Part1cIpant shall cease to use the System
and WISHIN may terminate Part1c1pant's
access to the System Upon termination for
any reason, other than WISHIN's wrongful
termInatIon, (1) Part1c1pant shall remove all
software provided by or on behalf of
WISHIN under this Agreement from its
computer systems, shall cease to have
access to the System, and shall return to
WISHIN all hardware, software and
documentation provided by or on behalf of
WISHIN, (11) WISHIN shall delete all
Part1c1pant's Shared Information from the
System, including any and all copies

b) All the provisions of Section 9, Confidential
Information, Section 10, Disclaimers,
Section 11, Warranties, Limitations of
Liability, and Indemnification, Section 12,
Insurance, and Section 13 6, Obligations
after Termination and any other term that
by its nature provides for survival shall
survive after termination In addition, where
the terms of this Agreement specify that
certain provisions will survive termination
under certain conditions, those provisions
shall survive under the applicable
conditions

14. Dispute Resolution.

141 WISHIN and Participant understand and
agree that the Implementat1on of this Agreement
will be enhanced by the timely and open resolution
of any disputes or disagreements between such
Parties

14 2 Each party hereto agrees to use its best
efforts to cause any disputes or disagreements
between such Parties to be considered, negotiated
in good faith, and resolved as soon as possible

14 3 In the event that any dispute or
disagreement between the Parties cannot be
resolved to the satisfaction of WISHIN's project
manager and Participant's project manager within
ten (10) days after either such project manager
has notified the other m writing of the need to
resolve the specific dispute or disagreement within
such ten (10) day period, then the dispute or
disagreement shall be 1mmedIately referred in
writing to a vice-president, president or someone
of equivalent authority of Participant and the a
v1ce-pres1dent or the CEO of WISHIN (or their
respective successors) for cons1deratIon m good
faith

14 4 No resolution or attempted resolution of
any dispute or disagreement pursuant to this
Article shall be deemed to be a waiver of any term
or prov1s1on of this Agreement or consent to any
breach or default unless such waiver or consent
shall be in writing and signed by the party claimed
to have waived or consented Further, nothing in
this Section 14 shall be deemed to limit a party's
access to the court system

15. Applicable Law.

The interpretation of this Agreement and the
resolution of any disputes arising under thus
Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the
State of Wisconsin

16. Legal Compliance.

The Parties acknowledge that nothing in this
Agreement obligates Part1c1pant to refer patients
or business to any Other Part1cIpant, and
Participant's participation mn the System shall not
be affected by the value or volume of referrals or
other business, if any, between Participant and
any Other Participant

17. No Assignment.

This Agreement may not be assigned or
transferred by either party without the prior written
consent of the other party This Agreement shall
inure to the benefit of and bind successors and
permitted assigns of Participant and WISHIN In
no event shall consent to assignment be
conditioned upon the payment of any fee,
however, 1f Part1c1pant assigns or transfers its
rights and obligations under this Agreement it must
be to an entity who meets the elig1b11ity
requirements set forth in Section 2 4 or an Affiliate
of such entity

PA014 Confidential 17



18. Supervening Circumstances.

No party to this Agreement shall be deemed in
v1olat1on of this Agreement to the extent and for the
time period It Is prevented from performing any of
the oblIgatIons under this Agreement by reason of
(a) earthquakes or other natural occurrences,
(b) nuclear or other c1vII or military emergencies,
(c) acts of legislative, judicial, executive, or
administrative authontes, or (d) any other
unforeseeable circumstances that are not within its
reasonable control where such party has exercised
reasonable care under the circumstances The
occurrence of a force majeure event does not limit
or otherwise affect WISHIN's obligation to
implement its disaster recovery and business
continuation plans

19. Severability.

Any provIsIon of this Agreement that shall prove to
be invalid, void, or illegal, shall in no way affect,
mmpar, or invalidate any other provision of thus
Agreement, and such other prov1s1ons shall remain
in full force and effect

20. Notices.

All notices required or permitted under thus
Agreement shall be in writing and sent to the other
party For WISHIN, notices shall be addressed to
the Individual designated on the signature page
For Part1c1pant, notices shall be addressed to the
ind1v1dual designated as "Legal Contact" on the
signature page, with the excepton of invoices
which shall be sent to the ind1v1dual designated as
"Invoice Contact" If a different mndrvidual Is
designated by Part1c1pant , Either party may
substitute from time to time the mndrvdual
designated by written notice to the other and shall
be deemed given upon receipt of such notice
whether by certified mail, postage prepaid,
nationally recognized overnight delivery or personal
or courier delivery

21. Waiver.

No term of this Agreement shall be deemed waived
and no breach excused, unless such waiver or
consent shall be in writing and signed by the party
claimed to have waived or consented Any consent
by any party to, or waiver of a breach by the other,
whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a
consent to, waiver of, or excuse for any other
different or subsequent breach

22. Complete Understanding.

22 1 This Agreement contains the entire
Agreement and understanding of the Parties with
respect to the subject matter of this Agreement, and

24.

25.

Intentionally Blank.

Signature Authority.

there are no other written or oral understandings
or promises between the Parties with respect to
the subject matter of this Agreement other than
those contained or referenced in this Agreement

22 2 This Agreement supersedes and
replaces, as of the Effective Date, any prior
Agreement between Part1c1pant and WISHIN to
the extent encompassed by the Services and data
sharing access under this Agreement, provided,
however, that those obligations under such prior
Agreement as are specified to survive or by their
context otherwise would survive shall continue,
including but not limited to confidentiality and
Indemnification obligations and Imitations on
liability

22 3 All mod1ficat1ons or amendments to this
Agreement shall be in writing, contained in a
document whose sole purpose Is to amend or
modify this Agreement, and signed by authorized
representatives of the respective Parties

22 4 Amendment to Comply with the eHealth
Exchange (formerly the Nat1onw1de Health
Information Network) Subject to and without
limiting the Permitted Purposes, WISHIN may
amend this Agreement to enable WISHIN and
Participant to participate in and comply with a
nat1onw1de health information network WISHIN
shall provide Part1c1pant with at least sixty (60)
days prior written notice of any such amendment,
and Part1c1pant then shall have thirty (30) days to
provide written notice to WISHIN that Participant Is
terminating thus Agreement If Participant fails to
so notify WISHIN within such thirty (30) days, then
the proposed amendment will become effective on
the date specified by WISHIN (which date shall in
no event be sooner than sixty (60) days after
WISHIN provides its amendment notice to
Participant).

23. Intended Third-Party Beneficiaries.

lt is the explicit intention of the parties hereto that
all Other Part1c1pants and their respective
successors and assigns are third-party
benefic1anes of this Agreement and shall be
entitled to bring any action to enforce any provision
of this Agreement against Participant Likewise, It
Is the explicit intention of the parties hereto that
Part1c1pant and its successors and assigns are
third-party benefic1anes of WISHIN's Agreements
with all Other Part1c1pants for the Services and
System, and shall be entitled to bring any action to
enforce any prov1s1on of such Agreements against
any Other Participants

PA014 Confidential 18



The Individuals executing thus represent and
warrant that they are authorized to execute this
Agreement on behalf of the Parties.

26. No Federal or State Exclusion.

Part1c1pant hereby represents and warrants that It Is
not and at no time has been (a) excluded from
partIcIpatIon m any federally-funded health care
program, Including Medicare and Medicaid, or (b)
meligIble, under Section 16 705(9) of the Wisconsin
Statutes, to contract with the State of Wisconsin
Participant hereby agrees to immediately notify
WISHIN of any threatened, proposed, or actual
exclusion from any federally-funded program,
Including Medicare or Medicaid, or ineligibility to
contract with the State of Wisconsin In the event
that PartIcIpant Is excluded from any federally
funded health care program or Is ineligible to
contract with the State of Wisconsin during the
Term of this Agreement, or If at any time after the
Effective Date of this Agreement, tt is determined
that Participant Is mn breach of this section, this
Agreement shall, as of the effective date of such
exclusion, ineligibility or breach, automatically
terminate WISHIN shall screen all of its current
and prospective owners, legal entities, officers,
directors, employees, contractors, and agents
("Screened Persons") against (1) the United States
Department of Health and Human Services/Office
of Inspector General List of Excluded
Individuals/Entities (available through the Internet
at http I/www oig hhs gov), (u) the General Services
Administration's Lust of Parties Excluded from
Federal Programs (available through the Internet at
http //www epls gov) and (u) the State ofWisconsin
list of Ineligible vendors (available at
http //docs leg1s wIsconsm gov/statutes/statutes/16
/IV/705/9?v1ew=sect1on) (collectively, the
"Exclusion Lusts") to ensure that none of the
Screened Persons (y) are currently excluded,
debarred, suspended, or otherwise ineligible to
partIcIpate in Federal healthcare programs or In
Federal or State of Wisconsin procurement or non
procurement programs, or (z) have been convicted
of a criminal offense that falls within the ambrt of 42
USC $ 1320a-7(a), but have not yet been
excluded, debarred, suspended, or otherwise
declared ineligible (each, an "lnehgIble Person") If,
at any time during the Term of this Agreement any
Screened Person becomes an lnehgIble Person or
proposed to be an Ineligible Person, WISHIN shall
ImmedIately notify Participant of the same
Screened Persons shall not include any employee,
contractor or agent who Is not providing Services
under this Agreement

WISHIN hereby represents and warrants that rt Is
not and at no time has been (a) excluded from
partIcIpatIon m any federally-funded health care
program, Including Medicare and Medicaid, or (b)

inehg1ble, under Section 16 705(9) of the
Wisconsin Statutes, to contract with the State of
Wisconsin WISHIN hereby agrees to 1mmed1ately
notify Part1c1pant of any threatened, proposed, or
actual exclusion from any federally-funded
program, including Medicare or Medicaid, or
Ineligibility to contract with the State of Wisconsin,
and Participant may then elect to terminate this
Agreement upon written notice to WISHIN

27. Definitions.

For the purposes of this Agreement, the terms set
forth in this section shall have the meanings
assigned to them below Terms not defined below
(whether or not capitalized) shall have the
definitions given them in HIPAA, unless the
context requires otherwise

"Affiliate" shall mean an entity m which
PartIc1pant (1) Is the sole corporate member, (2)
has more than a fifty percent (50%) ownership
interest, (3) has voting control of
membersh1p/ownersh1p interests, or (4) has the
ability to elect a maJority of the voting control of the
governing board "Affiliate" also shall mean any
Individual or entity with which Participant has a
direct or indirect business relationship and which
Participant authorizes to use Participant's
electronic health record, and any entity which Is
part of a cham of entItIes qualifying as an Affiliate
under the requirements as set forth mn (1) through
(4) above An Affiliate must qualify as permitted
type of partIcIpant under Section 2 4

"All Participants" means the Part1c1pant and all
Other Participants A list of All Part1c1pants can be
found at www w1shin org

"Authorized User ID" shall mean a unique
Identification that Participant obtains from the
System and assigns to one of Participant's
Authorized Users

"Authorized Users" means those mdIv1duals
authorized by Participant to have access to the
System to assist Participant mn providing treatment,
obtaining payment for treatment, and/or
conducting Participant's, including its Affiliates',
health care operations

"Confidential Information" means any
information (a) provided by PartIcIpant hereunder
in connection with the System or Services, and (b)
created or derived by WISHIN through use of,
access to, analysis of, the Health Data, Authorized
User Data, or Participant's and/or its Authorized
Users' use of or access to the System and
Services and includes such information regardless
of the format or manner mn which it Is created,
maintained or transmitted, Including information

PA014 Confidential 19



concerning Participant's business, financial affairs,
current or future products or technology, trade
secrets, workforce, customers, 1dent1ty of patients,
the content of any medical records, information
regarding Medicare, Medicaid and any other third
party payor claims submission and
reimbursements, or any other information that Is
treated or designated by such party or Participant
as confidential or proprietary, or would reasonably
be viewed as confidential or as having value to a
competitor of such party or Participant Confidential
Information shall not include information that
becomes publicly available or that becomes known
to the general public other than as a result of a
breach of an Agreement of confidentiality PHI shall
be considered Confidential Information, provided
that in no event may PHI be disclosed contrary to
the requirements in the HIPAA Business Associate
Agreement

"Covered Entity" has the meaning set forth at 45
CF R § 160 103 of the HIPAA regulations

"Documentation" means the written spec1ficat1ons
and user and technical manuals provided by
WISHIN regarding the functionality and operation of
the System

"Health Care Operations" has the meaning set
forth at 45 C FR $ 164 501 of the HIPAA
regulations

"Health Care Payer" means a health insurer, health
plan or other entity that pays the cost of health care
and IS subject to HIPAA

"Health Care Provider" means a person or
organization that Is a health care provider under
HIPAA and Is licensed or otherwise permitted to
provide health care items and services under
apphcable state law

"Health Data" means information that is requested,
disclosed, stored on, made available through, or
sent through the System including, but not limited
to, protected health information (as defined under
HIPAA), and information created or derived by
access to or use of the System Health Data
Includes Participant's Shared Information

"Health Plan" has the meaning set forth at 45
CF R $ 160 103 of the HIPAA regulations

"HIPAA" means the administrative simplification
provIsIons of the Health Insurance Portab1hty and
Accountability Act of 1996, as amended by the
HITECH Act, and the regulations promulgated
thereunder, including the Privacy Rule and the
Security Rule

"HIPAA Business Associate Agreement" or
"Business Associate Provisions" means the
Agreement set forth in Attachment 6, which may
be amended from time to time by WISHIN and the
Participant

"HITECH Act" means Health Information
Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
(HITECH) Act, Title XIII of Division A and Title IV
of DivIsIon B of the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA), Pub L No
111-5 (Feb 17, 2009)

"lnterExchange Data Sharing Agreement"
means a WISHIN data sharing Agreement with
another health information exchange or network
and includes the Data Use and Reciprocal Support
Agreement (DURSA) for the eHealth Exchange
Each lnterExchange Data Sharing Agreement will
require the other health information
exchange/network to have Agreements with each
of its part1c1pants that include access and use
restrictions substantially similar to the DURSA
and, at a minimum, require its participants and
their authorized users to (1) comply with
applicable laws, including but not l1m1ted to
HIPAA, (11) access and use PartIcIpant's Shared
Information only for a Permitted Purpose, (111) as
soon as reasonably practicable after determining
that a breach has occurred, report the breach to
the affected party, and (iv) refrain from disclosing
to any other person any passwords or other
security measure that are issued to an authorized
user.

"Miscellaneous Charges" means the
miscellaneous charges set forth in Attachment 5,
which may be changed in accordance with this
Agreement

"Opt Out" means an md1v1dual's ability to request
fromWISHIN certain lim1tat1ons on the disclosures
of his/her PHI m the System

"Other Participants" or "Participants" means
other entities that have access to the System and
have signed a particpaton Agreement containing
an obligation, on terms substantially similar to
those contained m this Agreement

"Participant Advisory Board" means an
advisory board of System participants

"Participant Advisory Board Approval" means
the affirmative vote (by proxy or in person) of, or
written consent from, at least two-thirds of the
members of the Participant Advisory Board

"Participant ID" means a unique user
identification assigned to Participant

PA014 Confidential 20



"Participant's Shared Information" means Health
Data, Including health informaton relating to
Participant's patents or enrollees, that Participant
and/or its Authorized Users make available to
WISHIN under this Agreement

"Payment" has the meaning set forth at 45 C F R
§ 164 501 of the HIPAA regulations

"Permitted Purposes" means one of the following
purposes for which PartIcIpant and Other
Participants may lawfully disclose, receive and use
the Health Data

1 Treatment of the individual who Is the subject of
the Health Data,

2 Public health activities and reporting as permitted
by Applicable Law, including the HIPAA
Regulations at 45 CF R § 164 512(b) or
164 514(e), to the extent authorized by PartIc1pant
In Attachment 1 to this Agreement,

3 The uses set forth in the attached Attachment 4,
as the same may be revised from time to time by
WISHIN to reflect any additional uses that are
approved by theWISHIN Board of Directors and the
Participant Advisory Board according to the
process set forth in Section 1 3

"Policies and Procedures" means WISHIN's
rules, regulations, policies and procedures for
access to and use of the System, which WISHIN
may, from time to time, change in accordance with
this Agreement and post electronically on the
System or otherwise furnish to Participant The
1rnt1al Policies and Procedures include the WISHIN
Privacy Policies, WISHIN System Secunty Policies
and the WISHIN Pulse and D1rectPlus Part1c1pant
Safeguard Checklist

"Protected Health Information" or "PHI" has the
same meaning as protected health information
under 45 C FR $ 160 103 of the HIPAA
regulations

"Privacy Rule" means the Standards for Privacy of
lndIvIdually ldentIfIable Health Information at 45
CFR part 160 and part 164, subparts A and E

"Psychotherapy Notes" means notes recorded (in
any medium) by a healthcare provider who Is a
mental health professional documenting or
analyzing the contents of conversation during a
private counseling session or a group, joint, or
family counseling session and that are separated
from the rest of the ind1v1dual's medical record
"Psychotherapy Notes" excludes medication
prescription and monitoring, counseling session
start and stop times, the modalities and frequencies
of treatment furnished, results of clinical tests, and

any summary of the following items dagnosIs,
functional status, the treatment plan, symptoms,
prognosis, and progress to date

"Public Health Authority" means an agency or
authority of the United States, a state, a territory, a
political subdivision of a State or territory, or an
Indian tribe, or a person or entity acting under a
grant of authority from or contract with such public
agency, including the employees or agents of such
public agency or its contractors or persons or
entities to whom It has granted authority, that Is
responsible for public health matters as part of its
official mandate

"Security Incident" means the attempted or
successful unauthorized access, use, disclosure,
modIficatIon, loss of information downloaded from
the System for other than a Permitted Purposes,
or destruction of information or interference with
system operations in an information system

"Security Rule" means the Security Standards for
the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information at 45 CFR part 160 and part 164,
subparts A and C

"Services" means the services and access listed
in Attachment 1 to this Agreement and access to
other health information exchanges and networks
for which WISHIN has an lnterExchange Data
Sharing Agreement

"Subcontractor" means any third party engaged
by WISHIN to assist in the design or operation of
the System or in the performance of WISHIN's
obligations under this Agreement

"Subscription and Service Fees" means the fees
set forth in Attachment 5, which may be changed
in accordance with this Agreement

"System" means the electronic communication
network operated by WISHIN, including all
hardware provided by WISHIN, the System
Software and the Third-Party Software used or
provided by WISHIN, and all documentation
provided by WISHIN in connection with the
System, paper or electronic, all as more
specifically described on Attachment 3 to this
Agreement

"System Software" means the software licensed
toWISHIN by its software licensor which consists
of the applications and services described under
Description of the System In Attachment 3
System Software does not include the Third-Party
Software 1dent1fied in Attachment 3

"Technical Requirements" means the hardware,
software and communications systems necessary

PA014 Confidential 21



to use the System The Technical Requirements
can be found at wwww1shin org The Technical
Requirements may be changed from time to time by
WISHIN in accordance with this Agreement

"Term" means the in1t1al term and all renewal terms
of this Agreement

"Third-Party Software" or "Third Party Software
and Services" means the software and services
that Is provded by third parties other than the
licensor of the System Software The Third-Party
Software and Services as of the Effective Date are
set forth in Attachment 3

"Treatment" has the meaning set forth at 45
CF R $ 164 501 of the HIPAA regulations

"WISHIN's Authorized Personnel" means
WISHIN's employees and independent contractors
under confidentiality obhgat1ons on terms
substantially similar with the confidentiality
provisions contained mn this Agreement

28. Rules of Construction.

28 1 Words used herein, regardless of the
number and gender used, shall be deemed and
construed to include any other number, singular or
plural, and any other gender, masculine, feminine
or neuter, as the context requires, and, as used
herein, unless the context requires otherwise, the
words "hereof', "herein", and "hereunder'' and
words of s1m1lar import shall refer to this Agreement
as a whole and not to any particular provision of this
Agreement.

28 2 A reference to any statute or statutory
prov1s1on shall be construed as a reference to the
same as 1t may have been, or may from time to time
be, amended, modified or reenacted

28 3 The term "including" shall be deemed to
mean "including without limrtaton "

28 4 Article and section headings used mn this
Agreement are for convenience of reference only
and shall not affect the interpretation of this
Agreement

PA014 Confidential 22



SIGNATURES

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed mn duplicate original as
of the date(s) indicated below

PARTICIPANT

City of Franklin Public Health Department

Signature

Printed Name

WISHIN:

Wisconsin Statewide Health Information
Network, Inc

Signature

Printed Name Steve Rottmann

Title

Address

Phone

Fax

E-mail

Date Signed

Legal Contact (if different from above)
Name _
Title _
E-Mail _
Phone _

Invoice Contact (if different from above)
Name _
Title _
E-Mail _
Phone _

Address _

Will a purchase order number be used? □Yes □No
PO Number _

Do you prefer to receive Invoices va email? [Yes No

Title

Address

Phone

Fax

E-mail

Date Signed

Chief Executive Officer

5510 Research Park Drive

Madison, WI 53711

608-274-1820

608-274-8554

srottmann@wshin org

PA014 Confidential 23



ATTACHMENT 1: PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Products and Services mix below may change Products and/or Services added later are subject to
additional fees

Subscription Services
[X] WISHIN Pulse Subscription Services

Includes
• Part1c1pant Organizations on the same data source
• All standard training and tramnng materials
• Onboarding for one data source
• Requires WISHIN Pulse Onboarding (below, under One-Time Services)

Add1tIonal WISHIN Pulse services (add1t1onal fees may apply)
[X] SSO EHR Integration
[X] WISHIN Direct+ Secure Messaging
[--] Access to ePDMP
[--] Syndromic Surveillance data delivery to the State of Wisconsin (PHSS)
[--] lmmunizat1on data delivery to the State of Wisconsin Immunization Registry (WIR)
[--] Lab Results Delivery
[--] Add1t1onal Data Sources (quantity) _
[--] Additional sites on different EHRs _

Interfaces (select all that apply)
[X] ADT* (patient roster or health plan member file)
[--] Laboratory
[--] Radiology
[--] Pathology
[--] Transcription
[--] EKG
[--] CCDA

[--] WISHIN PAR:
[--] PAR-C
[--] PAR-P*

One-Time Services

[X] WISHIN Pulse Onboarding

[--] WISHIN PAR Onboarding

= Designates services available to Payers

PA014 Confidential 24



SCHEDULE 1 TO ATTACHMENT 1: ELECTED PRODUCTS AND SERVICES REQUIREMENTS

In electing the products and/or services mn Attachment 1, Participant agrees to be bound by the following
requirements for the applicable elected product and/or service

1. Wisconsin Immunization Registry

11 Purpose

The DIsIon of Public Health (DPH) in partnership with the DIision of Health Care Financing has developed
the Wisconsin Immunization Registry (WIR) To ensure the reciprocal cooperation that Is integral to
Implementing and maintaining a successful statewide immunization registry that encompasses all public
and private providers, all parties must abide by the specific respons1b1ht1es listed below

12 Responsibilities

121 DIVsIon of Public Health

The WIR will serve as the central repository for all 1mmunizat1ons collected throughout the State This
includes Immunizat1ons provided directly to the WIR by participating providers or provided indirectly through
other regIstnes or exchange services, such as WISHIN, that may operate within the state The DPH will
provide WISHIN with consultation and technical assistance necessary to ensure ongoing connectIvIty
between the WI R and Partcpant

122 Participant

The Participant must have a signed WIR Secunty and Confidenttaltty Agreement (DPH 42008) on file with
the Wisconsin Immunization Program and maintain up-to-date provider contact information in the WIR
Part1c1pant should contact DPH's Wisconsin Immunization Program to obtain the WIR Security and
Confidentiality Agreement (DPH 42008) Questions about the WIR Security and Confidentiality Agreement
must be directed to the Wisconsin Immunization Program TheWIR Security and Confidentiality Agreement
must be on file with Wisconsin Immunization Program before any protected health information (PHI) may
be shared via WISHIN

Part1c1pant agrees that

• Part1c1pant will provide only updated 1mmunizat1on mformat1on to WISHIN to be sent to the WIR
» The immunization data sent by Participant will be for all patents with associated immunizations
• Part1c1pant shall work with WISHIN to test 1mmurnzat1on data feeds before production data Is sent

to the WIR Part1c1pant understands that no production data will be sent to the WIR without
adequate testing and Participant approval (via a sign-off) In the event that WISHIN performs data
transformation services for Participant, those transformations must be approved by Part1c1pant pnor
to production data being sent to the WIR

• The Part1c1pant will inform patients that their data will be shared with the WIR
• If a parent, guardian or legal custodian chooses to exclude a patient from the WIR or to l1mIt data

access to a particular provider, that dec1s1on will be honored by the Participant
• Part1c1pant will comply with all technical requirements for data format and transport to WISHIN

This includes establishing a web service connection to WISHIN to send and receive data
PartIcIpant understands that their electronic health record (EHR) or other vendor may need to make
changes m their EHR or other systems in order to comply with these requirements PartIcIpant
understands that their EHR or other vendor(s) may charge separately for these services

• Participant may receive mmmunrzaton data from the WIR va WISHIN Participant agrees to work
with WISHIN to test the receipt of the data pnor to accepting rt in the Participant's production
environment Part1c1pant understands that no production data will be sent to their EHR or other
system(s) without adequate testing and Participant approval (via a sign-off)

123 WISHIN

PA014 Confidential 25



By way of an established web service connection between Part1c1pant and WISHIN, WISHIN will send
PartIcIpant's supplied 1mmunizat1on data to theWIR on a real-time basis and will send acknowledgements
and/or errors from theWIR to Participant WISHIN does not store 1mmunizat1on data

After completion of the testing of data feeds and Participant approval described above, WISHIN will pass
all ImmurnzatIon data provided by the Part1c1pant to the WIR WISHIN will not filter or restrict the data,
however, WISHIN may provide data transformation services to Part1c1pant 1f needed to meet Meaningful
Use requirements or to meet requirements of the WIR Any data transformation must be approved by
Participant

WISHIN may also send 1mmunizatIon data from theWIR to the Participant's EHR or other system

2 WISHIN Direct+

PartIcIpants using WISHIN Direct+ and/or the WISHIN Direct+ product sU1te must assign at least one
Organization Representative Each Organization Representatve must complete an Identity Verification
Form (IVF) and comply with the requirements below and in the IVF A sample IVF can be found in
Attachment 7, however, WISHIN will supply Part1c1pant with the appropriate form as part of the
Implementat1on and onboarding process

2 1 Direct Messaging and WISHIN Direct+

Direct messaging, often called "Direct," 1s a basic form of health information exchange (HIE) that allows
health care providers to securely and electronically send patient information to other spec1f1ed providers, or
to patients themselves Commonly compared to sending secure email, this information Is sent over the
Internet in an encrypted, protected way that 1s HIPAA-compliant

WISHIN Is a Health Information Service Provider (HISP), which means WISHIN 1s cert1f1ed to offer Direct
addresses (which are s1m1lar to email addresses) and WISHIN provides the service to transmit the Direct
messages WISHIN's HISP and Direct messaging product 1s known as WISHIN Direct+

With aWISHIN Direct+ address, a health care provider can exchange clinical documentation with providers
or patients registered with another HISP anywhere in the United States, provided the other HISP conforms
to the standards and requirements required for Direct messaging established by The Direct Project
(www wiku directproject org) and any other requirements identified by the receiving HISP

22 The Direct Project

The Direct Project 1s a federal government standard designed to enable simple, secure, email-based
exchange of clinical documentation between health care providers Because WISHIN Is a HISP, WISHIN
customers can assign and administer a WISHIN Direct+ address (s1m1lar to an email address) for each
health care provider in their "domain" In add1t1on, WISHIN can also assign and administerWISHIN Direct+
addresses on behalf of our customers in our standard "domain"

WISHIN Direct+ conforms to the requirement set forth by the national Direct Project
(wwwwk directproect org), including the "Applicability Statement for Secure Health Transport," which
describes how to use SMTP, $/MIME, and X 509 certificates to securely transport health information over
the Internet

2 3 WISHIN Direct+ Domains and Addresses

WISHIN customers assign and administer aWISHIN Direct+ address (sIm1lar to an email address) for each
health care provider mn their "domamn " Participants who elect to use WISHIN Direct+ will assign and
administer theWISHIN Direct+ addresses for health care providers in their "domain"

Participants select a WISHIN Direct+ domain that Ident1fies their hospital or practice Smaller practices
may choose to be a sub-domain of the standard WISHIN Direct+ domain. Some examples

PA014

• direct practiceA org
• direct healthsystem123 com
• practiceB wishmnplus org

Confidential

• direct hosp1tal123 org
• direct clncABC org

26



(wishmnplus org is WISHIN's standard domain)

PartIcIpants are required to manage all of the WISHIN Direct+ addresses for their domain Some examples
of WISHIN Direct+ addresses for the above domains could be

• Jane Doe@d1rect pract1ceA org
• Betty DoeMD@clncABC org
• HIMDepartment@hosp1tal123 org*

• John Doe@healthsystem123 com
• Ben DoeMD@hospital123 org
• Bob DoeMD@practiceB w1shmplus org

Note Department addresses may not be acceptable for Eligible Professionals partIcIpating m Meaningful
Use Incentive Programs

PartIcIpant Is required to assign WISHIN Direct+ addresses (see section 2 5 below for more detailed
requirements around assigning WISHIN Direct+ addresses)

2 4 Exchanging Messages with Health Care Providers on Other HISPs

As noted above, "with a WISHIN Direct+ address, a health care provider can exchange cltntcal documentation with
providers or patients registered with another HISP anywhere in the Untted States, provided the other HISP conforms
to the standards and requirements required for Drect messaging established by The Direct Pro1ect
(www w1k1 d1rectproiect org) and any other requirements identified by the recervng HIP" Some HISPs also require
partIcIpat1on in the Direct Trusted AgentAccredItat1on Program, or DTAAP, m order to exchange messages
with theIr HISP Thus is sometimes referred to as being a "DirectTrust participant "

To ensure Part1c1pants using WISHIN Direct+ are able to send Direct messages to other health care
providers, regardless of the HISP those others may be usmg, WISHIN's System Software Licensor Is
participating in DTAAP and is a "DrectTrust participant "

241 DIrectTrust and DTAAP

DIrectTrust (www directtrust org) Is a non-profit health care industry alliance that has established and
maintamns rules, standards, and policies associated with the operation of the security and trust-in-identity
layer for Direct exchange Taken together, these make up a Security and Trust Framework that supports
both Direct exchange implementers and users

DirectTrust uses its Security and Trust Framework as the basis for a voluntary accred1tat1on and audit
program for Direct implementers and service providers (this program Is known as the Direct Trusted Agent
Accred1tat1on Program, or DTAAP) DTAAP Is operated as a partnership between DirectTrust and the
Electronc Healthcare Network Accreditation Commission (EHNAC)

WISH I N's System Software Licensor Is partIcIpatmg in DTAAP which recognizes excellence in health data
processing and transactions, and ensures compliance with industry-established standards, HIPAA
regulations and the Direct Project

In addItIon to DTAAP, DirectTrust distributes what are known as "trust anchor" dIg1tal certificates from
accredited HISPs so that Direct messages can be exchanged across different HISPs WISHIN's trust
anchor certificate will be part of D1rectTrust's "trust bundle" to ensure PartIcIpants using WISHIN's HISP
are able to exchange information with health care providers on other HISPs mn the "trust bundle"

The EHNAC-DIrectTrust accreditation program is endorsed by the Office of the National Coordinator for
Health IT (ONC)

25 Participant Requirements

251 Definitions

Health Information Service Provider (HISP) the organizations responsible for on-boarding health care
organizations and facilitating the transfer of Direct messages WISHIN Is a HISP WISHIN Direct+ Is the
name of WISHIN's HISP and the product WISHIN uses to facilitate the transfer of Direct messages

PA014 Confidential 27



Certificate Authorities (CAs) organizations that Issue Digital Certificates meeting the requirements set forth
in the D1rectTrust certificate policy

Registration Authorities (RAs) organizations that verfy the dentity of users in accordance with the required
Levels of Assurance (LoA) Health care providers must meet DirectTrust LoA level 3 (LoA3) requirements
(equivalent to NIST LOA3 - NIST publication 800-63) Anyone assigning a Direct address to a user and/or
creating a Direct account is an RA Participant is the RA for anyWISHIN Direct+ domain established
for their organization.

Organization Representatives 1nd1v1duals from a Participant that serve as representatives for their
organization with regards to RA responsibilities The Organzaton Representative Is responsible for
managing use of the certificate for their organization. Organization Representatives are Registration
Authorities (RAs) for theWISHIN Direct+ domain established for their organization.

Trust Agents Individuals from a Participant who assist in collecting the documentation necessary to
establish Organization Representatives Trust Agents must also be Organization Representatives The
Trust Agent then executes an Agreement that appoints them as an agent for the purposes of collecting
documentation, verifying identities, and providing identity information

252 Participant Registration Authority Requirements

This section provides a summary of the respons1b1ht1es of a Registration Authority Part1c1pant must comply
with Reg1strat1on Authority requirements set forth by the Direct Project and D1rectTrust.

D1g1tal Certificates are required for Direct messaging and thus, required for WISHIN Direct+ In order to
receive a Digital Certificate, Participant must assign at least one Organization Representative The
assigned Organization Representative must complete the Identity Verification Form in Attachment 7

Organization Representatives are Registration Authorities for their organization's WISHIN Direct+ domain
As such, Organization Representatives must comply with all Direct Project and D1rectTrust requirements
for Registration Authorities

Organization Representatives are required to venfy the 1dent1ty of all users to whom they assign a WISHIN
Direct+ address Identity verification must be done in accordance with D1rectTrust Level of Assurance 3
(LoA3) standard

Identity verification 1s typically done by the user presenting paper credentials (like a driver's license) and by
records in databases This process 1s called 1dent1ty proofing The Organization Representative must
maintain records of the 1dent1ty proofing for all users

To get a Direct address, a health care provider first applies (as an "Applicant") to the Organization
Representative The Organization Representative 1dent1ty proofs that health care provider As the result of
successful identity proofing, the health care provider 1s given a WISHIN Direct+ address and becomes a
user of the D1g1tal Certificate assigned to the Participant The table below summarizes the requirements
for 1dent1ty proofing set forth for LoA3

Level of Assurance 3
In Person Remote

Applicant Actions ("Applicant" is person requesting a Direct address):
Possession ofvenfied current Possession of a valid Government ID (e g a driver's license or
primary Government Picture ID that passport) number and a financial account number (e g ,
contains applicant's picture and checking account, savings account, loan or credit card) with
either address of record or confirmation v,a records of both numbers
nationality (e g driver's license or
passport)
RA / Organization Representative Actions:

PA014 Confidential 28



• Inspects Photo-ID and verify via
the issuing government agency or
through credit bureaus or sImIlar
databases Confirms that name,
DoB, address and other personal
mnformation mn record are
consistent with the user berg
provided the account

• Compare picture to applicant,
record ID number, address and
DoB If ID 1s valid and photo
matches applicant then
a) If ID confirms address of

record, authorize or issue
credentials and send notice
to address of record, or,

b) If ID does not confirm
address of record, issue
credentials mn a manner that
confirms address of record

• Verifies information provided by applicant mcludmg ID number
and account number through record checks either with the
applicable agency or inst1tut1on or through credit bureaus or
s1m1lar databases, and confirms that name, DoB, address and
other personal information m records are consistent with the
application and sufficient to identify a unique individual

• Address confirmation
a) Issue credentials m a manner that confirms the

address of record supplied by the applicant, or
b) Issue credentials in a manner that confirms the ability

of the applicant to receive telephone communications
at a number associated with the applicant m records,
while recording the applicant's voice

In addrton to the identity verrfcaton and proofing requirements, Partcrpant must comply with the following
requirements that are specified by the Direct Project and/or DirectTrust These are not an exhaustive list
Participants should refer to the Direct Project (wwwwk.directproect org) and DIrectTrust
(www directtrust org) for a complete set of requirements

• Participants must have a written policy or practice statement that specifies the particular steps taken to
verify identities for therWISHIN Direct+ domain and the identity proofing and registration process shall
be performed according to that policy/statement

• Participants must provide WISHIN with a hst of all WISHIN Direct+ addresses assigned to their
organization's domain

• Individuals assigned a WISHIN Direct+ address must know who their Organization Representative Is
and the Organization Representative represents them

3. WISHIN Pulse

31 Prescription Drug Monitoring Program

WISHIN Pulse may include medIcatIon information fromWisconsin's Prescription Drug Monitoring Program
("PDMP") The PDMP is a statewide program that collects information about monitored prescription drugs
that are dispensed to patients in Wisconsin

The Legislature passed a law 1n 2010, 2009 Act 362, that directed the Pharmacy Examining Board to create
the POMP through administrative rule AdminIstratIon of the PDMP program has since been transferred to
the Controlled Substances Board (the "CSB") and Is now part of Wis Adm Code Ch CSB The primary
purpose of the PDMP Is to improve patient care and safety and reduce the abuse and dIversIon of
prescription drugs mn Wisconsin while ensuring patents with a legitimate medical need for the drugs are not
adversely affected

The PDMP contains information submitted to it by pharmacies and practitioners, Including physicians,
dentists, advance practice nurse prescribers, and others As such, the CSB makes no claims, promises, or
guarantees about the accuracy, completeness, or adequacy of the contents of the data in the POMP and
expressly dIsclaIms habIhty for errors and omIssIons in the contents of this report

311 PDMP Data and Timing

"Monitored prescription drugs" are defined in the adm1nistrat1ve rules of CSB Ch 4 While the CSB may
change the definition in the future, the current hst of monitored prescription drugs Is

PA014 Confidential 29



• controlled substances included in § 961 385(1) of the Wisconsin Statutes (e g controlled
substances listed in Schedule 11, Ill, IV or V)

• Any other drug 1dent1fied by the CSB as having a substantial potential for abuse

By law, dispensers of monitored prescription drugs are required to collect and submit information to the
POMP about each dispensing of a monitored prescription drug Dispensers have up to seven (7) days to
submit data after dispensing a monitored prescription drug, which means that the data may be up to seven
(7) days old POMP data 1s made available to WISHIN Pulse at the time 1t 1s available to the POMP

The POMP has been fully operational since June 1, 2013

312 POMP and HIPAA

HIPAA regulations state that health care providers may disclose protected health information without patient
consent If the disclosure is mandated by statute or regulation Reporting to the POMP Is required by §
961 385, Wis Stats, and Wis Adm Code§ CSB 4 05 (1) Therefore, dispensers do not violate HIPAA by
disclosing to the PDMP protected health information without patient consent

313 Authorized Access to POMP Data viaWISHIN Pulse

Participant's Authorized Users may see PDMP data for a gven patent wthin WISHIN Pulse Whether or
not the POMP data 1s made available to the Part1c1pant's Authorized Users depends on the role and security
permIssIons of the Authorized User in WISHIN Pulse and the patient's opt out status (see section below for
more 1nformat1on on POMP data for opted out patients).

Under§ CSB 4 09, only pharmacists, pharmacist delegates, pract1t1oners, and practItIoner delegates are
able to access the POMP data directly Pharmacists and pract1t1oners may delegate the task of accessing
and querying the POMP for information However, the licensed pharmacist or practitioner has to verify the
delegation and remains responsible for the delegate's use of the POMP data These same requirements
apply when the POMP data 1s accessed viaWISHIN Pulse

Under§ CSB 4 11, other users, such as patients, patient delegates, federal and state agencies, Department
of Safety and Professional Services investigatory staff, medical examiners, and law enforcement
authorities, must submit requests for information and provide proof that the information is for a legally
authorized purpose WISHIN Pulse does not support these types of users and will not disclose POMP data
to these types of users

WISHIN shall only disclose POMP data to pharmacists, practitioners, and delegates of pharmacists or
practitioners, for Treatment and as such persons are otherwise authorized to access sIm1lar confidential
patient health care records under Sections 146 82 and 961 385 of theWisconsin Statutes, CSB Ch 4 and
other state or federal laws and regulations relating to the privacy of patient health records

314 Conditions to Accessing PDMP data provided vaWISHIN

The following are conditions to accessing and using theWisconsin PDMP data through WISHIN

1 PartIc1pant will restrict access to POMP data to only those Authorized Users who satisfy all
requirements and are eligible to create an account to access POMP data in the Wisconsin POMP
database pursuant to Wisconsin Administrative Code section CSB 4 09 and their designated
delegates (a "POMP Authorized User") No other Authorized Users will be allowed access to the
POMP data

2 PartIcIpant understands that access to theWisconsin POMP database through WISHIN and use
of POMP data by POMP Authorized Users is permitted only for Treatment purposes or as otherwise
permitted or required by applicable state and federal law

PA014

3 Participant understands that any other access or disclosure of POMP data Is a v1olat1on of
Wisconsin law and may result in crvl sanctions or disciplinary action Participant wll otherwise
treat the POMP data in the system as any other health care information and will protect the
information in accordance with federal and state laws governing health care information

Confidential 30



4 PartIc1pant understands that Wisconsin law requires each POMP Authorized User to be
responsible for all use of his/her user name and password and any use of the system by his/her
delegate POMP Authorized Users are to never share their password with anyone, including co
workers PDMP Authorized Users will be required to mmmediately notify Participant If any
authentication or password rs lost or compromised, or If a POMP Authorized User who Is a
delegate no longer needs that access, and Participant agrees to immediately close the
compromised account or terminate such delegate's access to POMP data

5 PartIcIpant understands that all use of the Wisconsin POMP database may be monitored and
audited by the CSB and the State ofWisconsin for unusual or potentially-unauthorized use

3 1 5 POMP Data for Opted-Out Patients

While patents cannot opt out of havng their monitored prescription drugs included mn the PDMP, patients
can opt out of having their information shared via WISHIN Pulse In the event that a patient has opted out
of having their information shared va WISHIN Pulse their PDMP mnformation will not be available to
PartIc1pant's Authorized Users via WISHIN Pulse, even though the information may be available directly
from the POMP

32 Patient Activity Reports

321 Patient Activity Reports for Clinics (PAR-C)

When available and configured, WISHIN Pulse can produce a Patient Activity Report for Participants (PAR
C)

The PAR-C Is produced out of WISHIN Pulse and sent to apphcable clinic Part1c1pants with data only on
the Part1c1pant's specific patients who have had an emergency department (ED} vIsIt within the preceding
twenty-four (24} hours Add1t1onal patient class1ficatIons and/or triggering events for the PAR-C report may
be added as functionality and Approved Use Cases become available

The PAR-C would assist the Part1c1pant in the management of their specific patients and enables the clinic
PartIcIpant to proactively follow up with the patients, address any potential avoidable ED vIsIts, and
schedule follow up appointments as appropriate

The PAR-C Is generated for individual Participants and only contains data on patients when the Participant
has indicated the patient Is a patient of the clinic and the Participant Is listed as a provider on the encounter
To receive the PAR-C, the Participant must provide a patient file forWISHIN to match against encounters
This file must be supplied regularly to ensure an accurate list of patients for the Part1c1pant Depending on
when the partIcIpant changes its patient files, there Is a potential that the PAR-C may contain information
on a patient who has discontinued receiving services from the Participant. For example, if the Participant
provides a list of active patients on Monday and the patient discontinues services with the Participant on
Tuesday, the PAR-C will still contain data on the patient until WISHIN receives an updated patient file from
the Participant. In the event that the Participant receives data for a patent that has discontinued services
from the Participant, Participant shall immediately destroy and disregard all information for that patient
provided in the PAR-C

The PAR-C will be sent daily to the Participant va secure email in CSV format AddItIonal delivery methods
and formats may be added as functionality becomes available

AddItIonal patient class1ficatIons and/or triggering events for the PAR-C report may be added as
functionality becomes available

3 2 2 Patient Act1v1ty Reports for Payers (PAR-P)

When available and configured, WISHIN Pulse can produce a Patient Act1v1ty Report for payer Participants
(PAR-P)

PA014 Confidential 31



The PAR-P Is produced out of WISHIN Pulse and sent to applicable payer Part1c1pants with data only on
the Part1c1pant's specific members who have had an emergency department (ED) v1s1t within the preceding
twenty-four (24) hours Additional patient classifications and/or tnggenng events for the PAR-P report may
be added as funct1onahty and Approved Use Cases become available

The PAR-P would assist the payer Participant care managers in the management of their specific member
patient populations and notifies payer Participant care managers of their members' vsrts at hospitals well
before the subsequent claim 1s received by the payer Part1c1pant PAR-P enables the payer Participant
care managers to proact1vely follow up with the patients, help the patients get assigned to a primary care
provider (PCP), and ensure the patients honor their scheduled appointments with their PCP

The PAR-P Is generated for mndwvdual payer Participants based on payer Participant-provided member
data, as compared to the insurance information provided by the patient at the time of the encounter Only
those encounters with insurance matching the payer Part1c1pant are included in the report for that payer
Participant

To receive the PAR-P, the payer Part1c1pant must provide a member file for WISHIN to match against the
insurance information provided by the patient at the time of the encounter This file must be supplied
regularly to ensure an accurate list of members for the payer Part1c1pant Depending on when the partIcIpant
updates its membership files, there 1s a potential that the PAR-P may contain information on a member that
Is no longer a member of the payer Participant For example, If the payer Participant provides a list of active
members on Monday and the patient's membership with the payer Part1c1pant discontinues on Tuesday,
the PAR-P will still contain data on the patient until WISHIN receives an updated member file from the payer
Participant Payer Participants must verify all PAR-P member information against an active member file to
ensure they do not inappropriately access data for patients that are no longer enrolled

In the event that the payer Part1c1pant receives data for a patient that has discontinued membership with
the payer Participant, payer Participant shall immediately destroy and disregard all information for that
patient provided in the PAR-P

The PAR-P will be sent daily to the payer Participant va secure emal mn CSV format Additional delivery
methods and formats may be added when funct1onahty 1s available

Add1t1onal patient class1ficat1ons and/or triggering events for the PAR-P report may be added as funct1onahty
and Approved Use Cases become available.

3 2 21 Self-Pay Data

If a patient's insurance information indicates "self-pay" the data will not be included m the PAR-P WISHIN
Pulse Is a real-time system, so payer Participants should be aware that a patient may change their
insurance or "self-pay" designation after the PAR-P has been generated and delivered to the Participant
WISHIN Pulse generates the PAR-P based on current data supplied by Participants

3 3 Payer Access to WISHIN Pulse Community Health Record

As a condition of Participants, which are Health Care Payer, having access to this Servce, the Participant
must make certain Health Data, relating to the payer's enrollees, members and/or insureds and their
dependents, available through the System The required Health Data will be set forth m a WISHIN payer
access pohcy (the "Payer Access Polley") (1) developed in consultation with WISHIN Participants or potential
partIcIpants that include both payers and health care providers, and (u) approved by the Participant Advisory
Board and the WISHIN Board of Directors Part1c1pant 1s required to make such Health Data available upon
the granting of those approvals of the PayerAccess Polley and the System having been configured to accept
and share the Health Data The WISHIN participant's rght to access to this Service will 1mmedIately cease
1f PartIcIpant fails to make the required Health Data available after the date required by the Payer Access
Policy

PA014 Confidential 32



ATTACHMENT 2: SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT; SERVICE LEVELS AND CREDITS

1 . Software Maintenance and Support.

WISHIN and the licensor of the System Software (the "System Software Licensor") will provide
maintenance and support for the System Software This Attachment generally describes WISHIN's support
and maintenance obligations to Participant, which are intended to maintain a high level of System
ava1lab11ity and performance

11 Definitions

Problem Resolution Resolution Is defined as (a) Providing a reasonable solution to the incident, or (b)
Provdmng a reasonable work-around to the incident, or (c) Determination by WISHIN that the incident is an
enhancement request and forwarding the request to the System Software Licensor, or (d) Escalation by
WISHIN of the mncdent/bug to the System Software Licensor for review

Standard Help Desk Hours ("Standard Hours") WISHIN's Standard Hours are Monday through Friday
8 00 a m Central to 4 30 p m Central, except WISHIN published holidays

Off-Hours Help Desk Hours ("Off Hours") WISHIN's Off Hours are Monday through Friday 4 30 p m
Central to 8 00 a m Central, Saturday and Sunday all day, and WISHIN published holidays

Authorized Participant Contacts ("Participant Contacts") Participant shall designate at least one and no
more than five persons who shall serve as Part1c1pant's point of contact for all support and service act1v1t1es
related to the System Software

2 Support Scope.

21 Included Support

• WISHIN will provide to Part1c1pant, Upgrades on a "when and tf available" basis "Upgrade" means
a successor version of the System Software

• Resolving performance and operational issues of the System Software

2 2 Excluded Support

• Problems caused by Part1c1pant's computer system, hardware or third party software, power
outage, network equipment related failures and Internet or Intranet downtime

• Problems caused by personnel (other than those of WISHIN or its System Software Licensor)
making changes to the System

• System or database backups, restoration and maintenance not following mutually agreed upon
processes

• User administration Issues

PA014 Confidential 33



3. Support Priority.

Participant and WISHIN wll mutually assign a priority associated with a given call, as specified In the table
below All reported incidents will be addressed, but the highest pnonty incidents will be expedited through
the Resolution process

PRIORITY DESCRIPTION RESPONSE TIMING

2

3

Loss ofservice, or serious impairment of
service, which cannot be circumvented
Examples ofthis type of problem are
• Web server not accepting

connections due to functionality or
performance issues

• Persistent inability to access clinical
information due to functionality or
performance issues

• Cnt1cal product feature does not
work {1dent1fiable part of
functionality}, no workaround exists
or workarounds are 1mpractIcal

• User data is corrupted
• Reproducible, unavoidable crash or

deadlock
• Legally incorrect text or graphics

A problem exists which can be
reasonably circumvented or does not
materially affect normal operations
Examples ofthis type of problem are
• A non-functioning product feature

which Is not critical to a User
(1dent1fiable part offunctionality)

• Part of a product feature is affected,
a viable workaround exists

• Performance Is less than optimum
• Highly visible usabltty problem that

doesn't affect functionality

Failure of a system which does not have
any effect on normal operations

During Standard HoursWISHIN will
• Acknowledge receipt ofthe problem report within

fifteen {15) minutes
• Verify the problem and notify the Participant Contact

with the plan ofaction, wthin one (1) hour
• Provide updates at least every thirty {30) minutes, or at

a frequency mutually agreed upon byWISHIN and the
Participant Contact

During Off Hours WISHIN and/or the System Software
Licensor wll
• Acknowledge receipt ofthe problem report within thirty

{30) minutes
• Verify the problem and notify the Participant Contact

with the plan of action within one (1) hour
• Provide updates at least every thirty (30) minutes, or at

a frequency mutually agreed upon by WISHIN/the
System Software Licensor and Participant Contact

During Standard HoursWISHIN will
• Acknowledge receipt of the problem report within

thirty (30) minutes
• Verify the problem and notify the Participant Contact

wth the plan of action wthin two (2) hours
• Provide updates at least once every one-hour (1) or at

a frequency mutually agreed by WISHIN and
Participant Contact

During Off Hours WISHIN and/or the System Software
Licensor wll.
• Acknowledge receipt ofthe problem report within thirty

(30) minutes
• Verify the problem and notify the Participant Contact

wth the plan ofacton wthin two (2) hours
• Provide updates at least every one-hour (1), or at a

frequency mutually agreed upon by WISHIN and
Participant Contact

During Standard HoursWISHIN will
• Verify the problem and notify the PartIcIpant Contact

with an acknowledgement within one (1) hour and
plan of action within forty-eight (48) hours

• Provide updates at least once every ten (10)
business days or at a frequency mutually agreed by
the WISHIN and Participant Contact

Dunng Off Hours
• No Off Hours support provided for Pnonty 3 problem

reports

PA014 Confidential 34



4. Support Channels.

The following support channels are available to Part1c1pant Contacts

CHANNEL PRIORITY AVAILABILITY USAGE CONSTRAINT

Participant Contact has followed the support
Phone support 1&2 24 by 7 protocol (to exclude problems caused by
1-888-WISHIN1 Participant Software, Participant power outages,

and/or Participant's network)

Participant Contact has followed the support
Email support 3 Standard Hours protocol (to exclude problems caused by

Wishin.support@wishin.org Participant Software, Participant's power
outages, and/or PartIcIpant's network)

PartIcIpant Contact may email WISHIN's support mailbox to check the status of an open problem report,
regardless of priority PartIcIpant Contact may request that an open problem report be re-pnontIzed Rep
pnontIzatIon requests must be made to WISH IN's Help Desk through one of the support channels defined
above

WISHIN will use commercially reasonable efforts to perform the support services provided for under this
Agreement Information provided by Participant Contact m connection with WISHIN's performance of the
support services may be used without restnctIon by WISHIN to support or enhanceWISH I N's products and
services

WISHIN will use reasonable efforts to resolve reported issues that have been determined to be product
bugs in a timely manner Reported bugs will generally be addressed as part of a scheduled maintenance
release, by seventy, on a first come, first served basis Severe bugs that fall outside of the scheduled
maintenance release will be evaluated for correction on a case-by-case basis

5. Quality Assurance.

Prior toWISHIN's providing or making available to Participant any patch, enhancement, update or any other
release of the System Software, WISHIN and Part1cIpant, as applicable, shall test and validate that such
release meets or exceeds the requirements of this Agreement, including but not limited to the security
obligations and obligations regarding prevention or introduction of vruses Participant must also verify that
Participant's data continues to be accurately represented by the System

6 Service Levels and Credits.

WISHIN has negotiated a System avaIlab1hty service level with the System Software Licensor, who Is
providing hosting services for the System for those Participants that request hosting The service level and
credits that WISHIN may receive If the System Software Licensor fails to meet the service level (the "SLA")
are set forth below If WISHIN receives any SLA credits, WISHIN will pass those credits through to All
Participants, who were System participants at the time of the deficiency mn the service level ("Affected
Participants") The credits will be allocated amongst the Affected Participants in proporton to their relative
Subscription Fees and applied as a credit towards their next Subscription Fees

7. SYSTEM AVAILABILITY Service Level Agreement (SLA) with Participant

71 Definitions

"System Availability" will be defined as mamtammg ava1labIhty to the production system less Time
Exclusions

"Time Exclusions" shall mean any time during which any of the following conditions exast

PA014 Confidential 35



• The System is inaccessible during Planned Maintenance hours, which includes regular monthly
maintenance hours for applying patches, bug fixes, or upgrades to the System;

• The System is inaccessible during non-planned maintenance hours, provided that at least 24 hours'
notice has been given to Participant Contact;

• The System is inaccessible during planned upgrades;
• The System Software Licensor is given an "alert" by an operating system or other software vendor

to install one or more patches for any virus(es) or other needs for which the time of application is
reasonably and mutually agreed upon by WISHIN and the System Software Licensor;

• When WISHIN or the System Software Licensor are loading a new release in the production
environment;

• Force majeure conditions or during the System Software licensor-declared disaster; or
• Participant's breach of the Agreement.

"Planned Maintenance" shall mean regularly scheduled monthly maintenance windows.

"Unscheduled Downtime" shall mean the occurrence of any of the following conditions which are the
primary fault of WISHIN:

• System is inaccessible due to an outage of the System Software Licensor's contracted carrier lines
• System is inaccessible due to a System Software Licensor data center-based hardware or

infrastructure software outage
• Any of the following Application Services are completely inoperable:

• All WISHIN Pulse User Login Functions
All WISHIN Pulse Patient Inquiry Functions

• All WISHIN Pulse Patient Chart Display Functions

7 2 System Availability Service Levels.

Excluding any Time Exclusions, WISHIN will achieve a 99.9% System Availability of WISHIN's production
environment measured monthly and calculated in accordancewith Section 7.2.1 below. System Availability
and SLA Credits will be determined on a monthly basis.

Affected Participants shall be entitled to an SLA Credit as set forth below:

a) Affected Participants shall be entitled to a SLACredit of no more than 10% of Affected Participant's
monthly portion of Participant's annual Subscription Fee foreach month that the System Availability
falls below 99.9% for the applicable application. SLA credits shall be distributed based on the table
below. SLA Credits will be applied toward Participant's next annual Subscription Fee. In no event
shall the SLA Credits exceed 10% of the Participant's next annual Subscription Fee.

Less Than: Equal To or More Than: SLACredlt
0.999 0.998 1%
0.998 0.997 2%
0.997 0.996 3%
0.996 0.995 4%
0.995 0.994 5%
0.994 0.993 5%
0.993 0.992 7%
0.992 0.991 8%
0.991 0.99 9%
0.99 10%

For example: If Affected Participant's annual Subscription Fee is $24,000, the monthly portion
would be $2,000 ($24,000/12). If System Availability fell between 99.6% and 99.7% for one month,
the Affected Participant would be entitled to an SLA Credit of 3%, or $60 ($2,000*3%). The $60
SLA Credit would be applied toward the Participant's next annual Subscription Fee. The total SLA
Credits for the Affected Participant in this example could never exceed $2,400 ($24,00010%).

PA014 Confidential 36



b) If WISHIN fails to meet 99 9% System Ava1lab1hty m any three (3) consecutive months then, m
add1t1on to the SLA Credits provided herein, Part1c1pant may, at its sole election, be entitled to
terminate the remote hosting services provided by WISHIN or the Agreement upon sixty (60) days
prior written notice toWISHIN

c) The SLA Credits and Participant's rights to terminate In this Section 7 2 constitute Participant's sole
remedies, and WISHIN's sole obligation and hab1hty, for a failure of System AvaIlabIlIty

7 2 1 System Ava1lab1hty Calculation

The percentage of System Availability is calculated by dividing the number of minutes of actual System
AvaIlabIhty achieved during the month by the number of minutes of System Ava1labIllty scheduled to be
available each month

a) Possible Minutes (PM) is the total number of minutes m any month
b) Time Exclusions (TE) is the number of minutes described above in Time Exclusions
c) Unscheduled Downtime (UD) 1s the number of minutes that the System 1s not available for that

month that do not fall w1thm Time Exclusions
d) Special Exception (SE) is the number of minutes of downtime as a result of proJect exceptions

contingent on pnor written approval by Participant

% Availabltty = (PM -- TE - SE - UD) / (PM -- TE - SE)

PA014 Confidential 37



ATTACHMENT 3: DESCRIPTION OF THE SYSTEM; THIRD-PARTY SOFTWARE

¥

WISHIN Direct+ Product Suite
t

Enables providers to securely exchange patient information across the community by using the ONC Direct Project
standards.

WISHIN Direct+ Messaging
Application

WISHIN Direct+ Referrals
Application (limited availability)

Provider Directory Service

HISP Gateway Service

SMTP Gateway Service

An application that supports practice-to-practice and practice-to-organization
Direct messaging. This application queries the Provider Directory. This
application may also provide inboxes for receiving Direct messages. The
WISHIN Direct+ Messaging application utilizes HISP Services to deliver the
Direct messages.

An application that supports practice-to-practice and practice-to-organization
referrals. This application queries the Provider Directory and provides
organization level inboxes for receiving referrals. Providers receiving referrals
can create custom templates so that any referral it receives follows a standard
format and includes the required information needed by the organization
receiving the referral. This application can also use the WISHIN Direct+
Messaging to deliver the referral. The application also allows secure
communication between the referring and receiving providers in order to
facilitate closed-loop referrals.

Registers Direct addresses to providers, practices and organizations and may
also administer the domain, depending on configuration.

Manages all inbound and outbound communication requests to the WISHIN
Direct+ HISP. The HISP Gateway Service also evaluates the type of encryption
needed to encrypt and decrypt direct messages and will route to the
appropriate endpoint.

Uses SMTP protocol combined with S/MIME to allow secure messages to be
sent HISP to HISP with other organizations. The SMTP gateway also allows
end users to send/receive their Direct messages using preferred email clients
such as Outlook using a secure TLS or SSL connection.

WISHIN Pulse
. 1, so, ,

Certificate Service Manages the HISP certificate policy and issues domain level x509 certificates
to each registered domain within the WISHIN HISP The service also allows for
Certificate discovery.

The following services are essential HIE services for improving data quality and consistency across a network of
connected providers.

WISHIN Pulse Community
Health Record

Data Services

Identity Management Services

Data-staging Service

Web-based application that provides a single point of access to acute care and
ambulatory patient information - acquired and aggregated visually from
multiple systems throughout the community, across care settings and
organizational boundaries. May be integrated with an EHR.

Data transformation and normalization services based on industry-standard
communication protocols that allow data from disparate systems to display in a
common format while accounting for technology, nomenclature, data-element
and coding-transactions standards. This allows for data to be consumed by
any system connected to the HIE - across acute care and ambulatory settings
- in the appropriate format for the system.

Patient-identity reconciliation services that automate the task of reconciling
patient information from different inpatient and ambulatory systems from
multiple care locations across the community, resulting in a community master
person index, patient choice management, and de-identification services. This
service uses configurable, distributed algorithms tailored to the Participant to
establish a true longitudinal community patient record.

Acquires and aggregates health information from inpatient and ambulatory data
sources to build a clinical data repository (CDR), or series of repositories, for
clinical use and rapid retrieval and display by end-user applications. Staging
the data enables access anytime in a highly secure and scalable environment.
Data in data stages are owned by Participant. Data Stage servers can be
hosted by WISH IN/the System Software Licensor or by the Participant. Data
is not comingled across Participant data stages.

PA014 Confidential 38



Record Locator Service Rapidly locates patient information in a confederated deployment with multiple
databases containing patient information from disparate hospitals, health
systems and communities. Works in concert with the Identity Management
Services to efficiently index the location ofall relevant data for a specific patient,
enabling the rapid retrieval and display of the patient's longitudinal community
patient record.

Orders This module leverages the HIE to automate the order initiation and
(limited availability) communication between the ordering clinician and the hospital or organization

filling the order - eliminating communication errors while improving workflow
and efficiency. This module adapts to the needs of the ordering clinician,
enabling ordering directly from an EHR or from an electronic order entry module
for paper-based practices. The hospital management component offers
several integration options, which can be incrementally layered, depending
upon internal system capabilities, policy and procedures, and hospital business
strategy.

HIE Operational Analytics HIE operational analytics designed to help organizations evaluate the data they
are currently capturing and what insight might be derived from that data.

eHealth Exchange/HIE Gateway Connects an HIE to any other HIE using IHE profiles - promoting true,
connected healthcare for care collaboration locally, regionally, statewide and
across the nation.

Biosurveillance Gateway Monitors, formats, and transmits electronic syndromic surveillance data to
empower public health agencies with early detection, early information-sharing,
and the ability to make informed decisions about public health threats.

Immunization Gateway Enables providers to view a patient's immunization record or electronically
submit immunization administration information to their state.

Novo Grid ·« A
a° go e t

I '
The Novo Grid is patented distributed technology for "last mile" connectivity to physician practices. It is the HIE
foundation for achieving Meaningful Use and creating a network of providers across a community of care. The Grid
connects disparate systems across multiple inpatient and ambulatory care locations for the seamless exchange of
health information.

v333,1q.$ 4;3±j&3+ c4¥ g : £,}kV9i « 4. if - y

HCS ',I

HCS medication reconciliation is an add-on option available to WISHIN Pulse customers via the WISHIN Pulse web
portal. This feature includes the ability to obtain a patient's prior medication history including medication fill and refill
information as part of the WISHIN Pulse community health record. This feature does not come standard with
WISHIN Pulse and must be purchased separately.

t }i e M ' '(., #44w% ¥ i.\Third-Party Software t,. .., i .
The following Third-Party Software may be used as part of the System Software:

• Software developed by the Apache Software Foundation (www.apache.org) including the Apache
Web servers and the Tomcat application server

• Java SE Runtime Environment (JRE) Version 6.0 from Sun Microsystems (www.sun.com)
• The HAPI Java-based HL7 2.x parser (http://hl7api.sourceforge.net)
• Java UUID Generator (www.doomdark.org/doomdark/proj/jug)
• The iText library that allows you to generate PDF files on the fly (www.lowagie.com/iText)
• Apache Jakarta Commons libraries (http://jakarta.apache.org/commons)
• XML Im-/Exporter library (http://ml-im-exporter.sourceforge.net/)
• The Bouncy Castle Crypto APIs (www.bouncycastle.org/index.html)
• The Font-Box library

PA014 Confidential 39



ATTACHMENT 4: PERMITTED USES: APPROVED USE CASES

#

1

2

3

5

Use Case Name

Creation, modification,
maintenance, and
inactivation of participant
users
Auditing of participant end
user system activities

Notifications to Payers

Notifications to Health
Care providers

Description

This use case allows technical security staffs at each
Participant organization to create, modify, and
deactivate the participant user accounts for their
organization.
This use case allows privacy and security staff at
each Participant organization to access audit logs and
reports showing system activity for their users and
their patients.

This use case allows for reports or notifications of
health care encounters to be provided by WISHIN to
Payers. The reports or notifications include Health
Data related to the Payer's covered members who
have had a recent health care encounter and is
intended to assist the Payer in the management of its
members. The reports or notifications promptly alert
Payers of their members' health care encounters well
before any subsequent claim would be received by the
Payer. This can enable care managers to follow up
with members more promptly, help members get
assigned to a primary care provider, and ensure the
patients honor their scheduled appointments.

The reports or notifications are based on the payer
supplied enrollment data.

This use case allows for reports or notifications of
health care encounters to be provided by WISHIN to
Health Care Providers. The reports or notifications are
intended to assist Health Care Providers in the
management of their patients and enable Health Care
Providers to promptly follow up with the patients,
address any potential avoidable hospital visits, or
schedule follow-up appointments as appropriate.

The reports or notifications are delivered only to Health
Care Providers that have a treatment relationship with
the patient or to whom the patient is attributed for care
management purposes.

Date
Approved
7/18/2013

7/18/2013

7/18/2013
Updated:
8/11/2014,
2/11/2015,
3/23/2016,
5/21/2018

7/18/2013
Updated
8/11/2014,
2/11/2015,
3/23/2016,
5/21/2018

Category

Health Care
Operations

Health Care
Operations

Care
Coordination by
MCOs

Care
Coordination by
providers

6 Quality organization (not
owned by a Health Care
Payer) receipt of Health
Data for specific quality
initiatives/measures

i

PA014

This Use Case would allow WISHIN participants the 8/11/2014
option of having their clinical data shared via WISHIN
to quality organizations not owned by a Health Care
Payer in support of specific initiatives.

Data sharing would be limited to

1. only participants that have agreed to include
their data in the data sent to the quality
organization, and

2. only data needed for the specific quality
initiative/measure

WISHIN participants will have the option of having their
data included in the Health Data that get sent to the
quality organizations.

Confidential

Quality reporting
and measures

40



#

7

8

9

Use Case Name

Send transactions to payer
organizations for their
members

Health Care PayerAccess
for Claims Adjudication,
Prior Authorization, Care
Management and
Collection ofQuality Data

Ambulance and EMS
Provider Access for Billing
and Collection

Description

This Use Case would allow WISHIN participants the
option of having their clinical data shared via WISHIN
to payer organizations.

1. Data would be shared with a payer or payers
only if the participant agrees to permit such
sharing, and only for uses mutually agreed
upon by the payer and participant.

2. Patient data would be sent to the payer only
if both the following criteria are met: (a) the
patient appears on the current member file
supplied to WISHIN by the payer; and (b) the
patient is identified in the participant's ADT
transactions as being covered by the payer
on the date ofthe transaction.

3. Care Summaries (CCDAs) will not be shared
as part ofthis use case.

WISHIN participants will have the option ofhaving their
data included in the Health Data that gets sent to the
payer organizations.

This Use Caseallows Participants, which are Health
Care Payers, to access and use Health Data of
individuals insuredorcoveredby ahealthbenefit plan
administered by the Health ? Care Payer, forclaims
adjudication, prior authorizations, care management
and collectionof qualitydata. No other access to, and
use of, Health Data is permitted under this Use Case
including,butnotlimitedto pricing and underwriting.

This Use Case allows Participants, which are
ambulance services or emergency-medical-services
(EMS) providers, to access encounter Health Data for
billing and collection. The accessed Health Data would
be for patients to whom the ambulance/EMS provider
rendered services and from the encounter data
prepared by the Participant to which the patient was
transferred by the ambulance/EMS provider.

Date
Approved
5/6/2015

10/11/2017

10/11/2017,
5/21/2018

Category

Provider-Payer
data sharing

Provider-Payer
data sharing

Provider Billing
Operations

PA014 Confidential 41



ATTACHMENT 5: SUBSCRIPTION ANDSERVICE FEES

Participant Organizations Covered under this Agreement include:

Wholly
owned,

Independent,
or Affiliate

Organization Name Organization
Type

g hospital
rursing tome e

Public Health

City

Franklin

Number of
Providers

1Wholly owned City ofFranklin PublicHealth
De artment

Providers = MDS, DOS, PAS, APNPs, and any other ordering and/orprescribing staff

1: Number of Providers (MDs, DO, PAs, APNPs, and any other ordering and/or prescribing staff)

1: Number of Participant Organizations listed above.

Covered Providers or Members under this Agreement (WISHIN Pulse)
As used in this Attachment 5, "Providers" means all ordering and/or prescribing providers of Participant
and the above-listed Participant Organizations; and "Members" means those subscribers, employees and
their dependents for whom Participant provides or administers health insurance or self-insured health
benefits and forwhom Participant will utilizeWISHIN Pulse. Participant certifies that the current number of
Members and/or Providers of Participant and the Participant Organizations is correctly stated above.

Pricing
Subscription and Service Fees:

WISHIN Pulse Subscription Fee

Total Subscription Fees:

$3,000.00

$3,000.00

One-time Fees:,---------------------------,,--------,
WISHIN Pulse Onboarding Fee $1,500.00

Total One-time Fees: $1,500.00

WISHIN will make its services elected in Attachment 1 available to Participant's Authorized Users at no
cost through June 30, 2024. During this no cost period, Participant will not be obligated to pay the
Subscription Serice Fees or One-time Fees above.

One hundred percent of the Subscription Service Fees ($3,000.00) and One-time Fees ($1,500.00} will be
due in accordance with Section 13.1 of this Agreement. Each subsequent year, WISHIN will invoice
Participant the Annual Subscription Fees for the following twelve (12) months (a "renewal term") for all
elected Products and Services. WISHIN may change the Annual Subscription Fees for any renewal term
in accordance with Section 81of the Agreement and tf Participant requests additional Products and/or
Services.

Reconciliation
At the end of any term, WISHIN and Participant will verify the number of Members or Providers for the
preceding twelve (12) months. If the number of Members or Providers exceeds the number of Members or
Providers used in calculating Subscription Fees for that year, Participant shall pay WISHIN an additional
Subscription Fee for the preceding twelve (12) months for such excess number of Members or Providers. If
the number of Members or Providers is less than the number of Members or Providers used in calculating
Subscription Fees for that year, Participant shall receive a credit for the reduced number of Providers, which
will be applied to Participant's Subscription Fee for the new twelve (12) month period.

In no event will the annual Subscription and Service Fees be less than $3,000.00
PA014 Confidential 42



WISHIN may change the per Members or Provider per year rate for the Subscription and Service Fees for
renewal terms mn accordance with Section 81of the Agreement WISHIN also may invoice Part1c1pant for
additional Subscrpton and Service Fees at any time there is a significant increase mn the number of
Members or Providers and at any time Participant subscribes for additional products and/or Services

Additional Fees
Subscription and Service Fees

In addition to any changes m the Subscription and Service Fees on the anniversary dates and any changes
in the per Members or Provider per year rate, Subscription and Service Fees may be modified by WISHIN
when

o Any new PartIcIpant Organization or Members or Providers are added, with the fees prorated for
any partial contract year,

o Participant subscribes for any additional product or Services,
o There Is a significant Increase mn the number of Providers or Members (as applicable) above the

number certified above in this Attachment 5
o Hospitals The annual subscription fee for any addItIonal hospital is based on WISHIN's pncmg

formula applied to the hospital's net patient revenue Fees for addItIonal hosp1tal(s) would be
added to the PartIcIpant OrganIzatIons covered under this Agreement

o Non-hospital Part1cIpant Organizations The annual subscription fee Is based on the number of
non-hospital Participant Organuzatons and the number of Providers covered by this
Agreement Subscription fees will be increased when there Is a net increase m the number of
Part1c1pant Organizations and/or the number of Providers or Members (as applicable) over the
number at the time of execution of this Agreement New Part1c1pant Organizations would be
added to the Part1cIpant Organizations covered under this Agreement

Fees for One-time Serices
o When additional Participant Organizations are added to an existng data source requiring no new

interface to the WISHIN system, there shall be no additional WISHIN Pulse onboarding fees
o When new interfaces are requested by Participant or are required due to a new data source, one

time onboarding fees may apply
o The addition of new products and/or Services (Including new interfaces) may require additional

one-time fees
o When add1t1onal patient or member files are added
o Prices listed assume that interface onboarding will occur in the number of phases listed in the

Products and Services section above under "Onboarding Phases". Add1t1onal one-time fees may
apply 1f interface onboarding occurs over more phases than indicated

PA014 Confidential 43



ATTACHMENT 6: BUSINESS ASSOCIATE PROVISIONS

This Attachment applies 1f Part1c1pant Is a "covered entity" under HIPAA In that event, WISHIN and any
WISHIN Subcontractor shall be a "Business Associate" of Participant for purposes of HIPM and this
Attachment

1. Definitions. The following terms used in this Attachment are defined as follows

a) "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "breach" m 45 CF R $ 164 402
b) "Breach Notification Rule" means 45 CF R Part 164, Subpart D
c) "Electronic Protected Health Information" or "EPHI" has the same meaning as the term

"electronic protected health information" in 45 CF R § 160 103
d) "Electronic Transactions Rule" means the final regulations issued by HHS concerning standard

transactions and code sets under 45 CF R Parts 160 and 162.
e) "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and AccountabIhty Act of 1996, as amended and

as implemented by the Department of Health and Human Services regulations, including the
Privacy Rule, the Security Rule and the Breach Notification Rule As used in this Attachment,
"HIPAA" Includes those provisions of the HITECH Act relating to the prvacy or security of Protected
Health Information

f) "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, as
amended

g) "HHS" means the United States Department of Health and Human Services
h) "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "ind1v1dual" in 45 C F R § 160 103 and shall

include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 C FR
§ 164 502(g)

1) "Privacy Rule" means the Standards for Privacy of lnd1v1dually Identifiable Health Information at
45 CF R Part 160 and Part 164, Subparts A and E.

J) "Protected Health Information" or "PHI" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected
health information" in 45 CF R § 160 103, but shall be hm1ted to Part1c1pant's PHI PHI includes
EPHI

k) "Required By Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 C F R
$ 164 103

I) "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of HHS or his des1gnee
m) "Security Incident" has the same meaning as the term "security incident" in 45 CF R § 164 304
n) "Security Rule" means the Security Standards and Implementation Spec1f1cat1ons at 45 CF R

Part 160 and 164, Subpart C
o) "Subcontractor" has the same meaning given to the term "subcontractor'' in 45 CFR § 160 103

Pursuant to 45 CFR $160 103, a Subcontractor Is a "business associate" under HIPAA
p) "Transaction" shall have the same meaning as the term "transaction" in 45 CF R § 160 103
q) "Unsecured Protected Health Information" has the same meaning given to the term "unsecured

protected health information" in 45 C F R $ 164 402

Capitalized terms used, but not otherwise defined, in this Attachment shall have the same meaning as
those terms in the Privacy Rule, the Security Rule or the Breach Not1ficat1on Rule

2. Business Associate Compliance with HIPAA. Business Associate shall comply with all
provIsIons of HIPAA that are applicable to business associates including, If Business Associate creates,
receives, mantamns or transmits EPH! on behalf of Participant, the Security Rule Except as permitted by
HIPAA or a valid authorzaton obtained from an individual in accordance with 45C F R 164 508, Business
Assoc1ate shall not directly or indirectly receive remuneration in exchange for the PHI of the individual

3. Permitted Uses and Disclosures of PHI.

a) Services for Participant. Business Associate may use and disclose PHI received from, or created
or received on behalf of, Participant only as permitted or required by any Agreement for services
between Business Associate and Participant, this Attachment, as permitted by law, or as otherwise
authorzed In writing by Participant

b) Business Associate's Operations. Business Associate may use and disclose PHI for proper
management and administration of Business Associate's business and to carry out its legal

PA014 Confidential 44



responsibilities Business Assoc1ate only may use or disclose PHI pursuant to thus paragraph if (1)
such use or disclosure Is required by law, or (11) Business Associate receives reasonable written
assurance from any person or organization to whom Business Associate will disclose PHI that the
person or organization will hold such PHI in confidence and use or further disclose It only for the
purpose for which Business Associate disclosed rt to the person or organization and the person or
organization will notify Business Associate of any breach of confidentiality related to the PHI If the
disclosure Is to a Subcontractor, these reasonable assurances shall include a written contract or
other arrangement that complies with the requirements for business associate contracts under 45
CF R § 164 314(a)2)

c) Data Aggregation. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI to provide data aggregation
services on behalf of Participant relating to the health care operations of Participant

d) Minimum Necessary. In its performance of the functions, activities, services, and operations
specified above, Business Associate will make reasonable efforts to use, disclose, and request
only the minimum amount of PartIcIpant's Protected Health Information reasonably necessary to
accomplish the intended purpose of the use, disclosure or request, except that Business Associate
will not be obligated to comply with this minimum-necessary limitation if neither Business Associate
nor Participant ts required to lmmrt its use, disclosure or request to the minimum necessary To the
extent It uses, discloses, and requests PHI in a manner that involves Business Associate,
Participant wll make reasonable efforts to use, disclose, and request only the minimum amount of
PHI necessary to accomplish the intended purpose of the use, disclosure or request to the extent
It Is required to do so under HIPAA The phrase "minimum necessary" shall be interpreted in
accordance with the HITECH Act

e) De-Identified Use of PHI. Business Associate may de-1dent1fy PHI in accordance with the
requirements outlined in the Privacy Rule Data that has been de-1dent1fied will no longer be subject
to the terms of this Attachment

f) Performance of Participant's Obligations. To the extent Business Associate Is to carry out
Participant's obligations under the Privacy Rule, Business Associate will comply with the Privacy
Rule's requirements that apply to Participant in the performance of such obligations

4. Unauthorized Uses and Disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall not (and shall ensure that
its officers, directors, agents, employees and Subcontractors do not) use or disclose PHI that Business
Associate receives from Participant or any other HIPAA business associate of Participant in any manner
other than as permitted or required by any Agreement for services between Business Associate and
PartIc1pant, this Attachment, or as Required by Law This Attachment does not authorize Business
Associate to use or disclose Participant's Protected Health Information in a manner that would violate the
Prvacy Rule if done by Participant

5. Safeguards Against Misuse of Information. Business Associate will develop and use
appropriate administrative, technical and physical safeguards as are required by HIPAA to prevent the
improper use or disclosure of PHI Such safeguards shall include, but not be limited to, developing,
documenting and keeping current policies and procedures and training personnel regarding the proper use
and disclosure of PHI If Business Associate creates, receives, maintains or transmits EPHI on behalf of
PartIcIpant, Business Associate shall implement safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the
confidentiality, integrity, and availability of Participant's EPHI as required by the Security Rule Such
safeguards shall include, but not be limited to, developing, implementing and maintaining adequate
admInistrat1ve safeguards to manage the selection, development, Implementat1on, and maintenance of
security measures to protect EPHI, physical safeguards to protect Participant's EPHI from natural and
environmental hazards, and unauthorized intrusion, and technical safeguards for its use that protect EPHI
and control access to such information

6. Disclosures To Third Parties. Pror to disclosing PHI to an agent or Subcontractor of Business
Associate, Business Associate shall obtain written assurance from such party that It agrees to be bound by
the same restrictions and condIt1ons that apply to Business Associate with respect to PHI If the disclosure
Is to a Subcontractor, the assurance shall include a written contract or other arrangement that complies
with the requirements for business associate contracts under 45 CF R § 164 314(a)(2) Business
Associate shall provide Participant with copies of such written assurance upon request

PA014 Confidential 45



7 Reporting of Any Breach, Improper Use or Disclosure, and Security Incidents

a) Breach. Business Associate shall notify Part1c1pant without unreasonable delay (and in no case
later than 1 0 days after discovery of a Breach) of any Breach of Protected Health Information

b) Security Incidents. Business Associate will report to Participant any Security Incident wthmn 10
days of Business Associate becoming aware of the Security Incident The parties acknowledge
that thus paragraph constitutes notice by Business Associate to Participant of the ongoing existence
and occurrence of attempted but Unsuccessful Security Incidents (as defined below) for which no
additional notice to Participant shall be required "Unsuccessful Security Incidents" means pings
and other broadcast attacks on Business Assoc1ate's firewall, port scans, unsuccessful log-on
attempts, denials of service and any combination of the above, so long as no such incident results
in unauthorized access, use or disclosure of PHI

c) Other Improper Uses and Disclosures. Business Associate shall report to Participant any use
or disclosure of Participant's PHI that is not provided for by this Attachment within 1 0 days of
Business Associate becoming aware of such use or disclosure

d) Details for Notices and Reports. Business Assoc1ate's notices and reports under this Section 7
shall identify

the nature of the Breach, unauthorized use or disclosure or Security Incident, which shall
include the date(s) of the same and the date of discovery,
the PHI used or disclosed, on an ind1v1dual basis (such as whether full names, dates of birth,
home addresses, etc were involved),
how the Breach, unauthorized use or disclosure or Security Incident occurred,
the identity, rf known, of any individual who received PHI due to an unauthorized use or
disclosure,
what Business Associate has done or shall do to mrtgate any effect of the use or disclosure

8. Access to PHI. If PHI is in a Designated Records Set, Business Associate agrees to make
available PHI mn accordance with 45 C F R § 164 524

9. Amendments to PHI. If PHI 1s in a Designated Records Set, Business Associate agrees to make
available PHI for amendment and incorporate any amendments to PHI in accordance with 45 CF R
§ 164 526

10. Accounting of Disclosures. Business Associate agrees to make available the information
required to provide an accounting of disclosures m accordance with 45 C F R § 164 528

11. Availability of Books and Records. Business Associate will make its internal practices, books,
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by Business
Associate on behalf of Part1c1pant available to the Secretary of the United States Department of Health and
Human Services for purposes of determining Part1c1pant's compliance with the Privacy Rule

12. Return or Destruction of PHI. Upon termination of the Agreement, Business Associate shall
cease all use and disclosures of Participant's PHI except as directed by Part1c1pant In add1t1on, Business
Associate wll, If feasible, return or destroy all PHI of Participant, Including all PHI Business Associate has
disclosed to its employees, Subcontractors and/or agents Destruction shall include destruction of all copies
including backup tapes and other electronic backup medium If such return or destruction 1s not feasible,
Business Associate will extend the protections of this Attachment to the information and limit further uses
and disclosures to those purposes that make return or destruction of the information infeasible

13. Participant's Obligations. Participant shall promptly notify Business Associate of the following

a) Any limitation(s) mn Participant's notice of privacy practices mn accordance wth 45C F R $ 164 520,
to the extent that such hm1tat1on may affect Business Assoc1ate's use or disclosure of PHI

PA014 Confidential 46



b) Any changes in, or revocation of, permission by an mndrvdual to use or disclose PHI, to the extent
that such changes may affect Business Assoc1ate's use or disclosure of PHI

c) Any restriction to the use or disclosure of PHI that Participant has agreed to in accordance with 45
C F R § 164 522, to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Assoc1ate's use or
disclosure of PHI.

14. Breach of Agreement/Termination of Agreements. In the event either party (the "Non
breaching Party") has evidence that the other party, or the other party's agent, Subcontractor, or contractor
(the "Breaching Party"), has committed a material breach of this Attachment or v1olatIon of HIPAA, the
Non-breaching Party shall have the right to (1) provide the Breaching Party with an appropriate period to
cure the breach or end the v1olat1on, (11) terminate this Attachment and any other Agreement between the
parties if the Breaching Party does not cure the breach or end the violation within the time specified by the
Non-breaching Party, or () if termination is not feasible, report the problem to the Secretary of the HHS
The Non-breaching Party may exercise its right to terminate this Attachment and any other Agreement
between the parties by provdung written notice of termination stating the breach of the Agreement that
provides the basis for termination No waiver of any breach of any provision of this Attachment shall
constitute a waiver of any prior, concurrent or subsequent breach

15. Mitigation of Harmful Effects. Business Associate agrees to m1t1gate, to the extent practicable,
any harmful effect of a use or disclosure of PHI by Business Associate in v1olat1on of the requirements of
this Agreement, including, but not hm1ted to, compliance with any state law or contractual data breach
requirements

16. Judicial and Administrative Proceedings. If Business Associate 1s legally compelled by law,
process or order of any court or governmental agency or otherwise to disclose PHI submitted to Business
Associate by Participant, Business Associate shall, prior to making any such disclosure, give Participant
prompt notice to permit Participant to seek a protective order or to take other appropriate action

17. Enactments and Amendments to HIPAA. If there are amendments to HIPAA, or 1f there are any
changes in the manner in which HIPAA 1s interpreted by the agencies or courts, the parties shall take those
actions necessary to comply with the current state of the law, including by amending this Attachment

18. Interpretation. Any amb1gu1ty in this Attachment shall be resolved to permit compliance with
HIPAA

19. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. There are no third-party beneficiaries to these Business Associate
provisions

20. Compliance with Law. To the extent Business Associate 1s to carry out PartIcIpant's obligations
under the Privacy Rule, Business Associate will comply with the Privacy Rule's requirements that
apply to Part1c1pant in the performance of such obligation

PA014 Confidential 47



ATTACHMENT 7: SAMPLEWISHIN DIRECT+ ORGANIZATION REPRESENTATIVE IDENTIFY
VERIFICATION FORM

Following is a SAMPLE Identity Verification Form. DO NOT USE. WISHIN will provide the appropriate
form as part of the implementation and onboarding process forWISHIN Direct+.

i• f) + WISHIN Direct+
Organization Representative IdentityVerification Form

PA014

WISHIN Direct+ Identity Verification Form for
Organization Representatives

#Name
#Domain

CONFIDENTIAL

Confidential 48



WISHIN Direct+
OrganizationRepresentative IdentityVerification Form

PA014

Purpose
Your organization has contracted with the Wisconsin Statewide Health Information Network (WISHINI to receive
WISHIN Direct+ services.

Your orpniution has selected the followingWISHIN Direct+ domain~

This WISHIN Direct+ Identity Verlfiutlon form must be completed by at least one representative from your
organization for the above WIS}HIN Direct+ domain

By completing this form, you are agreeing to perform the responsibilities and complywith tM requlremenu
at forth In this document,

overview
WISHIN Ditect+

11 Direct Messaging and WIS#IN Direct+
Direct massaging, oten called "Direct, is s basic form of health information exchange (H? that allows health
care providers to surelyand electronicallysend patient information toother specified providers, or to patients
themsalv.s. Commonly compared to sanding secure email,, this Information Is sent over the Internet In an
encrypted, protected way tht is H/PAA-compliant.

WISHIN is I Hulth Information Service Provider (HISPL which means WISHIN Is certified to off•r~addresses
(which are similar to email addresses} and WISHIN provides the servlt:e to transmit the Dlr<tct messages.
WISH IN's HISP and Direct messaging product Is known as WISHIN Direct+

With • WISHIN Direct+ address, a health care provider can exchance clinical documentation with providers or
patients registered with another HISP anywhere in the United States, provided the other HISP conforms to the
standards and requirements required for Dirt messaging established by The Direct Project
(ww.wikidjrectroigst.og) and anyother requirements identified by the receiving HISP

12 The Direct Project
Ts Direct Project is a federal government standard designed to enable simple, secure, email-bsed exchange of
clinical documentation between health care providers. Because WISHIN is a HISP, WISHIN customers n assign
end administer • WISHIN Direct+ address (similar to an email address) for each health care provider in their
"domaina In addition, I5HIN can also assign and administer WIS}IN Direct+ addresses on behalf of our
customers inour standarddomain

WISHIN Direct♦ conforms to the requirement set forth by the national Direct Project
(www.wikLdirectproject.org); indudin1 the "Applicability Statement for Secure Health Transport," which
describes how to use SMTP, S/MIME, and X.509 certificates to securely transport health information over the
Internet

1 3 WISHIN Direct+ Domains andAddresses
WISHIN customers assi&n and administer a WISHIN Direct+ address (similar to an email address) for each health
care provider in theirdomain

Your organization has selected the following WISHIN Direct♦ domain #Domain

Confidential 49



» WISHIN Direct+
Organization Representative IdentityVerification Form

PA014

Organizations are requiredto assign and manage all ofthe WISHIN Direct+ addresses for theirdomain

1.4 Exchanging Messages with Health Care Providenon OtherHISPs
As noted above, with a WSiN Direct oddress, o health core provider conexch ange clinicaldocumentation with
providers or patients registered with another #iSP anywhere in the United Stores, provided the other HIS
conforms to the standards ond requirements required for Oirect mesoging established by The Oir¢ct Project
iii. girs2rift.grgl and ony other requirements identified by the receiving #ISP Some HISPs also

require participation In the Direct Trusted Agent Accreditation Program, or DTAAP, in order to axchenp
mesnaes with their HISP This is sometimes referred to as being»lractfrus participate

To ensure our customen are able to send Direct messages toother health care providers, regardless ofthe HISP
those others may be usln&, WISHIN's System Software Licensor is participating in DTAAP ad is a "Dirac£Trust
participant.• WISHIN is also a memberof DirectTrust.

141 DirectTrus and OTAAP
DlrectTrust lwwwdiruttrud.prJ) ls • non-profit health care industry alliance that has established and maintains
rules, standards, and policies associated with the operation of the security and trul;t-ln-ldentity layer for~
exchange Taken together, these mke up as Security and Trust framework that supports both gigexchange
implementenand users.

DirectTrust uses Its Security and Trust Framework uthe basis foravoluntry accreditation and audit program for
~ lmplemanters and service providers (this program is k1lown as the Direct Trusted Agent Accreditation
Program, or DTAAP). DTAAP is operated as a partnership between OirecTrust and the Electronic Healthcare
Network Accreditation commission (EMMA}.

WISHIN's Syst•m Software Licensor ls participating ill DTAAP which recognizes excellence in health data
processing and transactions, and ensures compliance with industry-established standards, HIPAA regulations and
the Direct Project.

In addition to DTAAP, DirectTrust distributes what are known as trust anchordigital certificates from accredited
HISPs so that Dig messages can be exchanged across different HISPs. WISHIN's trust anchor certificate will be
part ofQi$Tut's"rust bundle" to ensure Participants usingWISHIN's HISP are able to exchange information
with health care providers on other HISPs in the "trust bundle •

The EHNAC-DirectTrust accreditation pro,rarn is endorsed bythe Office ofthe National Coordinator for Health IT
(ONC).

Confidential 50



D WISHIN Direct+
OrganizationRepresentative IdentityVerification form

PA014

Participant Requirements

Definitions

Health Information Serviss Provider[HISE: ths organizations responsible tor on-boardinghealth care
organizations and facilitating the transfer ofDig3,messgex. WISHlN is a HIS? WISHlN Direct+ isthe name of
WISHIN's HISP and the product WISHIN uses tofacilitate the transfer ofQimessages.

Certificgtg.Authorities [Cg}: organizations thast issue Digital Certificates meetingthe requirements set torth in
the DlrectTnnt certificate policy

Buitratlon Authorities!BAs} organizations th»t verify the Identityofusers inaccordance withthe required
Levels ofAssuranc•~- Health care providers must meet Direc¢Trust {g4level 3(oA3) requirements
[equivalent to NIST LOA3 •NIST publication 800-63). Anyone assigning as Qlg address to a userand/or creating
• Direct account is en RA. 'ourorganization is the RA foryourorpnlzatlon's· WISHIN Dire«+domain.

Orpnlptlon RtPctBDSUiYtf! individuals that serve as representatives for theirorganization with regards to RA
responsibilities.The Organization Representative is responsible for aging use afthecertificate for their
organization by completingthis formyou are applying to be the Organization Representative and Registration
Authority (RA) foryourorpnlzatlon's WISHIN Direct+ domain.

Trust Agents· individuals who assi st incollectingthe documentation necessary to establish Organization
Representatives. Trust Agents must also be Orpnlzadon Rep,esentetlves. The Trust Agent then executH an
agreement that appoints them asan agent for the purposes ofcollectingdocumentation, verifyingIdentities, and
providingIdentity information.

2 Participnt Registrtuon Authonly Requirements

DigitalCertifimH are requiredforQiggtmessaging and thus, requiredfor WISHIN Direct+ In ordertoreteivea
Digital Certificate, your organization must assign at least one Orpnlzatlon Representative The assigned
Organization Representative must complete this IdentityVerification Form

By completing this form you an, applying tobecome the Organization Representative foryour organization's
WISHIN Direct+domaln. Orpnladon Representatlws an, Registration Authoritlesfortheirorganiutlon's
WISHIN Direct+ domain. #s such,Organization Representatives must comply with all Direct Project and
Directlrust requirements forRegistration Authorities.

Organization Representatives are required toverify the Identityof al l UNn towhom theyassi gn a WISHIN
Direc:t+ addte5 ldentityverification must be done inaccordance with Directlrust Level ofAssurance 3 (LoA3)
standard. Typically, a health care providerwlll request a girtaddress from you (as the Orpniution
Representative). To verify that provider's identityyouwould verify the provider's paper credentials(like a
driver's license)and/or verify credential records indatabases. This process is called identityverlflc.ation As the
Organization Representative you must maintain recordsof the ldentitywrlfication you perform forall users
you assign aQirggaddress to.

As the resultof successful Identityverification, the healthcare provideris given a WISHIN Direct+ address and
becomes a userofthe Digital Certificate auieoed toyour orpnization

The table below summarizes the requirements for identityproofingset forth for LoA3

Confidential 51



.i

+' [ WISHIN Direct+
Organization Representative IdentityVerification Form

atin pron app inc: ing number
accountumberthrough record checks either with thapplicate
agenc y sr institutionor through credit bureaus or s imilardatabss ,

and confirms that. name,g.address adotherpersonal
informa tion in cords art cons istent giththe applicat ion 111<1
suffic:ient toJCletllify a unique idvidgal.

•Mdrus eonfll'fflatio11:
a) lssuecrede ntials in a mar thatconfirmsthe adress of
~ llq)p lied bytha appfocant, or

b) tssueCl8Cllllt iats mam-tuteonfirm 1tneabllit yof1he
applic&nl to~~ comm1111icationt at a numbe.r
associatedwith the applicanti records, whie necording the
applicant 's voice.

vii

• nspacu a v via
issumg government agency or through
Cfed'C butealll or sitnilM d&tabutl
Confirms tlt&t· name. ~ . addtels
andOlllef personal infomatlon ill
#cord pr cons istent wilh th put
being prov iclld thaaccou nt

• Compaie picture toapplicant. recOld
10 number, mdieu andQd. If 10 is
valid&lid photo matehuapplic&nl
then.

a} lflOconfirmsdci-• oflKOld.
111111oria or issua eredelltills
3ni sand otica toacklreu of
Mod, or;

b} If 10does nOIconfirm addlHI
ofrod, suecredentials in a
manner that confit s address
ofrK«II

In addition tothe identityverification requirements,yourorpnization mustcomplywith the following
requirements that are specifiedby the Direct Project and/or DirectTrust. These ere not an exhaustive list.
Participants should refertothe Direct Project bww ywlki.directgroiet grg/and DirectTrust (ww.directrus,gr)
for a complete set of requirements.

• Your organization must have a writtenpolicyorpractice statement that specifies the particular steps taken to
verify identities for your WISHIM Direct+ domain and the identity verification and registration proces, must
be performed accordingtothat policy/statement.
Your organization m111t provide WISHIN with a list of all WISHIN Direct+ addresses assigned to your WISHIN
Direct+ domain,
Individuals assigned aWISHIN Direct+ addre.ss must know who their Organization Representative is and that
the Organization Representative representsthem

PA014 Confidential 52



Organization Name:

WISHIN Direct+
Organization Representative ldentityVeritic:ation Form

PARTICIPANTORGANIZATION INFORMATION
Organization

NPI:

PA014

OrganizationAddress Organization
fstreet): Phone#:

___......,(clt___.,v.._,s_tat,..,...e._):-1---------------1 Direct+ Domain:
(zip):

ORGANIZATION REPRESENTATIVEAPPLICANT(Applicant) INFORMATON
First Name: LastName:

Home Address Date of Birth:
fstreeU:

(clty,state): Emlll:
(zip): Phone Number.

The undersigned Applicant and, if Applicant does not have signing authority for the organization, the signing
authority, •ach warrants that all facts and information provided re accurate, current, complete and not
misleading nd further

1 Agrees to comply with the responsibilities associated with being a Participant, including the terms and
conditions found in this WISHIN Direct+ Participant Agreement,

2 Agrees to the terms of the Direct CertificateAutilorization included in this document and acknowledge
that W.liJ;an• may rely on youradherence to theattached terms In issuing a digital certificate to WISHIN

3 Agrees that Participant and all Participant Authorized Users shall accurately represent themselves in all
communications usinc the digital certificate

tel
PAIJl)CIPANTORGANllATION.AUtHORIZATION

ifApplicantabovedoesnothovesigningauthorityfortheorganization, thefollowing information must
be completed.

PRINTED NAMEand TITLEOFORGANIZATION'S SIGNATUREOFORGANIZATION'S SIGNING
SIGNINGAUTHORllY AUTHORllY

Confidential

w

53



• A WISHIN Direct+
Organization Representative IdentityVerification Form

INSTRUCTIONS FOR NCJfARY
FOR lHE PURPOSES OF THIS DOCUMENT, PERSONAL ACQUAINTANCE WllH lHE INDIVIDUAL IS INSUFFICIENT,
YOU MUST:

1 Review two forms ofcurrent government-issued IDs containing the individual's name and photocraph
2 Record the serial number and type ofeovemment-issued IDs presented by the Applicant. You should

also record in your •notary's Joumat• the ID serial number of the identification thlt was presented to
you

TO ECOMPLETED BY APPLICANT INTHE PRESENCE OFTE NOTARY

SIF•d By·------------------------------
P rlnted Name

first Name,t.lid411 lnltlol. Last Name

Title-----------------------------------
Date. _ Time A.M. /PM.

PA014

C Type of Document: I Photo: V N0

8 Issued Sy- Serial#:i
...~.. NameonlD#l Expiration DateJ2

C Type of Document: I Photo. y N0
R.y » Issued By Serial#:

+
C.. Name on 10#2: Exp. DateJ2

TO BECOMPLETED BYTHE NOTARY
Acknowledpment

State ot County of- _

The foregoing IJIStn,ments w•re Ktnowledged before me this__day of ,20_, by
the signer and subject of the above form (the Applicant). who personally appeared before me and signed or
attested the same in my presence, and presented the following government-issued photo ID card as proof of
his/her identity-
Noury Si1nature. _

Print Notary Mame. _

Date Time.. A.M. /PM.

Name of Organization Employing Notary
Phone••• Email•• _

Confidential 54



I WISHIN Direct+
Organization Representative IdentityVerification Form

PA014

PLEASE READ THIS AUTHORIZATION CAREFULLY BEFOllE PROCEEDING. YOU MUST CHECK I AGREE" AND
INITIALLING BELOW TO ACKNOWLEDGE THAT YOU HAVE READ THIS AUTHORIZATION, THAT YOU UNDERSTAND
IT, AND THAT YOU APPROI/E ISSUANCE OF THE CORRESPONDING DIGITAL CERTIFICATE. IF YOU HAVE ANY
QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS AUTHORIZ.\TION OR DO NOT WISH TO AUTHORIZE THE CERTIFICATE, PLEASE E
MIL DIGICERT AT LEGAL@DQ'SIERT.COM OR CALL 1-800-896-.7973 DO NOT CHECK "I AGREE AND DO NOT
PROCEED IFYOU DO NOT ACCEPT THE TERMS HEREIN OR AUTHORIZE THE CERTIFICATE'S ISSUANCE.

□ IAGREE._ _
Initials

igl.er,tn. {"igi~,gr") issues X.509 v 3 digital certificates (Certificates) to customers ofISHlN You, Ms
tither an lndMd11al ororpnlntlon that will be named In a certificate, are providingthis authorizatiin toassist
WISHIN In performIn& certaindlsltal certificate-relatedduties that are normally reservedfor Certificate subjects,
usually sn entity'sequipment, personnel, or agents. These tasks include managing keys, registeringdevices,
authenticatingpersonnel with Digitand its€erifcate systems, and installing, configuring, and managing
issued Certificates. Therefore, you herebyagree and authorize WISHlN and DiiGgg as follows:

1 gtifcat@g. Wt$HNN my request and approve Certificates in yourname and use issued Certificates for
your benefit ii,exmyissue, refuse to issue, revoke, prrestrkt acuss toCertificates In accordance
with the Instructions providedby WISHIN and rely.on these instructions as if originatingfrom you

2 Rtpresentations. You representthatyou are {2) a HIPAAcovered entity; (2} a HIPAA business associate, or,
{3)» healthcare organization that treats protectedhealthinformation withprivacy and securityprotutions
that are equivalenttothose requiredby HIPAA (each ofth•foregoinc is definedhereinas a•~
Qualified Entity"). You represent that you will limit youruse ofthe digital certificate for the purposes
requiredas such as DQiigg-Qualified Entity

3 uhoriztjon. You explicitlyappoint WISHIN's employees and agents as youragent for the purpose of
requesting, using, and managing Certificates and correspondingprivate keys. WISHIN's employees and
agents are authorized to fulfill all Obligations imposed by iigr with respect to the Certificate,
communicate with~ repnlingthe managementofkey sets and Certificates, and fulfill all roles
relatedtoCertificate issuance, such as a certificate requester, certificate approver, and contract signer [as
used In the CA/Browser Forum's Extended Validation Guidelines for SSL Certificates). You herebyauthorize
WISHIN and its employeesto

(i) Request Certlficatesmdomains and emails owned or controlledbyyou oryour affiliates,

(ii) R!KfU•st Certificates namingyou oryourequipment, employees, agents, or contractors as the
subject, and

(iii) Acceptterms and conditionsrelatadto Certificates issued on your behalf

4 Documentation. For each certificate orderedbyWSHIN underyour authorization,Qiig3must obtain a
personal attestation and a copyofall documentlltionnecessary toverify the entity's identity 9~.ll may
reuse this information in some cases. Qier,may relysolelyonthe information you provide or previously
providedwhen issuinga Certificate ormay elect toperform additional verificationpriorto issuinga
Certificate You a.grea to provide, at all times, accurate, complete, andtrue informationtoQiigrt Ifany
information providedtoQiier, changes or becomes misleadingor inaccurate, thenyou acre• topromptly

Confidential 55



A } WISHIN Direct+
Organization Representative IdentityVerification Form

5

6

7

8

update the information You consent to Ii)~publicdisclosure ofinformation embedded in an
issued Certifi cate, and (ii)~ transfer of your personal information to Digit'sservers, which are
IGcated Inside the United Sates. Gs.rg, shal l follow the privacy policy posted on itn,ebslte when
receiving and using information from you orWISHIN ~ may modify the privacy policy in its sole
discretion

RtRtt llDtJtlon. You representt hat you have the authori ty to execute thluuthoriz.t ion and, if applicable,
bind your organ izat ion by itsterms. 8y submitt ing documentation to pig~3, you represent to gig(grt
thilt II) you have verifi ed any named individual's name, address, em.ii address, telephone number,
birthdate, and any other information required byDjgiggtand in accordance with any instructions provided
bygig, {ii)}you has examined any relied upon documentsfor madifcat ion or falsificat ion and believe
that the documents are 'le&itimate and correct, and (ill)you .-e unawar e of any lnformatlOl'i that 11
reasonably misleading or that could result in s misidentification of the veri fied entity These
representationssurvive termination of this appointment until .ii Certificates that re ly on .the
documentation expire

.121ll111a.D.. This authorizat ion last s until revoked by you, ad you are responsible for all Certificates
requested by WISHlN on your behalf until afterDiltz receives a clear email messag e revoking the
authorizat ion st [gal@digicgr$gm. Even after revocat ion, all r4presentations ind obligations herein
survive until all Certificates Issued under this llllthoriuti Qn expire or are revoked in accordance with
igigti3agreement with WISHlN Digitmy require thatyou periodically renew this authorizat ion by
resubmitting a copy of this authorizatio n toQigiGg3 .

Certifkatg R@ypqt lon and Itcmlnatlon. RIIU:lllwill revoke any Certificate issued to WISHIN on vour
behalf after receivlnc notice from you and after verifyi ng the legitimacy ofthe revocation reques. QigiGet
may also revoke a Certifi cate issued to WISHIN on your bah.iffor any reason and without notice

w,rranty Disclaimers. DIGICERT SERVICES ARE PRODED "AS IS AND "AS AVAILABL E" TO THE
MAX IMUM EXTENT PERMITTED' BY LAW, DIGICERT DISCLAIMS All EXPRESS AND IMPLIED WARRANTIES,
INCLUDING AllWARRANTI ES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND NON
INFRINGEMENT DIGICERT DOES Nor WARRANT THAT ANY SERVI CES WillMEET ANY EXPECTATIONS OR
THAT ACC ESS TO SERVICES Will BE TIMELY OR ERROR-FREE. ~ may modify or dixontinue specific
service or productofferings at any time Nothing herein requiresjgigg to provide Certificatesor other
related servicesto,ou orWISHIN.

PA014

9 Limitation on liability. YOU HEREBY WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO ANY DAMAG ES RELATED TO DIGICERT'S
SERVICES, INCLUDING THE ISSUANCE OR USE OF CERTIFICATES. DIGNCERT IS NOT LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT,
INDIRECT, CONSEQU ENTIAL, SPECIAL, OR PUNATIVE DAMAG ES OR ANY LOSS OF PROFIT, REVENUE, DATA,
OR OPPORTUNITY, EVEN IF DIGICERT IS AWARE OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAG ES . The limitations in
this section apply to the maximum extent permitted by law and apply regard less ofIi} the reason for or
nature of the liability, indudingtort daims, (ii) the number of claims of liability, (iii)the extent or nature of
the damages, or (Iv) whether any other provisionsofthisagreement were breached or proven ineffective .

10 Notices. You must send all notices Ii} in writing, (ii)with delivery confi rmation via first class mail,
commercial overnight delivery service, facsimile transm ission, email, or by hand, and (iii)addressed to
DEiert, Inc., Attn legal Department, 2600West Executive Parkway, Suite 500, Lehi, Utah 84043, email
'egot@diicert.com t. 1-866-842-0223 Diie3 may chan ge itsaddress for notices by sending notice of
the change toWISH IN WISH IN is sole ly responsible for conveying noticestoyou All notices to W.li.Cln
are effective on receipt Djgi~gr will de liver not ices to you bydelivering the notire to WLSHtN Notices are
effect ive when sent to WISH IN in accordance with igiCets agreement with WISHIN

Confidential 56



WISHIN Direct+
OrganizationRepresentative IdentityVerification Form

PA014

11 Severability Te invalidityor unenforceabilityof a provision under this authorization,•• determined by an
arbitrator, court, or administrative body ofcompetentjurisdiction, does not affect the validityor
enforceabllltyofthe remainderofthis a&rnment. The parties shall substitute any invalid or unenforceable
provision with a valid or enforceable provision that achieves the same economic, legal, and commercial
objectives as the Invalid orunenforceable provision

12 [tsndtdBtnsfsjrl3 WISHiN and Qigig are expressnd intended beneficiaries ofyour obligationsd
representations under this agreement.

BY CHECKING IAGREE" AND INITIALING ABOVE, YOU ACKNOWLEDGE THAT YOU HAVE READ ANDO UNDERSTAND
THIS DIRECT CERTIFICATE AUTHORIZATION, THAT YOU AGREE TO IT, AND THAT YOU AUTHORIZE ISSUANCE OF
THE CERTIFICATE.

Confidential 57



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS
AND RESTRICTIONS FORTHE APPROVAL
OF A SPECIAL USE FORA PHYSICAL
FITNESS FACILITY UPON PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 7199 S 76TH STREET

(BLACKDUCK PARTNERS, APPLICANT)

MEETING
DATE

11/06/2024

ITEM NUMBER

At its October 17th, 2024 meeting the Plan Commission recommended approval of a
resolution imposing conditions and restrictions for the approval of a Special Use for a
Physical Fitness Facility use upon property located at 7199 S 76" Street (Black Duck
Partners, Applicant).

The vote was 4-0-1, four "ayes", no "noes" and one absents.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to approve Resolution No. 2024- a resolution imposing
conditions and restrictions for the approval of a Special Use for a Physical Fitness
Facility use upon property located at 7199 S 76 Street (Black Duck Partners,
Applicant).



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2024---

MIL WAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A PHYSICAL FITNESS FACILITY

USE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED
AT 7199 S 76TH STREET,

(BLACK DUCK PARTNERS, APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, BLACK DUCK PARTNERS, having petitioned the City of Franklin for
the approval of a Special Use within Planned Development District 16, Franklin Centre,
under Standard Industrial Classification Title No. 7991 "Physical Fitness Facilities", to
operate a physical fitness facility with proposed hours of operation Monday through Sunday,
twenty-four hours a day, located at 7199 S. 76 Street, bearing Tax Key No. 755-1002-000,
more particularly described as follows:

LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 8385, BEING A PART OF THE
NORTHEAST¼ OF THE NORTHEAST¼ OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5
NORTH,RANGE21EAST

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of §15-9.0103D. of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan
Commission on the 17th of October, 2024, and the Plan Commission thereafter having
determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to certain
conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use upon
such conditions, pursuant to §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in
harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive
Master Plan; that it will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that it
will not interfere with the development of neighboring property; that it will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services; that it will not cause undue traffic
congestion; and that it will not result in damage to property of significant importance to
nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions,
meets the standards set forth under §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Black Duck Partners, for the approval of
a Special Use for the property particularly described in the preamble to this Resolution, be
and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and restrictions:



BLACK DUCK PARTNERS - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2024---
Page 2

1. That this Special Use is approved only for the use of the subject property by Black
Duck Partners, successors and assigns, as a physical fitness facility use, which shall
be developed in substantial compliance with, and operated and maintained by Black
Duck Partners, pursuant to the application materials City file-stamped September 4th,
2024 and annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

2. Black Duck Partners, successors and assigns, shall pay to the City of Franklin the
amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the
City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the Black Duck
Partners physical fitness facility, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any violation of
this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject
to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and
remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Black Duck Partners and the
physical fitness facility use for the property located at 7199 S. 76th Street: (i) being in
compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and
ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and
the like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented
for this approval.

4. All signage shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 210 of the Municipal Code
and must receive a Sign Permit from the City Development Department prior to
installation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Black Duck Partners, successors or
assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply with one or any of the
conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution, following a ten ( 10) day notice to
cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the Common Council, upon notice and
hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or
restriction of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to § 15-9.0502 thereof and § 1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than
$2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as
may be specified therein from time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a
separate violation. Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of
that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such
Special Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9.0103 of the Unified Development
Ordinance.



BLACK DUCK PARTNERS - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2024--
Page 3

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to $15-9.0103G. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall
be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution,
unless the Special Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit
for such use

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of , 2024.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT __



CITY OF FRANKLIN
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of October 17, 2024

Special Use

Item C.1.

RECOMMENDATION: City Development staff recommends approval of this special use
request for a physical fitness facility, under SIC Code 7991 Physical Fitness Facilities", which is
a special use in PDD District 16, Franklin Centre.

Project name:

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Agent:

Property Address/TKN:

Aldermanic District:

Zoning District:

Staff Planner:

Application number:

INTRODUCTION:

Black Duck Partners, Special Use

Franklin Station, LLC

Ryan Hansen, Black Duck Partners

Laura Lewallen, pb2 architecture+ engineering

7199 S. 76street/ 755 1002 000

District 2

PDD 16-Franklin Centre

Luke Hamill, Associate Planner

PPZ24-0154

Special Use Amendment request to allow for a physical fitness facility under SIC Code 7991
"Physical Fitness Facilities" , which is considered a special use in Planned Development
District (PDD) 16, Franklin Centre, as the B-3 zoning district is used to determine permitted
and special uses in PDD 16. There are no exterior changes proposed.

PROJECT ANALYSIS:

SIC Code 7991 "Physical Fitness Facilities" requires a special use permit in the B-3 Zoning
District, which is the zoning district used to determine permitted and special uses in PDD
16. The applicant is not proposing any exterior improvements at this time.

SIC Code 7991 includes conventional carwashes, but also includes car detailing as part of
its use:

7991 Physical Fitness Facilities
Establishments primarily engaged in operating reducing and other health clubs, spas, and
similarfacilitiesfeaturing exercise and other active physicalfitness conditioning, whether
or not on a membership basis. Also included in this industry are establishments providing
aerobic dance and exercise classes

The applicant is proposing a Planet Fitness, which is a national chain of gyms throughout
the country. They are proposing a 24/7 membership gym. The applicant is not proposing
any exterior changes at this time, so a Site Plan submittal is not required.



General standards for Special Uses (15-3.0701)

Summary of Staff's Finding
Standard
1. Harmony with UDO The proposed fitness facility is consistent with the comprehensive plan

and Comprehensive as this site is designated as commercial in the future land use map of
Plan purposes and the Cty ofFrankln 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan.
intent.

2. No UndueAdverse City Development staff does not anticipate any "undue adverse
Impact. impact" to adjacent properties as there are no proposed changes to the

approved site plan and there will be no changes to the current grading,
parking, landscaping, or lighting.

3. No Interference This site is zoned PDD 16, Franklin Centre and it's directly abutting
with Surrounding the Franklin Centre Development which is also zoned PDD 16. The
Development. zoning to the West is undeveloped land that is R-6 and undeveloped

land that is zoned R-8. The property abuts Loomis Road to the north.
While the subject site is directly abutting residential zoning, they are
undeveloped land and the nearest residential structure is approximately
800 feet from the property. In staffs opinion, the proposed fitness
facility is compatible with the use and development of surrounding
properties.

4. Adequate Public The proposed development is currently served by public water supply
Facilities. and sanitary sewer service as depicted on the site utility plan (sheet C-

8). Caty Development staffrecommends that the applicant must obtan
approval from the Engmneerng Department for gradmng, stormwater
management, utlties and erosion control, prior to any land
disturbance actvty.

Refuse disposal: The approved site plan depicts a trash dumpster with
a trash enclosure that meets the requirements of UDO §15-3.08031
Trash Dumpsters and Garbage Receptacles.

5. No Traffic The proposed special use abuts a major parking lot that has the required
Congestion. parking for the use.

6. No Destruction of The applicant is not proposing any exterior changes to any natural
Significant resources on the site.
Features.

7. Compliance with The proposed development complies with the standards of the PDD 16,
Standards. Franklin Centre, as well as off-street parking, queumg, landscaping,

exterior lighting, architectural standards and snow storage
requirements.

2



I Summary of I Staff's Finding
Standard

The applicant has submitted a substantially complete application for a special use permit,
allowing for Section $ 15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance sets out the
General Standards for Special Uses. City Development staff does not anticipate adverse
impacts to adjacent properties.

SITE COMPLIANCE

A site visit was conducted as part of the City Development Staff's review. No site compliance
issues were found.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

City Development staff recommends approval of this special use request for a physical fitness
facility, under SIC Code 7991 "Physical Fitness Facilities", which is a special use in PDD District
16, Franklin Centre.

3



Legal Description

Lot 2 of Cert1f1ed Survey Map No. 8385, being a part of the Northeast¼ of the Northeast ¼ of Section 9,
Township 5 North, Range 21 East



APPLICATION DATE:

Planning Department gs STAMP DATE: cityuse only
9229 West Loomis Road FranklinFranklin, Wisconsin 53132

(414) 425-4024 I ·4 w I s C 0 N s I Nfranklinwi.gov

COMMON COUNCIL REVIEW APPLICATION
PROJECT INFORMATION [print legibly]

APPLICANT [FULL LEGAL NAMES] APPLICANT IS REPRESENTED BY [CONTACT PERSON]

NAME: Ryan Hansen NAME: Laura Lewallen

COMPANY: Black Duck Partners COMPANY: pb2 architecture + engineering

MAILING ADDRESS: 55 Jewelers Park Drive, Sulla 500 MAILING ADDRESS: 4886 WPauline Whitaker Parkway, Suite 200

CITY/STATE: Neenah, WI ZIP: 54956 CITY/STATE: Rogers, AR ZIP: 72758

PHONE: 262-812-9051 PHONE: 479.877.1655

EMAIL ADDRESS: ryan.hansen@black.duckparlners.com EMAIL ADDRESS: laura.lewallen@pb2ae.com

PROJECT PROPERTY INFORMATION

PROPERTYADDRESS: 7199 S 76th Street, Franklin, WI 53132 TAX KEY NUMBER: 7551002000

PROPERTYOWNER: Franklin Station LLC PHONE: 513-746-2636

MAILING ADDRESS: 11501 Northlake Drive EMAIL ADDRESS:
aschrage@phillipsedison.com

CITY/STATE: Cincinnati, OH ZIP: 45249 DATEOF COMPLETION: office use only

APPLICATION TYPE

Please check the application type that you are applying for

□Concept Review D Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment D Planned Development District D Rezoning

Special Use/ Special Use Amendment D Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment

Most requests require Plan Commission review and Common Council approval.
Applicant Is responsible for providing Plan Commission resubmlttal materials up to 12 copies pending staff request and comments.

SIGNATURES
The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that: (1) all statements and other Information submitted as part of this application are true and correct to the best
of applicant's and property owner(s)' knowledge; (2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand ail Information in this application; and (3) the
appllcant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them In this Application and Its submittal, and any subsequently Issued
building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice If there Is a breach of such representation(s) or any conditlon(s) of approval. By execution of
this application, the property owner(s) authorize the City of Franklln and/or Its agents to enter upon the subject property(les) between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00
p.m. dailyfor the purpose of Inspection while the application Is under review. The properly owner(s) grant this authorization even If the properly has been posted against
trespassing pursuant to Wis. Stat. §943.13.
(The applicant's signaturemust befrom a Managing Member if the business is an LLC, orfrom the President or Vice President if the business ls a corporation. A signed
applicant's authorization lettermaybeprovided In lieu of the applicant's signature below, and a signedpropertyowner's authorization lettermaybeprovided In lieu
of the property owner's slgnature[s] below, Ifmore than one, all of the owners of the propertymust sign this Application).

, the applicant, certify that I have read the following page detailing the requirements for plan commission and common council approval and
submittals and understand that incomplete applications and submittals cannot be reviewed.

PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE: 32.a947ea4, '»n1At

#
NAME & TITLE: Thomas Meyers - VP v DATE: 08/28/2024 AM &TE }Michael Dob/nio- owner DATE: 08/28/2024
PROPERTYOWNER SIGNATURE: APPLICANT REPe::::RESENTAT/~~

.-e --" 2-

NAME & TITLE: DATE: NAME & TITLE: r DATE:
Killian McKenzie- Lead DovelopmonlManager 08/28/2024



CITY OF FRANKLIN APPLICATION CHECKLIST
If you have questions about the application materials please contact the planning department

CONCEPT REVIEW APPLICATION MATERIALS
□ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details).
D $250Application fee payable to the City of Franklin.
□ Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to Include ..

□ Three (3) project narratives
D Three (3) copies of the Preliminary Site/Development Plan of the subject property(ies) and immediate surroundings on 8M" X 11or 11X

17paper (l.e., a scaledmap Identifying thesubjectproperty andImmediateenvirons, Includingexisting andproposedparcels, existing andproposed
structures, existing andproposedlanduses, existing andproposedzoning, existing andproposedinfrastructure andutilities[approximate locations only],
and existing andproposedsite conditions/site constraints [l.e approximate locations ofpublic roadaccess, rights-of-way, natural resources/green space
anddrainage Issues/concerns, etc ))

□ Three (3) colored copies of building elevations on 11X17paper Ifapplicable
D Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials.

COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN AMENDMENTAPPLICATION MATERIALS
□ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details).
□ $125 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin.
□ Word Document legal description of the subject property.
D Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to Include ..

□ Three (3) project narratives.
D Three (3) folded copies of a Site Development Plan / Map, drawn to reasonable scale, at least 11"X17paper or as determinedby the City Planner

or City Engineer, Identifying thesubjectproperty and Immediate environs, Includingparcels, structures, fonduse, zoning, streets and ut/1/t/es, and natural
resourcefeatures, as applicable.

□ Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials.
□ Additional information as may be required.

• Requires a Class I Public Hearing Notice at least 30 days before the Common Council Meeting

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (PDD)
□ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details)
□ Application fee payable to the City of Franklin ... [select one of the following)

D $6,000: New PDD
D $3,500: PDD Major Amendment
D $500: PDD Minor Amendment

D Word Document legal description of the subject property.
D Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include ...

D Three (3) project narratives.
Three (3) folded full size, of the Site Plan Package, drawn to scale coples, on 24x36" paper, including Bullding Elevations, Landscape Plan, Outdoor

Lighting Plan, Natural Resource Protection Plan, Natural Resource Protection Report, etc. (SeeSections 15-7.0101, 15-7.0301, and15-5.0402 ofthe UDOfor
Information thatmustbe denotedor Includedwith each respectiveplan.)

[ One (1) colored copy of the building elevatlons on 11"X 17paper, lfapplicable
D One (1) copy of the Site Intensity and Capacity Calculatlons, fapplicable (see dvlslon 15-3 0500ofthe UDO)
D Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials.

• POD and Major POD Amendment requests require Plan Commission review, a public hearing, and Common Council approval.
• Minor POD Amendment requests require Plan Commission review and Common Council approval

REZONING
□ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details),
□ Application fee payable to the City of Franklin ... [select one of the following]

J$1,250
D $350: one parcel residential.

D Word Document legal description of the subject property,
D Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to Include ••

DJ Three (3) project narratives.
D Three (3) folded copies of a Plot Plan or Site Plan, drawn to reasonable scale, at least11"X 17" paper or as determined by the City Planner

or Clty Engineer, andfully dimensionedshowing the area proposed to be rezoned, its location, Its dimensions, the location and classification ofadjacent
zoning districts, and the location andexisting useofallproperties within 200feet ofthe areaproposed to be rezoned.

D Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials.
□ Additional Information as may be required.

• Additional notice to and approval required for amendments or rezoning In the FW, FC, FFO, and SW Districts
• Requires a Class II Public Hearing notice at Plan Commission.



SPECIAL USE/SPECIAL USE AMENDMENTAPPLICATION MATERIALS
l!!I This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details).
l!!!I Application fee payable to the City of Franklin ... [select one of the following]

□ $1,500: New Special Use> 4000 square feet.
□ $1,000: Special Use Amendment.
□ $750: New Special Use < 4000 square feet.

Word Document legal description of the subject property.
One copy of a response to the General Standards, Special Standards, and Considerations found In Section 15-3.0701(4), (B), and (C) of the UDO available
at www.franklinwl.gov.
□ Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to Include ...

□ Three (3) project narratives.
Three (3) folded copies of the Site Plan package, drawn to scale at least 24 X 36", The submittalshould Include only those plans/Items as set
forth in Section 15-7.0101, 15-7.0301 and 15-5.0402 of the UDO that are impacted by the development. (e.g., Site Plan, Building Elevations, Landscape
Plan, OutdoorLighting Plan, NaturalResource Protection Plan, NaturalResource Protection Report, etc.

□ One (1) colored copy of the building elevations on 11"X17"paper, Ifapplicable.
Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials.

□ Additional information as may be required.

• Special Use/Special Use Amendment requests require Plan Commission review, a Public Hearing and Common Council approval .

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (UDO) TEXT AMENDMENTAPPLICATION MATERIALS
□ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details).
□ $200 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin.
□ Three (3) project narratives, Including description of the proposed text amendment.

• Requires a Class II Public Hearing notice at Plan Commission .. The City's Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) is available at www.franklinwl.gov.



DIVISION 15-3.0700

SECTION 15-3.0701

SPECIAL USE STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS

GENERAL STANDARDS FOR SPECIAL USES

A. General Standards. No special use permit shall be recommended or granted pursuant to
this Ordinance unless the applicant shall establish the following:

1. Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent. The proposed use and
development will be in harmony with the general and specific purposes for which this Ordinance
was enacted and for which the regulations of the zoning district in question were established
and with the general purpose and intent of the City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan or
element thereof.

Response:6Z8 vipvta6av-, «6
2. No Undue Adverse Impact. The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue

adverse or detrimental effect upon or endanger adjacent property, the character of the area, or the
public health, safety, morals, comfort, and general welfare and not substantially diminish and impair
property values within the community or neighborhood.2. / y•Le.«&
Response; l-<er+t,-t 1 ''

3. No Interference with Surrounding Development. The proposed use and development will be
constructed, arranged, and operated so as not to dominate the immediate vicinity or to interfere
with the use and development of neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning
district regulations.

Response:~,h ,;,, &,>G~}/'Av<-·

4. Adequate Public Facilities. The proposed use and development will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services such as streets, public utilities including
public water supply system and sanitary sewer, police and fire protection, refuse disposal, public
parks, libraries, schools, and other public facilities and utilities or the applicant will provide
adequately for such facilities.

erii.l .of
5. No Traffic Congestion. The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic

congestion nor draw significant amounts of traffic through residential streets. Adequate
measures will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize traffic
congestion in the public streets.

«nont14l2 •rt
Page 11



6. No Destruction of Significant Features. The proposed use and development will not result in
the destruction, loss, or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of significant
importance.

««corns ,•alls9«
7. Compliance with Standards. The special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the

applicable regulations of the district in which it is located, except as such regulations may,
in each instance, be modified by the Common Council pursuant to the recommendations of the
Plan Commission. The proposed use and development shall comply with all additional
standards imposed on it by the particular provision of this Division and Ordinance authorizing
such use.

Roose5. ,e4/la.
B. Special Standards for Specified Special Uses. When the zoning district regulations authorize

a special use in a particular zoning district and that special use is indicated as having special
standards, as set forth in Section 15-3.0702 and 15-3.0703 of this Division, a Special Use
Permit for such use in such zoning district shall not be recommended or granted unless the
applicant shall establish compliance with all such special standards.

Response:

C. Considerations. In determining whether the applicant's evidence establishes that the foregoing
standards have been met, the Plan Commission and the Common Council shall consider the
following:

1. Public Benefit. Whether and to what extent the proposed use and development at the particular
location requested is necessary or desirable to provide a service or a facility that is in the interest
of the public convenience or that will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or
community.

Resosn«kf6 vdz.
2. Alternative Locations. Whether and to what extent such public goals can be met by the location

of the proposed use and development at some other site or in some other area that may be more
appropriate than the proposed e .4
Resos l,l ml;atept

3. Mitigation of Adverse Impacts. Whether and to what extent all steps possible have been taken
to minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use and development on the immediate vicinity
through building design, site design, landscaping, and screening.

Page I 2



Response:

4. Establishment of Precedent of Incompatible Uses in the Surrounding Area. Whether the
use will establish a precedent of, or encourage, more intensive or incompatible uses in the
surrounding area.

Resos: /, ·la»dll ona=5l/- tea 1

Page I 3



City of Franklin
Department of City Development

Date:
To:
From:
RE:

September I 7, 2024
Laura Lewallen, pb2 architecture + engineering
Department of City Development Staff
Special Use - Planet Fitness - Staff Comments

Department comments are as follows for the special use application for a Planet Fitness
physical fitness facility submitted by Black Duck Partners and date stamped by the City
of Franklin on August 30, 2024.

Department of Citv Development Staff Comments

l. This application is currently scheduled for the 10/17 Plan Commission meeting at
6:00 PM in the Council Chambers. If approved at that meeting, it will be on the
November 6 Common Council Meeting.

2. Please submit 11 copies of the application materials to the Department of City
Development by 4:30 PM, Monday, October 7, 2024.

3. Any proposed signage will require a Sign Permit with our department. You can
find the sign permit application at this website: Permit Applications (franklinwi.gov)

Health Department Comments
l. Project summary states there will be a spa onsite. Prior to construction, plan

review must be conducted by DSPS for the spa and associated filtration system.
FHD will license and inspect the facility following DSPS approval and
inspections. Application for license must be submitted to FHD prior to licensing
and a pre-inspection will be conducted.

Fire Department Comments

I. Follow all relevant WI DSPS and IBC code requirements for fire protection
systems for given occupancy, use, and construction types.

2. Pre-existing fire alarm and fire sprinkler systems shall be maintained in
compliance with relevant code.

3. Fire Extinguisher placement as per NFPA I 0.

4. At no time may any Hazardous, Combustible, or Flammable Materials exceed
allowable quantities.

5. Master Key set required for placement in Knox Box.



6. Permitting and submittal instructions for fire protection system review and
inspection can be found at: https://www.franklinwi.gov/Departments/Fire.htm

2



4886 W. Pauline Whitaker Parkway
Suite 200
Rogers, Arkansas 72758
Phone: 479.636.3545

+engineering

August 29, 2024

City of Franklin Planning & Development
Planning Division
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

RE: Planet Fitness
7199 S76th Street
Franklin, WI 53132

To Whom It May Concern:

Planet Fitness has over 2,500 locations nationwide. Black Duck Partners owns and operates 128 locations. They
started in Wisconsin and grew to have locations all around the country (WI, IL, TX, NY, SC, GA, NE, IA, CAN, NV,
AZ). They currently have over 20 locations in the Milwaukee area.

Planet Fitness operates 24/7 and fully staffed during business hours with 10-15 employees. Cameras are installed
intermittently around the main gym floor, entrance doors, and overlooking the parking lot.

Sincerely,

Laura Lewallen, permit coordinator
pb2 architecture + engineering



4886 W. Pauline Whitaker Parkway
Suite 200
Rogers, Arkansas 72758
Phone: 479 .636.3545

+engineering

August 30, 2024

City of Franklin Planning & Development
Planning Division
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

RE: Project Narrative
Planet Fitness
7199 S 76th Street
Franklin, WI53132

To Whom It May Concern:

The proposed Planet Fitness remodel will be a full interior remodel and retrofit for a fitness center including the
creation of locker rooms and spa facilities. Much of the space will include workout rooms with powered and
non-powered fitness equipment. The square footage of the tenant space will not change.

There will be no changes to the parking lot or access to the entry. The entrance doors and storefront will be
updated with new swinging doors. New exterior facade signage will be added.

Sincerely,

Laura Lewallen, permit coordinator
pb2 architecture + engineering



z
&

>-z
f:r
0u
od
z
0
(I)aw
(I)
0.:;
..J
5•

>--..., U .D
QJ QJ

Uµ a QJ:::, :::, C0 u 3C u
V) 0 0 0 0QJ u -;;;·;:; u V) □□I.. "' ,,,, C..., QJ .D

C Q. 0 .!:: 0 cie 0 .:,L g I- C ·;:; uI.. C C "':::, a. C ·;;; "' 6 "' ± -;;; 6g "' C u I- s ...,QJ ca 0 I..
QJ "' C QJV) ..& QJ u .:,L V)

QJ
Q. .r: QJ Q. "' QJ a(l) V) "' u I.. V) .r:a:: I.. I.. V) C QJ QJ I.. ..., > "' V) 9 (l) 0 :::,5 0 (l) 3 "' C > "' ...,

.9- ta uI- C .r: ,,,, ca ..., "' .:,L "' :::,
·"'

(l) ..., a:: -;;; uN ca ca V) G :::,z 0 (l) V) "' i..i: V) I.. >-- u Q. 0 >--.!:: >- V) I.. "' >-- Ge z I .!:: I..<( QJ ca -5 e 0 ..., _c "' ca >-- (l) u ..., "' 32 0 t.: ..., d.r: 32 E (l) .:,L ·c uz ..., C 0 I..
.:,L .r: (l) ·;;; C 0 ..., "' 3 ·;:; "' "' C 0 0 UC u I.. 0 u C .:,L u QJ .D C N (l) -S CLU "' 0 "' C "' u G (l) 0 E I.. Q. "' N "' .r: (j z ..9,!"' I.. "' ..., 0 (l) :::, I.. :::,I- a. u.. I- z V) ....I ( c::: ii: I 0 I V) ....I I.,'.) V) 0 N ii: u.. I- w .D O 0V) I.,'.) d QJ ca

LU ....I w 'iii V)
QJ

~ ....I "'u ( (n '<I" LJ") o ,.._ > QJ ...,
~

U O "O U "O U U O LJ") ,.._
LJ") O ,.._

LJ") O ( LJ") w <( ....I 5"' d "' "' "' "' "' O 0 0 (I ({ ( '<I" '<I" '<I" LJ") LJ") LJ") 0 t:.r: .r: .r: .r: .r: .r: .r: (4 (I (I (I (I (I (I ( ( (I (I ( (I DiV) V) V) V) V) V) V) V) ,.._ ,.._ ,.._ ,.._ ,.._ ,.._ ,.._ ,.._ ,.._ ,.._ ,.._ ,.._ ,.._ ,.._ I- V)

ti u.. u.. u.. u.. u.. u.. u.. u.. u.. u.. u.. u.. u.. u.. OJV) V) V) V) V) V) V) V) V) V) V) V) V) V) O

o ( 0 0 0 O ,.._ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
O 0 O (I O 0 0 OJ 0 OJ 0 ( 0 ci

V) (n o mo OJ ( OJ N. '"'!. 0 '"'!. 0 0 0 (co ( LJ") ...,; st' r-i r-i r-i r-i
V),.._
'-
QJ
.r:...,
0

,, ,. ...,, .....
,, ,, ',,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

I
I
I

'I
I
I

'I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

'''''''\
''>-A
~ '
0 '3
0 '
ID '!
iii '' ' ''



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

11/06/24

REPORTS & Resolution to amend Resolution No. 2022-7873
imposing conditions and restrictions for the

RECOMMENDATIONS approval of a Special Use for a condominium
complex development use upon property

located at 9524 S. Sophia Court

(Stephen R. Mills, Loomis & Ryan, Inc.,
applicant, Home Path Financial Limited

Partnership, property owner)

ITEM NUMBER

Aid. Dist. #6

At its October 17, 2024, regular meeting, the Plan Commission heard this item and
didn't provide a recommendation. A motion to recommend approval failed, the vote
was 3-1-2, three 'ayes', one 'no' and two absences.

City Development staff recommends approval of the resolution dated October 25,
2024, which includes the following condition: The applicant must record the proposed
sidewalk easement depicted on plan sheet C-15 dated April 9, 2024 (condition no. 4).
Staff recommended denial of a previous version of this resolution without said
condition as noted in the attached staff report.

Fiscal impact: no expenditures of city's funds is anticipated to adopt this resolution at
this time. However, if this resolution is adopted, the applicant is not required to install
pedestrian facilities on the south side ofRyan Road.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution No. 2024-__, to amend Resolution No. 2022-7873
imposing conditions and restrictions for the approval of a Special Use for a
condominium complex development use upon property located at 9524 S. Sophia
Court (Stephen R. Mills, Loomis & Ryan, Inc., applicant, Home Path Financial
Limited Partnership, property owner)

Department of City Development: RM



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2024---

MIL WAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft I0-25-24]

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND RESOLUTION NO. 2022-7873 IMPOSING
CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR
A CONDOMINIUM COMPLEX DEVELOPMENT USE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED

AT 9524 S. SOPHIA COURT
(STEPHEN R. MILLS, LOOMIS & RYAN, INC.,

APPLICANT, HOME PATH FINANCIAL LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, PROPERTY
OWNER)

WHEREAS, Stephen R. Mills, Loomis & Ryan, Inc. having petitioned the City of
Franklin for the approval of an amendment to Resolution No. 2022-7873, to allow for the
development of a condominium complex ("Woodfield Trail), property located at 9524 S.
Sophia Court, bearing Tax Key No. 891-9054-000, more particularly described as follows:

Condominium Plat of Woodfield Trail, a Condominium. Being a part of the
Southwest¼ of the Northwest¼ of the Northwest¼ of Section 30, Township
5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.; and

WHEREAS, such proposed amendment is to remove condition of approval No. 6
which states that: "The sidewalk or multi-use trail on the south side of Ryan Road, between
the future Woodfield Court and the east boundary of this development, should be included in
the development agreement"; and

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of §15-9.0103D. of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan
Commission on the 3rd day of October, 2024, and the Plan Commission thereafter
having entertained a motion to approve a resolution to approve the special use and the
motion having failed, and the Common Council having considered the facts of the proposed
development, and having determined that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to
certain conditions, and the Common Council further finding that the proposed Special Use
upon such conditions, pursuant to § I 5-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will
be in harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the
Comprehensive Master Plan; that it will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining
property; that it will not interfere with the development of neighboring property; that it will
be served adequately by essential public facilities and services; that it will not cause undue
traffic congestion; and that it will not result in damage to property of significant importance
to nature, history or the like; and



WOODFIELD TRAIL CONDOMINIUMS -- SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT
RESOLUTION NO. 2024---
Page 2

WHEREAS, the Common Council having found that the proposed Special Use
amendment, subject to conditions, meets the standards set forth under $15-3.0701 of the
Unified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Stephen R. Mills, Loomis & Ryan, Inc.,
to remove condition of approval No. 6 of Resolution No. 2022-7873, which states that: "The
sidewalk or multi-use trail on the south side of Ryan Road, between the future Woodfield
Court and the east boundary of this development, should be included in the development
agreement", be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and
restrictions:

1. That this Special Use amendment is approved only for the use of the subject property
by Stephen R. Mills, Loomis & Ryan, Inc., successors and assigns, as a condominium
complex development use, which shall be developed in substantial compliance with,
and operated and maintained by Stephen R. Mills, Loomis & Ryan, Inc., pursuant to
those plans dated September 25, 2023 and annexed hereto and incorporated herein as
Exhibit A.

2. Stephen R. Mills, Loomis & Ryan, Inc., successors and assigns, shall pay to the City
of Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees
incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for
the Stephen R. Mills, Loomis & Ryan, Inc. condominium complex development,
within 30 days of invoice for same. Any violation of this provision shall be a
violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to § 15-9.0502 thereof
and § 1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as
amended from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Stephen R. Mills, Loomis &
Ryan, Inc., and the condominium complex development use, for the property located
at 12000 West Loomis Road: (i) being in compliance with all applicable
governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all
other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and
applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this approval.

4. The applicant must record the proposed sidewalk easement depicted on plan sheet C-
15 dated April 9, 2024.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Stephen R. Mills, Loomis & Ryan,
Inc., successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply with one or
any of the conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution, following a ten (10) day
notice to cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the Common Council, upon
notice and hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution.



WOODFIELD TRAIL CONDOMINIUMS - SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT
RESOLUTION NO. 2024---
Page 3

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or
restriction of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to § 15-9.0502 thereof and $1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than
$2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as
may be specified therein from time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a
separate violation. Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of
that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be an
amendment to such Special Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9.0103 of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and that all of the terms and conditions of 2022-7873, not
specifically and expressly amended by or in direct conflict with this Resolution, shall remain
in full force and effect.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to §15-9.0103G. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall
be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution,
unless the Special Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit
for such use

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day Of?2024.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



Exhibit A

I
I

_____J

I

\
\
\
(
\

7
,f--,

I
\
\

'-

\
\

\

\
\

/

/

I
I
\

I .'A.I II
3 3!3
8 zi z~ ►~• ti~ r
i m
i mz

"'I~A
I~
io
& ;;;

ls ►'..:
~

4 "'~;;:
lij ::;

:!!

~z 5)>z 0
3 0
~

C
'11
1-1

"Tl m
i r

C

" -Ir:; Zz
$ \... r \
VIw
I"'
w
N

Ill

1
'O>z
0<mz...
i

I FEt

mIm;
1111 s

SITE PLAN OVERVIEW FOR CONSTRUCTION .i,. w•Nw pinnacle engr com



Date:

To:

From:

RE:

MEMORANDUM

October 9, 2024

Plan Commission

Department of City Development
Regulo Martinez-Montilva, Planning Manger

Woodfield Trail, request to remove condition requiring sidewalk or trail
Loomis & Ryan Inc. Special Use Amendment - 9524 S. Sophia Court

Item E.4.

Since Planning and Engineering staff didn't agree with the design submitted by the applicant, this item is
presented again for consideration of the Plan Commission in accordance with the motion below.

The Plan Commission held a public hearing for this project on October 3, 2024, and carried a motion to
recommend approval of a Resolution to remove condition No. 6 of Resolution No. 2022-7873 if the
applicant submits a proposalfor placement of this trail within the right-ofway, and the Engineering
Department and Planning Department agree, then it would moveforward to the Common Council; but
ifEngineering or Planning disagree it would come back to the Plan Commission.

The applicant submitted the attached plans dated April 9, 2024, which depict a proposed 5-foot wide
sidewalk and easement. Planning Manager Martinez met with City Engineer Paulos and concluded that
the proposed design doesn't meet the recommendation of a IO-foot trail set forth in the Ryan Creek
Master Plan as shown below:

PRIMARY TRAIL DESIGN

iz 

TRAIL CROSSING TYPES

OTHER TRAIL FEATURES



a? «:;
. ··~,..

r,v... +

Ryan Creek Pedestrian/Bicycle Trail Master Plan prepared by Graef and city staff
Trail design recommendations, page 14

Additionally, the trail segment in question is identified in this plan as a Primary Trail Option:

,. :
I i ' .: =:

Legend

E.,i\1inpi1.1,I

T rililS
?riir.~r/ Tr:i.l Oo:ion

_f

•m•m• I
I-1

C,w,n:ru1><:r,l,.!Cord•~~•

t=1\

'~Franklin

Primary Paths, page 14
RYAN CREEK PEDESTRIAN/BICYCLE TRAIL MASTER PLAN

The full Ryan Creek Pedestrian/Bicycle Trail Master Plan is available in the electronic meeting packet.



WO) JOUcl apeuu1d MMM i- NOIDmU.SNO:> HO:I N'lfld lO}IJ.NO:> NOIS0lf3

' '·"w, ~- ''z;lil :J "·Ih :c " "3 (..) '±i t-e <u ::e4

.....---,=
ff:zr-trHVIJ1Wl1

9gs9

..-- -...-fl:W



WO) J5Llcl c>peuu1d MMM l"' NOu;>OlU.SNO::> llO;f S1HfJ.30 NOIJ.:>3Sll3.1NI

.5

I
I
f. C
I

7's I
• I

l
I
l,
I,,
t
i.i

f ft,
• I

/
I
I•

Ii
! I
! I• I

I

I
I

>- I
~ I
, I

' I

}
' . I

hh

I
I
l
I
I_·,
,I
. I

I
I
I
I

q
I
I
I

I I
I
I
I
I

! I
I)p
I
I
I
I

Ii
I
I
I
I

h I.It
....,._.v_

...,..-----,
tr-Zr-1r Jl'nJ lWJS

peg

---a go9w

illl

j
! ~ 111rmr

1111
/444

z
06!!!
1M ~
ei:: w
}! o
z....

N
M....
M
11'1

...J
....

1-1 s:
5 z....

..JI- >
C z
...J $w LL
1-1 oL.
C <00 ci::
0 z:: c(

~
~
II)
ws:



Franklin
w 1 S CO N S I N

CITY OF FRANKLIN

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of October 3, 2024

Special Use Amendment

Item C.3.

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends denial of this Special Use amendment
to remove condition of approval #6 of Resolution No 2022-7873, requiring a sidewalk or trail along the
frontage of the subject site, because this request is not consistent with the Comprehensive Master Plan
and the Ryan Creek Pedestrian/Bicycle Trail Master Plan.

Project name:

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Property Address/TKN:

Aldermanic District:

Zoning District:

Staff Planner:

Submittal date:

Application number:

Woodfield Trail, removal of condition requiring sidewalk or trail

Home Path Financial Limited Partnership

S.R. Mills. Loomis & Ryan, Inc.

9524 S. Sophia Court/ 891 9054 000

District 6

R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District

Regulo Martinez-Montilva, AICP, CNUa, Planning Manager

07-09-2024 (deemed complete on 08-12-2024)

PPZ24-0146

Project Description/Analysis
The Common Council granted a Special Use permit for the Woodfield Trail residential development on
June 9, 2022, by Resolution No. 2022-7873. This resolution includes condition of approval #6 which
states that: "The sidewalk or multi-use trail on the south side of Ryan Road, between the future
Woodfield Court and the east boundary of this development, should be included in the development
agreement".

The applicant is requesting to remove this condition of approval for the reasons outlined in the project
narrative.

Consistency with the Comprehensive Master Plan and other adopted city policies
During the review of the Special Use permit granted in 2022, City Development staff stated that: "Based
on the Comprehensive Master Plan, Map 7.4 Bicycle and Pedestrian Circulation Facilities. City
Development staff recommends the installation of a pedestrian path per City of Franklin specifications
on the south side of Ryan Road. The applicant is working with Engineering Department on the location
of this pedestrian facility, location within the right-of-way is preferred, or within an easement on private
property as a second option. This pedestrian path should be included in the developer's agreement" (Staff
report for June 9, 2022, Plan Commission meeting).



~ Cicy of Frdnklir,_.,

RASmith National-~,,.,,,..._____,

Bkycle and Pedestrian
Circulation Facilities

hht1t'I( Dfrydefhok!lrhl'>rnllllr
.,,.W.S'Jllit

- gr.srr
r1.1t1,11•~t)O,rr.0ir111hnfK1litr

•••·~·SlPCIT
·°Gr3art

Bicycle and Pedestrian Circulation Facilities, Map 7.4 of Comprehensive Master Plan
Note the subject site (star) and on-street bicycle/pedestrian facility planned along Ryan Road

Legend
Tr.al»
,,,.._, T,.10¢,cn
J,,r.o, ,;;tn, TnilCp ll,n

ttyPayIr3tu
u .. 1:r1-,.1,,..o,»,
COA:PMat-.J"M Ira&
Llllth9Ttlll
Ubtn!JSl,cwmotu~•

2
~U!)ll e, 0. t(IWU A
ups

luolHud D,_

Oound,,:n
~o)a(t:.,u c=:::,
~~ i::::::::]

N... tur1',lf,i,11t.u1u

tnrironl"O\t!\I~
l~t110NJ.t.:ratRffeuO.VU

RYAN CREEK PEDESTR IAN/BICYCLE TRAIL MASTER PLJ\N

Trail route recommendations, Ryan Creek Pedestrian/Bicycle Trail Master Plan
The subject site is labeled as "4", note the recommended trail route adjacent to the subject site

2

GREF



In addition to the Comprehensive Master Plan, such trail route is also depicted in the Ryan Creek
Pedestrian/Bicycle Trail Master Plan (adopted by the Common Council on June 21, 2022).

Compliance with the Unified Development Ordinance
Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Section 15-8.0109 Bicycle Paths and Trails,
"The Subdivider or Condominium Developer shall install required bicycle paths and trails in accordance
with the plans and specifications, including the City Engineer's "Standards and Specifications for
Development," approved by the City". Staff recommended this condition requiring a sidewalk or trail
based on plans approved by the city, such as the Comprehensive Master Plan. The Ryan Creed Trail
Master Plan was adopted shortly after the Special Use permit approval, but this plan doesn't contradict
said condition.

Compatibility with adjacent development
Staff acknowledges that pedestrian facilities were not required as conditions of approval for Certified
Survey Map (CSM) No. 9050 and other CSM approved this year (Resolution 2024-8152). On the other
hand, such pedestrian facilities were required for the Cape Crossing subdivision (Res. No. 2022-7839) .

• t+ GZB&«'Ls/u»
Cape Crossing

Pedestrianfacilities required
I

-.y id

Requirement of pedestrian facilities along Ryan Road as condition of approval for adjacent
developments.
Prepared by City Development staff.

3



<Kl',; ..!f,,7;:.,.. ·IJJ :At i ,,'-6,,..,! .T"' ..:t: .;""""'":1· ~ · r ' ,1-~""'"" ,.ff:;,~ ,• pQ_rO I 'M,fl'~1 ' "-\ . ■ ••.., -.. .... flfm_ - __:._C"';: R

':+i
~
#o.I

.."■IE:IU,.ICl:IIT'

2
...
eFer.•. . ~~r!t!!P-

, ..

r, ,
•. -,\"flJ,I,' !' '.UW~ , p.._,.IJ•

t

Pedestrian facilities at Cape Crossing subdivision
Photographs by City Development staff

Approximate location of the trail segment in question
Photograph by City Development staff

City departments' comments
4



City Development staff routed this application to other city departments, comments below:

Engineering Department
Engineering has no comment.

Fire Department
No FD comments.

Inspection Services Department
Inspection Services has no comments on the proposal at this time.

Police Department
The PD has no comments or concerns.

StaffRecommendation
City Development Staff recommends denial of this Special Use amendment to remove condition of
approval #6 of Resolution No 2022-7873, requiring a sidewalk or trail along the frontage of the subject
site, because this request is not consistent with the Comprehensive Master Plan and the Ryan Creek
Pedestrian/Bicycle Trail Master Plan.

5



Cl'8"
Franklin..

WISCONSIN

9524 S. Sophia Court
TKN 891 9054 000

-r-·"77 

I
«

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 212.5 425 850 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering.
or surveying purposes.



gs
Franklin
f

WISCONSIN

9524 S. Sophia Court
TKN 891 9054 000

Property

1

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 212.5 425 850 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared bya professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and maynot be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2024

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 09-23-24]

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND RESOLUTION NO. 2022-7873 IMPOSING
CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR
A CONDOMINIUM COMPLEX DEVELOPMENT USE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED

AT 9524 S. SOPHIA COURT
(STEPHEN R. MILLS, LOOMIS & RYAN, INC.,

APPLICANT, HOME PATH FINANCIAL LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, PROPERTY
OWNER)

WHEREAS, Stephen R. Mills, Loomis & Ryan, Inc. having petitioned the City of
Franklin for the approval of an amendment to Resolution No. 2022-7873, to allow for the
development of a condominium complex ("Woodfield Trail), property located at 9524 S.
Sophia Court, bearing Tax Key No. 891-9054-000, more particularly described as follows:

Condominium Plat of Woodfield Trail, a Condominium. Being a part of the
Southwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 30, Township
5 North, Range 21 East, City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.; and

WHEREAS, such proposed amendment is to remove condition of approval No. 6
which states that: "The sidewalk or multi-use trail on the south side of Ryan Road, between
the future Woodfield Court and the east boundary of this development, should be included in
the development agreement"; and

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of $15-9.0103D. of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan
Commission on the __th day of,2024, and the Plan Commission
thereafter having determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use amendment be
approved, subject to certain conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding that the
proposed Special Use upon such conditions, pursuant to §15-3.0701 of the Unified
Development Ordinance, will be in harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development
Ordinance and the Comprehensive Master Plan; that it will not have an undue adverse impact
upon adjoining property; that it will not interfere with the development of neighboring
property; that it will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services; that it
will not cause undue traffic congestion; and that it will not result in damage to property of
significant importance to nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use amendment, subject to
conditions, meets the standards set forth under § 15-3.0701 of the Unified Development
Ordinance.



WOODFIELD TRAIL CONDOMINIUMS -- SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-
Page 2

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Stephen R. Mills, Loomis & Ryan, Inc.,
to remove condition of approval No. 6 of Resolution No. 2022-7873_which states that: "The
sidewalk or multi-use trail on the south side of Ryan Road, between the future Woodfield
Court and the east boundary of this development, should be included in the development
agreement", be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and
restrictions:

1. That this Special Use amendment is approved only for the use of the subject property
by Stephen R. Mills, Loomis & Ryan, Inc., successors and assigns, as a condominium
complex development use, which shall be developed in substantial compliance with,
and operated and maintained by Stephen R. Mills, Loomis & Ryan, Inc., pursuant to
those plans dated September 25, 2023 and annexed hereto and incorporated herein as
Exhibit A.

2. Stephen R. Mills, Loomis & Ryan, Inc., successors and assigns, shall pay to the City
of Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees
incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for
the Stephen R. Mills, Loomis & Ryan, Inc. condominium complex development,
within 30 days of invoice for same. Any violation of this provision shall be a
violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof
and § 1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as
amended from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Stephen R. Mills, Loomis &
Ryan, Inc., and the condominium complex development use, for the property located
at 12000 West Loomis Road: (i) being in compliance with all applicable
governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all
other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and
applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this approval.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Stephen R. Mills, Loomis & Ryan,
Inc., successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply with one or
any of the conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution, following a ten (10) day
notice to cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the Common Council, upon
notice and hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or
restriction of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than
$2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as
may be specified therein from time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a



WOODFIELD TRAIL CONDOMINIUMS - SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-
Page 3

separate violation. Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of
that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be an
amendment to such Special Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9.0103 of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and that all of the terms and conditions of 2022-7873, not
specifically and expressly amended by or in direct conflict with this Resolution, shall remain
in full force and effect.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to $15-9.0103G. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall
be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution,
unless the Special Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit
for such use.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day 0f? 2024.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of>2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



Exhibit A

:::}"/
-! _!
j.....L.,
. I ijl

I ii i
1 •
I

;I
j

. i
,I
-/
l

I
j
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

'''''' '' ' ' ' '' ' '-
'-
' '-

'-
'-
'-
'-
'-
'-
'-
'-
'-
'-
'-
'-
'-
'-
'-
'-
'-
'-
'-
'-
'-
'
'-

''\
' ''' '1

' ''' ' ' ' '' ' '-
'-

\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\

CJm
V1
1'iz
CJmr
3,,

I FEt

m
j_filj
1111 ~

SITE PLAN OVERVIEW FOR CONSTRUCTION .,.;, www pinnacle engr com



BER
DEVELOPMENT Providing Creative Real Estate Solutions to Build Better Communities

July 9, 2024

Mr. Regulo Martinez-Montilva
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Re: Special Use Amendment - Woodfield Trail

Dear Mr. Matmez-Montilva:

Please accept this letter and the enclosed materials as a formal request for a Special Use Amendment
for the Woodfield Trail Condominium.

History

The City ofFranklin Plan Commission recommended approval ofa Special Use on June 9, 2022 which
included the following condition:

6. The sidewalk or multi-use trail on the south side ofRyan Road, between the future
Woodfield Court and the east boundary of this development, should be included in the
development agreement.

The City of Franklin Common Council passed and adopted Resolut10n 2022-7873 on June 21, 2022
which included the condition.

• The purpose ofthis condition is unclear as there 1s no existing trail to connect with on the east
side ofthe Woodfield Trail property

• It is possible that the Plan Commission was not aware ofthe obstacles and hardships involved in
constructing a trail in this location.

• The requested trail does not correspond to the approved trailplansfound in the City ofFranklin
Comprehensive Plan or the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan.

Loomis & Ryan, Inc. entered mto a Development Agreement on September 28, 2023. The
Development Agreement was recorded on October 12, 2023.

All design engineering plans forWoodfield Trail were reviewed and approved by City of Franklin.

Loomis & Ryan received all required permits for the construction ofWoodfield Trail. The project was
developed under the supervision ofthe City ofFranklin.

Loomis & Ryan, Inc. sold the finished project to a third party.

\. Phone· 262 694 2327 beardevelopment.com

A BER3 cow
Rat snxr

Q 4011 80street, Kenosha, WI 53142



BER
DEVELOPMENT Providing Creative Real Estate Solutions to Build Better Communities

Request

Loomis & Ryan, Inc., respectfully requests an amendment to the Woodfield Trail Special Use and/or
Development Agreement to remove this condition for the following reasons:

1) The Special Use language is unclear as its states the sidewalk "should be included in the
development agreement". This is not mandatory language.

2) The Woodfield Trail Development Agreement which was approved by the City of Franklin
Common Council includes the following language:

2. Pedestnan

a) The public recreational trails shall be constructed and installed in
accordance with the plans approved by the City Engineer.

b) The edge of the walk shall be at least one (I) foot from either side
ofthe easement.

3.) The approved engmeering plans for Woodfield Trail referenced in the Development
Agreement do not mclude any provisions, plans or specifications for a trail.

4.) There 1s no exstmng trail on the east side of Woodfield Trail for the proposed sidewalk or
multi-use trail to connect with.

5.) The City of Franklin adopted Planning Documents do not call for a trail in this location:

a. Comprehensive Master Plan, Map 7.4 B1cycle and Pedestrian Circulation Facilities
shows an On-Street Trail within W. Ryan Road. This indicates the use of the existing
road for trail connect10ns and would not require a trail to be constructed on or
adjacent to Woodfield Trail. Please see attached.

b. The Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan, Map 7.1 does not show a trail on or
adjacent to Woodfield Trail. Please see attached.

6) There Is no planned or exstmng tral faculty mn the locaton at whch the Cty of Franklin 1s
requesting a trail. Please see attached.

7.) There are recorded easements in favor of Buckeye Partners (high-pressure gas mam) and ATC
(high voltage overhead electric) within the alignment. Both easement holders must grant
permission for encroachment. Buckeye Partners Encroachment guidelines specifically
prohibit sidewalks to cross their faciht1es. Please see attached.

\,. Phone 262 694 2327 beardevelopment com

, BER o»we
tat tsar <

g 4011 80" street, Kenosha, WI 53142



BR
DEVELOPMENT Providing Creative Real Estate Solutions to Build Better Communities

8.) The City of Franklin approved Certified Survey Map No, 9050 in 2018 directly east of the
Woodfield Trail property. The City of Franklin did not require a trail or trail easement for this
land division.

9.) 0n May 21, 2024, the City of Franklin adopted Resolution 2024-8152 which approved a
Certified Survey Map on the south side of W. Ryan Road, 650 feet east of Woodfield Trail. After
much discussion, the City of Franklin Plan Commission and Common Council did not require a
trail or trail easements for this land division.

For all the reasons above, we respectfully request a Special Use Amendment and or Development
Agreement Amendment to remove the implied requirement for trail construction at Woodfield Trail
by Loomis & Ryan, Inc.

We ask that this matter be placed on the next available Plan Commission meeting agenda for
consideration and approval.

Should you have any questions regarding this request, please do not hesitate to contact me. I can be
reached at (262) 949-3788 or by email. dan@beardevelopment.com.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Daniel Szczap
Bear Development, LLC

\., Phone: 262.694.2327 beardevelopment.com

BRR o»we»w
«tut tsar{

g 4011 80" street, Kenosha, WI 53142



General Standards. No special use permit shall be recommended or granted pursuant to this
Ordinance unless the applicant shall establish the following:

1.

Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent The proposed use and development will

be In harmony with the general and specific purposes for which thus Ordinance was enacted and for which

the regulations of the zoning district tn question were established and with the general purpose and intent

of the City of Frankltn Comprehensive Master Plan or element thereof

The proposed amendment is consistent with the City of Franklin Comprehensive Plan and Comprehensive
Outdoor Recreation Plan.

2.
No Undue Adverse Impact The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse

or detrimental effect upon or endanger adJacent property, the character of the area, or the public health,

safety, morals, comfort, and general welfare and not substantially d1m1ntsh and 1mpa1r property values

within the community or neighborhood

The proposed amendment will have no adverse or detrimental impacts on adjacent lands.

The proposed amendment will have no adverse or detrimental impacts on the character of the area

The proposed amendment will have no adverse or detrimental impacts on public health, safety, morals,

comfort and general welfare.

The proposed amendment will not diminish and impair property values within the community or
neighborhood.

3.
No Interference with Surrounding Development The proposed use and development will be constructed,

arranged, and operated so as not to dominate the 1mmed1ate v1cin1ty or to interfere with the use and

development of ne1ghbonng property in accordance with the appltcable zoning district regulations

The proposed amendment will not interfere with adjacent lands or impair their ability to develop in the

future.

4.

Adequate Public Fac1l1t1es The proposed use and development will be served adequately by essential public

facilities and services such as streets, public utilrtes including public water supply system and sanitary

sewer, police and fire protection, refuse disposal, public parks, ltbranes, schools, and other public facil1t1es

and utilities or the applicant will provide adequately for such facilities

The proposed amendment will not affect public facilities.



5.
No Traffic Congestion The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic congestion nor draw

s1gnrf1cant amounts of traffic through res1dent1al streets Adequate measures will be taken to provide

ingress and egress so designed as to min1m1ze traffic congestion in the public streets

The proposed amendment will have no impact on traffic.

6.
No Destruction of Sgnficant Features The proposed use and development will not result in the

destruction, loss, or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of s1gnif1cant importance

The proposed amendment will not impact any of the natural resources on the site.

7.
Compliance with Standards The special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable

regulations of the district in which rt is located, except as such regulations may, mn each instance, be

mod1f1ed by the Common Council pursuant to the recommendations of the Plan Comm1ss1on The proposed

use and development shall comply with all add1t1onal standards imposed on 1t by the particular prov1s1on

of this DwvsIon and Ordinance authonzmng such use

The proposed amendment has no effect on any applicable regulations of the R-8 zoning District.





Document Number

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-7873
IMIalII

T ,:4u9!f701a

DOC # 11266614
RECORDED:

07318/2022 8:51 rt
ISP.AEL P.i4MON

P.EGISTEF.' OF DEEDS
MILMM.EE CCLUNTY, WWI

AMOUNT: 30.00

Recording Area

Name and Return Address

Shirley J. Roberts, Deputy City
Clerk
City of Franklin
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132

891-9011-000
Parcel Identification Number (PIN)

This information must be completed by submitter document btle. name & return address. and PIN (if required) Other infonnation such as
the granting clause, legal description, etc., may be placed on this first page of thedocumentor may be placed on additional pages of the
document
WRDA Rev 12/22/2010



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-7873

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE APPROVAL
OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A CONDOMINIUM COMPLEX DEVELOPMENT USE UPON

PROPERTY LOCATED AT
12000 WEST LOOMIS ROAD

(STEPHEN R. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF BEAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC,
APPLICANT, BOOMTOWN, LLC, PROPERTY OWNER)

WHEREAS, Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC having petitioned
the City of Franklin for the approval of a Special Use in an R-8 Multiple-Family Residence
District, to allow for the development of a condominium complex ("Woodfield Trail"),
consisting of 26 dwelling units arranged in 13 side-by-side duplex structures, property located at
12000 West Loomis Road (15.6 acres), bearing Tax Key No. 891-9011-000 [a Special Use
permit is required in the R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District for all residential uses, either
single-family, two-family or multi-family], more particularly described as follows:

PARCEL 1: A part of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 30, Township 5 North, Range
21 East in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin
bounded and described as follows: Beginning at the 1/8 post of the North line of
said Northwest 1/4 which post is 1325.63 feet West of the Northeast comer of
said Northwest 1/4, thence West on and along said North line of said Northwest
1/4, 223.1 feet to the point in the right ofway of the Milwaukee Electric Railway
and Light Company, thence on and along the line of said right ofway, 260.01 feet
to a point on the arc of the curve of said right of way, said curve being to the
convex Southeasterly center radius of 7877.6 feet and said point in said arc being
on the long chord 260 feet and South 39°21' West from the intersection of said
line of said right of way and the North line of said Northwest 1/4, South 0°17'
East 1094.52 feet to a point in the centerline of the Loomis Road, thence
Northeasterly on a 2° curve along said centerline 463 .83 feet to a point, said point
being on the long chord of 463.52 feet and North 59°29' East from the first
mentioned point on the centerline of the Loomis Road; thence North 0°47' West,
1055.3 feet to the place of beginning. The 24.75 feet along the North line of said
Northwest 1/4 being excepted therefrom and the 45 feet perpendicular to the
center line of the Loomis Road being excepted therefrom further excepting
therefrom that part hereof described in Deed recorded as Document 7391120; and

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the City
of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of §l5-9.0103D. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan Commission on
the 9th day of June, 2022, and the Plan Commission thereafter having determined to recommend
that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to certain conditions, and the Plan
Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use upon such conditions, pursuant to



WOODFIELD TRAIL CONDOMINIUMS - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-7873
Page2

$15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in harmony with the purposes of the
Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive Master Plan; that it will not have an
undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that it will not interfere with the development of
neighboring property; that it will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services;
that it will not cause undue traffic congestion; and that it will not result in damage to property of
significant importance to nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions,
meets the standards set forth under $15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear
Development, LLC, for the approval of a Special Use for the property particularly described in
the preamble to this Resolution, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following
conditions and restrictions:

I. That this Special Use is approved only for the use of the subject property by Stephen R.
Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC, successors and assigns, as a condominium
complex development use, which shall be developed in substantial compliance with, and
operated and maintained by Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC,
pursuant to those plans City file-stamped May 31, 2022 and annexed hereto and
incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

2. Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC, successors and assigns, shall pay
to the City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review
fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin,
for the Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC condominium complex
development, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any violation of this provision shall be
a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to $15-9.0502 thereof and
§ 1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended
from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear
Development, LLC, and the condominium complex development use, for the property
located at 12000 West Loomis Road: (i) being in compliance with all applicable
governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all
other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable
to the project to be developed and as presented for this approval.

4. The applicant must submit a conservation easement for City staff review, Common
Council approval, and recording with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds Office,
prior to the issuance of grading permits.



WOODFIELD TRAIL CONDOMINIUMS - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-7873
Page3

5. The applicant must submit a landscape bufferyard easement for City staff review,
Comm.on Council approval, and recording with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds
Office, prior to the issuance of building permits.

6. The sidewalk or multi-use trail on the south side ofRyan Road, between the future
Woodfield Court and the east boundary of this development, should be included in the
development agreement.

7. This Special Use is not accepting any dedication of land for right-of-way purposes. A
separate instrument, such as Certified Survey Map, shall be required for dedication of
land for right-of-way purposes.

8. Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance Section 15-7.0601, a condominium plat
shall be required for the establishment ofa condominium.

BE IT FURTiffiR RESOLVED, that in the event Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear
Development, LLC, successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply
with one or any of the conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution, following a ten
(10) day notice to cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the Common Council,
upon notice and hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution.

BE IT FURTiffiR RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or restriction of
this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and pursuant to $15-9.0502 thereof and $1-19 of the Municipal Code,
the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than $2,500.00, or such other
maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as may be specified therein from
time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a separate violation. Failure of the
City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such Special
Use Permit as is contemplated by $15-9.0103 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to $15-9.0103G. of the Unified Development
Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall be null and void
upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution, unless the Special
Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit for such use.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain the
recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 21st
day of June, 2022.



WOODFIELD TRAIL CONDOMINIUMS - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-7873
Page4

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this 21st day of June, 2022.

lson, Mayor

ATTEST:

A-?lgtua$Ga L. wso»ion»G,'cs ct

AYES4 NOES0 ABSENT (Ald. Holpfer and Ald. Barber)



Exhibit A

SITE PLAN OVl:RVIEW FORREVIEWONLY

I
I. ,
:l

I

...- www.p1nnacle-engr com



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE
2023-2569, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE
2024 ANNUAL BUDGET FORTHE CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT FUND TO TRANSFER$150,000
OF CONTINGENCYAPPROPRIATIONS TO

HIGHWAYCAPITAL EQUIPMENT
APPROPRIATIONS FORTHE INCREASING
PROJECT COSTS ASSOCIATEDWITH THE
DPW BUILDING EXPANSIONPROJECT

MEETING DATE
November 6, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

Background

On September 3, 2019, Common Council moved to contract with Graef-USA, Inc. to provide the City with a
Phase 1- Needs Analysis and Concept Design on Department of Public Works Facility Improvements. The
Department of Public Works (DPW) currently over-parks equipment within the drive aisles of the existing
DPW building and keeps many other pieces of equipment outside. There was a need for an expansion of the
existing DPW building or adding another heated structure behind the current building.

The 2023 Budget included $2,964,000 in the Capital Improvement Fund for a Cold Storage Building or an
expansion of the current building. Funding was borrowed through General Obligation Debt, totaling $2,980,000
in November 2023. Bids for the project were received on November 14, 2023 and presented to the Common
Council on January 16, 2024. All bids were based on the new construction of a cold storage building. All bids
came in significantly higher than what was budgeted and borrowed for this project. At that time, the Common
Council moved to reject all bids and directed Staff to return to the original design consultant for an amendment
to provide a design for an expansion of the existing DPW facility.

On February 21, 2024, the Common Council authorized staff to rebid the project as an expansion to the existing
DPW building. Bids were received on April 30, 2024. On July 2, 2024, bids were reviewed and the Common
Council moved forward with an award to Camosy Incorporated in the amount of $2,827,700. It was noted at
that time that there was very little room for change orders due to the lack of contingency available for this
project. As the project has progressed and staff has changed, it has been brought to the attention of the DPW
Superintendent, Interim Engineer, Director of Administration and Director of Finance & Treasurer that a $7,000
amount for contingency and miscellaneous costs for a project of this magnitude is completely unfeasible. Rule
of thumb is providing projects of this magnitude a 10% contingency, which would be roughly $300,000. City
staff is working through the challenges of lack of funding that have presented and will continue to seek funding
sources to help offset the overage of project costs.

Recommendation
The Capital Improvement Fund does account for a $150,000 contingency for unforeseen projects or challenges.
The Director of Finance & Treasurer recommends the proposed 2024 Budget Amendment to provide
appropriations to support a working contingency to continue forward with the DPW Expansion project.



Fiscal Note
The City of Franklin has a contingency fund with an appropriation of $150,000. This would leave $0 in unused
funds for the 2024 Annual Budget. After review of all current projects in the 2024 Budget, this should suffice
for the remaining of the year.

The GL Numbers associated with this amendment are:

Capital Improvement Fund
46-0199-5499 Unrestricted Contingency
46-0331-5823 DPW Building Construction

Decrease
Increase

$150,000
$150,000

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

Motion adopting Ordinance No. 2024- . an Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2023-2569, an
Ordinance Adopting the 2024 Annual Budget for the Capital Improvement Fund to Transfer $150,000 of
Contingency Appropriations to Highway Capital Equipment Appropriations for the Increasing Project
Costs Associated with the DPW Building Expansion Project.

Roll Call Vote Required

Finance Dept - DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2024----

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2023-2569, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2024 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND TO

TRANSFER $150,000 OF CONTINGENCY APPROPRIATIONS TO HIGHWAY CAPITAL
EQUIPMENT APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE INCREASING PROJECT COSTS

ASSOCIATED WITH THE DPW BUILDING EXPANSION PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2024 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 28, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the 2024 Annual Budget appropriated $150,000 for unplanned and
unexpected expenses within the Capital Improvement Fund; and

WHEREAS, the DPW Expansion Building project contained essentially no funding for
contingency within the project costs; and

WHEREAS, the size of this project should have accounted for roughly 10% of funding for
contingency purposes; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council authorized $150,000 of Capital Improvement Fund
contingency appropriations for the purpose of the funding the unforeseen increased costs
associated with the DPW Expansion Building Project; and

WHEREAS, the Budget Appropriation Units should be adjusted for the above items as
listed below; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That the 2024 Capital Improvement Fund Budget be amended as follows:

Capital Improvement Fund
0199 Contingency
0331 DPW Building Construction

Decrease
Increase

$150,000
$150,000

Section 2

Section 3

Pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 65.90(5)(ar), the City Clerk is hereby directed to post a
notice of this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this
Resolution on the City's web site.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, or otherwise be legally invalid or fail under the applicable rules of
law to take effect and be in force, the remaining terms and provisions shall
remain in full force and effect.



Section 4 All ordinances and parts ofordinances in contravention to this ordinance are hereby
repealed.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
_day of2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES -- ABSENT



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

11/06/24

REPORTS & Resolution imposing conditions and restrictions
for the approval of a Special Use for Tsunami

RECOMMENDATIONS Express CarWash, a carwash facility located at
6449 S Whitnall Edge Road

(Tsunami Express Car Wash, applicant)

ITEM NUMBER

Aid. Dist. #6

At its October 17, 2024, regular meeting, the Plan Commission recommended
approval of the attached special use resolution. The vote was 4-0-2, four 'ayes', no
'noes' and two absences.

Fiscal impact: no expenditures of city's funds is anticipated to adopt this resolution.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution No. 2024- imposing conditions and restrictions
for the approval of a Special Use for Tsunami Express Car Wash, a carwash facility
located at 6449 S Whitnall Edge Road (Tsunami Express Car Wash, applicant)

Department of City Development: RM



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2024---

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[draft 10-25-24]

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH, A

CARWASH FACILITY LOCATED AT 6449 S WHITNALL EDGE ROAD
(TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH, APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, Christopher B. Schuldt, CEO of Tsunami Express Car Wash having
petitioned the City of Franklin for the approval of a Special Use to allow for carwash facility
in the B-3 Community Business District, upon property located at 6449 S. Whitnall Edge Road
more particularly described as follows:

PARCEL 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 5375 RECORDED IN THE OFFICE
OF THE REGISTER OF DEEDS FOR MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN, ON
FEBRUARY 15, 1990 IN REEL 2420, IMAGE 890, AS DOCUMENT NO. 6354945,
AND BEING CORRECTED BY AFFIDAVIT OF CORRECTION RECORDED
JULY 11, 1990 IN REEL 2468 IMAGE 655 AS DOCUMENT NO. 6396945, BEING
A RE-DIVISION OF PARCEL 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 3247,
OUTLOT 2 OF WHITNALL EDGE SUBDIVISION, AND UNPLATTED LANDS
IN THE NORTHWEST 1/4 AND THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST
1/4 OF SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN.

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of §15-9.0103D. of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan
Commission on the 22nd day of August, 2024, and the Plan Commission thereafter having
determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use be approved on the 17th day of
October, 2024, subject to certain conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding that the
proposed Special Use upon such conditions, pursuant to §15-3.0701 of the Unified
Development Ordinance, will be in harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development
Ordinance and the Comprehensive Master Plan; that it will not have an undue adverse impact
upon adjoining property; that it will not interfere with the development of neighboring
property; that it will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services; that it will
not cause undue traffic congestion; and that it will not result in damage to property of
significant importance to nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions,
meets the standards set forth under §15-3.0701 ofthe Unified Development Ordinance.



TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2024--
Page 2

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Tsunami Express Car Wash for the approval
of a Special Use for the property particularly described in the preamble to this Resolution, be
and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and restrictions:

1. That this Special Use is approved only for the use of the subject property by Tsunami
Express Car Wash, successors and assigns, as a carwash facility, in the B-3 Community
Business District, which shall be constructed, operated and maintained by Tsunami
Express Car Wash, pursuant to those plans date-stamped June 21, 2024 and annexed
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

2. Tsunami Express Car Wash, successors and assigns, shall pay to the City of Franklin
the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the
City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the Lake Grove
Place multi-family residential development, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any
violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance,
and subject to $15-9.0502 thereof and $1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general
penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Tsunami Express Car Wash, and
the carwash use, for the property located at 6449 S Whitnall Edge Road: (i) being in
compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and
ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and
the like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for
this approval.

4. The applicant, property owner, successors or assigns must install a sound barrier along
the south property line to the specifications described in the Noise Assessment report
prepared by Soundscape Engineering, dated June 21, 2024, only in the event that city
staff finds a violation of the maximum sound level of 65 dBA set forth in the Unified
Development Ordinance.

5. The applicant must adhere to the design elements recommended in the Noise
Assessment report prepared by Soundscape Engineering: (a) The central vacuum must
be located in a masonry building with sealed steel doors. If a vacuum pump exhaust
muffler was used at the Waukesha location then the vacuum pump at this location
should also be fit with a muffler, (b) The blowers must turn off when the exit doors
open.

6. The applicant must obtain approval from the Engineering Department for grading,
stormwater management, utilities and erosion control, prior to any land disturbance
activity.

7. The applicant must adhere to the recommendations of the City of Franklin Fire
Department: (a) Follow all relevant WI DSPS and IBC code requirements for fire



TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2024---
Page 3

protection systems for given occupancy, use, and construction types, (b) Fire
Extinguisher placement as per NFPA 10, (c) Fire Department Connection (FDC), and
hydrant placement and density must be acceptable to AHJ (applies to new
construction), (d) At no time may any Hazardous, Combustible, or Flammable
Materials exceed allowable quantities, (e) Master Key set required for placement in
Knox Box (if required).

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Tsunami Express Car Wash,
successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply with one or any
ofthe conditions and restrictions ofthis Special Use Resolution, following a ten ( 10) day notice
to cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the Common Council, upon notice and
hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or restriction
of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and pursuant to § 15-9.0502 thereof and § 1-19. of the Municipal
Code, the penalty for such violation shall be forfeiture of no more than $2,500.00, or such
other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as may be specified
therein from time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a separate violation.
Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of that or any other
violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such
Special Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9.0103 ofthe Unified Development Ordinance.

BE IT FURTHERRESOLVED, Pursuant to $15-9.0103G. ofthe Unified Development
Ordinance, the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall be null and void
upon the expiration ofone year from the date of adoption ofthis Resolution, unless the Special
Use has been established by way of the issuance of building permits

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
lay Of?2024.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting ofthe Common Council of the City ofFranklin
this day of , 2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor



TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTIONNO. 2024---
Page 4

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-- -- --



Exhibit A

Tsunami Express Car Wash
± a

5 ±
,.

6449 S Whitnall Edge Rciad, Franklin, WI 53132

i\lB,~,DMOND



Date.

To:

From:

RE:

MEMORANDUM

October 7, 2024

Plan Commission

Department of City Development
Regulo Martinez-Montilva, Planning Manger

Tsunami Car Wash, Spec1al Use and Site Plan
6449 S. Whitnall Edge Road

Item E.1.

The Plan Commission held a public heanng for this project on August 22, 2024, and carried a moton to
table the Specal Use and Ste Plan tems untl mnputfrom the Engneerng Department s receved on
whether a Traffic Impact Analysis is required or not.

The applicant submitted a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) on September 27, which is attached. City
Development staff has no additional comments on this TIA.

The full meeting packet is avallable on the city's website in electronic format The paper meetmg packet
mcludes the TIA but doesn't include the plan set prev10usly distributed for the August 22 meting
packet.



Franklin
w 1 SC O N S I

CITY OF FRANKLIN

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of August 22, 2024
SPECIAL USE & SITE PLAN

RECOMMENDATION: City Development staff recommends approval of the subject Special Use and
Site Plan applications subject to the conditions set forth in the attached resolutions.

Project name:

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Agent:

Property Address/TKN:

Aldermanic District:

Zoning District:

Staff Planner:

Submittal date:

Application number:

Tsunami Express Car Wash

Hartland Meadows, LLC

Christopher B. Schuldt. Tsunami Express Car Wash

Craig Wojtczak. The Redmond Company

6449 S Whitnall Edge Road / 705 8997 003

District 6

B-3 Community Business District

Regulo Martinez-Montilva, AICP, CNUa, Planning Manager

04-08-2024

PPZ24-0048/6 l

INTRODUCTION

The applicant is proposing a new car wash on a vacant lot at the intersection of Lovers Lane Road and
Whitnall Edge Road.

Special Use: Carwash businesses under Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) title No. 7542 require a
special use permit in the B-3 zoning district per Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Table l 5-
3 .0603.

Site Plan: The proposed facility is a single-story 5,200-sf principal building for the carwash bay,
mechanical room, storage, office and restroom. Accessory buildings include a l 00-sf employee sales
booth, 100-sf vacuum pump house and dumpster enclosure.

Please note:
• Staff recommendations are underlined and mn talcs, and included in the attached resolution as

conditions of approval.
• Staff suggestions are only underlined, and not included in the attached resolution.



UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS

Special Use and Site Plan Applications are subject to the following provisions of the Unified
Development Ordinance (UDO):

• §15-3.0701 General Standards for Special Uses.
• § 15-7.0102 Principles and Standards of Review, Site Plans.

UDO §15-3.0702 Detailed Standards for Special Uses in Residential Districts is not applicable to
carwashes.

General standards for Special Uses ($15-3.0701

Summary of Staff's Finding
Standard
1. Harmony with UDO The proposed carwash is consistent with the comprehensive plan as this

and Comprehensive site is designated as commercial in the future land use map of the City of
Plan purposes and Franklmn 2025 Comprehensve Master Plan.
intent.

2. No Undue Adverse City Development staff does not anticipate any "undue adverse impact"
Impact. to adjacent properties as the proposed design meets required building

setbacks, maximum building height, required landscaping, off-street
parking and exterior lighting requirements of the Unified Development
Ordinance, with the exception of noise as discussed below.

Noise

The applicant submitted a noise prediction and assessment report for the
proposed carwash, see attached report dated June 21, 2024. According to
this report "[t]he carwash is oriented so that the loudest part of the
building (the exit) is pointed away from residences and sound levels due
to the car wash will not exceed 50 dBA"; however, "the [ordinance] limit
is predicted to exceed only at the parking lot south property line". The
report recommends the installation of an 8-foot sound barrier along the
south border to mitigate this predicted exceedance.

The applicant is requesting "to delay the installation of the wall until after
construction. If the city and/or neighbors deem the noise to be an issue,
the wall would be installed at that time".

Since the affected area is a parking lot, not residences or buildings, staff
has no objections to the applicant's request and recommends the
following conditon
The applicant, property owner, successors or assigns must nstall a sound
barrer along the south property lne to the spec[cations descrbed in
the Noise Assessment report prepared by Soundscape Engineering, dated
June 21, 2024, only mn the event that cty staff_ finds a volaton of the
maxamum sound level of65 dBA set forth mn the Unfed Development
Ordnance

2



Summary of Staff's Finding
Standard

Staff also recommends the desgn elements descrbed mn the nose
assessment report:
The applicant must adhere to the design elements recommended in the
Noise Assessment report prepared by Soundscape Engmneering (a) The
central vacuum must be located in a masonry_ building with sealed steel
doors If_ a vacuum pump exhaust muffler was used at the Waukesha
location then the vacuum pump at this location should also be fit with a
muffler, (b1 The blowers must turn offwhen the exit doors open

3. No Interference This site is zoned B-3 Community Business District and it's directly
with Surrounding abutting the Garden Plaza shopping center which is also zoned B-3. The
Development. zoning across Whitnall Edge is B-2 and M-1 across Lovers Lane Road,

both adjacent properties are used for auto dealerships. The subject site is
not directly abutting residential zoning. In staffs opining, the proposed
carwash is compatible with the use and development of surrounding
properties.

4. Adequate Public The proposed development will be served by public water supply and
Facilities. sanitary sewer service as depicted on the site utility plan (sheet C-8). Cy

Development staff_recommends that the applicant must obtamn approval
from the Engmneerng Department for grading, stormwater management,
utilities and erosion control, pror to any land disturbance activity

Refuse disposal: The site plan depicts a trash dumpster with a trash
enclosure that meets the requirements of UDO §15-3.08031 Trash
Dumpsters and Garbage Receptacles.

Fire protection: Staff recommends the followng conditon based on
comments tom the Fire Department
The applcant must adhere to recommendations o[the Czty o[.Franklin
Fre Department Ca1 Follow all relevant WI DSPS and IBC code
requirements for fire protection systems {gr given occupancy, use, and
constructon types, (] Fre Extinguisher placement as per NFPA 10, (cl
Fre Department Connecton (FDC), and hydrant placement and density
must be acceptable to AHJ (apples to new construction], (d} At no time
may any Hazardous. Combustible. or Flammable Materials exceed
allowable quantities, (e) Master Key set required for placement mn Knox
Box (frequired)

5. No Traffic The proposed development would have access to Whitnall Edge Road by
Congestion. an existing curb cut. The applicant is proposing to remove a second

existing curb cut.

City Development staff didn't request a Traffic Impact Analysis for this
development.

3



Summary of Staff's Finding
Standard
6. No Destruction of There are no protected natural resources on site per letter submitted by

Significant the applicant, with the exception of steep slopes along Lovers Lane Road,
Features. the applicant is not proposing to impact said area.

7. Compliance with The proposed development complies with the standards of the B-3
Standards. Community Business District, as well as off-street parking, queuing,

landscaping, exterior lighting, architectural standards and snow storage
requirements.

City Development staff sent a memorandum with review comments on
May I, the applicant has addressed most of these comments as noted in
responses to staff comments dated July 1, 2024.

Principles and standards of review of Site Plans (§15-7.0102)

Summary of Staff's Finding
Standard

A. Conformity ofUse Carwash businesses under Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) title
to Zoning District. No. 7542 require a special use permit in the B-3 zoning district per

Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Table 15-3.0603.

City Development staff has no objections to the proposed use provided
the applicant will comply with recommended conditions of approval set
forth in the attached resolution.

B. Dimensional The proposed principal building and accessory structures comply with the
Requirements. required setbacks and maximum building height for the B-3 zonmg

district set forth in UDO Table 15-3.0303.

Per staff comment #4, the applicant adjusted the building location to
comply with the 40-foot setback required from an arterial roadway
(Lovers Lane Road).

C. Site Intensity and The applicant submitted Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations, the
Site Capacity maximum permitted floor area for this site is 16,117 square feet while the
Calculations to be applicant is proposing a total floor area of 5,400 square feet, including the
Reviewed. principal building (5,200 sf), pump house (I 00 sf) and sales booth (100

sf).

D. Use andDesign The proposed development complies with off street parking requirements
Provisions. (UDO Division 15-5.0200), required landscaping ( 15-5 .0300), exterior

lighting (15-5.0400) and architectural standards (15-7.0802).

The applicant has addressed City Development department comments as
noted in responses to staff comments dated July l, 2024.

4



Summary of Staff's Finding
Standard

E. Relation to Existing The proposed development would have access to Whitnall Edge Road by
and Proposed an existing curb cut. There no existing public sidewalks along the site
Streets and perimeter.
Highways.

F. Impacts on City Development staff does not anticipate major adverse impacts to
Surrounding Uses. surrounding uses because the proposal meets landscape requirements and

the illumination levels at site boundaries.

With regards to predicted sound levels, see Special Use Standard #2
Adverse Impacts.

G. Natural Resource The applicant is not proposing to impact protected natural resources as
Features Protection. defined in the UDO.

H. Required Landscape bufferyard easements are not required for this development
Landscaping and zoned B-2 as the abutting properties are zoned B-2 and B-3.
Landscape
Bufferyards. City Development staff reviewed the proposed landscape plans and

provided comments to the applicant in memorandum dated May 1. The
applicant has addressed all comments regarding the landscape plans in
memorandum dated July 1, 2024.

I. Provision of The proposed drives meet the minimum width of24 feet, and the parking
Emergency Vehicle lot meets the minimum width of 65 feet for double row parking (UDO
Accessibility. $15-5.0204). The proposal meets the requirements for ADA parking, one

space with the appropriate dimensions and sign.

J. Building Location. The location of proposed structures meets required building setbacks.

There is a 20-foot utility easement on site, therefore, sta[f recommends
that the applcant s responsble for obtanmng authorization from the
easementholder, sconsElectrc Power Company. for work withmn the
20-foot utilty easement alongSouth Whtnall Edge Road.

K. Location and The proposed trash dumpster is enclosed by a masonry wall and has a
Design ofOn-Site concrete pad as required by the UDO.
Waste Disposal and
Loading Facilities.

L. Consistency with The proposed development is consistent with the intent of the B-3 zoning
Intent ofUDO. district (UDO Section 15-3.0303A), specifically:

• "Provide on-site parking for customer automobiles combined with
a pedestrian-oriented shopping environment". However, staff
acknowledges that this location is not pedestrian oriented as there
are no sidewalks along the street frontage.

• "Provide for relatively large groupings ofretail sales and customer
service establishments in a community-serving shopping area".

5



Summary of Staff's Finding
Standard

M. Consistency with The proposed development is consistent with the comprehensive plan as
Intent of this site is designated as commercial.
Comprehensive
Plan.

N. Determination of Pursuant to UDO Section 15-7.0103G, City Development staff requested
"Suitability" ofSite. the applicant to submit a geotechnical report in memorandum dated May

1, 2024. The applicant submitted a Geotechnical Engineering Exploration
and Analysis report, which is attached to this packet.

City Development staff has no objections to this request because this
proposal is not impacting natural resources and complies with the B-3
district standards (UDO Sec. 15-3.0303) as well as design standards
(UDO Part 5).

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

City Development staff recommends approval of the subject Spec1al Use and Site Plan applications subject
to the conditions set forth in the attached resolutions.

6



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN
PLAN COMMISSION

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

Draft [7-22-24]
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SITE PLAN FOR TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH,
A CARWASH FACILITY

(6449 S WHITNALL EDGE ROAD)
(TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH, APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, Christopher B. Schuldt, CEO of Tsunami Express Car Wash having
applied for a site plan approval for a carwash facility, consisting of a single-story 5,200-sf
principal building for the carwash bay, mechanical room, storage, office and restroom, as well
as accessory buildings: 100-sfemployee sales booth, 100-sfvacuum pump house and dumpster
enclosure, at 6449 S Whitnall Edge Road; and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having reviewed the proposed carwash Site Plan
and having found same to be in compliance with and in furtherance of those express standards
and purposes of a site plan review pursuant to Division 15-7.0100 of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Tsunami Express Car Wash Site Plan as depicted upon and being
the plans dated June 21, 2024, attached hereto and incorporated herein, be and the same is
hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and restrictions:

1. The property subject to the Site Plan shall be developed in substantial compliance with
and operated and maintained pursuant to the Site Plan for Tsunami Express Car Wash,
plans dated June 21, 2024.

2. Tsunami Express Car Wash, successors and assigns, and any developer of the carwash
project, shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance,
inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults
to the City of Franklin, for the Tsunami Express Car Wash project, within 30 days of
invoice for same. Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and subject to 15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal
Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the Tsunami Express Car Wash
project (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules,
codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals,
permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed
and as presented for this approval.



TSUNAMI EXPRESS CAR WASH - SITE PLAN
RESOLUTIONNO. 2024
Page 2

4. That the Tsunami Express Car Wash project shall be developed and constructed
pursuant to such Site Plan within one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution,
or this Resolution and all rights and approvals granted hereunder shall be null and void,
without any further action by the City of Franklin.

5. This Site Plan is conditioned upon the approval of a Special Use permit for carwash
use. This Resolution shall be null and void if such Special Use permit is not approved.

6. The applicant is responsible for obtaining authorization from the easement holder,
Wisconsin Electric Power Company, for work within the 20-foot utility easement along
South Whitnall Edge Road.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Tsunami Express Car Wash building permit
shall be issued for such Site Plan within one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution,
or this Resolution and all rights and approvals granted hereunder shall be null and void, without
any further action by the City ofFranklin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin this
_th day of

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting ofthe Plan Commission of the City ofFranklin
this _th day of

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Chairman

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES_-NOES_- ABSENT



gsa
&;:PFranklin
◄

WISCONSIN

6449 S. Whitnall Edge Road
TKN: 705 8997 003

,,

\-
'.,r\,

t
''

.
@

\

•

This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor
This map is provided/or informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate/or legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 62.5 125 250 Feel A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo



Franklin
«f

WISCONSIN

6449 S. Whitnall Edge Road
TKN: 705 8997 003

,r

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0

\

62.5 125 250 Feet

Property

A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared bya professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



Exhibit A

-;

..,
f> !

tr

·:{•liiifl

. - -----.$$g.·

't

i )> ~

' V\' -Jc
0 ~

rn; • 1' i
' •±

Tsunami Express Car Wash

6449 S Whitnall Edge Poad, Franklin, Wl 53132 t#i i#fioi#bittaiiotu@tint# 3 uie #nu



YOUR PREMIER DESIGN/BUILD PARTNER

14 March 2024

Planning Department -City of Franklin
6229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

RE: Tsunami Express Carwash - 6514 Lovers Lane

To Whom It May Concern,

Tsunami Express Carwash ("Tsunami") is proudly presenting the proposed development plans for a
state-of-the-art facility that will serve Franklin (the "City") and the surrounding communities.

Introduction
The proposed development is located at the southeast corner of Lovers Lane and Whitnall Edge
Road, and the parcel number is 705-8997-003. The property is a 1.39 acre vacant lot currently
zoned as B-3 "Community Business District." The B-3 zoning district allows a car wash as a
special use. The proposed facility is a single-story 5,200 SF building including the car wash bay,
mechanical room, storage, office, and restroom. Accessory buildings include a 100 SF
employee sales booth, 100 SF vacuum pump house, and dumpster enclosure.

Business Operations
Tsunami Express Carwash ("Tsunami") is a high-quality express car wash that uses state-of
the-art equipment and provides customers with a wide variety of services. For washes, Tsunami
offers several levels of memberships, or customers can pay for a single wash at every visit. The
wash cycles are offered at varying price points to suit the needs of each customer.

The site will house 11 vacuums to serve 22 parking stalls. These stalls will be 13'-0" wide and
18'-0" deep. This is wider than the average parking stall to allow for more maneuverability
around the vehicle. The vacuums will be available to customers for free regardless of whether
they go through the wash.

In addition to regular business operations, Tsunami also fosters community connections and is
an advocate for supporting local organizations. They offer an opportunity to host fund raisers,
giving a modern spin on the famous "community car wash" that was once a popular method of
raising funds for various community organizations. Supporters of the organizations will receive a
high-quality car wash, and the organization receives 50% of the proceeds from every wash
donated back to them.

Regular business hours extend from 7:00 am to 8:00 pm daily. There will be attendants on duty
for the full duration of the operating hours to assist customers and maintain the cleanliness of
the site. Each shift will employ 2-3 employees with a total staff of approximately 8-10
employees. During these hours, Tsunami expects to service 200-400 customers per day.

Tsunami currently has four (4) facilities in the Milwaukee area including: Oak Creek, Greenfield,
Waukesha, and one under construction on Fond du Lac Avenue in Milwaukee.



Entitlement Strategy & Iimeline
Tsunami will comply with the local approval process by submitting a Special Use appl1cat1on for
Plan Commission recommendation and Common Council approval. They anticipate receving
municipal approvals mn springof 2024with single-phase construction beginningmud-summer.
The facIlIty Is ant1c1pated to be open and operational in early spring of 2025.

Site Plan
The site 1s arranged such that the main carwash building 1s located on thewest end of the site
and oriented parallel to Lovers Lane Road. While a carwash requires a special use permit for
this site, It coordinates with the surrounding businesses. With Boucher Volkswagen to the
north, Hiller Ford to the east, Kw1k Trip and Tires Plus to the southwest, and Ewald CDRJ and
Holz Auto Body Shop Just down the road, residents of Franklin and the surrounding
communItIes already associate this area with automobile service and sates

Layout: The plan shows (24) parking stalls with (2) being dedicated ADAspaces. The
entrance to the wash includes (3) pay stations that allow space for the stacl<ing of up to
(30) vehicles.
Vacuum Design & Placement: The vacuums are aligned along both sides of the parking
lot with one vacuum post serving two parking stalls. Each vacuum has (2) hoses that are
attached to a central vacuum system that routes to either the main building or the
detached pump house at the southeast corner of the site. Each vacuum station 1s also
equippedwith a trash bin, a mat clip for easy vacuuming, and a central blower system
to help clean those hard-to-reach places.
Landscaping/Screening: There 1s ample landscaping throughout the site that has been
designed by a professional landscape architect. The dumpster 1s screened by an
enclosure constructed of materials that match the main building, and the pump house
IS a fully-enclosed secondary building also constructed of s1m1lar materials.
Access: The main entrance to the srte is located off SouthWhtnall Edge Road to
mI nImally impact the heavy traffic on South Lovers Lane Road. Immediately after
entering the site, vehicles can turn nght to enter the queue for thewashes, or proceed
straight to access the free vacuums.
Signage: A full signage package complyingwith all code standardswt be submitted for
approval. There will be sgnage on the building as well as one monument sign on
WhItnall Edge Road directly adJacent to the site entrance.
Lighting: The proposed lighting plan includes general pole lighting, wall packs, and
canopy lighting that provde an average llummat1on of 2.0 footcandles Additional
Informat1on on each proposed lighting fixture has also been provided.

Architecture
The design of the building consists of beige split-faced concrete block, red masonry, clear
anodized aluminum storefront windows, and a blue standing seam metal roof. The long facade
Is broken up wrth brck accent piers. Thewindows located on the side of the building facing
Lovers Lane Road are translucent glass- allowing a view into the bright and colorfully lit inside
of the wash tunnel; the windows located in the mechanical room will be spandrel glazmng.



The main structure of the building consists of structural CMU walls, precast hollow core planks
for the roof of thewash tunnel, steel Joists and metal deck for the roof of the
mechanical/support rooms, and poured-in-place concrete foundation walls. Ageotechnical
survey was completed for the site and it was recommended that rammed aggregate piers be
installed to stabilize the soil to make the site suitable for construction.

The tunnel contains dual overhead doors at both the entrance and the exit. The interior doorwill
be insulated metalwith vsion lites to provide thermal protection and security during non
operational hours; the exterior overhead doorwill be vinyl roll-up doors that will correspond
wrth Tsunami's blue and yellow branding. These vinyl doors are intended to provide protection
from the elements in thewinter months when the metal doors are open.

conclusion
Tsunami Express Carwash 1s excited for the opportunity to submit their state-of-the-art facility
to the Plan Comm1ss1on to be considered for this site. Theywill prove to be a valuable addition
to the Franklin community.

Documents
Accompanying this narrative are all of the documents required for the site plan review as noted
on the Special Use Permit Application. Also included are supplemental documents that provide
additional information that may be of use to the Plan Commissionwhile reviewingour
submittal. These supplemental documents include:

• Exhibit 1: LightingGut SheetsSpecific information on all proposed lughting fixtures to
supplement the site photometric plan. (Includedin digital submittal only to conserve
paper.)

• Exhibit 2: Sound Study Asound study performed at the Tsunami Greenfield location on
Layton Ave. showing the decibel levels at different points on that site for reference.

• Exhibit 3: Reclaim System & Equipment Information regarding the reclaim system and
equipment.

Other documents are available upon request. These documents include a geotechncal survey
and safety data sheets for all chemicals used for operations.

Please do not hesitate to contact us with any additional questions.

Sincerely,

CraigWojtczak
Project Designer
The Redmond Company

■ W228 N745 Westmound Dnve
Waukesha, WI 53186

■p 262 549 9600
F 262 549 1314 TheRedmondCo com



THE

REDMOND
COMPANY

YOUR P RE MIER DESIGN/BUILD PARTNER

03/14/2024

General Standards for Special Uses

General Standards. No special use permit shall be recommended or granted pursuant to this Ordinance unless

the applicant shall establish the following:

1.Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent. The proposed use and development will be

in harmony with the general and specific purposes for which this Ordinance was enacted and for which the

regulations of the zoning district in question were established and with the general purpose and intent of the

City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan or element thereof.

The proposed car wash is in harmony with this Ordinance as well as the Comprehensive Master Plan.

2,No Undue Adverse Impact. The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse

or detrimental effect upon or endanger adjacent property, the character of the area, or the public health,

safety, morals, comfort, and general welfare and not substantially diminish and impair property values within

the community or neighborhood.

The proposed car wash will have no adverse effects to the adjacent property or area.

3,No Interference with Surrounding Development. The proposed use and development will be constructed,

arranged, and operated so as not to dominate the immediate vicinity or to interfere with the use and

development of neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning district regulations.

The proposed ca, wash will be constructed with high quality materials and will not interfere with the development of

neighboring properties.

4,Adequate Public Facilities. The proposed use and development will be served adequately by essential

public facilities and services such as streets, public utilities including public water supply system and

sanitary sewer, police and fire protection, refuse disposal, public parks, libraries, schools, and other public

facilities and utilities or the applicant will provide adequately for such facilities.

The proposed car wash will be served adequately by required essential facilities as listed above .

5.No Traffic Congestion. The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic congestion nor draw

significant amounts of traffic through residential streets. Adequate measures will be taken to provide ingress

and egress so designed as to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets.

The proposed car wash has taken adequate measures to create safe and efficient traffic flow through the site and

ingress/egress to public streets. Three lanes of queueing are provided to ensure cars aren't backed up into the public

street.

la W228 N74s Westmound Drive
[Alwaukesha, WI 53186

faa P 262.549.9600
NASIF 262.549.1314

th

9 The RedmondCo.com
409.



6.No Destruction of Significant Features. The proposed use and development will not result in the destruction,

loss, or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of significant importance.

The proposed car wash will not damage any natural or historical features of the site.

7.Compliance with Standards. The special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable

regulations of the district in which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified

by the Common Council pursuant to the recommendations of the Plan Commission. The proposed use and

development shall comply with all additional standards imposed on it by the particular provision of this

Division and Ordinance authorizing such use.

The proposed car wash conforms to all applicable regulations found in the B-3 zoning code .

B,Special Standards for Specified Special Uses. When the zoning district regulations authorize a special use
in a particular zoning district and that special use is indicated as having special standards, as set forth in§ 15-
3.0702 and 15-3.0703 of this Division, a Special Use Permit for such use in such zoning district shall not be
recommended or granted unless the applicant shall establish compliance with all such special standards.
All applicable standards will be met .

.c...._considerations. In determining whether the applicant's evidence establishes that the foregoing standards
have been met, the Plan Commission and the Common Council shall consider the following:

1.Public Benefit. Whether and to what extent the proposed use and development at the particular location

requested is necessary or desirable to provide a service or a facility that is in the interest of the public

convenience or that will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community.

The proposed car wash will provide a desirable and useful service for the neighborhood and community.

2,Alternative Locations. Whether and to what extent such public goals can be met by the location of the

proposed use and development at some other site or in some other area that may be more appropriate than

the proposed site.

The proposed car wash provides a full service car wash open to the public in a convenient and easily accessible

location .

3.Mitigation of Adverse Impacts. Whether and to what extent all steps possible have been taken to minimize

any adverse effects of the proposed use and development on the immediate vicinity through building design,

site design, landscaping, and screening.

The proposed car wash building, site, landscaping, and screening have been designed to meet all applicable city

standards. Site traffic and navigation has been carefully designed to ensure safe and efficient travel throughout the

site as well as entering and exiting onto the public street.

R/EDMOND



4.Establishment of Precedent of Incompatible Uses in the SurroundingArea. Whether the use will establish a

precedent of, or encourage, more intensive or incompatible uses in the surrounding area

The bu1ld1ng blends in and reflects ,ts surrounding neighbors with the use of high quality materials

R EDMOND



R REDMOND
YOUR PREMIER DESIGN/BUILD PARTNER

Date:

From:

To:

RE:

July 1", 2024

CraigWojtczak. The Redmond Company.

Department of City Development
Regulo Martinez-Montilva, AICP, CNUa, Principal Planner

Staff comments for Special Use and Site Plan, Tsunami Car Wash
6299 S. Whitnall Edge Road

Below are comments and recommendations for the above-referenced applications received on April 8, 2024.

Note: In your responses to these comments, please add where the additional information and/or revision is provided.
For example, Landscape Plan sheet L1, project narrative, etc.

City Development Department comments
Site Plan submittal requirements. Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) §15-7.0103
Applications for Site Plan Review, please add the following information to the Site Plan:
• C.Seal. Please add architect, engineer and landscape architect's seal.
• F. Please add vertical datum to the grading plan (sheet C-5), it must be National Geodetic Vertical Datum

of 1929.
• G. Soils Data. Please submit the characteristics and types of soils present on site.
• S. Please submit Site Intensity and Capacity calculations (worksheet attached).

2. Sound study. The submitted sound study is for another location, please submit a sound study for this site.

A sound study has been conducted for this site, please see attached document titled "Tsunami Franklin
Sound Study" The report recommends installing an 8' sound barrier along the south property line to meet
the sound ordinance. Our proposal is to delay the installation of the wall until after construction. If the city
and/or neighbors deem the noise to be an issue, the wall would be installed at that time.

3 Floor Area Ratio (FAR). Please add the proposed net FAR and gross FAR to site information block on the
architectural site plan. In the B-3 zoning district, the maximum gross FAR is 0.34 and net FAR is 0.57 See
definitions below:

FLOOR AREA RATIO, GROSS (GFAR)
An intensity measured as a ratio derived by dividing the total gross floor area of a building or structure by the
base site area. Where the lot is part of a larger development and has no required bufferyard, that lot area may
be used instead of the base site area to calculate the lot's development potential.

FLOOR AREA RATIO, NET (NFAR)
An intensity measured as a ratio derived by dividing the total gross floor area of a building or structure by the
net buildable site area.

Proposed NFAR and GFAR ratios have been aclclecl to Site Information box on Architectural Site Plan Sheet in
revised drawing packet. Calculation worksheet is also included in submittal separately entitled "Site
Intensity Cales Worksheet"

4. Setback from arterial roadways. Pursuant to UDO $15-5.0108, the minimum building setback is 40 feet
along an arterial roadway such as Lovers Land Road. The proposed carwash building is encroaching into this
setback, please revise your design accordingly.

[RjW228 N745 Westmound Drive .p 262.549.9600
lVAiwaukesha, WI 53186 AIESE 262.549.1314 @pl n+eRedmon«co.com

4



The building has been adjusted to comply with the setbacks as shown on sheet C-3 and architectural site
plan 0n AS-100 in the revised drawing packet.

5. Utility easement. The Alta Survey depicts a 20-foot utility easement to Wisconsin Electric Power Company
alongWhitnall Edge Road. Have you received authorization from the easement holder for the proposed drive
and sign encroaching into this easement?

The drive has been adjusted to not encroach into the utility easement as shown on Sheet C-3 in the revised
drawing packet.

6. Will Tsunami Car Wash be the operator for this carwash? If so, please revise the application forms with
Tsunami Car Wash as applicant and The Redmond Company as applicant's representative.

A revised review application is attached entitled "Revised Application"

Parking (UDO Di. 15-5.0200)
7. Parking space size. The proposed regular parking space (next to ADA parking) is 162 square feet (9x18 feet).

The minimum parking space size is 180 square feet per UDO S15-5.0202B, please revise accordingly.

Parking sizes have been adjusted to meet the minimum size standards as shown on Sheet C- 3 in the revised
drawing packet.

8. ADA parking. The architectural site plan depicts one space for ADA parking (Americans with Disabilities Act)
but the pavement grading plan (sheet C-7) depicts two ADA parking spaces, please clarify. Note that for this
site, one ADA parking space is sufficient per UDO Table 15-5.0202(0)(1). The minimum dimensions for ADA
parking are 13 feet wide by 20 feet long, the proposed ADA parking space is 18 feet long, please revise.

Civil plans have been updated to reflect one ADA parking stall. Plans have also been updated for ADA parking
stall to be 20' in length as shown on Sheet C-3 in the revised drawing packet.

9. Minimum distance of required concrete curbing from property lines. Even though the architectural site
plan depicts the required 10-foot separation from the drive to the south properly line, this distance must be
measured from the back of curb per UDO §15-5.0202.E.2. This distance is less than 10 feet in the pavement
grading plan (sheet C-7), please revise accordingly.

The pavement has been adjusted to comply with this standard as shown on Sheet C-3 in the revised drawing
packet.

10. Parking aisles. Pursuant to UDO Table 15-5.0204, the minimumwidth for double row 90° angle parking is 65
feet, the proposed design is 64 feet wide, please revise accordingly.

The width of the parking lot has been increased to meet the 65' minimum as shown on Sheet C-3 in the
revised drawing packet.

11 Snow storage plan required. Pursuant to UDO 15-5.0210, please submit a snow storage plan, see UDO
$15-5.0210 (attached) tor plan requirements and standards.

Snow storage shall be in the detention basin as noted on Sheet C-3 in the revised drawing packet.

f/REDMOND



Required Landscaping (UDO Div. 15-5.0300)
12. Species of plantings. Pursuant to UDO 15-5.0302F.2, at least two of plantings of each species are required.

Please revise the proposed quantity of canopy/shade trees.

Revised quantity of proposed canopy/shade trees shown on L 1.0 and L 1.2in the revised drawing packet.

13. Species of plantings (native). Pursuant to UDO §15-5.0302F, at least two species of canopy/shade trees
must be native to the City (Ash, Elm, Sugar Maple, Red Oak, Basswoocl or Walnut). Please revise accordingly.
Note that native species of shacle trees shall be placed away from the highest vehicular ancl pedestrian traffic
areas (UDO §15-5.0302.H.2).

Revised species of trees as shown on L 1.0 and L 1.2in the revised drawing packet.

14. Irrigation. Are you planning on providing an irrigation system? Please note that a permanent, on-site, outdoor
water supply (underground or cl rip irrigation, hose bibs, etc.) that provicles complete coverage to all new living
landscaped areas is required (UDO §15-5.0303.D).

A permanent irrigation system will be installed.

15. Plant replacement. UDO 15-5.0303.G states that "any plant materials inclucled in an approvecl
landscaping plan that do not survive a plant establishment period of two years after installation shall be
replaced" Please revise sheet L 1.2, note 13 accordingly.

Note 13 on L 1.2 has been upclatecl to have a two year warranty period after installation as shown in the
revised drawing packet.

Architecture (UDO Di. 15-7.0800)
16. Any proposecl metal furnace vents? If so, please submit plans attesting compliance with UDO 15-7.08021:

"All chimney ancl fireplace vents shall be enclosecl in a chase constructecl of materials similar to those
materials used on the building elevations; metal housings designed by the vent manufacturer to enclose the
chimney vents are acceptable"

Document entitled "Mechanical Venting Reference" shows a similar Tsunami project with compliance of
venting. All venting will be lower than parapet height. No side wall vents are proposed.

Miscellaneous
17 Any roof-mounted mechanical equipment? If so, please submit a sight line diagram from Lovers Lane Road

andWhitnall Edge Road.

Site diagram has been included for Lovers Lane Road andWhitnall Edge Road as shown in document entitled
"Site Line Diagram"

Separate approvals and fees
18. This review is not for the proposed sign. Please note that separate review and approval with the Department

of City Development are required tor signs.

19. Please be aware of City impact fees. The impact fee schedule can be found on the City's website at
https://www.trankinwi.go/Departments/Inspection-Services/Impact-Fees.htm.

R/REDMoND



20. Please note that stormwater, grading, erosion control and utility plans are subject to separate review and
approval by the Engineering Department

Engneearng Departmentcomments
1. Engineering has no objection to the applicant's request for Special Use However, an engineering and storm

water management plan review application must be submitted with required materials for review and
approval

2. Consider the following comments
• Confirm wnth WisDOTregarding the munmum building setback
• Refer to the City ofFranklin Design Standard for retaining wall construction (Chapter 6 9).
• A plat ofsurvey is requ,red for applying for a building permit.
• Refer to UDO - 15-0207 (A), the drivewaymusthave a6ft minimum from all property lines

Inspection Services Department comments
1. Structure shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the Wisconsin Commercial Building Code

R REDMOND



ADD
TRAFFIC ANALYSIS & DESIGN, INC.

P.O. Box 128
Cedarburg, WI 53012

800.605.3091
www.tadi-us.com

Tsunami Car Wash
Development

Traffic Impact Analysis

City of Franklin
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin

September 24, 2024

*



IADi»
TRAFFIC ANALYSIS & DESIGN, INC.

PROVIDING TRAFFIC ENGINEERING SOLUTIONS

TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS
Date: September 24, 2024

Prepared for: Miranda R. Seals
The Redmond Company

Prepared by: Don Lee, P.E.
John A. Bieberitz, P.E., PTOE
Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc.

Subject: Tsunami Express Carwash Development
City of Franklin, WI
Traffic Impact Analysis

INTRODUCTION
A carwash development is proposed to be constructed on the southeast comer of the South
Lovers Lane Road (STH 100) intersection with South Whitnall Edge Road in the City of
Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin. Access to the site is proposed via a single access
driveway along South Whitnall Edge Road. A map showing the development site and proposed
access location is shown on Exhibit 1. The conceptual development site plan is shown on Exhibit
2.

This traffic impact analysis (TIA) was prepared to document the peak hour traffic impacts
expected at the study intersections along South Whitnall Edge Road with existing traffic volumes
and with full buildout of the proposed carwash development.

STUDY AREA
Study Intersections
The study intersections, also shown on Exhibit 1, include the following:

• South Lovers Lane Road/STH 100 & South Whitnall Edge Road (two-way stop control)

• South Whitnall Edge Road & Boucher VW Driveway (one-way stop control)

• South Whitnall Edge Road & Proposed Driveway (one-way stop control)

• South Whitnall Edge Road & Retail Center Driveway (one-way stop control)

The existing geometrics, traffic control, posted speed limits, and distances between study
intersections are shown on Exhibit 3.

Phone 800 605 3091 PO Box128
Cedarburg, WI 53012

www tad1-us com



T R A F F I C MNALY'SI5 & D E S I G N , I N(

Study Area Roadways
South Lovers Lane Road (STH I 00) is classified as a Principal Arterial that generally runs
north/south and has a six-lane divided cross-section. The posted speed limit on South Lovers
Lane Road is 40 miles per hour (mph) within the limits of the study area. The Year 2021
Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT)
volumes along STH I 00 were 26,000 vehicles per day (vpd) immediately north of College
Avenue and 20,900-vpd to the south of South Whitnall Edge Road.

South Whitnall Edge Road is classified as a local collector street that generally runs east/west
within the limits of the development site. South Whitnall Edge Road has a two-lane undivided
cross-section and a posted speed limit of 25-mph. There are no WisDOT AADT volumes
currently available along South Whitnall Edge Road; however, daily traffic volumes of 1,000
vpd were interpolated from three hours of weekday evening (3:00 - 6:00pm) peak period counts
conducted as part of this study. The roadway is signed for no parking within the limits of the
study area intersections.

EXISTING & FUTURE TRAFFIC VOLUMES
Existing Traffic Volumes
The weekday evening and Saturday midday peak hours are expected to drive the improvements
needed to adequately accommodate the proposed development site, as they represent the highest
trip generation for the site and the highest volumes along the adjacent transportation system.
TADI conducted weekday evening (3 :00-6 :0Opm) and Saturday midday ( 11 :00am - 2: 00pm)
peak hour turning movement traffic counts at the South Whitnall Edge Road intersection with the
South Lovers Lane Road intersection and with the other two aforementioned existing driveways
along South Whitnall Edge Road during a typical weekday and a typical Saturday in mid
September of 2024.

Based on the turning movement counts, the weekday evening and Saturday midday peak hours
were identified as being from 4:00 to 5:00pm and 11:15am to 12:15pm, respectively. The
existing turning movement volumes were compiled for these peak hours and are shown on
Exhibit 4A. The turning movement traffic count data for each intersection is also included in
Appendix A.

Because data collection occurred while construction was occurring along South Lovers Lane
Road and to account for typical preconstruction conditions at the study area intersections, the
through volumes on the north and south approaches of the South Whitnall Edge Road
intersection with South Lovers Lane Road were compared to the year 202 I hourly AADT
through volumes along South Lovers Lane Road, as collected by WisDOT in April of2021 as
part of their regular three-year cycle data collection. Based on this comparison, the weekday
evening peak hour volumes collected as part of this study averaged about 11-percent lower than
the volumes collected by WisDOT in April of 2021. Therefore, the northbound and southbound
through volumes at the South Lovers Lane Road intersection with South Whitnall Edge Road,
collected as part of this study, were adjusted up to account for these calculated variations. The
existing (factored) traffic volumes are shown in Exhibit 4B.

Tsunami Express Car Wash TIA - Mukwonago, Wisconsm 2



TRAFFIC {MAY'SIS & DESIGN, I

Development Site Traffic Volumes
The site is currently a vacant outlot adjacent to a retail strip center that is located immediately
southeast of the site. Additional commercial land uses are located immediately to the north and
south along both sides of South Lovers Lane Road. Residential land uses (single family homes
and apartments) are located further to the east along South Whitnall Edge Road.

The proposed development includes a single automatic car wash stall/drive aisle. The expected
new trips generated for this land use for the two peak periods were determined based on data
from other similar existing facilities noting that these volumes are higher than those calculated
per the ITE trip generation rates (comparison table provided in the appendix). The proposed
development site is expected to include pass-by trips. Pass-by trips occur when motorists already
on the roadway system stop at a development site prior to continuing on their intended route
(e.g., an existing motorist northbound on South Lovers Lane Road stops at the site prior to
continuing northbound on South Lovers Lane Road). Per WisDOT and Institute of
Transportation Engineer (ITE) recommended practice, approximately 25-percent of the expected
new trips were included in the pass-by trip reduction calculations.

As shown in Exhibit 5, after pass-by trip reductions, the full buildout, assuming a typical car
wash day, is expected to generate 80 new site trips in the PM peak hour, and 80 new site trips in
the SAT peak hour.

The new trips for the proposed development were distributed to the study intersections based on
existing daily and peak hour traffic patterns. The trip distributions are listed below and shown on
Exhibit 5.

• 50% to/from the north on Lovers Lane Road
• 45% to/from the south on Lovers Lane Road
• 5% to/from the east on Whitnall Edge Road

Full Build Traffic Volumes
The peak hour new trips expected to be generated by the full buildout of the proposed
development were assigned to the study area roadways based on the above trip distribution and are
summarized below.

• On-site Development New Trips - Exhibit 6A
• On-site Development Pass-By Trips - Exhibit 6B
• On-site Development Driveway Trips (New Trips+ Pass-By Trips)- Exhibit 6C

The on-site development driveway trips were determined by adding the on-site development new
trips to the on-site development pass-by trips. The Full Build traffic, which adds the proposed
development driveway trips (Exhibit 6C) to the existing (factored) traffic volumes (Exhibit 4B),
is shown on Exhibit 7.

PEAK HOUR TRAFFIC OPERATIONS & QUEUES
LOS Definition/Description
Intersection operation is defined by "level of service." Level of Service (LOS) is a quantitative
measure that refers to the overall quality of flow at an intersection ranging from very good,
represented by LOS 'A,' to very poor, represented by LOS 'F.' For the purposes of this study,

Tsunami Express Car Wash TIA - Mukwonago, Wisconsm 3



IA5i
TRAFFIC AMLYSI5 % DESI6N,I

LOS Dor better was used to define acceptable peak hour operating conditions. The LOS
descriptions for signalized and unsignalized intersections are in Table 1.

Table 1. LOS Descriptions
Signalized Intersections Unsignaliud Intersections
Control Delay/Vehicle Avg. Control Delay Relative

LOS (sec/veh) (sec/veh) Delay
<10 <10

A Free-flow traffic operations at avearge travel speeds. Vehicles completely
unimpeded m ability to maneuver Mmimal delay at swnalized mtersections

> 10- 20 > 10-15
ShortB Reasonably unimpeded traffic operations at average travel speeds Vehicle

maneuverability slightly restricted Low traffic delays. Delays

> 20- 35 > 15-25
C Stable traffic operations Lane changes becoming more restricted. Travel

speeds reduced to half of average free flow travel speeds Longer
> 35-55 > 25-35

D Small increases in traffic flow can cause mcreased delays Delays likely
attributable to mcreased traffic, reduced signal progression, and adverse Moderate

> 55 - 80 > 35- 50 Delays
E Sgnuficant delays. Travel speeds reduced to one-thrd of average free flow

travel speed
> 80 > 50

F Extremely low speeds. Intersection congestion. Long delays Extenswe Long

traffic queues at mtersect1ons
Delays

Source Highway Capacty Manual, Transportaton Research Board, Washngton, DC, 2010

Peak Hour Traffic Operations
The study intersections were analyzed using the Synchro 11 traffic analysis model (outputs based
on the Hzghway Capacity Manual, 6" Edton) and the peak hour turning movement volumes
estimated for each intersection. The Existing traffic LOS, delays, and queues for each movement
are shown below in Table 2. As shown, all intersections are currently operating acceptably at
LOS D or better during the typical weekday evening and Saturday midday peak hours under
existing conditions except the eastbound movements and westbound through/left-turn
movements at the South Lovers Lane Road intersection with South Whitnall Edge Road which
are currently operating at LOS E/F during the typical weekday evening peak hour. The
corresponding Synchro analysis files are in Appendix B.

Tsunami Express Car Wash TIA -- Mukwonago, Wisconsin 4



TRAFFIC ANALYSIS $ DESIGN, IN

Table 2. Existing Traffic Peak Hour Operations
Level of Service (LOS) Der Movement by A proach

Peak Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound
Intersection Hour Metric 7 ➔ » I(  r, r; ¢ I 7 ~ b- I It

Lanes-> 1 1 1 1 3 1 3
Node 100 Lovers Lane Road & LOS E F C C * D .
Whitnall Edge Road Delay 48 5 57 3 18 2 15 4 * 31 9 .
Two-Way Stop Control

PM
vc 0 11 007 - - - - -

Queue 25' 25' 35' 25' * 95' *
LOS D D C 8 * C *

SAT Delay 271 260 15 1 12 6 * 15 6 .
Queue 25 25' 30' 25' * 25' .

Lanes-> 1 - - 1 - 1
Node 200 Wh1tnall Edge Road & LOS A - - * - B
Boucher VW Driveway PM Delay 75 - - * 10 0
One-Way Stop Control Queue 25' - - * - 25'

LOS A - - $ - A
SAT Delay 76 - - * - 93

Queue 25° - - * - 25'
Lanes-> - 1 1 - 1 -

Node 400 Wh1tnall Edge Road & LOS - * A - 8 -
Retail Space Driveway PM Delay - * 77 - 101 -
One-Way Stop Control Queue - * 25 - 25' -

LOS - * A - A -
SAT Delay - * 75 94 -

Queue - * 25' - 25 -
() indicates a movement that is prohibited or does not exist, () indicates a freeflow movement
Delay Is reported mn seconds Queue rs the maximum of the 5oth & 95th percentile queue, measured mn feet

The Full Build traffic LOS, delays, and queues for each movement are shown below in Table 3.
The corresponding Synchro analysis files are in Appendix C. As shown, all movements are
expected to continue to operate acceptably at LOS D or better during the typical weekday
evening and Saturday midday peak hours under Full Build traffic conditions except the
eastbound movements and westbound through/left-tum movements and the southbound left-tum
movement at the South Lovers Lane Road intersection with South Whitnall Edge Road which are
expected to operate at LOS E/F during the typical weekday evening peak hour. It is noted that
there are traffic signals located less than ¼-mile to the north and south of the South Whitnall
Edge Road intersection which are likely creating gaps in the traffic stream that allow this
intersection to operate better than reported by the modeling software. As shown in Table 3, the
volume to capacity ratios (.016, 0.67 and 0.72) show that there is excess capacity for each of
these respective movements. In addition, the volumes for the eastbound and westbound
movements are all expected to be less than 50 and the queue lengths are expected to be 3
vehicles or less during the weekday evening peak hour under full build conditions. With
reasonable capacity ratios, lower volumes and queuing reported by the model and traffic signals
located to the north and south creating gaps in the South Lovers Lane Road traffic stream, this
intersection is expected to operate better than reported by the modeling software. If delays are
higher than expected, regular users of this intersection could divert to adjacent signalized
intersections to access South Lovers Lane Road, or tum right onto Lovers Lane Road at Whitnall
Edge Road and make a U-tum at the College Avenue signalized intersection. If all left-tum
movements decided to do this, that is if no left-tum movements were allowed from Whitnall

Tsunami Express Car Wash TIA - Mukwonago, W1sconsm 5



1Ai
TRAFFIC ANALYSIS & DESIGN, II

Edge Road and all of these vehicles turned right to head upstream before completing a U-turn
movement at the adjacent intersection, the east and west approaches are expected to operate
acceptably at LOS C or better during both peak periods analyzed.

Table 3. Full Build Traffic Peak Hour Operation
Level of Service (LOS) per Movement by Aroach

Peak Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound
Intersection Hour Metric 7 ➔ ~ I{ &- r r; ¢ I 7 y v I I{

Lanes-> 1 1 1 1 3 1 3
Node 100 Lovers Lane Road & LOS F F C C * E *
Whutnall Edge Road Delay 694 157 1 19 9 15 2 * 41 0 *PM
Two-Way Stop Control vc 0 16 067 - - - 0 72 -

Queue 25' 70' 45' 25' * 130' *
LOS D D C B * C *

SAT Delay 30 8 348 162 12 5 * 17 0 *
Queue 25' 30' 35' 25' * 35' *

Lanes-> 1 - - 1 - 1
Node 200 Whitnall Edge Road & LOS A - - * - B
Boucher VW Driveway PM Delay 76 - - * - 10 8
One-Way Stop Control Queue 25' - - * - 25'

LOS A - - * - A
SAT Delay 77 - - * - 97

Queue 25' - - * - 25'
Lanes-> - 1 1 - 1 -

Node 300 Wh1tnall Edge Road & LOS - * A - B -
Proposed Dnveway PM Delay - * 78 - 11 5 -
One-Way Stop Control Queue - * 25' - 25' -

LOS - * A - B
SAT Delay - * 76 - 10 8

Queue - * 25' - 25' -
Lanes-> - 1 1 - 1 -

Node 400 Wh1tnall Edge Road & LOS - * A - B -
Retail Space Dnveway PM Delay - * 77 - 10 1 -
One-Way Stop Control Queue - * 25' - 25'

LOS - * A - A -
SAT Delay * 75 93

Queue * 25' - 25'
-) Indicates a movement that is prohibited or does not exist, () mndtcates a freeflowmovement
Delay s reported mn seconds Queue is the maximum of the 50th & 95th percentile queue, measured mn feet

Internal Site Queueing Analysis
To estimate the amount of internal storage required to accommodate the proposed Car Wash
facility, a queue analysis was completed for this study. As shown in Exhibit 2, with the internal
storage lanes as planned, approximately 24 vehicles can be stored at any specific time
while waiting to enter the car wash without backing up onto South Whitnall Edge Road.
Based on the trip generation estimates calculated as part of this study, about 55 vehicles
are expected during a typical weekday evening or Saturday midday peak hour.
Based on past studies completed, similar car washes are expected to have an operating
capacity of 3 to 4 vehicles/minute being washed. This equates to accommodating 180 to
240 vehicles per hour. Even if the capacity were as low as only 1 vehicles/minute, this
would equate to about 60 vehicles per hour.

Tsunami Express Car Wash TIA- Mukwonago, Wisconsin 6



TRAFFIC AN YSIS & DESIGN, IW(

For backups to occur, all vehicles would need to arnve within a short (15 to 30 minute)
period; however, the anticipated 55 vehicles are expected over the entire peak hour (60
minutes). Based on thus analysis, the design 1s expected to accommodate higher than peak
condition of queueing, which provides additional msurance of accommodating a peak
weekend queue scenario on the site.

RECOMMENDED MODIFICATIONS

Peak Hour Traffic Operations and Queues - With Modifications
Based on the analysis completed as part of this study, the following modifications, as shown on
Exhibit 8, are recommended to accommodate the Full Build (with development) traffic volumes.

Node 100. South Lovers Lane Road & Ald Drveway
• No modifications are recommended.

Node 200 South Whitnall Edge Road & Boucher VWDriveway
• No modifications are recommended.

Node 300 South htnall Edge Road& Proposed Driveway
• Provide a new full access driveway onto South Whitnall Edge Road as shown on the

site plan.

Node 400 South Whtnall Edge Road & Retal Center Driveway
• No modifications are recommended.

CONCLUSIONS
Based on the analysis completed as part of this study, higher delays are currently occurring and
are expected to continue to occur for some movements at the South Lovers Lane Road
intersection with South Whitnall Edge Road. However, with reasonable capacity ratios and
traffic signals located to the north and south creating gaps in the South Lovers Lane Road traffic
stream, this intersection is expected to operate better than reported by the modeling software. If
delays are higher than expected, regular users of this intersection may divert to adjacent
signalized intersections to access South Lovers Lane Road, or tum right onto Lovers Lane Road
at Whitnall Edge Road and make a U-tum at the College Avenue signalized intersection. If all
left-turn movements decided to do this, that is if no left-tum movements were allowed from
Whitnall Edge Road and all of these vehicles turned right to head upstream before completing a
U-turn movement at the adjacent intersection, the east and west approaches are expected to
operate acceptably at LOS C or better during both peak periods analyzed. In addition, minimal
additional delay and vehicle queues are expected at the existing and proposed driveways along
South Whitnall Edge Road. Therefore, with the recommended modifications as shown on Exhibit
8, all intersections are expected to operate safely under full build conditions.

Appendices

Appendix A- Traffic (Counts, Historic Hourly AADT Comparison, Trip Gen Comparison)
Appendix B- Existing Traffic Peak Hour Analysis Outputs
Appendix C- Full Build Traffic Peak Hour Analysis

Tsunami Express Car Wash TIA - Mukwonago, Wisconsin 7



,' / / /
.'/ "' /3$

..·/ ,l /
+ $ 'lo' '/ /
}
/ /
' I/ /
/ // ,,..

I ,r

/

✓·;' /
I
·'

/

TRAFFIC AI-IALYSIS& DESIGI-I, INC.

3333 ~ 09/24/24

N+.

l

I
I
I
I
I
I
I

LEGEND
@ Study Area Intersection

Proposed Site Location

EXHIBIT 1
PROJECT OVERVIEW MAP

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN



AS100

.,

...
111u
VI
VI.,

- ii
X
UJ

#

TADn
TRAFflC i\l,IALYIII & DESIGN, INC.
3333 ~ 09/24/24

N+
EXHIBIT 2

CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN



LEGEND

G Stop Sign Control
Existing Lane Configuration

XX' Existing Storage Length {in Feet)
XX' Distance Between Roadways {in Feet)
--- Divided Roadway Median

TAD»
IRAHIC A V A L ( S I S & D E S I G N , I N .

3333 - 09/24/24

N+~

NOT TO SCALE

EXHIBIT 3
EXISTING TRANSPORTATION DETAIL

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN



26 000

coocoo
-ono
uO
LO N O">
~ O") ~'.. t_115(125)

+------ ( - )
5(15)

LO LO

Jl _5(-)
+-----115 (135) +-----120 ( 135)

+-----105 ( 125)
15(10)

Whitnall Edge Road »s I1r,,10)201
( - ) _ ____. I I (115) 195
(-)5 "28%

, 0

-g
C) -
t:::.,

(115) 200» ' (70) 160
, (45)40~ I I

o o
~c-0

LEGEND

20 900

en
r
0<(D
ul
r
"'::I
(D

;:o
0
"'c..

XX PM Weekday Peak Hour (4:00 PM - 5:00 PM)
(XX) Saturday Midday Peak Hour (11·15AM-12:15 PM)
- Negligible Traffic Volumes (Fewer than 3 vph)

IX,XXXI 2021 Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT)

IRArflC /\IJALYSIS & OESIGI-I, INC.
3333 ~ 09/24/24

N+NOTTO SCALE

EXHIBIT 4A
EXISTING TRAFFIC VOLUMES

(RAW DATA)

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN



26 000

(115) 200----+ : (70) 160----+ ""' I
(45) 40 [

+--105 (125)
15(10)+--120 (135)

t 5(-)
«115(135)

LO LO

Jl
t_ 115 (125)
+---(-)
5(15)'I.

Whitnall Edge Road

20 900

U)
r
0<g
tJI
r
0
;;I
(I)

0
0
""C.

LEGEND
XX PM Weekday Peak Hour (4:00 PM - 5:00 PM)
(XX) Saturday Midday Peak Hour (1115 AM-12:15 PM)
- Negligible Traffic Volumes (Fewer than 3 vph)

IX,XXXI 2021 Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT)

TRAfflCMIALYSIS S, DESIGN, lrlC.
3333 ~ 09/24/24

N+NOT TO SCALE

EXHIBIT 48
EXISTING TRAFFIC VOLUMES

(FACTORED TO PRECONSTRUCTION VOLUMES)

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN



Exhibit 5
On-Site Trip Generation Table 1

¥ ITE PM Peak SAT Peak
Land Use Code Proposed Size In Out Total In Out Total

Automated Car Wasli TADI 1 Stalls
55 55 110 55 55 110

Total Driveway Trips 55 55 110 55 55 110
PM (SAT) Pass-by Trips TAD/ 25% (25%) -15 -15 -30 -15 -15 -30

Total Pass-by Trip Reduction -15 -15 -30 -15 -15 -30
Total New Trips 40 40 80 40 40 80
1 Volumes based on estimates from study completed for similar type car wash facility

TRIP DISTRIBUTION (New Trips)
North on STH 100 50% 20 20 20 20
South on STH 100 45% 20 20 20 20
East on Whitnall Edae Road 5% 0 0 0 0

100% 40 40 40 40

TRIP DISTRIBUTION [Pass-by Trips)
North on STH 100 (55%) {55%} 10 10 10 10
South on STH 100 (45%) {45%} 5 5 5 5

15 15 15 15

TAD
EXHIBIT 5

ON-SITE DEVELOPMENT
TRIP GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION TABLES

IRA!HIANALYSIS & D0ES1GM, IN.

3333 - 09/24/24
FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN



c..
.r:.e
Cl> >,
- ('CJ3□ Cl>- .Cl> ...
.r:.□

6 0
::::,

~ 0
0 Cl
N t 20 (20)l 20(20) +-- 40 (40)

Whitnall Edge Road ( (40) 40 (40)40 ~ •0 0
N "SI"

= 0
~ ±

CJ "'C CJ G').., lg
.., 0.)z < a(D (D

< 0 f (D
tJ) ::::,

0.) (D
«e" c.. '< "'C

CJ a5
N

(D 0.)<
(D

5
O
3
(D
::::,.....

en
r
0<(D..,
tJ)

r
0.)
::::,
(D

;;o
0
0.)
c..

LEGEND
xx PM Weekday Peak Hour (4:00 PM - 5:00 PM)
(XX) Saturday Midday Peak Hour (11·15AM-12:15 PM)
- Negligible Traffic Volumes (Fewer than 3 vph)

TADn EXHIBIT 6A
N NEW TRIPS+TRAHIC MIALYSIS & DESIGN, INC

3333 ~ 09/24/24 NOT TO SCALE

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN



C.
.s::.e
Cl> >,- "'3□ Cl>
s.... .:?:
Cl> ...

G .s::.□
0

CO ::I' 0e5 al
'~
5(5)ll 10 (10) +- 15 (15)

Whitnall Edge Road i( (15) 15 (15) 15 •o lD~
G inLu -!., ~

CJ "tJ CJ G)
::J. a .., 1:1)

< < a.(I) 3 (I)

< < (I)
rJ) ::I1:1) (I) 1:1)

'< C. < "'O

CJ ii,
N(I) 1:1)<

(I)

5
'O
3
(I);a.

en
r-
0<(I)..,
rJ)

r
1:1)
::I
(I)

;;o
0
1:1)
C.

LEGEND

xx PM Weekday Peak Hour (4:00 PM - 5:00 PM)
(XX) Saturday Midday Peak Hour (11 ·15 AM-12:15 PM)
- Negligible Traffic Volumes (Fewer than 3 vph)

17n EXHIBIT 6B
N PASS-BY TRIPS+TRAFflC MIALYSIS & DESIGN, lrlC.

3333 ~ 09/24/24 NOT TO SCALE

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN



0..
E
!!!
(I) >,

(3:ll ;:
Cl (I)- .(I) ...

6 .i::::O
0

O :::,'oo 0>5 Cl, o
25 (25)!l 30(30) +-- 55 (55)

Whitnall Edge Road i( (55) 55-----+ (55) 55 •I.{) I.{) I.{)

'N I.{)

i:o- in
' I.{) !::?..

a "'C a G>
::::!. g -, 0J
< < a.(1) (1)

:E 0 :E (1)
tJ> :::,

0J (1) 0J
'< 0.. '< "'C
a iii"

N(1) 0J<
(1)

5
"C
3
(1)

2

en
r
0<(1)
-,
tJ>
r
0J:::,
(1)

;:o
0
0J
0..

LEGEND

xx PM Weekday Peak Hour (4:00 PM - 5:00 PM)
(XX) Saturday Midday Peak Hour (1115 AM-12:15 PM)
- Negligible Traffic Volumes (Fewer than 3 vph)

TADn EXHIBIT 6C
N DRIVEWAY TRIPS+TRAHIC ,11,IALYSIS & DESIGM, INC.

3333 ~ 09/24/24 NOTTOSCALE

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN



0..
r
!!! z3
0 Q.)

6 - .Q.) ...
LO = O
t--M 0, :::J

LO LO - 0-~=
L 140 (150) @: CXIo I

r ]

Jtl +------ ( - ) LO LO
LS(-) +----- 120 ( 135) +-----105 ( 125)

,r---35 (45) Jl +-----170 (190) r-- -(-) 15(10)

Whitnall Edge Road (5)5_, I i r (10) 20_, (115) 200 ---+ (70) 160---+ II(-)----+ (170) 250---+ (55) 55 ~ (45) 40
(-)5 o o O II o o

_ex:, LO ~ C')
,o ocn.. r O
- LO LO ' ±=- LOex:, - 't:::., lo --!:12-

O "'O 0 G).., g ~- Q)z < a.(t) <D
:E 0 :E <D

IJ) :::J0,) (t) 0,)
'< 0.. '< "'O

O iii"
N<D 0,)<

<D
0
"'C
3
<D
:::J-

U)
r
0<(t)..,
IJ)

r
0,)
:::J
(t)

;;o
0
0,)
0..

LEGEND

xx PM Weekday Peak Hour (4:00 PM - 5:00 PM)
(XX) Saturday Midday Peak Hour (11·15AM-12:15 PM)
- Negligible Traffic Volumes (Fewer than 3 vph)

TADn EXHIBIT 7
N FULL BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES+TRAFFIC AJ.IALY\15& DESIGN, INC.

3333 - 09/24/24 NOT TO SCALE

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN



c..
.c
f!? z3
Cl Cl>- .Cl) ...
.c Cl
(,)

ha ::,
00 0
CJ] CXl

.J!! l to° A A ¢ v-
Whitnall Edge Road 4% ·t# ----4 -v r' t r

l I
00
CJ]

I Provide driveway as
shown on site plan

CJ ""O CJ G')
-, g -, ll)z < a.(1) (1)

:E 0 :E (1)
VI ::,

ll) (1) ll)
'< c.. '< ""O

CJ ii,
N(1) ll) .<

(1)

0
"C
3
(1)

2

en
r
0<(1)-,
VI
r
ll)
::,
(1)

0
0
"'c..

LEGEND
@ Stop Control
XX' Storage Length (In Feet)
-+ Existing or Proposed Lane Configuration--- Divided Roadway Median
BLUE Proposed Modifications

TAn EXHIBIT 8
N RECOMMENDED MODIFICATIONS+IRAFflC ANALYSIS & DESIGN, INC.

3333 - 09/24/24 NOTTO SCALE

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Request for the Common Council to approve the filing of
an application for a Unified Development Ordinance text
amendment for An Ordinance to amend $15-10.0102
Membership, of the Unified Development Ordinance to
Change the Plan Commission Membership to Remove the
City Engineer Member and in Place Thereof Provide an

Alderperson to Serve on the Plan Commission

MEETING
DATE

November 6, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

With regard to the Plan Commission membership, the Unified Development Ordinance states:
$15-10.0102 Membership
The City Plan Commission shall consist of the Mayor who shall be its presiding officer, an alderman appointed by
the Mayor and confirmed by the Common Council who shall serve for one year unless the office becomes vacant,
the City Engineer and four citizens, three appointed for three-year terms and one citizen appointed for a one-year
term. In the absence of the City Engineer ("absence" meaning and including, but not limited to the office of City
Engineer being vacant), the Assistant City Engineer shall serve in the membership position of the City Engineer on
the City Plan Commission.

In consideration of the offices of the City Engineer and the Assistant City Engineer currently being vacant, and that
akin to the other City Departments and Officers working upon development matters, i.e., the Planning Department,
the Economic Development Director, etc., the Engineering Department staff will be present at Plan Commission
meetings involving a subject matter upon which the Engineering Department has provided services to provide
information thereon, an amendment to the Plan Commission membership to be considered is as follows:
§15-10.0102 Membership
The City Plan Commission shall consist of the Mayor who shall be its presiding officer, twoan Aalderpersonsman
appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the Common Council who shall serve for one year unless the office
becomes vacant, the City Engineer and four citizens, three appointed for three-year terms and one citizen appointed
for a one-year term. In the absence of the City Engineer ("absence" meaning and including, but not limited to the
office of-City Engineer being vaeant), theAssistant City Engineer shall serve in the membership position of the City
Engineer on the City Plan Commission.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
A motion to approve the filing of an application for a Unified Development Ordinance text amendment for An
Ordinance to amend §15-10.0102 Membership, of the Unified Development Ordinance to Change the Plan
Commission Membership to Remove the City Engineer Member and in Place Thereof Provide an Alderperson to
Serve on the Plan Commission.

Mayor Nelson



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE
2023-2569, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE
2024 ANNUAL BUDGET FORTHE CAPITAL
OUTLAYFUND TO TRANSFER $6,262 OF
CONTINGENCYAPPROPRIATIONS TO

CAPITAL EQUIPMENT APPROPRIATIONS
FORTHE PURCHASE OF AREPLACEMENT

SURVEYCONTROLLER

MEETING DATE

November 6, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

Background

The Engineering Department utilizes surveying equipment on a daily basis for the benefit of other departments
and the public. Some daily activity includes construction staking, setting ofmanholes at correct elevations,
location of property lines, developing construction as-builts, determining limits of drainage issues, setting
culvert pipes, locating edges of flagged environmental features, etc. The Staff has ability to use this equipment
that would costs hundreds of thousands of dollars if these services were contracted to consultants.

A key component in the surveying capabilities are to utilize GPS technologies. The current GPS equipment
uses a controller for Staff to collect and retrieve data in the field. Back in September 2024, the current controller
fell while out in the field, at which time it was broken. A claim was submitted to our insurance provider at that
time. The cost of a replacement controller is $6,261.20. The City's insurance deductible is $1,000. Our
insurance provider sent a check to the City of Franklin for the remaining $5,261.20.

A budget amendment is needed to provide the funding appropriation for this unforeseen expenditure and allow
for the funding of the insurance deductible cost.

Recommendation
The Director of Finance & Treasurer recommends the proposed 2024 Budget Amendment to provide
appropriations to support the expenditure for the replacement survey controller.

Fiscal Note
The City of Franklin has a contingency fund with an appropriation of $10,000. This would leave $3,738 in
unused funds for the 2024 Annual Budget.

The GL Numbers associated with this amendment are:
Capital Outlay Fund
41-0199-5499 Unrestricted Contingency
41-0321-5819 Other Capital Equipment
41-0000-4781 Reimbursements/Refunds

Decrease
Increase
Increase

$6,262.00
$6,262.00
$5,262.00

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED
Motion adopting Ordinance No. 2024- . an Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2023-2569, an
Ordinance Adopting the 2024 Annual Budget for the Capital Outlay Fund to Transfer $6,262 of
Contingency Appropriations to Capital Equipment Appropriations for the Purchase of a Replacement
Survey Controller.

Roll Call Vote Required
Finance Dept - DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2024---

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2023-2569, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2024 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND TO TRANSFER

$6,262 OF CONTINGENCY APPROPRIATIONS TO CAPITAL EQUIPMENT
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE PURCHASE OF A REPLACEMENT SURVEY

CONTROLLER

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2024 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 28, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the 2024 Annual Budget appropriated $10,000 for unplanned and unexpected
expenses within the Capital Outlay Fund; and

WHEREAS, the Engineering Department's current GPS equipment fell while out in the
field and required a replacement; and

WHEREAS, the City's insurance provider approved a claim and submitted payment, above
the City's deductible, for the purchase of the replacing equipment; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council authorized $6,262 of Capital Outlay Fund contingency
appropriations for the purpose of the City's portion of the replacement equipment; and

WHEREAS, the Budget Appropriation Units should be adjusted for the above items as
listed below; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That the 2024 Capital Outlay Fund Budget be amended as follows:

Capital Outlay Fund
0199 Contingency
0321 Other Capital Equipment
0000 Refunds/Reimbursements

Decrease
Increase
Increase

$6,262
$6,262
$5,262

Section 2

Section 3

Pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 65.90(5)(ar), the City Clerk is hereby directed to post a
notice of this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this
Resolution on the City's web site.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, or otherwise be legally invalid or fail under the applicable rules of
law to take effect and be in force, the remaining terms and provisions shall
remain in full force and effect.



Section 4 All ordinances and parts ofordinances in contravention to this ordinance are hereby
repealed.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
_day of2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES -- ABSENT



SEILER
Seiler Instrument &
Manufacturing Co. Inc.
3433 Tree Court
Industrial Blvd.
Saint Louis MO 63122
United States

Invoice
#INV40066
#Sales Order #5038512

10/28/2024

Bill To
City of Franklin, WI
Engineering Department
9229 w. Loomis Road
Franklin w1 53132
United States

Ship To
ATTN:Engineering Department
Wisconsin
9755 Airways Court
Franklin w153132
United States

Customer ID
3717

Sales Rep
Stephen Grady

Customer Name
City of Franklin, WI

Shipping Method
Customer Pickup

Customer PO
Brad Dolan

Payment Terms
Net 30

Ship Date
10/28/2024

F.O.B

Due Date
11/27/2024

$1,364.00

$4,897.20

Extended PriceUnit Price

$1,364.00

$4,897.20

Ea

UOM

Ea

BCK

1

SHP

1

ORD

TSC7-2-1111-00
Trimble TSC7 controller?V2?- QWERTY keypad, USB/
Serial boot, NA/EMEA region, Standalone;Wisdot
Pricing 2024-2025 Trimble Access to be relinquished
from TSC7 SN DAD193700264
Serial Number(s): DAD241900298

EWLS-TA-LOYAL-STOCK
TPP - Loyalty Program - Trimble Access (12 month
expiration); Wisdot Pricing 2024-2025
Specs:DAD193700264

Item

++ orderSpecifications
City ofFranklin WITSC7 replacement20241011

Q00104726

Pay online at: www.sellergeo.com/billpay. Ifyou require assistance, please contact us at844-843-0058 or involcing@sellerlnst.com.
All credit card transactionswill be charged a 3% surcharge. Surcharge will not be applied to debit card transaction.

Buyer may not return any goodswithout Seller'swritten consent. All returns are subjectto a restocking fee/handllng charge, which may change
from time to time. Contact Seller to determine the exact amount.

This order Is subject to and governed by the Terms and Conditions ofSale referred to at bttpslbsellergeo com/general-terms-ad
conditions

We Invite you to participate In our Customer Satisfaction Survey •www sellergeo com/customer:satisfaction
Please reference Invoice numberon yourcheck and remit to: seller Instrument &Mfg. Co. Inc.

3433 Tree Court Industrial
St Louis, MO 63122

ELECTRONIC PAYMENT:
United Missouri Bank
Routing # 101000695
Swift Code: UMKCUS44
Account #: 9872643054

INTERNATIONAL
Swift Code UMKCUS44
Account #; 9872643054

Please remit payment USD - e-mall remittance advice details to accounting@seilerinst.com

II I I I Ill llll I I 11111111111111111
INV40066

1of2



SEILER
Seiler Instrument &
Manufacturing Co. Inc.
3433 Tree Court
Industrial Blvd.
Saint Louis MO 63122
United States

Invoice
#INV40066
#Sales Order #S038512

10/28/2024

APPROVED

Subtotal
Shipping Cost

Tax Total

Total

$6,261.20
$0.00
$0.00

$6,261,20

e > 5vaue- Cora.e_ To

2e> DAD cx LvsA HAS

/w> /SaA/cs Coecd TO oU-ts2 4

OE 74 Cos7 €cPT F2 oo2 ko
0 IE"()t,1 C r:rt3LJf£

+ order Specifications
City of Franklin WITSC7 replacement 20241011

Q00104726

Pay onllne at: www.sellergeo.com/billpay. Ifyou require assistance, please contact us at844-843-0058 or invoicing@sellerinst.com
All credit card transactionswill be charged a 3% surcharge. Surcharge will not be applied to debit card transaction.

Buyer may not return any goodswithout Seller'swritten consent. All returns are subjectto a restocking fee/handling charge, which may change
from time to time. Contact Seller to determine the exact amount

This order is subject to and governed by the Terms and Conditions ofSale referred to atbttps•//www seHergeo com/genera1-terms-and
conditions/

We invite you to participate In our Customer Satisfaction Survey -www sellergeo car/customer:-satisfaction
Please reference Invoice number on your check and remit to Seller Instrument & Mfg Co. Inc.

3433 Tree Court Industrial
St. Louis, MO 63122

ELECTRONIC PAYMENT:
United Missouri Bank
Routing #. 101000695
Swift Code· UMKCUS44
Account #: 9872643054

INTERNATIONAL
Swift Code: UMKCUS44
Account #: 9872643054

Please remit payment USO - e-mail remittance advice details to accounting@sellerinst.com

II II I Ill llll II 11111111111111111
INV40066

2 of2



From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:

Danielle Brown
Bradley Dolan
Lisa. tuening
RE: Trimble Survey Controller
Friday, October 25, 2024 11:53:00 AM

Brad,

Sorry in the delay. The account number should be 41-0321-5819.

Lisa - please use 41-0000-4781 as the code for the check you received from insurance.

Danelle [roww, M..A
Director of Finance &Treasurer

9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132
Direct Line: 414-427-7514

#Franklin
- ¥; $ • 0M 5 t N

From: Bradley Dolan <BDolan@franklinwi.gov>
Sent: Monday, October 21, 2024 2:22 PM
To: Danielle Brown <DBrown@franklinwi.gov>
Cc: Lisa Huening <LHuening@franklinwi.gov>
Subject: FW: Trimble Survey Controller
Importance: High

Danielle,

The controller is now ready to be replaced per Lisa and insurance coverage (less the $1000
deductible). Can you answer her question as to which account number the new controller will be
charged to???

Thanks,

Bradley S Dolan
Eng Tech/Survey
City of Franklin
414-425-7510 ext 7553
608-295-7021 cell

From: Lisa Huening
Sent: Monday, October 21, 2024 10:47 AM
To: Bradley Dolan <Dolan@franklnw1.gov>
Subject: Trimble Survey Controller
Importance: High



Hi Brad,

You can go ahead and order the Trimble TSC7 controller that you sent me a quote on for
replacement of the one that fell.

I just received a check in the amount of $5,261.20 from our insurance. Our deductible 1s $1,000. So
this matches the quote amount of $6,261.20.

Please let me know what account number the new controller will be charged to so that I can deposit
the insurance check into that account.

They never responded to my email when I sent in the claim - they just sent the check so sorry I
didn't have you go ahead and order the controller sooner.

Thanks

Lisa

Lusa Huening
City of Franklin
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132
414-858-1100

pee
Franklin

WISCONSIN



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

An Ordinance to amend $10-12 Personnel Committee, B.
Composition and C. Term, to Remove Two of the

Alderperson Membership Positions

MEETING
DATE

November 6, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

With regard to the Personnel Committee membership, the Municipal Code 10-12 states in part:
B. Composition. The Personnel Committee shall be comprised of nine members appointed by the Mayor and
confirmed by the Common Council. Three of the members shall be Aldermen. The Director of Administration and
Human Resources Coordinator shall provide staff assistance to the Committee.
C. Term. Common Council members shall serve during their term of elected office and the terms of the Common
Council members shall expire, without regard to the qualification of any successor, upon the expiration of the
respective term of elected office during which the Common Council member was appointed, or earlier upon the
vacancy of such office. The initial terms of the remaining six members shall be as follows: two members shall serve
for three years, two members shall serve for two years, and two members shall serve for one year; thereafter, the
term of each such member shall be three years. The members of the Personnel Committee may be removed for cause
by the Mayor, with the approval of the Common Council.

In consideration of the fact that the Personnel Committee duties and obligations have reduced over the years due to
changes in laws and such applicable to governmental employees, including, but not limited to 2011 Wisconsin Act
10, and the substantial amount of services time that Alderpersons have to provide in their Offices, including to other
Boards, Commissions and Committees, an amendment to the Personnel Committee membership in Municipal Code
§ 10-12 is proposed as follows:
B. Composition. The Personnel Committee shall be comprised of nine members appointed by the Mayor and
confirmed by the Common Council. OneThree of the members shall be an Alderpersonmen. Two of the
Alderpersons serving on the Committee as of the date of enactment of this Ordinance are serving Committee terms
that expire on April 14, 2025, and such Alderpersons may, at his or her option continue to be a voting Alderperson
member of the Committee until the expiration of his or her term. An Aldermanic member desiring to so serve shall
notify the City Clerk of the exercise of such option in writing within 30 days of the enactment of this Ordinance;
otherwise, he or she shall not be a member of the Committee. The number of the Committee's voting members shall
be temporarilv increased for the balance of such opting Alderperson members' terms existing as of the date of the
enactment of this Ordinance and shall decrease upon the expiration of such terms. The Director of Administration
and Human Resources ManagerCoordinator shall provide staff assistance to the Committee.
C. Term. The Common Council members shall serve during their member's term of elected office and the terms of
the Common Council members shall expire, without regard to the qualification of any successor, upon the expiration
of the respective term of elected office during which the Common Council member was appointed, or earlier upon
the vacancy of such office. The initial terms of the remaining six members shall be as follows: two members shall
serve for three years, two members shall serve for two years, and two members shall serve for one year; thereafter,
the term of each such member shall be three years. The members of the Personnel Committee may be removed for
cause by the Mayor, with the approval of the Common Council.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
A motion to adopt An Ordinance to amend §10-12 Personnel Committee, B. Composition and C. Term, to Change
Two of the Alderperson Membership Positions to Citizen Membership Positions.

Mayor Nelson



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCENO. 2024

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
draft 11/1/24

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND $10-12 PERSONNEL COMMITTEE, B. COMPOSITION
AND C. TERM, TO REMOVE TWO OF THE ALDERPERSON

MEMBERSHIP POSITIONS

WHEREAS, Personnel Committee duties and obligations have reduced over the years
due to changes in laws and such applicable to governmental employees, including, but not
limited to 2011 Wisconsin Act 1 O; and

WHEREAS, Alderpersons have to provide a substantial amount of services time in their
Offices, including to other Boards, Commissions and Committees; and

WHEREAS, the current composition of the Personnel Committee membership includes
three Alderpersons, and the reduction of those Alderperson positions to one Alderperson member
will assist in the services needs of those Alderperson Offices and for other City Boards,
Commissions and Committees.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1: $10-12 Personnel Committee, B. Composition and C. Term, are hereby
amended to read as follows [note: deletions appear in strike-through text;
additions appear in underlined text; unchanged text is not highlighted]:.

B. Composition. The Personnel Committee shall be comprised of nine
members appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the Common Council.
One'Three of the members shall be an Alderpersonmen. Two of the
Alderpersons serving on the Committee as of the date of enactment of this
Ordinance are serving Committee terms that expire on April 14, 2025, and
such Alderpersons may, at his or her option continue to be a voting
Alderperson member of the Committee until the expiration of his or her term.
An Aldermanic member desiring to so serve shall notify the City Clerk of the
exercise of such option in writing within 30 days of the enactment of this
Ordinance; otherwise, he or she shall not be a member of the Committee.
The number of the Committee's voting members shall be temporarily
increased for the balance of such opting Alderperson members' terms existing
as of the date of the enactment of this Ordinance and shall decrease upon the
expiration of such terms. The Director of Administration and Human
Resources ManagerCoordinator shall provide staff assistance to the
Committee.
C. Term. The Common Council members shall serve during their member's
term of elected office and the terms of the Common Council members shall
expire, without regard to the qualification of any successor, upon the



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-
Page 2

expiration of the respective term of elected office during which the Common
Council member was appointed, or earlier upon the vacancy of such office.
The initial terms of the remaining six members shall be as follows: two
members shall serve for three years, two members shall serve for two years,
and two members shall serve for one year; thereafter, the term of each such
member shall be three years. The members of the Personnel Committee may
be removed for cause by the Mayor, with the approval of the Common
Council.

SECTION 2:

SECTION 3:

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 4: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage
and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of2024, by Alderman _

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to
Execute a Development Agreement for Public
Infrastructure Improvements with Franklin
Public Schools at 8429West Forest Hill Avenue

Tax key no. 838-9978-001

MTG.DATE
Nov. 6, 2024

ITEM NO.
Aid. Dist. 2

BACKGROUND
Pursuant to the approval of a site plan for Franklin Public Schools at 8429 West Forest
Hill Avenue, it is necessary to enter into a development agreement for public
infrastructure improvements on the site.

ANALYSIS
This agreement provides for the necessary public infrastructure for the development. It
includes work on a public water main and a fire hydrant on the site.

OPTIONS
It is recommended that the Common Council approve the enclosed standard form of the
development agreement with specific items contained in Exhibit "E" attached.

FISCAL NOTE
Contingencies are accepted with percentages and are included in the financial
guarantee.

RECOMMENDATION
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2024- , a resolution authorizing certain officials
to execute a development agreement for public infrastructure improvements with
Franklin Public Schools at 8429 West Forest Hill Avenue, TKN 838 9978 001.

Engineering Department: RMA



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2024----

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO EXECUTE A
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

WITH FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS FOR
8429 WEST FOREST HILL AVENUE, TKN 838 9978 001

WHEREAS, the Developer, Franklin Public Schools., is ready to proceed with the
development at 8429 West Forest Hill Avenue, and it is necessary to enter into a
Development Agreement for public infrastructure improvements associated with the
development; and

WHEREAS, the Developer will make and install, or have made and have installed,
any public improvements reasonably necessary, to wit: water system, as provided in the
Development Agreement; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City ofFranklin to provide an orderly,
planned development; and

WHEREAS, the developer is willing to install the improvements provided for in the
Development Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute
the Development Agreement on behalf of the City with Franklin Public Schools.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is directed to record the
Development Agreement with the Register ofDeeds for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council on the day of
,2024 by Alderman

Passed and adopted by the Common Council on the
,2024,

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-- -- --

day of



CITY OFFRANKLIN

WISCONSIN

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

FOR

FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS - CERC BUILDINGADDITION
8429 West Forest Hill Avenue

September 2025

1



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS - CERC BUILDING ADDITION

ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT (THIS "Agreement") made and entered into this _
day of 2024, by and between Franklm Public Schools, a public school
district, hereinafter called the "Developer" as party of the first part, and the City of Franklin, a
municipal corporation of Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, party of the second part, hereinafter
called the "City".

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Developer desires to improve and develop certam lands located in the
City as described on attached Exhibit "A" (the "Development"), and for that purpose cause the
mstallation of certain public improvements, hereinafter described in this Agreement and the
exhibits hereto (the 'Improvements"), and

WHEREAS, the Developer havmg applied to the City for a Site Plan for a car wash, and
the approval[s] thereof by the City of Franklin providing that as a condition of approving the
Development, that the Developer make and mstall, or have made and have installed, any public
improvements reasonably necessary, to wit: water mam, including pipe, fittings, valves, hydrants
and other water appurtenances; and

WHEREAS, the public works schedule and budget of the City does not now include the
Improvements for the Development and normally there would be a considerable delay mn the
mstallation of the Improvements unless this Agreement 1s entered into by the parties; and

WHEREAS, the City believes that the orderly planned development of the Development
will best promote the health, safety and general welfare of the community, and hence is walling
to approve the Development provided the Developer proceed with the mstallation of the
Improvements in and as may be required for the Development, on the terms and conditions set
forth in this Agreement and the exhibits attached hereto.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the payment of One Dollar ($1.00) and other
good and valuable consideration to each in hand pa1d by the other, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged and in consideration of the mutual covenants herem contained, the parties agree:

1. The legal description of the Development is set forth on attached Exhibit "A".

2. The improvements aforementioned shall be as described m Exhibit "B" except as
noted in Exhibit "E".

3. The Developer shall prepare plans and specifications for the aforesaid
Improvements, under direction of the City Engineer, and to be approved by the
City Engineer. After receiving the City's approval thereof, the Developer shall

2



take bids, and award contracts (the Improvements Contracts") for and mstall all
of the improvements in accordance with standard engineering and pubhc works
practices, and the applicable statutes of the State of Wisconsmn. The
Improvements shall be based on the construction specifications stated mn attached
Exhibit "F".

4. The full cost of the Improvements will include all labor, equipment, material,
engineering, surveying, inspection and overhead costs necessary or incidental to
completing the Improvements (collectively the "Improvements Costs"). Payment
for the Improvements Costs will be made by the Developer periodically as the
Improvements are completed as provided in the Improvements Contracts. The
total estimated cost of the Improvements is (IN WORDS) one hundred forty-six
thousand and 00/100 Dollars as itemized m attached Exhibit "D".

5. To assure compliance with all of Developer's obligations under this Agreement,
prior to the issuance of any building permits, the Developer shall file with the
City a Financial Guarantee (the "Financial Guarantee", wh1ch may be ether in the
form of a Letter of Credit or a Performance Bond and such form shall be the
choice of the Developer) in the mitial amount of $146,000, representing the
estimated costs for the Improvements as shown in attached Exhibit "D". Upon
the written approval of the City Engineer, the amount of the Fmancial Guarantee
may be reduced periodically as the Improvements are paid for and approved by
the City so that following each such reduction, the Fmnanc1al Guarantee equals the
total amount remaining for Improvements Costs pertammg to Improvements for
which Developer has not paid as set forth in the Improvements Contracts for the
Improvements or which remain unapproved by the City. The Financial Guarantee
shall be issued by a bank or other financial institution (the "Surety Guarantee
Issuer") reasonably satisfactory to the City, for the City as "Beneficiary", in a
form satisfactory to the City Attorney. Failure to file the Financial Guarantee
within ten (10) days after written demand by the City to the Developer shall make
and render this Agreement null and void, at the election of the City. Upon
acceptance by the City (as described below) of and payment by Developer for all
the completed Improvements, the Financial Guarantee shall be released and
surrendered by the City to the Developer, and thereafter the Developer shall have
no further obligation to provide the Financial Guarantee to the City under this
Paragraph 5., except as set forth under Paragraph 13. below.

6. In the event the Developer fails to pay the required amount for the Improvements
or services enumerated herein within thirty (30) days or per contract after being
billed for each improvement of each stage for any Improvement Costs at the time
and in the manner provided mn this Agreement, and 1f amounts remain unpaid after
an additional thirty (30) days written notice to Developer, the City may notify the
Guarantee Issuer m writmg to make the said payments under the terms of the
Financial Guarantee to the Contractor, within the later of the time frame stipulated
1n the Financial Guarantee or five (5) days after receiving a written demand from
the City to make such payment. Demand shall be sent by registered letter with a

3



return receipt requested, addressed to the Surety Guarantee Issuer at the address
mdicated on the Fmancial Guarantee, with a copy to the Developer, described in
Paragraph five (5) above. It is understood between the parties to this Agreement,
that billings for the Improvement Costs shall take place as the various segments
and sections of the Improvements are completed and certified by the City
Engineer as complying with the approved plans and applicable provisions of the
Franklin Municipal Code.

In addit10n, the City Engineer may demand that the Financial Guarantee be
extended from time to time to provide that the Financial Guarantee be in force
until such time that all improvements have been installed and accepted through
the one (l) year guarantee period as set forth under Paragraph 13. below,
including the fourteen (14) months following substantial completion of the
Improvements and 10% limitations also set forth thereunder. For the purposes of
this Agreement, "Substantial Completion" is defined as bemg the date that the
bmder course of asphalt is placed on the pubhc roadway of the Development.
Demand for said extension shall be sent by regstered letter with a return receipt,
with a copy to the Developer. If said Financial Guarantee is not extended for a
minimum of a one (1) year period prior to expiration date of the Financial
Guarantee (subject to any then applicable of the aforementioned limitations), the
City may send written notice to the Surety Guarantee Issuer to make payment of
the remainmg balance of the Financial Guarantee to the Caty to be placed as an
escrow deposit.

7. The following special provisions shall apply:

(a) Those special provisions as itemized on attached Exhibit "C" and attached
Exhibit "E" are hereby incorporated by reference in this Agreement and
made a part hereof as if fully set forth herein.

(b) To the extent necessary to accommodate pubhc utilities easements on the
Development, easements will be dedicated for the use of the Electric
Company, the Telephone Company and Cable Company to provide utility
services to the Development. All utilities shall be underground except for
any existing utility poles/lines.

(c) Fee title to all of the Improvements and binding easements upon lands on
which they are located, shall be dedicated and given by the Developer to
the City, in form and content as required by the City, without recourse,
and free and clear of all liens or encumbrances, with final inspection and
approval of the Improvements and accompanying title and easement
documents by the City constituting acceptance of such dedication. The
Improvements shall thereafter be under the jurisdiction of, the City and the
City shall maintain, at the City's expense, all of the Improvements after
completion and acceptance thereof by the City. Necessary penmts shall
be obtamed for all work described mn this Agreement.

4



8. The Developer agrees that it shall be fully responsible for all the Improvements in
the Development and appurtenances thereto durmg the period the Improvements
are being constructed and continuing until the Improvements are accepted by the
City (the "Construction Period"). Damages that may occur to the Improvements
dunng the Construction Period shall be replaced or repaired by the Developer.
The Developer's obligations under this Paragraph 8., as to any improvement,
terminates upon acceptance of that improvement by the City.

9. The Developer shall take all reasonable precautions to protect persons and
property of others on or adjacent to the Development from injury or damage
during the Construction Period. This duty to protect shall include the duty to
provide, place and maintain at and about the Development, lights and barricades
during the Construction Penod.

10. If the persons or property of others sustain loss, damage or inJury resulting
directly or indirectly from the work of the Developer or its subcontractors or
materialmen mn their performance of this Agreement or from its failure to comply
with any of the provisions of this Agreement or of law, the Developer shall
indemnify and hold the City harmless from any and all clamms and judgments for
damages, and from costs and expenses to which the City may be subjected or
wh1ch 1t may suffer or incur by reason thereof, provided; however, that the City
shall prov1de to the Developer promptly, in writing, notice of the alleged loss,
damage or mjury.

11. Except as otherwise provided in Paragraph 12. below, the Developer shall
indemnify and save harmless the City, its officers, agents and employees, and
shall defend the same, from and against any and all liability, claims, loss,
damages, interest, actions, smts, judgments, costs, expenses, and attorneys' fees,
to whomsoever owed and by whomsoever and whenever brought or obtained,
which in any manner results from or arises in connection with:

(a) the negligent or willfully wrongful performance of this Agreement by the
Developer or any subcontractor retained by the Developer;

(b) the neghgent or willfully wrongful construction of the Improvements by
the Developer or by any of said subcontractors;

(c) the negligent or willfully wrongful operation of the Improvements by the
Developer during the Construction Period;

(d) the violation by the Developer or by any of said subcontractors of any
applicable law, rule, regulation, order or ordinance; or

(e) the infringement by the Developer or by any of said subcontractors of any
patent, trademark, trade name or copyright.

5



12. Anythmg in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the Developer shall
not be obligated to indemnify the City or the City's officers, agents or employees
(collectively the "Indemnified Parties") from any liability, claim, loss, damage,
mterest, action, suit, judgment, cost, expenses or attorney's fees which anse from
or as a result of the negligence or willful misconduct of any of the Indemnified
Parties.

13. The Developer hereby guarantees that the Improvements will be free of defects m
material and/or workmanship for a period of one (1) year from the date of
acceptance of the Improvements by the City. To secure the Developer's
obligations under said guarantyupon acceptance of the Improvements by the City,
the Developer will provide to the City a Financial Guarantee equal to 1 0% of the
sub-total in Exhibit "D of the total Improvements Costs, which Financial
Guarantee shall expire one (1) year after the Improvements have been accepted by
the City or continue the existing base Financial Guarantee maintaming a
minimum of 10% of the sub-total in Exhibit "D" of the total Improvements Costs
for one (1) year after the improvements have been accepted by the City. This
Fmancial Guarantee shall be a partial continuation of, and not in addition to, the
Fmancial Guarantee described in Paragraph 5. above.

14. (a) The Developer shall not commence work on the Improvements until 1t
has obtained all insurance coverage required under this Paragraph 14. and has
filed certificates thereof with the City:

A. General/Commercial Liabihty $2,000,000 per each occurrence for bodily
inJury, personal injury, and property damage
$4,000,000 per general aggregate,

CITY shall be named as an addtonal nsured
on a primary, non-contributory basis

B. Automobile L1ability $1,000,000 combined smngle l1mat

CITYshall be named as an addtonal nsured
on a primary, non-contrbutory bass

C. Contractor's Pollution Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence
$2,000,000 aggregate

CITYshall be named as an additional insured
on a prmary, non-contrbutory bass

6



D. Umbrella or Excess Lab1l1ty $10,000,000 per occurrence for bodily mnyury,
Coverage for personal mJury, and property
General/Commercal, Automobile
Liability, and Contractor's CITY shall be named as an addtonal insured
Pollution Liabl1ty on a prmary, non-contrbutory bass
E. Worker's Compensation and Statutory
Employers' Liabihty Contractor wllprovde a waver ofsubrogaton

and/or any rights ofrecovery allowed under any
workers' compensation law

F. Profess1onal L1ability (Errors $2,000,000 single limit
& Omissions)

(b) The Developer shall file a certificate of msurance containing a thirty (30) day
notice of cancellation to the City prior to any cancellation or change of said
insurance coverage which coverage amounts shall not be reduced by claims not
arising from this Agreement.

15. The Developer shall not be released or discharged of its obligations under this
Agreement unttl the City has completed its final mspection of all the
Improvements and the City has issued its written approval of all of the
Improvements, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed,
and Developer has paid all of the Improvements Costs, at which time the
Developer shall have no further obligations under this Agreement except for the
one (1) year guaranty under Paragraph 13.

16. The Developer and the City hereby agree that the cost and value of the
Improvements will become an integral part of the value of the Development and
that no future lot assessments or other types of special assessments of any kind
will be made agamst the Development by the Developer or by the City for the
benefit of the Developer, to recoup or obtain the reimbursement of any
Improvement Costs for the Developer.

1 7. Execution and performance of this Agreement shall be accepted by the City as
adequate provision for the Improvements required by the City Engineer.

18. Penalties for Developer's failure to perform any or all parts of this Agreement
shall be in accordance with Division 15-9.0500, Violations, Penalties, and
Remedies of the Unified Development Ordinance and § 1-19. Penalty provisions
of the City of Franklin Municipal Code, as amended from time to time, in addition
to any other remedies provided by law or in equity so that the City may obtain
Developer's compliance with the terms ofth1s Agreement as necessary.

This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and
assigns, exceptmg that the parties hereto do not otherwise intend the terms or provisions of this
Agreement to be enforceable by or provide any benefit to any person or entity other than the

7



party of the first part and the party of the second part. Developer shall not convey or ass1gn any
of its rights or obligations under this contract whatsoever without the written consent of the City,
which shall not be unreasonably withheld upon a showing that any successor or ass1gnee is
ready, w1lhng and able to fully perform the terms hereof and the Developer remams liable
hereunder. This Agreement shall run with the land.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank. Signatures are on the following pages.]

8



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said party of the first part has set its hand and seal and the
said party of the second part has caused these presents to be duly executed by John R. Nelson,
Mayor, and Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk, and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed as of the
day and year first above written.

SEALED IN PRESENCE OF:

Franklin Public Schools

By: _
Name: ----------Title:-----------

Party of the First Part

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)ss.

COUNTY )

Personally came before me thus(day) of 20 the
above named of and
acknowledged that [she/he] executed the foregoing instrument as such officer as the deed of said
________________ by its authority.

(type

or
This mstrument was acknowledged before me on (date)
by (name(s) of person(s)) as

of authority, e.g., officer, trustee, etc.) of
_________________ (name of party on behalf of whom instrument
was executed).

Notary Public,County, WI
( )
My commiss1on expires.

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By: _
Name: John R. Nelson
Title: Mayor

COUNTERSIGNED·

By: _
Name: Shirley J. Roberts
Title: City Clerk

9



Party of the Second Part

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)ss.

COUNTY )

Personally came before me this __ day of _, 20_, the
above named John R. Nelson, Mayor, and Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk, of the above named
municipal corporation, City of Franklin, to me known to be such Mayor and City Clerk of said
municipal corporation, and acknowledged that they had executed the foregoing mstrument as
such officers as the Deed of said municipal corporation by its authority and pursuant to
Resolution No. _, adopted by its Common Council on the day of
----------~20_.

Notary Public, Milwaukee County, WI
( )
My commission expires: _

This instrument was drafted by the City Engineer for the City of Franklin.

Form approved:

Jesse A. Wesolowski, City Attorney

10



Exhibit A

Exhibit B

Exhibit C

Exhibit D

Exhibit E

Exhibit F

INDEX OF EXHIBITS
TO

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS - CERC BUILDING ADDITION

Legal Description of Development

General Description of Required Development Improvements

General Development Requirements

Estimated Improvement Costs

Additional Development Requirements

Construction Specifications

11



EXHIBIT IIA II
TO

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS - CERC BUILDING ADDITION

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
OF DEVELOPMENT

Being a part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 and all of the Northwest 1/4 of the
Southeast 1/4 of Section 16, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Wisconsin,
described as follows:

Commencing at the West 1/4 corner of Section 16, Township 5 North Range 21 East;

Thence N 88"27'55"E along the North line of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 16, 2324.22 feet
to the point of beginning (POB) of the parcel to be described;

Thence continuing N 88°27'55"E along said North line, 330.00 feet to the Center 1/4 corner of
said Section 16;

Thence N 8841'25"E along the North line of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 16, 1328.67 feet
to the Northeast corner of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 16;

Thence S 00°32'07"E along the East line of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of said
Section 16, 1321.89 feet to the Southeast corner thereof;

Thence S 88°33'02"W along the South line of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of said
Section 16, 1328.90 feet to the Southwest corner thereof;

Thence S 88°29'03"W along the South line of the Northeast¼ of the Southwest 1/4 of said
Section 16, 330.00 feet to the Southeast corner of Parcel 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 5979;

Thence N 00°31'39"W along the East line of said Parcel 2, 689.00 feet to the Southeast corner
of Parcel 1 of said Certified Survey Map No. 5979;

Thence S 88°29'03"W along the South line of said Parcel 1, 330.00 feet to the Southwest corner
thereof;

Thence N 00"31'38"W along the West line of said Parcel 1, 465.89 feet;

Thence N 88°27'55"E along the West line of said Parcel 1, 225.00 feet;

Thence N 00°31'39"W along the West line of said Parcel 1, 125.02 feet to the Northwest corner
of said Parcel 1, said point also bemng the South right-of-way line of West Forest Hill Avenue;

12



Thence N 88°27'55"E along the North line of said Parcel 1 and said South right-of-way line,
105.00 feet to the Northeast corner of said Parcel 1;

Thence N 00°31'39"W, 45.01 feet to a point on the North line of the Southwest 1/4 of said
Section 16;

Thence N 88°27'55"E along said North line, 330.00 feet to the point of beginning.

Containing 2,362,553 Square Feet-54.237 acres

13



EXHIBIT "B"
TO

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS - CERC BUILDING ADDITION

GENERAL DESCRIPTION
OF

REQUIRED DEVELOPMENT
IMPROVEMENTS

Descript1on of improvements required to be installed to develop the [name of development]
Development.

S Denotes contract for improvements to be awarded, financed and paid
for by the Developer in lieu of special assessments.

C Denotes contract for improvements to be awarded by the City, but
financed and paid for by the Developer in accordance with this
agreement.

(N.A.) Denotes improvement is not required to be mstalled m the
Development.

( 1) Denotes that the City is to pay for a portion of the improvement, in
accordance with thus agreement, as computed by the City Engineer.

General Description of Improvements
(refer to additional sheets for concise breakdown)

1. Grading and erosion control within the Development mn conformance with S
the approved grading and erosion control plans.

2. Water main and fittings on the site and/or easements in the Development, *S
to such size and extent as determmed by the master water plan and/or the
City Engineer as necessary to provide adequate service for the final
Development and service area.

3. Laterals and appurtenances from sanitary sewer main to the site and/or *S
buildings in accordance with the plans approved by the City Engineer.

4. Water system as approved by the City Engineer.

14

S



5. Laterals and appurtenances from water main to the site and/or buildings in *S
accordance with the plans approved by the City Engineer.

6. Hydrants and appui1enances provided and spaced to adequately service *S
the area and as the City shall require.

7.

8.

Engineering, planning and administration services as approved.

Title evidence on all conveyances.

15

*S

*S



EXHIBIT "C"
TO

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS - CERC BUILDING ADDITION

i GENERAL DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS I
I. GENERAL

A. All improvements shall be installed in accordance with all City specifications and
ordinances.

II. WATER SYSTEM

A. Availability

1. Fire hydrants shall be available to the City's Fire and Public Works
Departments, and both City Departments shall have free and unlimited use
of the water.

B. Construction

1. All construction shall be in accordance with the specifications of the City.

2. Inspection of the work shall be at the Developer's expense.

3. Mains and appurtenances mcluding all pipe, hydrants, gate valves, laterals
and curb stop boxes shall be installed.

III. STORM DRAINAGE

A. Components

1. Storm drainage through and within the Development shall be provided by
means of storm sewer that shall connect to the private regional storm
water management pond for the Development. The City, at the
determination of the City Engineer, may have the storm drainage system
reviewed by a consultant engineer at the Developer's cost.

B. Responsibility ofDischarged Water

1. If the Developer of the Development will, in the opinion of the City
Engineer, cause water problems downstream from the Development which

16



will reasonably reqmre special consideration, the Developer shall comply
with such terms as the City Engineer may require to prevent these
problems. Said terms shall be made part of those documents under the
section titled "Special Provisions".

IV. EASEMENTS

A. Water main

1. All public water main and fire hydrants shall dedicate to the public m a
20-foot wide water mamn easement.

V. PERMITS ISSUED

B. Occupancy Perm1ts

1. No occupancy permits shall be issued until:

a) The water system 1s installed, tested and approved.

b) The site is stabilized.

VI. DEED RESTRICTIONS

A. A Financial Guarantee approved by the City Attorney mn the full amount of all
non-assessable improvements not yet installed and approved as of the date of this
Agreement shall be submitted to the City before any permits are issued.

B. The time of completion of improvements.

1. The Developer shall take all action necessary so as to have all the
improvements specified in thus Agreement installed and approved by the
City before two years from the date of this agreement.

2. Should the Developer fail to take said action by said date, it is agreed that
the City, at its option and at the expense of the Developer, may cause the
installation of or the correction of any deficiencies in said improvements.

VII. CHARGES FOR SERVICES BY THE CITY OF FRANKLIN

A. Fee for Checking and Revew

At the time of submitting the plans and specifications for the construction of the
Development improvements, a fee equal to two-and-one-fourth percent (2%) of
the cost of the improvements as estimated by the City Engmeer at the time of
subm1ss1on of improvement plans and specifications, to partially cover the cost to

17



the City of checking and reviewing such plans and specifications provided that
cost does not exceed $250,000.00; a fee equal to one-and-three-fourth percent (1¾
%) of such cost, if the cost is in excess of $250,000.00, but not m excess of
$500,000.00; and one-and-one-fourth percent (1¼ %) of said cost in excess of
$500,000.00. At the demand of the Developer or City Engineer, the fee may be
recomputed after the work 1s done in accordance with the actual cost of such
improvements and the difference, 1f any, shall be paid by or remitted to the
Developer. Evidence of cost shall be m such detail and form as required by the
Caty Engineer.

B. For the services of testing labs, consulting engineers and other personnel, the
Developer agrees to pay the City the actual charge plus five (5%) percent for
admmistration and overhead.

18



EXHIBIT "D"
TO

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS - CERC BUILDING ADDITION

ESTIMATED IMPROVEMENT COSTS

All improvement costs, including but not limited to preparation of plans, installation of facilities
and inspection shall be borne by the Developer in accordance with Paragraph (4) of this
Agreement.

Sa1d costs for the project are estimated to be as follows:

DESCRIPTION COSTS
Grading -ROW (including Erosion Control) $40,000

Samtary System NIA

Water System $10,000

Storm Sewer System $15,000

Paving (including sidewalk) $25,000

Street Trees ( x $400llot) NIA

Street Lights ( ) @ approximately $5,000lea. NIA

Street Signs NIA

Underground Electric, Gas and Telephone NIA

Retention Basin $25,000

SUBTOTAL $115,000

EngmeeringlConsulting Services NIA

Municipal Services $8.000
(7% of Subtotal)

Contingency Fund $23,000
(20% of Subtotal)

TOTAL: $146,000

APPROVED BY: Date·
Mike Paulos, Interim City Engmeer

19



EXHIBIT "E""
TO

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS - CERC BUILDING ADDITION

ADDITIONAL DEVELOPMENT
REQUIREMENTS

1. The Developer shall cause all grading, excavations, open cuts, side slopes and other land
surface disturbances to be so mulched, seeded, sodded or otherwise protected that
erosion, siltation, sedimentation and washing are prevented in accordance with the plans
and specifications approved by the City Engineer as outlined in $$15-8.0203H.1. through
5. of the Unified Development Ordinance.

2. The Developer shall be responsible for cleaning up the debris that has blown from
buildings under construct1on within the Development. The Developer shall clean up all
debris within forty-eight (48) hours after receiving a notice from the City Engineer.

3. The Developer shall be responsible for cleaning up the mud and dirt on the roadways
until such time as the final lift of asphalt has been installed. The Developer shall clean
the roadways withmn forty-eight (48) hours after recervmng a notice from the City
Engineer.

4. Pror to commencing site grading, the Developer shall submit for approval by the Caty
Engmeer an erosion and silt control plan. Said plan shall provide sufficient control of the
site to prevent siltation downstream from the site. The Developer shall mamtam the
erosion and siltation control until such time that vegetation sufficient to equal pre
ex1sting conditions has been established.

5. The Developer has the obligation to cut weeds to conform to the City's noxious weed
ordinance.

6. Construction Requirements:

a) Durmg construction, all vehicles and equipment shall park on the site. Parking shall
not be permitted on any external public right-of-way.

20



EXHIBIT "R"
TO

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS - CERC BUILDING ADDITION

CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS

The following specifications shall be used for the construction of the various improvements.

ITEM SPECIFICATION

Water Mains STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR
SEWER AND WATER CONSTRUCTION
IN WISCONSIN, most current edrtion
CITY OF FRANKLIN

21



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution for Acceptance of a Water Main
Easement at Franklin Public Schools, Franklin,

Wl. Tax key no. 838-9978-001

MTG. DATE
Nov. 6, 2024

ITEM NO.
Ald. Dist.2

15.
BACKGROUND
Pursuant to the approval of a building addition and recreational facilities at Franklin Public
Schools (8429 West Forest Hill Avenue), an easement is required to construct, maintain,
and operate water main facilities. A water main easement must be installed on the 8429
West Forest Hill Avenue, TKN 838 9978 001 property.

ANALYSIS
It is recommended that the Common Council authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign
the water main easement and record it with the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County.

OPTIONS
Accept the easement
or
Other directions to Staff

FISCAL NOTE
There is no fiscal impact related to this acceptance.

RECOMMENDATION
Motion to adopt Resolution 2024-a resolution authorizing certain officials to
accept the Water Main Easement on property owned by Franklin Public Schools at 8429
West Forest Hill Avenue, TKN 838 9978 001.

Engineering Department: RMA



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2024---

A RESOLUTION FOR ACCEPTANCE OF A WATERMAIN EASEMENT AT
FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS, TKN 838 9978 001

WHEREAS, an easement is required to construct, maintain, and operate public water
main facilities on the property located at 8429 West Forest Hill Avenue and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to install said easement on said property and

WHEREAS, an easement is necessary to allow the City the right of entry in and
across the easement area to access and maintain public water main facilities.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin that it would be in the best interest of the City to accept said easement.
Therefore, the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute the
easement, accepting it on behalf of the City.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk will record said easement with the
Register ofDeeds for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin, the
day of> 2024, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-- -- --



Document Number Water Main Easement

THIS INDENTURE, made by and between the CITY OF FRANKLIN, a
municipal corporation of the State of Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as
"City," and FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS, owner, (including heirs,
executors, administrators, successors and assigns of above owner(s) as may
be or maybecome applicable), hereinafter called"Grantor," (Ifmore thanone
grantor is listed above, said language herein referring thereto shall be
interpreted in the plural and refer jointly and severally to such grantors).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner and holder of record Title to
certain real property described on Exhibit "A" which is attached hereto
and incorporated herein (the Property); and

WHEREAS, the City desires to acquire a permanent easement
with the right of entry in and across the property hereinafter described
with the right to build and construct and/or operate, maintain, repair,
enlarge, reconstruct, relocate and inspect as may be or may become
applicable the following facilities and appurtenances thereto,
hereinafter called "Facilities," in, upon and across said portion of the
property; a water main, including pipe, fittings, valves, hydrants and
other water appurtenances, all as shown on the plan attached hereto as
Exhibit "B"; and

Name and Return Address:
City ofFranklin
Attn: Kyle Baker
9229 W Loomis Rd
Franklin, WI 53132

PIN: 838997800 \

WHEREAS, the initial construction, installation, permitting, and payment for construction inspection
services of the Facilities shall be made by Grantor at Grantor's expense and the Facilities shall be the property of
the City and be deemed dedicated to the City upon the City's inspection and approval of the Facilities as installed,
subject to the terms and conditions set forth below:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration ofthe grant of the easement hereinafter described and the payment
of One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable considerations to the Granter, receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged,
said Granter, being the owner and person interested in the land hereinafter described does hereby grant unto the
City a permanent easement in that part oftheNorthwest Quarter-Quarter Section ofthe Southeast Quarter Section
of Section Sixteen (16), Township Five (5) North, Range Twenty-one (21) East, in the City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, more particularly described on Exhibit C attached hereto (the "Easement Area").

UPON CONDITION

1. That said Facilities shall be maintained and kept in good order and condition by the City, and/or its
contractors. Responsibility for maintaining the ground cover and landscaping within the Fasement Area
shall be that of the Grantor (including heirs, executors, admini strators, successors and assigns).

2. That in and during whatever construction, reconstruction, enlargement or repair work is or becomes
necessary in constructing and/or maintaining of said Facilities, so much of the surface or subsurface of
the property as may be disturbed will be backfilled by the City in substantially the same elevation as it
was prior to such disturbance. Grantor shall be fully responsible for efforts and costs for replacing all
pavements, turf, landscape, aesthetic plantings or other surface improvements. However, the City shall
save harmless the Granter from any loss, damage, injury or liability resulting from negligence on the part
of the City in connection with said work involved in constructing and/or maintaining of said Facilities;
provided that if above loss, damage, injury or liability results from the joint negligence of parties hereto,
then the liability therefore shall be borne by them in proportion to their respective degree of negligence;
provided further, however, that these provisions are subject to the legal defenses which under law the City

Page-1



is entitled to raise excepting the defense of so-called "sovereign immunity."

3. That no structuremay be placedwithin the limits ofthe easementby theGrantor except that improvements
such as walks, pavements for driveways and parking lot surfacing may be constructed or placed within
the Easement Area.

4. That, in connectionwith the construction by the grantor ofany structure or building abutting said easement
defined limits, the Grantor will assume all liability for any damage to the Facilities in the above described
property. The Grantor will also save and keep the City clear and harmless from any claims for personal
injuries or property damage caused by any negligence of the Grantor or person other than the Grantor,
arising out of the construction by the Grantor of any structure or building abutting the said easement
defined limits, and shall reimburse the City for the full amount of such loss or damage.

5. Charges will be made against said lands for the cost ofmaintenance or operation of said Facilities in the
afore-described property. Costs shall be computed with actual City employee wages with benefits,
materials used, rental equipment, and contractor invoices, if applicable. Payment for services are due
within 30-days of invoice to Grantor and unpaid invoices are subject interest and penalties and past-due
balances are also subject to adding to the annual tax bill for the subject parcels.

6. Whenever the Grantor makes application for a service connection, the regular and customary service
connection charge in effect at the time ofthe application shall be charged and paid. The Grantor shall be
responsible for the routine maintenance ofland on which the easement is located.

7. All conditions pertaining to the "Maintenance ofWater Service Piping" as set forth in Chapter 5.12 ofthe
"Rules and Regulations Governing Water Service" and subsequent amendments thereto shall apply to all
water services which are within the easement defined limits and also within the limits of any adjoining
easements; except that the City ofFranklinWater Utility, a utility owned by the City ofFranklin shall in
no case be responsible for maintaining at its expense any portion of said water services outside of the
easement defined limits and outside the limits of any adjoining easements regardless of any statement to
the contrary in said "Rules and Regulations Governing Water Service."

8. The Facilities shall be accessible for maintenance by the City at all times. The Grantor shall submit plans
for approval to the City Engineer for any underground installation within the Easement Area, which
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

9. That the Grantor shall submit plans for all surface alterations ofplus or minus 1 foot or greater within the
limits of said easement. Said alterations shall be made only with the approval of the City Engineer of the
City of Franklin, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

10. The City and Grantor shall each use, and take reasonable measures to cause their employees, officers,
customers, agents, contractors and assigns to use, the EasementArea in a reasonable manner and so as not
to obstruct or otherwise use the Easement Area in a manner that would unreasonably interfere with the
use thereofby the other partyhereto or its employees, officers, customers, agents, contractors and assigns.

•
11. The City and Grantor each hereby waives all rights of subrogation that either has or may hereafter have

against the other for any damage to the EasementArea or any other real or personal property or to persons
covered by such party's insurance, but only to the extent of the waiving party's insurance coverage;
provided, however, that the foregoingwaivers shall not invalidate anypolicy ofinsurance nowor hereafter
issued, it being hereby agreed that such a waiver shall not apply in any case which would result in the
invalidation of any such policy of insurance and that each party shall notify the other if such party's
insurance would be so invalidated.

12. Either party hereto may enforce this easement by appropriate action, and should it prevail in such
litigation, that party shall be entitled to recover, as part of its costs, reasonable attorneys' fees.

13. This easement may not be modified or amended, except by a writing executed and delivered by the City
and Grantor or their respective successors and assigns.

Page-2-



14. No waiver of, acquiescence in, or consent to any breach of any term, covenant, or condition hereof shall
be construed as, or constitute, a waiver of, acquiescence in, or consent to any other, further, or succeeding
breach of the same or any other term, covenant, or condition.

15. If any term or provision of this easement shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable under applicable
law, then the remaining terms and provisions of this easement shall not be affected thereby, and each such
remaining term and provision shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by applicable
law.

16. This easement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the State of
Wisconsin.

17. It is understood that in the event the Property may become portions of public streets; in which event, in
the proceedings for the acquisition of the property needed for such streets by purchase, dedication or by
condemnation, said lands shall be considered the same as though this easement had not been executed or
any rights granted thereby exercised.

18. That the Grantor shall submit as-built drawings of the installed facilities for approval to the City Engineer,
which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed.

Page-3 -



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has hereunto set its hands and seals

ONTHISDATEOF: 6~ 1/ U)1,.Lj
r~ Pu~l,"t. Jtlv,d;;.

Company Name

Fnalkn 2lit, $kolsComrre Printed .,---

<.2.hr,, Es» &pils
Mod.- Croy (set grok.dt

Nam'e'lrltle Printed l

STATE or L)co»s
,"-. - ss

COUNTYOF '\Y> .. \,:)S)..,,.,~::e,_

Before me personallypaj9th } ;;:'- day of ll:,Jok,.--- , 20.£:/., the above named","P4 . His. $poi»b».le-rrPasta Poi»is Schools
(N e printe ) (Title)
to me known to be the person{s) who executed the foregoing EASEMENT and acknowledged the same as the

rs sw7en"""f,s E·:....- fb,t,' ..:!!,,,.V •• ••• "-'..t\ ~ l\ l .;°' ··r z s A s 2AAel «w" 4 3 Noey Pone= . .s. - .z-. ( )= ; ' o :-3 _J(. \....·ye oe8' 43 My commission expires \ -r al
~ ·•.. •.• 0 E
~ d" •••• •••••tl':'-(j .§•is _ ..i'\"'.,..*o.' l:: Of ._.,. "'* CITY OF FRANKLIN"aaaiws"

By: _
John R. Nelson, Mayor

By: _
Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN
ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE

On this__ day of__..,....,,.,2) before me personally appeared John R. Nelson and Shirley
J. Roberts who being by me duly sworn, did say that they are respectively the Mayor and City Clerk of Franklin,
and that the seal affixed to said instrument is the corporate seal of said municipal corporation, and acknowledged
that they executed the foregoing assignment as such officers as the deed of said municipal corporation by its
authority, and pursuant to Resolution File No. adopted by its Common Council on _
_____,20_.

Notary Public _
( )
My commission expires _

Page-4-



Exhibit A
(Description of the Property)

Being a part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 and all of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of
Section 16, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Wisconsin, described as follows:

Commencing at the West 1/4 comer of Section 16, Township 5 North Range 21 East;

Thence N 88°27 '55"E along the North line of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 16, 2324.22 feet to the point of
beginning (POB) of the parcel to be described;

Thence continuing N 88°27'55"E along said North line, 330.00 feet to the Center 1/4 comer of said Section 16;

Thence N 88°41 '25"E along the North line of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 16, 1328.67 feet to the
Northeast comer of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 16;

Thence S 00°32'07"E along the East line of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 16, 1321.89
feet to the Southeast comer thereof;

Thence S 88°33'02"W along the South line of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 16,
1328.90 feet to the Southwest comer thereof;

Thence S 88°29'03"W along the South line of the Northeast¼ of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 16,330.00
feet to the Southeast comer of Parcel 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 5979;

Thence N 00°31 '39"W along the East line of said Parcel 2, 689.00 feet to the Southeast comer of Parcel 1 of
said Certified Survey Map No. 5979;

Thence S 88°29'03"W along the South line of said Parcel 1, 330.00 feet to the Southwest comer thereof;

Thence N 00°3 l '38"W along the West line of said Parcel 1, 465.89 feet;

Thence N 88°27'55''E along the West line of said Parcel 1,225.00 feet;

Thence N 00°31 '39"W along the West line of said Parcel 1, 125.02 feet to the Northwest comer of said Parcel
1, said point also being the South right-of-way line ofWest Forest Hill Avenue;

Thence N 88°27'55"E along the North line of said Parcel 1 and said South right-of-way line, 105.00 feet to the
Northeast comer of said Parcel 1;

Thence N 00°31 '39"W, 45.01 feet to a point on the North line of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 16;

Thence N 88°27'55"E along said North line, 330.00 feet to the point of beginning.

Containing: 2,362,553 Square Feet- 54.237 acres

Page-5-



EXHIBIT B - DEPICTION OF THE FACLITIES

DOC. NO. 4439683

I:tLlNESEI/
I~llbjJi ,bzz

I

#
51/4CORNER
SEC. 16-5-21

:3 !" I
v 1

2
Ill

'L-al
DOC.NO.
10906530

PARCEL NO 8389978001

oc. NO
,ooo659°

PARCEL 1csws@n

EXISTING 20' WIDE
WATER EASEMENT-

PER DOC. NO. 10946313 j 7L,

PARCEL NO 8389978001

C1/4CORNER
Wl/4 CORNER R/W SEC 16-5-21

: I I'( • , CROSS HATCHED:8 EXISTING 20 WIDE AREA IS PROPOSED
PARCEL 1} PARCEL? i] WATER EASEMENT 45' WIDE DEDICATION
------- I ----- l uu PER DOC. N0.10946313

1 I • I

es "1; 0 (

?I I IL------------J,· N89°28'26" E------- fS.()(f I

201x{s• WATER EASEMENT AREA
I

S 003134" E
20.0p

'S 89"28'26"W
15.00' I

I
I
I
I
I

L-t-7

BASIS FOR BEARINGS
1llE NORTHLINE OF 11Ul SWt/4 OF SEC. 16,
T.5N, R.2tE,WHICH BEARS N 88"27'55"EAS
REFERENCED TO 1llEWISCONSIN STATE
PLANECRD SYSTEM, SOUTH ZONE,NAD27.

LEGEND

EASEMENT CORNER
® (NOT MONUMENI'ED)
A MAGNAB.. FOUND

"'" BRASS CAP IN CONC. FOUND
() RECORDED AS

0' 100'--r 200'

i

I.

Point efBeginning

Land Surveying
Civil Engineering

Landscape Architecture

Jordan G. Brost, PLS #3009
4941 KirschlingCourt

Stevens Point Wl.54481
715.344.9999 (PH) 715.344.9922 (FX)

1"==100'

FIELDWORK COMPLETED 0006/20
DRAWN: TDP CHECKED: _KGB

FIELDBOOK _36_ PAGE 4243
JOBNO: 23.423

CLIENT/ OWNER

FRANKUN PUBLIC SCHOOL
8255 WFOREST AVENUE
FRANKIJN , WI 53132

SHEET10F2

G-7



EXHIBIT C - LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE EASEMENT

Water EasementArea LegalDescription:
Being a part ofParcel 1 ofCertified Survey Map No. 5979, located in part ofthe Northeast 1/4 ofthe
Southwest 1/4 of Section 16, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, the
following easement described as follows:

Commencing at the West 1/4 comer ofSection 16, Township 5North, Range 21 East;

Thence N 88°27'55" E along the North line ofthe Southwest 1/4 ofsaid Section 16, 2242.66 feet to the
intersection ofsaid North line and the northerly extension ofthe East line ofan existing 20' wide water easement as
recorded in Document No. 10946313;

Thence S 0031'34 E along said Northerly extension and along the East line ofan existing 20' wide water easement as
recorded in Document No. 10946313, 195.23 feet to the Point ofBeginning (P.O.B.) ofthe easement area to be described;

Thence N 8928'26 E, 15.00 feet;

Thence S 00°31 '34" E, 20.00 feet;

Thence S 89°28'26" W, 15.00 feet;

Thence N 00°31 '34" W, 20.00 feet to the Point ofBeginning.

Containing 300 Square Feet (0.007 Acres).

CLIENT / OWNER --,

FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOL
82SS W FORESTAVENUE
FRANKLIN, w1 53132

SHEET 2 OF 2 A

q f FIELDWORK COMPLETED 0/06/20

DRAWN: TOP CHECKED:_IGB_5 Land Surveying
Civil Engineering

LandscapeArchitecture
Jordan G. Brost, PLS #3009

4941 Kischmingcourt FIELD BOOK _3S_ PAGE 42-43
Stevens Point Wl544111 23.423

Point sf Beginning 4 4 715.344.9999 (PH) 715.344.9922(Ex) A A JOB NO:
iiiiiii iiiiiiiiniiiiiiii

G-8





APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution for Acceptance of a StormWater
Facilities Maintenance Agreement and a Storm
Water Management Access Easement for 8429
West Forest Hill Avenue, TKN 838 9978 001

MTG.DATE
Nov. 6, 2024

ITEM NO.
Aid. Dist. 2

MA.4eo.
BACKGROUND
The City of Franklin, Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District (MMSD), and Wisconsin
Department ofNatural Resources (WDNR) require stormwater management facilities for any
developments meeting thresholds defined in their individual ordinances and rules. These
facilities, as designed, may be for quantity or quality control. In the City of Franklin, these are
typically wet ponds, biofiltration basins, and/or permeable pavers, although other best
management practices (BMPs) are also available. As an MMSD customer designated by the
WDNR as a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System, the City's Ordinance is written to meet
city quantity requirements, MMSD quantity requirements, and WDNR quantity and quality
requirements. The facilities within private developments are involved in those credits.
Therefore, ongoing maintenance of private facilities is imperative.

The development/property owner or a subdivision homeowners association is responsible for
maintaining the stormwater facilities in perpetuity per a prescribed maintenance agreement. The
access easement allows the City the right of entry in and across the easement area to access the
stormwater management facilities and, if needed, inspect, maintain, or repair them.

The property owner of 8429 West Forest Hill Avenue (Franklin Public School) is required to
install green infrastructure improvements because the building will include more than 5,000
square feet of impervious surface. To account for the new impervious surface, a bioretention
basin will be constructed as the stormwater management facility onsite.

ANALYSIS
The Common Council is asked to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the stormwater
facilities maintenance agreement and the stormwater management access easement and record
them with the Register ofDeeds for Milwaukee County.

FISCAL NOTE
As stated in the individual agreement, the development/property owner or homeowner's
association must pay all stormwater facility maintenance costs.

RECOMMENDATION
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2024-aresolution for acceptance of a stormwater
facilities maintenance agreement and a stormwater management access easement for 8429 West
Forest Hill Avenue TKN 838 9978 001

Engineering Department: RMA



STATE OFWISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTIONNO. 2024

A RESOLUTION FOR ACCEPTANCE OF A
STORMWATER FACILITIES MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT AND A

STORMWATERMANAGEMENT ACCESS EASEMENT
FOR 8429 WEST FOREST HILL AVENUE, TKN 838 9978 001

WHEREAS, storm water facilities are required to meet quantity and quality standards;
and

WHEREAS, a storm water facilities maintenance agreement is developed and executed to
ensure effective maintenance and operation ofprivate storm water facilities in perpetuity; and

WHEREAS, a storm water management access easement is necessary to allow the City
right of entry in and across the easement area to access the storm water management facilities.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin that it would be in the best interest of the City to accept such Storm Water Facilities
Maintenance Agreement and Storm Water Management Access Easement, and, therefore, the
Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute them on behalf of the City.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is directed to record said maintenance
agreement and access easement with the Register ofDeeds for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day 0f 2024, by Alderman _

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of,2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-- --



Document Number

Storm Water Facilities
Maintenance Agreement

This AGREEMENT, made and entered into thisday of
20_,by and between Franklin Public Schools, hereinafter called
the "Owner", and the City ofFranklin, hereinafter called the "City".

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Owner is the owner of the following described
lands situated in the City of Franklin, County ofMilwaukee, State of
Wisconsin, to-wit:

Being a part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 and all of the
Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 16, Township 5 North,
Range 21 East, City ofFranklin, Wisconsin, described as follows:

Commencing at the West 1/4 comer of Section 16, Township 5 North
Range 21 East;
ThenceN 88°27'55"E along theNorth line ofthe Southwest 1/4 ofsaid
Section 16, 2324.22 feet to the point ofbeginning (POB) of the parcel
to be described;
Thence continuing N 88°27'55"E along saidNorth line, 330.00 feet to
the Center 1/4 comer of said Section 16;
Thence N 88°41 '25"E along theNorth line ofthe Southeast 1/4 ofsaid
Section 16, 1328.67 feet to the Northeast comer of the Northwest 1/4
of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 16;
Thence S 00°32'07"E along the East line of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast
1/4 of said Section 16, 1321.89 feet to the Southeast comer thereof;
Thence S 88°33'02"W along the South line oftheNorthwest 1/4 ofthe Southeast 1/4 of said Section 16, 1328.90
feet to the Southwest comer thereof;
Thence S 88°29'03"W along the South line of theNortheast¼ of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 16, 330.00
feet to the Southeast comer ofParcel 2 ofCertified SurveyMap No. 5979;
ThenceN 00°3 l '39"W along the East line ofsaid Parcel 2, 689.00 feet to the Southeast comer ofParcel 1 ofsaid
Certified Survey Map No. 5979;
Thence S 88°29'03"W along the South line of said Parcel 1,330.00 feet to the Southwest comer thereof;
Thence N 00°31 '38"W along the West line of said Parcel 1, 465.89 feet;
Thence N 88°27'55"E along the West line of said Parcel 1,225.00 feet;
Thence N 00°31 '39"W along the West line ofsaid Parcel 1, 125.02 feet to theNorthwest comer of said Parcel 1,
said point also being the South right-of-way line ofWest ForestHillAvenue;
Thence N 88°27'55"E along the North line of said Parcel 1 and said South right-of-way line, 105.00 feet to the
Northeast comer of said Parcel 1;
Thence N 0031'39"W, 45.01 feet to a point on theNorth line ofthe Southwest 1/4 of said Section 16;
Thence N 88°27'55"E along saidNorth line, 330.00 feet to the point ofbeginning.

Containing: 2,362,553 Square Feet- 54.237 acres

Hereinafter called the "Property".

WHEREAS, the Owner is developing the Property; and

WHEREAS, the Site Plan known as the Franklin CERC Building Addition, hereinafter called the "Plan",
which is expresslymade aparthereof, as approved or to be approvedby the city, provides for on-site StormWater
Facilities within the confines of the Property as shown on the plan attached hereto as Exhibit "B and more
particularly described on Exhibit "C"; and

WHEREAS, the City and the Owner, its successors and assigns ("successors and assigns" meaning to
include any homeowners' association and all owners of the property or any portion thereof), including any

Q-1

PIN: 838997800\

Name and Return Addregs:
City ofFranklin
Attn: Kyle Baker
9229WLoomis Rd
Franklin, WI 53132



homeowners association, agree that the health, safety, and welfare of the residents of the City of Frankl in, require
that on-site Storm Water Facilities as defined in Section 15-8.0600 Unified Development Ordinance of the City
of Franklin be constructed and maintained on the Property; and

WHEREAS, the City requires that on-site storm water management practices as shown on the Plan be
constructed and adequately maintained by the Owner, its successors and assigns.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, the mutual covenants contained herein,
and the following terms and conditions, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. The on-site storm water facilities shall be constructed by the Owner in accordance with the plans and
specifications which are identified as part of the storm water management plan dated 04/29/2024 and
erosion control plan dated 05/01/2024 approved by the City Engineer and submitted as part of the as-built
drawings approved by the City Engineer. Fountains and/or aerators shall not be installed in any ponds
without prior written approval from the City Engineer.

2. The Owner, its successors and assigns, shall comply with the ordinances and regulations which require
that the Storm Water Facilities shall be regularly inspected and maintained as often as conditions may
require, but in any event, at least once each year. The Standard Operation and Maintenance Report
attached to this agreement as Exhibit "A" and by this reference made a part hereof shall be used for the
purpose of the regular inspections of the Storm Water Facilities. The Owners, its successors and assigns,
shall keep the Operation and Maintenance Reports from past inspections, as well as a log of maintenance
activity indicating the date and type ofmaintenance completed of the Storm Water Facilities. The purpose
of the inspections is to assure safe and proper functioning of the facilities. The inspections shall cover all
storm water facilities, including but not limited to open swales (ditches), storm sewers, manholes, inlets,
berms, outlet structures, pond areas and access roads. Deficiencies shall be noted in the Operation and
Maintenance Report. The Reports and maintenance log shall be made available to the City for review.

3. The Owner, its successors and assigns, hereby grant permission to the City, its authorized agents and
employees, to enter upon the Property and to inspect the Storm Water Facilities, whenever the City deems
necessary . The purpose of inspection is to provide periodic review by City staff, to investigate reported
deficiencies and/or to respond to citizen complaints. The City shall provide the Owner, its successors and
assigns, copies of the inspection findings and a directive to commence with the repairs if necessary.
Corrective actions shall be taken within a reasonable time frame as established by the City Engineer.

4. The Owner, its successors and assigns, shall adequately maintain the Storm Water Facilities, including
but not limited to all pipes and channels built to convey storm water to the facility, as well as all structures,
improvements, and vegetation provided to control the quantity and quality of the storm water. Adequate
maintenance is herein defined as keeping the Storm Water Facilities in good working condition so that
these·"storm water facilities are performing their design functions and are in accordance with the
Stormwater Basin Maintenance Standards as detailed in Section 15.8.0600 of the City of Frankl in Unified
Development Ordinance, and Section 13.12 (2) of the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District
(MMSD) rules, and by this reference made a part hereof.

5. If the Owner, its successors and assigns fails to maintain the Storm Water Facilities in good working
condition acceptable to the City and does not perform the required corrective actions in a time as
established by the City Engineer in written notice, the City may:

a)

b)

Issue a citation to the Owner, its successors and assigns. Such failure constitutes a violation of
Section 15.8.0600 of the Unified Development Ordinance of the City of Franklin. The penalty for
such violation of Section 15.8.0600 shall be not less than $100 nor more than $2500 for each offense,
together with the costs of prosecution. Each day that the violation exists shall constitute a separate
offense, and
Perform the corrective actions identified in the inspection report and assess the Owner, its successors
and assigns, for the cost of such work. The cost of such work shall be specially charged against the
Property pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.0627. If the facilities are located on an outlot
owned collectively by a homeowners association, the City may specially charge each member of the
homeowners association according to the ownership interest in the facilities located on the property.
this provision shall not be construed to allow the City to erect any structure of permanent nature on

Q-2



the land of the Owner outside of the easement for the Storm Water Facilities. It is expressly
understood and agreed that the City is under no obligation to routinely maintain or repair said storm
water management practices and in no event shall this Agreement be construed to impose any such
obligation on the City.

6. In the event the City, pursuant to this Agreement and applicable easements performs work of an
emergency nature, or expends any funds in performance of said work for labor, use of equiprent, supplies,
materials, and the like, the Owner, its successors and assigns, shall reimburse the City upon demand,
within thirty (30) days of receipt thereof for all actual costs incurred by the City hereunder.

7. This Agreement imposes no liability of any kind whatsoever on the City and the Owner agrees to
indemnify and hold the City harmless from any liability in the event the Storm Water Facilities fail to
operate properly.

}

8. This Agreement shall be attached as an exhibit to any document which creates a homeowners association
that is responsible for maintenance of the Storm Water Facilities and shallbe recorded at the Milwaukee
County Register ofDeeds, and shall constitute a covenant running with the land, and shall be binding on
the Owner, its administrators, executors, assigns, heirs and any other successors in interest, including any
homeowners association and all owners of the property or any portion. thereof. The owner shall provide
the City with a copy of any document which creates a homeowners association that is responsible for the
Storm Water Facilities.

9. The owner, its successors and assigns, is prohibited from building structures, installing play equipment,
installing plants, changing grades or performing any function that inhibits care and maintenance of any
Storm Water Facilities.

10. The owner, its successor and assigns shall maintain, at all times, an individual(s) who will serve as a
contact person(s).

Q-3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Owner have set forth their hands and seals, effective the date first above
written.

SEALED IN PRESENCE OF:

STATE OF WISCONSIN)ss.
p{A)a,zCOUNTY)

, Personally came before me this )? aw or lhkbr ,204,he above namedEa-.I' 1
, · •~,mme known to be the personwho executed the foregoing instrument and

acknowledged '1 ..~lif.~lt.,.acity indicated.
.t~~~"J •••• ••• ~~ ~ ~ •vs° %-;-%e?} wY Y a s.sa els,ii • izi NotaryPolio,p1,2 County, WI
± ! u" vi )
\ ~~•... •♦-♦♦~9I My commissionspires:l--A-l
g " ·" $2255%¢~,,,,,.,,i"\1111111.-~ CITY OF FRANKLIN

By:
Name: John R. Nelson
Title: Mayor

COUNTERSIGNED:
By:
Name: Shirley J. Roberts
Title: City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN)ss.
MILWAUKEE COUNTY)

Personally came beforeme thisdayof _, 20_, the above named John R.
Nelson, Mayor and Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk, of the above namedmunicipal corporation, City of Franklin, to me
known to be suchMayor andCity Clerk of saidmunicipal corporation, and acknowledged that they had executed the
foregoing instrument as such officers as the Deed of saidmunicipal corporation by its authority and pursuant to the
Resolution File No. adoptedby its CommonCouncil on this day of___, 20_.

Notary Public, Milwaukee County, WI
( )
My commission expires: _

This instrument was draftedby the City Engineer for the City of Franklin.
Form approved: _

Jesse A.Wesolowski, City Attorney

Q-4

____________(Seal)

____________(Seal)



EXHIBIT "A"

OPERATIONAND MAINTENANCE INSPECTION REPORT
STORMWATERMANAGEMENT PONDS

City ofFranklin

Name ofDevelopment _

Responsible Party Name______________ Address _

Telephone No. FaxNo, E-mail
Inspector Name______________ Address _

Telephone No. FaxNo. E-mail
Basin Location General Address Section No.------------ ------'---
Normal Pool D Yes DNo

Items inspected Checked Maintenance Remarks
(Pond components) (Yes/No/NA) Needed

(Yes/No/NA)
1. Embankment and Emergency spillway

1. Vegetation and ground coveradequate
2. Embankment erosion
3. Animal burrows
4. Unauthorized plantings
5. Cracking, bulging, or sliding ofdam

1. Unstream face
2. Downstream face
3. At or beyond toe
Upstream
Downstream

4. Emergency spillway
6. Pond, toe & chimney drains functioning
7. Seens/leaks on downstream face
8. Slope protection or riprap failures
9. Emergency spillway clear ofdebris
10. Other (specifv)

2. Riser and principal spillway
Type: Reinforced concrete --Corrugated metalpipe --PVC/HDPE --Masonrv
1. Low flow orifice obstructed
2. Primary outlet structure

1. Debris removal necessarv
2. Corrosion control

3. Trash rack maintenance
1. Debris removal necessarv
2. Corrosion control

3. Pond bottom
Sediment or debris buildup in low flow
Pilot channel or bottom(estimate denth)

Page -5



200'

;

s 22°49'04" w
76.00'

o· too•

HM

BASIS FOR BEARINGS

THE NORTHLINE OF THE SW4 OF SEC. 16,
T.SN,R.2E, WHICH BEARS N 882755E AS
REFERENCEDTO 11IEWISCONSIN STATE
PLANE CRD SYSTEM, SOUTH ZONE, NAD27.

PARCEL NO 8889978001

S 5657'58 W
74.10°I

I

±
I

S1/4CORNER
SEC. 16-5-21

%
I-

1
? sgg :••''En NO. 4439683

19.19' I

N01°21'08" W 1

1852'~ /S 81°43'02" E
N 43%3852 E = 57.04'

14.11' . . .• . . ~-
N88%38'52 E I . , '

42.52 ~=.1

DOC.NO.
10906530

PARCEL NO 8889978001

o EASEMENT CORNER
(NOT MONUMENillD)

A MAG NAIL FOUND
-0- BRASS CAP IN CONC.FOUND
() RECORDED AS

LEGEND

EXHIBIT B - DEPICTION OF THE FACILITIES
I I
I I

I
_P~~EU J'j\~~E'=...~ : fOREST MEADOWS ADDITION

I I

Wl/4 CORNER Cl/4 CORNER CSM I # 4567 { /4coNER {1;~------;_Q_~----~~- +--Ai~--~-1-{~~~-~ ------

pc/7pg
\ co CROSS HATCHED
1 ~ I AREA IS PROPOSED
I LO I ~ 45'WIDE DEDICATION

' 1I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

t..---r7
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

SHEETlOF2

CLIENT/ OWNER

FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOL
8255 W FORESTAVENUE
FRANKLIN, W1 53132

1 = 100

FIEID BOOK 36_ PAGE 42-43
JOBNO: 23.423

FIEIDWORK COMPLETED 01/06/20
DRAWN: 1DP CHECKED: _1GB_

Land Surveying
Civil Engineering

LandscapeArchitecture
Jordan G. Brost, PLS #3009

4941 Kirschling Court
Stevens Point WI 54481

715.344.9999 (PH) 715.344.9922 (FX)
#

Point efBeglnnlng

Q-8



EXHIBIT C- DESCRIPTION OF THE EASEMENT

Storm Water ManagementEasementArea LegalDescription:
Being a part ofthe Northeast 1/4 ofthe Southwest 1/4 and a part ofthe Northwest 1/4 ofthe Southeast 1/4, ail in Section
16, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, the following easement described
as follows:

Commencing at the West 1/4 corner ofSection 16, Township 5North, Range 21 East;

Thence N 882755E along the North line ofthe Southwest 1/4 ofsaid Section 16, 2654.22 feet to the
Center 1/4 Comerofsaid Section 16;

Thence S 04°34'04" E, 390.22 feet to the Point ofBeginning (P.O.B.) ofthe easement area to be described;

Thence S 81 °43'02" E, 57.04 feet;

Thence S 22°49'04" W, 76.00 feet;

Thence S 56°57'58" W, 74.10 feet;

Thence N 27°16'44" W, 60.92 feet;

Thence N 02°34'22" W, 19.96 feet;

Thence N 88°3 8'52" E, 42.52 feet;

Thence N 43°38'52" E, 14.11 feet;

Thence N 01 °21'08" W, 18.52 feet;

Thence N 3916'59 E, 19.19 feet to the Point ofBeginning.

Containing 7,438 Square Feet (0.171 Acres).

CLIENT/ OWNER

FRANKLINPUBLIC SCHOOL
8255 W FORESTAVENUE
FRANKLIN, w1 53132

SHEET 2 OF2 A

« r FIELDWORK COMPLETED 0/06/20
DRAWN: _TDR_ CHECKED: _IGB_£ Land Surveying

Civil Engineering
LandscapeArchitecture

Jordan G. Brost, PLS #3009
4941 Krschinocount FIELD BOOK 26 PAGE 4243
Stevens Point w15441 23423A Point sf Beginning A 715.344.9999 {PH) 715.344.9922 {Ex) d JOB NO: ·

iiiiiii iiiiiiiiiiiii

0-9





Document Number

StormWater Management
Access Easement

THIS EASEMENT is made by and between the CITY OF FRANKLIN, a
municipal corporation of the State of Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as
"City," collectively referred to as "Grantees," and FRANKLIN PUBLIC
SCHOOLS, a public school district, as owner (including successors and
assign' s of the City as maybecome applicable including the heirs, executors,
administrators, successors and assigns of above owner(s) as may be or may
become applicable), hereinafter called "Grantor," (ifmore than one grantor is
listed above, said language hereinreferring thereto shall be interpreted in the
plural and refer jointly and severally to such grantors).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner and holder of record Title to certain real
property described onExhibit "A"which is attached hereto and incorporated
herein (the Property); and

WHEREAS, the City desires to acquire a non-exclusive easement
with the right of entry in and across a portion of the property as the same is
more particularly hereinafter described, with the right to build and construct
and/or operate, maintain, repair, enlarge, reconstruct, relocate and inspect as
maybe or may become applicable the following facilities and appurtenances
thereto, hereinafter collectively called the "Facilities," in, upon and across
said portion of the Property: a storm water management basin as shown on
the plan attached hereto as Exhibit "B."; and

Name and Return Address:
City of Franklin
Attn: Kyle Baker
9229WLoomis Rd
Franklin, WI 53132

PIN: 838997800]

NOW, THEREFORE, in considerationofthe grant ofthe easementhereinafter described, the initial installation and
maintenance of the Facilities by the Grantor, and the Grantees, and the payment of One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable
considerations to the Grantor, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, said Grantor, being the owner and person
interested in the landhereinafter described, does herebygrant unto the City a perpetual, non-exclusive easement on that part
of the Northwest Quarter-Quarter Section of the Southeast Quarter Section of Section Sixteen (16), Township Five (5)
North, Range Twenty-one (21) East, inthe City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, more particularly described on
Exhibit C attached hereto (the "Easement Area'').

1. That said Facilities shall be maintained andkept in good order and condition by the Association, at the sole cost
and expense ofthe Association. The City, at its sole discretion,mayassume the rights ofthe Associationtomaintain
the Facilities.

2. That in and during whatever construction, reconstruction, enlargement or repair work is or becomes necessary in
constructing and/or maintaining of said Facilities, so much of the surface or subsurface of the Easement Area on
the Property as may be disturbed will, at the expense of the Association, be replaced in substantially the same
condition as it was prior to such disturbance. The City, at its sole discretion, may assume the rights of the
Associationto construct, reconstruct, enlarge, repair, or dowhatever is necessary inconstructing and/or maintaining
such Facilities. However, the Grantees shall indemnify and save harmless the Grantor from and against any loss,
damage, claim, cost, injury or liability resulting from negligence or willful acts or omissions on the part of the
Grantees, its agents or employees in connectionwith saidwork involved in constructing and/or maintaining of said
Facilities; provided that if the above loss, claim, cost, damage, injury or liability results from the joint negligence
of parties hereto, then the liability therefore shall be borne by them in proportion to their respective degree of
negligence; provided further, however, that these provisions are subject to the legal defenses available under law
which the Grantees or Grantor are entitled toraise, excepting the defense of so-called "sovereign immunity."

3. That no structure may be placed within the limits of the Easement Area by the Grantor, except that improvement
such as walks, pavements for driveways, parking lot surfacing and landscape plantingmaybe constructedor placed
within the Easement Area.

Page-1



4. In connection with the construction by the Grantor ofany structure or building abutting said Easement Area, the
Grantorwill assume all liability foranydamage to the Facilities inthe above describedEasementArea. The Grantor
will also save and keep the Grantees clear and harmless from any claims forpersonal injuries or property damage
caused by any negligence or willful acts or omissions ofthe Grantor or persons acting on behalfofthe Grantor,
arising out ofthe constructionbythe Grantorofany structure orbuilding abutting the saidEasement Area, and shall
reimburse the Grantees for the full amount ofsuch loss ordamage.

5. The Grantor shall be responsible for the routine maintenance ofland onwhich the easement is located.

6. The Facilities shall be accessible formaintenance by the Association at all times. The Grantor shall submit plans
for approval to the City Engineer for anyunderground installationwithin the Easement Area, which approval shall
not be unreasonablywithheld, conditioned ordelayed.

7. That the Grantor shall submit plans for all surface alterations ofplus orminus 1 foot or greaterwithin the limits of
said Easement Area. Said alterations shall be made only with the approval ofthe City Engineer of the City of
Franklin, which approval shall not be unreasonablywithheld, conditioned ordelayed.

8. The Grantees and Grantor shall each use, and take reasonable measures to cause their employees, officers,
customers, agents, contractors andassigns touse, the EasementArea ina reasonable mannerandso as not to obstruct
orotherwise use the EasementArea in amannerthat wouldunreasonablyinterfere with the use thereofby the other
partyhereto or its employees, officers, customers, agents, contractors and assigns.

9. The Grantees andGrantoreachherebywaives all rights ofsubrogationthat either has ormayhereafterhave against
the other for any damage to the Easement Area or any otherreal orpersonal propertyorto persons coveredby such
party's insurance, but only to the extent ofthe waiving party's insurance coverage; provided, however, that the
foregoing waivers shall not invalidate anypolicy ofinsurance now orhereafter issued, it being hereby agreed that
such a waiver shall not apply in any case whichwouldresult in the invalidation ofany suchpolicy ofinsurance and
that each party shall notify the other ifsuchparty's insurance wouldbe so invalidated.

10. Either party hereto may enforce this easement by appropriate action, and should it prevail in such litigation, that
party shall be entitledto recover, as part ofits costs, reasonable attorneys' fees.

11. This easement may not be modified or amended, except by a writing executed and delivered by the Grantees and
Grantor or their respective successors and assigns.

12. Nowaiverof, acquiescence in, orconsentto anybreachofanyterm, covenant, orconditionhereofshall be construed
as, or constitute, a waiver of, acquiescence in, or consent to any other, further, or succeeding breach ofthe same or
any other term, covenant, or condition.

13. Ifany termorprovisionofthis easement shall, to any extent, be invalid orunenforceable under applicable law, then
the remaining terms and provisions ofthis easement shall not be affected thereby, and each such remaining term
andprovision shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law.

14. This easement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws ofthe State ofWisconsin.

15. Upon completion ofuse ofthe EasementArea forthe specific use as a stormwatermanagement access by the City,
the easement shall be terminatedby recording a release in recordable formwith directions for delivery ofsame to
Grantor at his last address given pursuant hereto, whereupon all rights, duties and liabilities created shall terminate.

Page-2



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantorhas hereunto set its hand and seals this

/t j '"o,r \ Q 'JLION THIS DATE OF:_tOu2 ...1q_

h'l111ll1n Pub i It. Sc.,l,,tool~
rjT
By: ~~ (Seal)

enc- e Te hod, Chon»vu, Est-.Sowl«dot
STATE or L} res, t°'

ss
COUNTY OF ~-,\, ,..\0,,,..,"=--e_ ~

Before me personally appeared on the \ S~ day ofO~.!r:o<-s.:z&r: , A.O. 20 ~~

President orName printed SecretaryorName printed
to mekw4g be the person(s)who executed the foregoingEASEMENT andacknowledged the same as the voluntary actEs.~·~~ ················-~ ' :P ~, .. \, \ ~4I V •• •• ~ ~ taryPubl"lf'i;:/l ,. r:rn, ••• -r 4 O lCsz; orrv 4 3 ( )

Ea • 1z I My commission expires7-4-l: . '\ ,_ ..z i PUB 75
. % °cs"%. •Oe s «, ~·"r> $....,.-,h•••·--··• e...-.J ~

' Op +4?°a, w", .-
By: _

John R. Nelson, Mayor

By: _
Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN)
ss

COUNTYOF MILWAUKEE)

On this day of A.O. 20 before me personally appeared John R.
Nelson and Shirley J. Roberts whobeing byme duly sworn, did say that they are respectively the Mayor anct City Clerk of
the City ofFranklin, and that the seal affixed to said instrument is the coiporate seal of said municipal coiporation, and
acknowledged that they executed the foregoing assignment as such officers as the deedofsaidmunicipal coiporationby its
authority, and pursuant to resolution file No. adoptedby its CommonCouncil on _
,20_.

NotaryPublic, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
( )
My commission expires _

Page-3-

CITYOF FRANKLIN



Exhibit A
(Description of the Property)

Being a part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 and all of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 16,
Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Wisconsin, described as follows:

Commencing at the West 1/4 comer of Section 16, Township 5 North Range 21 East;

Thence N 88°27'55"E along the North line of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 16, 2324.22 feet to the point of beginning
(POB) of the parcel to be described;

Thence continuing N 88°27'55"E along saidNorth line, 330.00 feet to the Center 1/4 comer of said Section 16;

Thence N 88°41 '25"E along the North line of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 16, 1328.67 feet to the Northeast comer of
the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 16;

Thence S 00°32'07"E along the East line ofthe Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 16, 1321.89 feet to the
Southeast comer thereof;

Thence S 88°33702W along the South line of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 16, 1328.90feet to
the Southwest comer thereof;

Thence S 88°29'03"W along the South line of the Northeast¼ of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 16, 330.00 feet to the
Southeast comer of Parcel 2 of Certified SurveyMapNo. 5979;

'Thence N 00°31 '39"W along the East line of saidParcel 2, 689.00 feet to the Southeast comer of Parcel I of said
Certified SurveyMap No. 5979;

Thence S 8829'03"W along the South line of saidParcel 1, 330.00 feet to the Southwest corner thereof;

Thence N 00°31 '38"W along the West line of said Parcel I, 465.89 feet;

Thence N 88°27'55"E along the West line of saidParcel 1, 225.00 feet;

Thence N 00°31 '39"W along the West line of said Parcel 1, 125.02 feet to the Northwest corner of said Parcel 1, said
point also being the South right-of-way line ofWest Forest Hill Avenue;

Thence N 88°27'55"E along the North line of said Parcel I and said South right-of-way line, 105.00 feet to the Northeast
comer of said Parcel I;

Thence N 00°31 '39"W, 45.01 feetto a point on the North line of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 16;

Thence N 88°27'5S"E along saidNorth line, 330.00 feet to the point ofbeginning.

Containing: 2,362,553 Square Feet -- 54.237 acres

Page-4-



200'

i

SHEET10F2

-1"=100'

PARCEL NO 8389978001

S 8143022E
57.05'

0' 100'

I

BASIS FOR BEARINGS

THENORTHLINEOF THE SW1H4 OF SEC.16,
T.SN, R.2IE, WHICH BEARS N 88°27'55"EAS
REFERENCED TO THE WISCONSIN STATE
PLANE CRD SYSTEM, SOUTH ZONE, NAD27.

S 5657'58 W
74.10

24'

N 883852 ?OC. NO. 4439683

2850'

'>I~cw,
• '3'a
" =l»z (/) (/)

' Ig

R.a.sec. 16-5-21
FIELDWORK COMPLEIID 01/06/20 CLIEN'i / OWNER

t
__n_RA_WN_:_m_P__CHE_c_KED:__·_1GB___( FRANKUN.PUBUC SCHOOL

8255 W FOREST AVENUE
FIEIDBOOK _3S_ PAGE 4243 FRANKLIN, WI S3132

JOB NO: 23423

N 88°2T55" E I
24.00.' l,
·-%&
@ -.. 1o

£:.°

LandSurveying
Civil Engineering

Landscape Architecture
Jordan G. Brost, PLS #3009

4941 KirschlingCourt
Stevens Point WI 544111

715.344.9999 (PH) 715.344.9922(FX)

N 27%1644W
61.89'

DOC.NO.
10906530

STORMWATERACCESS
EASEMENT AREA

PARCEL NO 8389978001

® EASEMENTCORNER
(NOT MONUMENrED)

A MAG NAll. FOUND

,1,- BRASS CAP IN CONC. FOUND

() RECORDED AS

LEGEND

I.

Point efBeglnning

I
I
I
I
I
I

I7
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

EXHIBIT B - DEPICTION OF THE EASEMENT
I I
I I

I
_fj\JJ~E'=-L _fj\_lJ~§.'=-~ \ fOREST MEADOWS ADDITION

I I

Wl/4 CORNER CSM I # 4567 : El/4 CORNER :
sec 16-5-21 RNW I ' R/w ' SEC 16-5-21

- ---------------------------------- ----------'----------~----------~ ------HILL. ' AVENUE $,%%77, -"7....s727APeP./W . . P./W

I CROSS HATCHED
AREA IS PROPOSED
45'WIDE DEDICATION



EXHIBIT C - LEGAL DESCRIPITION OF THE EASEMENT
r

Storm Water Access EasementLegalDescription:
Being a part ofthe Northeast 1/4 ofthe Southwest 1/4 and a part ofthe Northwest 1/4 ofthe Southeast 1/4 ofSection 16,
Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, the following easement described as
follows:

Commencing at the West 1/4 comer ofSection 16, Township SNorth, Range 21 East;

Thence N 88°27'55" E along the North line ofthe Southwest 1/4 ofsaid Section 16, 2654.22 feet to the
Center 1/4 comer ofsaid Section 16;

Thence S 21 °37'49" W, 48.95 feet to a point on the South right-of-way line ofWest Forest Hill Avenue, and being the
Point ofBeginning (P.O.B.) ofthe easement area to be described;

Thence S 01 °21'08" E, 359.11 feet;

Thence N 88°38'52" E, 28.50 feet;

Thence N 39°16'59" E, 19.19 feet;

Thence S 81 °43'02" E, 57.05 feet;

Thence S 22°49'04" W, 76.00 feet;

Thence S 56°57'58" W, 74.10 feet;

Thence N 27°16'44" W, 61.89 feet;

Thence N 01°21'08" W, 406.62 feet to a point on the South right-of-way line ofWest Forest Hill Avenue;

Thence N 88°27'55" E along said South right-of-way line, 24.00 feet to the Point ofBeginning.

Containing 17,506Square Feet (0.402 Acres).

r £
Point sfBeginning a

Land Surveying « f FIELDWORK COMPLETED 0/06/2O
Civil Engineering

Landscape Architecture DRAWN: _TDR_ CHECKED: _IGP_
Jordan G. Brost, PLS #3009%

4941 Kischingcourt FIELD BOOK _36_ PAGE 4243
Stevens Point WI 54481 23 423

715.344.9999 (PH) 715.344.9922(Ex) A A JOB NO:_=== SHEET 2 OF2 l'la

CLIENT I OWNER "

FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOL
8255 W FOREST AVENUE
FRANKLIN, W1 53132



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Finance Committee Recommended Changes to the
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget

MEETING DATE

November 6, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

A.1.
Background

Upon introduction of the Mayor's Recommended 2025 Budget on September 17, 2024, the Finance Committee
reviewed the Recommended Budget. The Finance Committee met four times on September 24", 26, October
7and 9. On October 22, 2024, the regular scheduled Finance Committee meeting was held and the Director
of Finance & Treasurer further discussed the Tax Levy, preliminary tax rates, and Revenue and Expenditures
for both the General Fund and Sewer Fund. Further discussion was held and the Finance Committee
determined recommended changes to the General Fund and Sewer Fund that are being presented to the
Common Council.

Recommendation

After hearing from the preliminary proposed tax levy, General Fund and Sewer Fund, the Finance
Committee has compiled recommended changes for the 2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget to the
Common Council.

The Finance Committee recommends changestothe2025 Budget,summarized byFundandBudget
Appropriation Unit as attached. Also, there is a memo dated October 22, 2024 dictating the
recommended changes by Department for easy comprehension.

The Director of Finance & Treasurer is available for discussion and questions.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

Motion to amend the 2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget for resources and expenditures by Fund and
appropriation unit as detailed on the attached schedule and attached memo be included in the Proposed
2025 City of Franklin, WI Budget for the Public Hearing scheduled for November 19, 2024.

Finance Dept. - DB



City of Franklin
Finance Committee Changes to Recommended Budget

Fund - Dept - Acct
General Fund
01-0000--4410 E-Plan Review Fee (Inspections)
01-0000-4444 Fire Inspection (no longer collect from business
owners)
01-0000--4129 Video Service Provider Aid
01-0000--4011 General Tax Levy
01-0000--4716 lnterfund Interest (Water Loan)
01-0000--4440 Ambulance Services
01-0199-5111 Salaries -FT (Merit Pool)
01-x000-5111 Salaries-FT
01-x000-5113 Salaries - pT
01-x000-5117 Salaries -OT
01-x000-5134 Holiday Pay
01-x000-5135 Vacation Pay
01-000-5151 FICA
01-x000-5152 Retirement
01-x000-5153 Retiree Group Health
01-x000-5154 Group Health & Dental
01-x000-5155 Life Insurance
01-000x-5156 Workers Compensation Ins
01-0000-5199 Allocated Payroll Cost
01-0161-5251 Special Attorney Servoce
01-0194-5511 Building Insurance
01-0194-5517 Workers Comp Insurance
01-0194-5561 Workers Comp Contra
01-0194-5513 Public Liability
01-0121-5219 Court Language Line
01-0211-5428 Police Allocated Insurance Cost
01-0147-5428 Admin Allocated Insurance Cost
01-0151-5428 Finance Allocated Insurance Cost
01-0221-5428 Fire Allocated Insurance Cost
01-0231-5428 Inspection Allocated Insurance Cost
01-0321-5428 Engineering Allocated Insurance Cost
01-0331-5428 Highway Allocated Insurance Cost
01-0411-5428 Health Allocated Insurance Cost
01-0211-5560 lnterdepartment Building Charges
01-0411-5322 Medical Supplies
01-0411-5432 Mileage & Technology
01-0621-5219 Other Professional Services (don't anticipate using
contractors since we are fully staffed)
01-0181-5342 Consumable Tools (per Mayor)
01-0211-5326 Uniforms
01-0231-5326 Uniforms (7 employees instead of6.5)
01-0231-5328 Education Supplies (CPR needed every 2 years)
01-0221-5242 Equipment Maintenance (Testing)
01-0221-5211 Medical Services
01-0221-5425 Conferences & Schools
01-0221-5241 Auto Maintenance
01-0221-5299 Sundry Contractors
01-0211-5245 Radio Maintenance
01-0211-5247 Data Cabling
01-0121-5257 Court Software Maintenance
01-0121-5424 Court Membership/Dues
01-0121-5425 Court Conferences & Schools
01-0141-5223 Clerk Filing Fees
01-0141-5312 Clerk Office Supplies
01-0141-5313 Clerk Printing
01-0144-5415 IT Telephone (Cloud based phone service)
01-0147-5311 Admin Postage
01-0147-5312 Admin Office Supplies
01-0181-5219 Other Profeessional Services
01-0181-5287 Shredding
01-0181-5555 Landscaping Materials
01-0211-5327 Firearms Supplies
01-0211-5334 Auxiliary Support
01-0211-5335 Crime Prevention Materials

Revenues Expenditures Net
31,606,425 34,106,425 -2,500,000

10,000 10,000

-7,000 -7,000
7,635 7,635

-264,400 -264,400
867 867

82,000 82,000
-125,000 125,000
-19,130 19,130
-1,872 1,872
-39 39

-1,382 1,382
-1,449 1,449
-1,826 1,826
-2,164 2,164
-276 276
-3 3

-101 101
-225 225

-161,871 161,871
-20,000 20,000
23,990 -23,990
-63,000 63,000
63,000 -63,000
-24,500 24,500

400 -400
4,890 --4,890

15 -15
85 -85

2,450 -2,450
95 -95
60 -60

3,035 -3,035
20 -20

-9,480 9,480
100 -100
100 -100

-10,000 10,000
1,000 -1,000

10,500 -10,500
125 -125
162 -162

6,000 -6,000
1,200 -1,200
3,000 -3,000
6,000 -6,000
4,000 -4,000
7,000 -7,000
5,150 -5,150
500 -500
75 -7s5
600 -600
500 -500

1,800 -1,800
700 -700

37,388 -37,388
15,000 -15,000
300 -300

1,500 -1,500
700 -700

1,500 -1,500
-3,100 3,100
2,000 -2,000
500 -500



City of Franklin
Finance Committee Changes to Recommended Budget

Fund - Dept - Acct
01-0221-5313 Printing
01-0221-5332 Vehicle Support
01-0221-5342 Consumable Tools
01-0221-5415 Telephone
01-0221-5350 Turnout Coats
01-0231-5242 Equipment Maintenance
01-0331-5415 DPW Telephone
01-0331-5420 Traffic Signal Maintenance
01-0331-5421 Official Notices/Advertising
01-0331-5424 Membership/Dues
01-0331-5433 Equipment Rental
01-0331-5559 Building Maintenance
01-0361-5421 Official Notices/Advertising
01-0551-5247 Park Maintenance
01-0551-5415 Telephone
01-0551-5551 Water
01-0641-5299 Sundry Contractors
01-0641-5734 BusinessNolunteer Recognition
01-0211-5312 Office Supplies
01-0521-5723 Senior Citizen Activities

Revised Total

Sewer Fund
61-0000---4150 MMSD Grants
61-0000---4413 Property Status Reports
61-0000---4461 Residential Sales
61-0000-4462 Commercial Sales
61-0000---4463 Industrial Sales
61-0000---4465 Public Authority
61-0000---4468 Multi-Family Sales
61-0731-5111 Salaries-FT
61-0731-5134 Holiday Pay
61-0731-5135 Vacation Pay
61-0731-5151 FICA
61-0731-5152 Retirement
61-0731-5153 Retiree Group Health
61-0731-5155 Life Insurance
61-0731-5156 Workers Compensation Insurance
61-0731-5257 Software Maintenance
61-0731-5287 Other Costs - Hazardous Waste
61-0731-5288 Dumping
61-0731-5299 Sundry Contractors
61-0731-5326 Uniforms
61-0731-5331 Fuel
61-0731-5336 Televising Supplies
61-0731-5413 Sewer Fees
61-0731-5416 Meter Reading Costs
61-0731-5428 Allocated Insurance Cost
61-0731-5437 Landfill Dosposal Taxes
61-0731-5552 Electricity
61-0731-5554 Natural Gas
61-0731-5559 Building Maintenance
61-0731-5561 City Support
Depreciation
Depreciation - CIAC
610731-5811 Auto Equipment
61-0731-5813 Office Equipment
61-0731-5814 Non Motorized Equipment
61-0731-5815 Shop Equipment
61-0731-5819 Other Capital Equipment
61-0731-5822 Building Improvements
61-0731-5829 Sanitary Sewer Rehab
61-0731-5829.7638 St. Martins Pump Design
61-0731-5829.7639 St. Martins Force Main Design
61-0731-5829.9840 Sewer Rehab

Revenues

31,435,527

6,813,076
250,000
-18,000
140,000
66,000
8,500
15,000
60,000

Expenditures
200

7,980
3,500
2,400
5,000
250

3,000
1,900
1,250
200

5,000
10,000

100
5,000
600
800

10,000
6,000
3,900
2,000

33,935,527

7,185,260

-771
---41
-68
-67
-66
-4
-3
-9

11,000
30,000
1,000
5,000
-200
-2,000
-42,000
-45,000

300
15,470
500

1,250
2,000
2,000
460

185,000
5,000
25,620
30,810
1,750
-2,500
50,000
-12,500
-475,000
35,000
60,000

-546,365

Net
-200

-7,980
-3,500
-2,400
-5,000
-250
-3,000
-1,900
-1,250
-200
-5,000
-10,000
-100
-5,000
-600
-800

-10,000
-6,000
-3,900
-2,000

0
-2,500,000

-372,184
250,000
-18,000
140,000
66,000
8,500
15,000
60,000

771
41
68
67
66
4
3
9

-11,000
-30,000
-1,000
-5,000
200

2,000
42,000
45,000
-300

-15,4 70
-500
-1,250
-2,000
-2,000

---460
-185,000
-5,000
-25,620
-30,810
-1,750
2,500

-50,000
12,500
475,000
-35,000
-60,000
546,365



City of Franklin
Finance Committee Changes to Recommended Budget

Fund - Dept - Acct
61-0731-5899 Capitalized Assets

Revised Total

Revenues

7,334,576

Expenditures
943,865

7,464,691

Net
-943,865

-130,115



Finance Department

Date: October 22, 2024

The Finance Director has received Preliminary Total City Assessed Values and has
been working diligently on providing the Finance Committee a revised Mayor's
Recommended budget that secures costs for delivery of services, provides for
inflationary increases in most areas and keeps the City's best financial interests in mind.
The method to these changes is based on the needs of each department and look back
on previous spending patterns. The overall levy has been reduced to provide less
burden on the residents. These changes are recommended by the Finance Director to
the Finance Committee and the Committee has the ultimate decision on what changes
to recommend to the Common Council.

1. Fund 01- General Fund - page 27-163, with changes clearly identified - further
review of this budget allowed for the following recommended changes:

Revenues:
01-0000-4011- General Tax Levy
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $21,240,000
2025 Change: ($264,400)
2025 Proposed Budget: $20,975,600

01-0000-4410 - E-plan Review
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $0
2025 Change: $10,000
2025 Proposed Budget: $10,000

01-0000-4444 - Fire Inspection Fees
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $7,000
2025 Change: ($7,000)
2025 Proposed Budget: $0

01-0000-4129 - Video Service Provider Aid
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $90,880
2025 Change: $7,635
2025 Proposed Budget: $98,515

01-0000-4716- Interfund Interest (Water Loan)
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $0
2025 Change: $867
2025 Proposed Budget: $867

01-0000-4440 - Ambulance Services
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $1,600,000
2025 Change: $82,000
2025 Proposed Budget: $1,682,000

Celebrating Quality of Life 9229WestLoomis Road Franklin,WI 53132-9630 (414)427-7566 F(414)427-7691 franklinwi.gov



Expenditures:

01-0199-5111 Salaries - FT (Merit Pool)
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $125,000
2025 Change: ($125,000)
2025 Proposed Budget: $0

Legal Services:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $314,300
2025 Change: ($20,000)
2025 Proposed Budget: $294,300

Insurance:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $158,385
2025 Change: ($510)
2025 Proposed Budget: $157,875

Police Department:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $11,288,163
2025 Change: $16,052
2025 Proposed Budget: $11,304,215

Fire Department:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $8,618,333
2025 Change: $35,532
2025 Proposed Budget: $8,653,865

Information Services Department:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $753,507
2025 Change: ($61,722)
2025 Proposed Budget: $691,785

Municipal Court:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $231,647
2025 Change: $1,575
2025 Proposed Budget: $233,222

Administration:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $491,443
2025 Change: $9,226
2025 Proposed Budget: $500,669

Clerks:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $440,996
2025 Change: $1, 118
2025 Proposed Budget: $442,114

Allocated Insurance Costs & lnterdepartment Charges:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $-24,720
2025 Change: $1,170
2025 Proposed Budget: $-23,550

2



Health Department:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $767,619
2025 Change: ($186)
2025 Proposed Budget: $767,433

Planning Department:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $683,748
2025 Change: (10,000)
2025 Proposed Budget: $673,748

Municipal Buildings:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $229,111
2025 Change: $10,821
2025 Proposed Budget: $239,932

Highway Department:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $3,304,330
2025 Change: $17,595
2025 Proposed Budget: $3,321,925

Parks Department:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $379,771
2025 Change: $6,256
2025 Proposed Budget: $386,027

Economic Development:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $174,613
2025 Change: $4,415
2025 Proposed Budget: $179,028

Engineering Department:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $1,012,678
2025 Change: ($40,373)
2025 Proposed Budget: $972,305

Elections Department:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $82,198
2025 Change: ($52)
2025 Proposed Budget: $82,146

Finance Department:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $679,475
2025 Change: ($14,395)
2025 Proposed Budget: $665,080

Recreation Department:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $52,000
2025 Change: $2,000
2025 Proposed Budget: $54,000

3



2. Fund 61 - Sewer Fund - pages 201-208, with changes clearly identified - further
review of this budget allowed for the following recommended changes:

Revenues:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $6,813,076
2025 Change: $521,500
2025 Proposed Budget: $7,334,576

Expenditures:
2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget: $7,185,260
2025 Change: $279,431
2025 Proposed Budget: $7,464,691

4



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute an
Addendum to Facilitate American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)

Funding for the Multimedia Communications &
Engineering, Inc. Agreement for Fiber Optic Ring Design
and Construction Project Management Services, the Fiber
Optic Management, LLC Agreement for Fiber Optic

Maintenance Services, the TelePacific Corp.
communications network and firewall services Agreement,
the RingCentral, Inc. unified communications services

Agreement, the Landmark Structures, I, LP Elevated Water
Storage Tank Contract B, the Domer, Inc. Water

Transmission Main Contract A, the Vinton Construction
Company Water Transmission Main Contract C, and the
Johnson Controls, Inc. energy savings Performance

Contract, each entered into with the City

MEETING
DATE

November 6, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

The City has entered into services and projects contracts intended to be American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funded.
ARPA funding requires certain provisions to be included in contracts so funded. Annexed hereto is an Addendum
which includes such provisions. Copies of same have been provided to each of the contracting parties for each
contract as stated above, with the specific contract identification information entered for each, with the
understanding that upon approval and execution and delivery by each party, the subject contract will be amended to
include same. Staff recommendation is to authorize same so as to provide the ARPA funding for the contracts'
projects.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
A motion to adopt A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute an Addendum to Facilitate American
Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funding for the Multimedia Communications & Engineering, Inc. Agreement for Fiber
Optic Ring Design and Construction Project Management Services, the Fiber Optic Management, LLC Agreement
for Fiber Optic Maintenance Services, the TelePacific Corp. communications network and firewall services
Agreement, the RingCentral, Inc. unified communications services Agreement, the Landmark Structures, I, LP
Elevated Water Storage Tank Contract B, the Dorner, Inc. Water Transmission Main Contract A, the Vinton
Construction Company Water Transmission Main Contract C, and the Johnson Controls, Inc. energy savings
Performance Contract, each entered into with the City.

DOA-KH, Fmance Dept. DB; Legal Services Dept.: JW



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
draft 10/29/24

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO EXECUTE AN
ADDENDUM TO FACILITATE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARPA) FUNDING
FOR THE MULTIMEDIA COMMUNICATIONS & ENGINEERING, INC. AGREEMENT

FOR FIBER OPTIC RING DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
MANAGEMENT SERVICES, THE FIBER OPTIC MANAGEMENT, LLC AGREEMENT

FOR FIBER OPTIC MAINTENANCE SERVICES, THE TELEPACIFIC CORP.
COMMUNICATIONS NETWORK AND FIREWALL SERVICES AGREEMENT, THE
RINGCENTRAL, INC. UNIFIED COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES AGREEMENT, THE

LANDMARK STRUCTURES, I, LP ELEVATED WATER STORAGE TANK
CONTRACT B, THE DORNER, INC. WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN CONTRACT A,

THE VINTON CONSTRUCTION COMPANY WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN
CONTRACT C, AND THE JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC. ENERGY SAVINOS
PERFORMANCE CONTRACT, EACH ENTERED INTO WITH THE CITY

WHEREAS, the City has entered into services and projects contracts intended to be
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funded, and ARPA funding requires certain provisions
to be included in contracts so funded; and

WHEREAS, annexed hereto is an Addendum which includes such provisions, and for
which each of the subject services and projects contracts may be amended to include the
Addendum; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having reviewed the ARPA funding requirements
in the Addendum and having determined that approval of same is reasonable and necessary
in the furtherance of the public health, safety and welfare.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Addendum to Facilitate American Rescue Plan Act
(ARPA) Funding, in the form and content as annexed hereto, for the Multimedia
Communications & Engineering, Inc. Agreement for Fiber Optic Ring Design and
Construction Project Management Services, the Fiber Optic Management, LLC Agreement
for Fiber Optic Maintenance Services, the TelePacific Corp. communications network and
firewall services Agreement, the RingCentral, Inc. unified communications services
Agreement, the Landmark Structures, I, LP Elevated Water Storage Tank Contract B, the
Dorner, Inc. Water Transmission Main Contract A, the Vinton Construction Company Water
Transmission Main Contract C, and the Johnson Controls, Inc. energy savings Performance
Contract, each entered into with the City, in each form and content as applicable to the
subject contracting party, subject to changes approved by the Director of Administration,
Director of Finance and Treasurer and the City Attorney, be and the same are hereby
approved.



Resolution No. 2024
Page 2

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor, City Clerk and Director of Finance
and Treasurer be and the same are hereby authorized to execute and deliver such
Addendums.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2024.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2024.

APPROVED:

ATTEST:
John R. Nelson, Mayor

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



ADDENDUM TO THE [contract) _

CITY OF FRANKLIN

TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR ALL CONTRACTS FUNDED WITH
FEDERAL GRANTS SUBJECT TO THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

In the event of a conflict between the below terms and conditions and the terms of the main body
of the Contract or any exhibit or appendix, these federally required contract terms shall govern.

1. Amendment Permitted. This list of Federally Required Contract terms may be amended
by City in the event that the applicable federal grant providing funding for this Agreement contains
additional required terms.

2. Debarment and Suspension. Contractor represents and warrants that, as of the execution
ofthis Contract, neither Contractor nor any subcontractor or sub-consultantperforming work under
this Contract (at any tier) is included on the federally debarred bidder's list listed on the
government-wide exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with
the 0MB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986
Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFRpart 1989 Comp., p. 235), "Debarment and Suspension." If at
any point during Contract's term Contractor or any subcontractor or sub-consultant performing
work at any tier is included on the federally debarred bidder's list, Contractor shall notify City
immediately. Contractor's completed Vendor Debarment Certification is attached hereto and
incorporated herein.

3. Record Retention. Contractor certifies that it will comply with the record retention
requirements detailed in 2 CFR § 200.333. Contractor further certifies that it will retain all records
as required by 2 CFR § 200.333 for a period of five (5) years after it receives City notice that City
has submitted final expenditure reports or quarterly or annual financial reports, as applicable, and
all other pending matters are closed. Unless Contractor is functioning as a sub-recipient of grant
funding, rather than as a contractor, this requirement is in addition to, and not in place of, City's
public records retention requirements set forth elsewhere herein. In the event of conflict between
local and federal retention periods, the longer retention requirement shall control.

4. Procurement of Recovered Materials (Applies Only if the Work Involves the use of
Materials). Pursuant to 2 CFR §200.323, Contractor represents and warrants that in its
performance under the Contract, Contractor shall comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste
Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of
Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR Part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered
materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the
purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during the
preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring solid waste management services in a manner
that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing an affirmative procurement
program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines.

1



5. Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act
(33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), as Amended. If this is a contract or sub-grant in excess of $150,000,
Contractor must comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the
Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended
(33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.). Violations must be reported to the City and understands and agrees that
the City will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal
Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional
Office.

6. Energy Efficiency. Contractor certifies that it will comply with mandatory standards and
policies relating to energy efficiency, which are contained in the state energy conservation plan
issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (Pub. L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871).

7. Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352). Contractor certifies that:

7 .1. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of
Contractor, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee ofCongress, or an employee
of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the
making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal Loan, the entering into of any
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of and Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

7 .2. Ifany funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to
any person for making lobbying contacts to an officer or employee of an agency, aMember
ofCongress, an officer or employee ofCongress, or an employee of aMember ofCongress
in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, Contractor
shall request from City and provide, completed, to City the "Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions as amended by "Government wide Guidance
for New Restrictions on Lobbying," 61 Fed. Reg. 1413 (1/19/96).

7 .3. Contractor shall require that the language of this certification be included in the
award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall
certify and disclose accordingly.

7.4. Contractor's completed Byrd Anti-Lobbying Certification is attached hereto and
incorporated herein.

8. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708) (Applies Only
to Funding Over $100,000, When Laborers or Mechanics are Used). Contractor must comply
with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department ofLabor regulations (29 CFR Part
5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, Contractor must compute the wages of every mechanic and
laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work
week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a
half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week. The

2



requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer or
mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are
unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies
or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or
transmission of intelligence.

9. Right to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. Contracts or agreements
for the performance of experimental, developmental, or research work shall provide for the rights
of the Federal Government and the recipient in any resulting invention in accordance with 37 CFR
part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under
Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any applicable implementing
regulations.

10. Federal Government is Not a Party. The Federal Government is not a party to this
Contract and is not subject to any obligations or liabilities to City, Contractor, or any other party
pertaining to any matter resulting from the Contract.

11. Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148). If this is a "prime construction
contract," in its performance under the Contract, Contractor shall comply with the Davis-Bacon
Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department ofLabor regulations
(29 CFR Part 5, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed
and Assisted Construction"). In accordance with the statute, Contractor is required to pay wages
to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage
determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, Contractor is required to pay wages
not less than once a week. Note: this paragraph is not applicable to contracts paid for solely
with ARPA SLFRF moneys.

12. Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (40 U.S.C. 3145). If this is a "prime construction
contract" in excess of $2,000, Contractor shall, in its performance of the contract, comply with the
Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor
regulations (29 CFR Part 3, "Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work
Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States"). The Act provides that
Contractor is prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction,
completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he or she
is otherwise entitled.

13. Equal Employment Opportunity. Contractor shall comply with Executive Order 11246,
"Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by EO 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246
Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," and as supplemented by regulations at 41 CFR Part
60, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity,
Department of Labor."

14. Termination for Convenience. Ifthis Contract is for an amount in excess of$10,000 and
it lacks a termination for convenience clause, the following applies: City may terminate this
Contract at any time for any reason by giving at least thirty (30) days' notice in writing from City
to Contractor. If Contractor is terminated for convenience by City, Contractor will be paid for
services actually performed or commodity actually provided.

3



15. Termination for Cause. If this Contract is for an amount in excess of $10,000 and it lacks
a termination for cause clause, the following applies: IfContractor shall fail to fulfill in timely and
proper manner any of its obligations or violate any of the provisions of this Contract; City shall
have the right to terminate this Contract. City shall notify Contractor of its intent to terminate, by
giving Contractor prior written notice at least five (5) business days before the effective date of
the termination, identifying the alleged deficiencies in Contractor's performance, and shall give
Contractor thirty (30) days to cure such deficiencies prior to termination. In such event, all
deliverables completed by Contractor as of the date of termination shall, at the option of City,
become property of City. Notwithstanding the above, Contractor shall not be relieved of liability
to City for damages sustained by City by virtue of any breach of the Contract, and City shall retain
its remedies under law.

16. Executive Order 13202- Preservation of Open Competition and Government
Neutrality Towards Contractors' Labor Relations on Federal and Federally Funded
Construction Contracts. These requirements apply to recipients and sub-recipients of awards and
cooperative agreements and to any manager ofa construction project acting on their behalf. These
individuals or employees of one of these organizations must ensure that the bid specifications,
project agreements, and other controlling documents do not: (a) require or prohibit bidders,
offerors, contractors, or subcontractors to enter into or adhere to agreements with one or more
labor organizations, on the same or other related construction project(s); or (b) otherwise
discriminate against bidders, offerors, contractors, or subcontractors for becoming or refusing to
become or remain signatories, or otherwise to adhere to agreements with one or more labor
organizations, on the same or other related construction project(s). Contractors or subcontractors
are not prohibited from voluntarily entering into agreements with one or more labor organizations.

17. Domestic Preferences for Procurements. Pursuant to 2 CFR §200.322, as appropriate,
and to the extent consistent with law, Contractor should, to the greatest extent practicable under
this Contract, provide a preference for the purchase, acquisition, or use of goods, products, or
materials produced in the United States (including but not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement,
and other manufactured products). The requirements of this section must be included in all
subcontracts and purchase orders for work or products under this Contract.

18. Prohibition on Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services or
Equipment. Contractor shall not use funds under this Contract to purchase, or enter into
subcontracts to purchase, any equipment, services, or systems that use telecommunications
equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of a system that is subject to 2 CFR
§ 200.216 (generally, video surveillance or telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei
Technologies Company, ZTE Corporation, Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou
Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company, their subsidiaries or
affiliates, or any entity that the Secretary ofDefense reasonably believes to be an entity owned or
controlled by the government of a foreign country). In the event Contractor identifies covered
telecommunications equipment or services that constitute a substantial or essential component of
any system, or as critical technology as part of any system that is subject to 2 CFR § 200.216,

4



during Contract performance, Contractor shall alert City as soon as possible and shall provide
information on any measures taken to prevent recurrence.

19. Prohibitions on Discrimination. Contractor agrees to comply with the following as
applicable:

19.1. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. $$ 2000d et seq.) and Treasury's
implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 22, which prohibit discrimination on the basis
of race, color, or national origin under programs or activities receiving federal financial
assistance.

19.2. The Fair Housing Act, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C.§§ 3601
et seq.), which prohibits discrimination in housing on the basis of race, color, religion,
national origin, sex, familial status, or disability.

19.3. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794), which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability under any program or activity receiving
federal financial assistance.

19.4. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101 et seq.), and
Treasury's implementing regulations at 3 lC.F.R. Part 23, which prohibit discrimination on
the basis of age in programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance.

19.5. Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§
12101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability under programs,
activities, and services provided or made available by state or local governments or
instrumentalities or agencies thereto.

19.6. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (Title IX), (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq.)
and Treasury's implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 28, which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in any federally funded education program or activity.

20. Financial and Program Management As subrecipient of federal funds, Contractor is
required to comply with 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, other than such provisions as Treasury may
determine are inapplicable to this Agreement and subject to such exceptions as may be otherwise
provided by Treasury.

20.1. Financial Management: Contractor shall maintain records and financial documents
sufficient to show compliance with section 603(c) of ARPA, Treasury's regulations
implementing that section, and guidance issued by Treasury. Contractor shall grant the
Treasury Office of Inspector General and the Government Accountability Office or their
authorized representatives, the right of access to these records in order to conduct audits or
other investigations. Financial records, supporting documents, statistical records and all
other records pertinent to the services purchased pursuant to this Agreement shall be
retained for a period of five (5) years after all of the City's funds have been expended or
returned to the Treasury Department, whichever is later.

5



20.2. Audit Requirements. Contractor agrees to provide all reports requested by the City
including, but not limited to, financial statements and reports, reports and accounting of
services rendered, and any other reports or documents requested. Financial and service
reports shall be provided according to a schedule (when applicable) or upon request.
Contractors who expend more than $750,000 in federal awards during their fiscal year will
be subject to an audit under the Single Audit Act and its implementing regulation at 2 CFR
Part 200, Subpart F.

20.3 Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters. Contractor agrees to provide any
information requested by the City in order to comply with 2 CFR Appendix XII to Part
200.

20.4 SAM.gov Requirements. Contractor is required to comply with 2 CFR Part 25
(System for Award Management ("SAM")) and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and
Executive Compensation Information) unless exempted pursuant to 2 CFR § 25.110.

21. Drug-Free Workplace. Contractor acknowledges that as a subrecipient of federal funds,
it is subject to 31 CFR Part 20 (Governmentwide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace).

22. Relocation Assistance. Where an agreement or project requires the relocation of persons
or such person's personal property, Contractor is advised that 42 USC 4601-4655 (Uniform
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970) may apply.

23. Incorporation ofRequired Clauses andConditions. To the extent any applicable federal
statute, regulation, or executive order requires any clause or condition to be included or
incorporated into this Agreement between the City ofFranklin and
and that term or condition has not been expressly included or incorporated, it is included or
incorporated by reference.

The terms and provisions of this Addendum to thecontract]
are hereby agreed to by the parties to the __._contract] _

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

BY. _

PRINT NAME. John R. Nelson

TITLE. Mayor

[)p']'},•

BY. _

PRINT NAME: Danielle L. Brown

6

BY: _

PRINT NAME. _

TITLE _

)p']]•



TITLE· Director ofFinance and Treasurer

DATE:

BY. _

PRINT NAME. Shirley J Roberts

TITLE· City Clerk

DATE:

7



CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSIONAND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITYMATTERS (to befilled out by bidder, proposer, contractor, or
subcontractor, as applicable)

The bidder, proposer, contractor, or subcontractor, as appropriate, certifies to the best of its
knowledge and belief that neither it nor any of its officers, directors, or managers who will be
working under the Contract, or persons or entities holding a greater than 10% equity interest in it
(collectively "Principals"):

1. Are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any federal or state department or agency in the United
States;

2. Have within a three-year period preceding this proposal, bid, or agreement been convicted of
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local)
transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or state anti-trust or
procurement statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

3. Are presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity,
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph 2. of
this certification; and

4. Have within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (federal, state or local) terminated for cause or default.

I understand that a false statement on this certification may be grounds for rejection of this
proposal or bid or contract, as applicable, or termination of the award or, in some instances,
criminal prosecution.

I hereby certify as stated above:

Signature Date

Print Title and Name of authorized representative

I am unable to certify to one or more the above statements. Attached is my explanation.

Signature Date

Print Title and Name of authorized representative

8



BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING CERTIFICATION (to befilled out by bidder, proposer,
contractor, or subcontractor, as applicable)

The undersigned certifies, to the best ofhis or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee ofCongress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any
federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and
the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of and Federal contract, grant,
loan, or cooperative agreement.

2. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person
for making lobbying contacts to an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee ofCongress, or an employee of a Member ofCongress in connection with
this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and
submit Standard FormLLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its
instructions [as amended by "Government wide Guidance for NewRestrictions on Lobbying,"
61 Fed. Reg. 1413 (1/19/96)].

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including all subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and
disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission ofthis certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into this transaction by 31 U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure
Act of 1995). Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil
penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. Contractor
certifies and affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its certification and
disclosure, if any. In addition, Contractor understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C.
A 3801, et seq., apply to this certification and disclosure, if any. FAR 52.203-12, "Limitation on
Payments to Influence Certain Federal Transactions" is hereby incorporated by reference into
this certification.

Signature Date

Print Title and Name of authorized representative

9



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MEETING DATE

11/6/2024

REPORTS & APPROVAL OF PAYAPPLICATION 2 AND ITEM NUMBER
REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST #2 FOR THE 2024

RECOMMENDATIONS PPII SUMP PUMP PROJECT - MMSD FUNDING II \?
AGREEMENTM10005FR01 1).

BACKGROUND
The City of Franklin is proceeding with the 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project under the MMSD
Funding Agreement M10005FR01. This project, conducted by UPI, LLC, includes the second Pay
Application (Pay Application 2) and Reimbursement Request #2, covering recent construction and
consultant costs.
• Pay Application 2, submitted by UPI, LLC, requests a payment of $557,335.17 for work

completed.
• Engineering fees to date include $196,150.83 for design and $27,149.37 for construction

related services.
• Change Order 1 was previously approved, adjusting the original contract price to

$1,320,349.00.
• The total reimbursement request submitted to MMSD (Reimbursement Request #2) is

$226,847.00, with construction and consultant fees detailed in the associated tables and
documents.

FISCAL NOTE:
The requested reimbursement from MMSD includes the following:
• Construction Costs: $155,975.75
• Consultant Services: $70,871.25

The total eligible reimbursement for the project to date is $369,301.58 (including previous
requests). These reimbursements align with the MMSD funding agreement and are expected to
cover all expenses without impacting the City's budget.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the Common Council approve the following:
• Pay Application 2 for $557,335.17.
• Reimbursement Request #2 for $226,847.00 as per the MMSD agreement.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
Motion to approve Pay Application 2 for $557,335.17 and Reimbursement Request #2 for
$226,847.00 for the 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project- MMSD Funding Agreement M10005FR01.

Prepared by Kelly Hersh, Director of Administration, on behalf of the Engineering Department

DOA-KH



October 29, 2024

Becky Specht, PE
Private Property Infiltration & Inflow Program
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District
260 W Seeboth Street
Milwaukee Wi 53204

RE: M10005FR01- Reimbursement Request #2

The City of Franklin is requesting reimbursement for the cost paid for by the City for the 2024
Sump Pump Project. The total of the second reimbursement request is $226,847.00.

Construction Costs are listed in Appendix A and Consultant Costs are listed in Appendix B.
Additionally, below is a breakdown of the reimbursement requests for this project.

Table 1 ReimbursementRequest Breakdown

Construction Costs Consultant Services Totals

#1 $ - $ 142,454.58 $ 142,454.58

#2 $ 155,975.75 $ 70,871.25 $ 226,847.00

Totals $ 155,975.75 $ 213,325.83 $ 369,301.58

Please feel free to call the CJ Beyer, PE from Clark Dietz at (262) 842-2415 or email him at
christopher.beyer@clarkdietz.com with any questions or concerns.



Clark)ietz
Engineering Quality of Life <
situ,diillaaaaasrssteno

October 29, 2024

The City of Franklin
ATTN: Kelly Hersh, Director ofAdministration
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Re: 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project - MMSD Funding Agreement M10005FR01
Pay Application 2.

Dear Kelly Hersh:

Attached is PayApplication 2 for the 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project - MMSD Funding Agreement
M10005FR01 projectfrom UPI, LLC. I have reviewed the pay application and agree with the amount of
$557,335.17 thatthey are asking for. It is expected thatthe total completed to date is eligible for reimbursement
from MMSD per our funding agreement. Our engineering fees for design were $196,150.83. The engineering fees
for construction to date are $27,149.37.

Please letme know ifyou have any questions.

Sincerely,

Clark Dietz, Inc.

4% @!$,
Andy Ashley, PE
Project Engineer
E-mail: andrew.ashley@clarkdletz.com



(/)
...I

$0 ...
I- ~
0
&
C:
C1I.c:
O
t
(/)
w
(!.)
z
<(
Iu
twz

(/)z
0
E
i5g

0 0
0 0
0 0
O> O>...,. ...,.
LO LO
O> O>
ER- ER-
I IQ

0
0

1--~-4----1---l~
LO
O>
%
I

CX) N Ill .....co O> ..... .....
N 0 Ill Ill (/)...,. ..... ..... 3 zIll 3 O> M 0.....:- C') Ill ..... E-r ..... Ill Illr-- ..... Ill O:::,

CX) 0co CX) w
N 0 0...,. CX)
Ill (")

.....:- o_
) r--

0co

I-zw
:&
%z
0.
ca:: C 0 w
LL ii: 0
w E- z ia: wz w C) w

0 i <( z0
I- w C) ±u:: z w z 0E- :::::, z cca:: 0 5 z >-

>, w :::iE z >, :::::, >, I- >,
ID 0 <( w ID u.. co 5 co

-.:t< -.:t<
N N.._ .._

'}.. ' N -.:t<
N N. .._ .._

? ½ 0 0..... .....
& IV)

I;'<\ Q) 2 2
c9 1ii "' "'I'--: 0 0 0

% %0

0 0 0 0o 0 0 co
O> ci O> 9
3 O> ...,. Illco ...,. M CX)

Ill in ci ci..... O> N Ill...,._ I 3 .......... .....

1-zw
E±
c::
0
LL.
w

5
Ci:
tw
CJ
Cz<z
0z
l)
:Ja.a.<

.9
(/) C
W 0g
£ g

iii
5

LI..
0
w <s
u +

a8vo



0
0
0
(J)

LO 0
00 LO
(0 C")...,. .....
..... 00

LO O 0
I'- 0 0
0 ..... C")
00 CO 0
M LO (J)

,.£

0
0
LO
0.....

00co
Nv
LO,..:
C")

0co
C")
I()
(I()o
I()
p.

0
0
0
0.....
c-.i

6
0
0
LOo_
~

';I.
0
0
N

000
0 C? (0
0 I() 0

983
- oN

000
000
LO O 0

8
,..: ..: 00
(I() .........

000000000
000000000
0 I'- LO O LO O LO LO 0
38g238%
LO i co «- co N. cs,- co ,- ("').....

0
0
0
0co...

.c
Ill -·c e>
i! 0
}
1-s

I

0
0
LO
CX).....
±.....

0co
(I()
cocoo
00
LO

0
0
0
LOo....

0
0
0
I()
o_.....

0 0 0
0 0 CO
C> I.O 0
LO CO LO
o co

..... (J)
N

0 0 0
0 0 0
I() 0 LO
..- V N
r- r- N
c-.i c<> c<>
N

0 0 0
0 0 0
0 C> LO
0 00 M
0» t co
,.£ ,..: """(0 .....

0
0
LO
rr--:.
CX)

0 0
0 0
r- I.O
C") (J)
a,_ 'II:.
N r-

N

0
0
0
0co.....

0 0
0 0

O
(J) CX)
(J) «!.
..j' (J)
M

0 0
0 0

3
0

C") .....
..- N
N N

-0
0·c
QI

uI  •QI .c
H

E- ot-----t-----------------------------------t-~
0 Ill
-i': 5 C
0 -2es,;=<u.

00000000001000000000000 00
0 0 0 0 0 V LO O O O LO 0
LOOOOOOVOLOLO-.tN NO
N<ONOOONLOvr-m ..-r-co N. us5coco»coo; co..-o V CON M
'St 'St ..... .....

8

0 0 0o o 0
0 LO LO
N O r-
0 9 t
-.£ m c-.ico

0
0
0
LOo_.... lj-.... -

VI
I

i!:s
'o
C

IIl :8
a.

1

£5 s: z - oo t o O M. 00 0 o - o t O M- O
r v- v- r r r - - ] ] ] l (] ] ] l ]



UPI, LLC 2180 S SPRINGDALE RD, NEWBERLIN, WI 53146

CITY OF FRANKLIN

PROJECT Franklin 2024 Sump Lateral Project
PAY REQUEST #2 THROUGH 9/27/24

Date
Job

10/1/2024
2404

DESCRIPTION
Item
No. BID ITEM UNIT
1 6" pvc storm lateral I.t.
2 8" pvc storm I.f.
3 12" storm reinstall - slurry l.f.
4 A5" storm reinstall - slurry l.f.
5 8" storm reinstall - slurry l.f.
6 12" rcp storm -· slurry l.f.
7 sump pump connect 0a
8 /private check valve ea
9 2' Inlet ea
10 3' Inlet ea
11 connect to existing struct ea
12 4" topsoil seed & mulch s..
13 replace curb I.t.
14 replace walk s.f.
15 replace concrete drive s.¥.
16 asphalt patch s..

Change Order
1 Modify Inlet for larger pipe ea

JOB QTY

48450
41600

16 0
80
24 0
12 0
83 0
10 0
520
80
37 0

53250
10 0
4200
7450
15 0

200

UNIT PRICE

$87 00
$9800
$220 00
$225 00
$210 00
$267 00
$585 00
$345 00

$3,245 00
$3 740 00
$645 00
$2500
$7000
$1100
$8900
$165 00

$1,050 00

WORK COMPLETED
PREVIOUS THIS AMOUNT
PERIODS PERIOD THIS PERIOD
86200 2452 00 $213,324 00
50700 2259 00 $221,382 00
000 000 $000
000 800 $1,800 00
000 000 $000
000 11 00 $2,937 00
1500 47 00 $27,49500
000 000 $000
700 2000 $64,900 00
1 00 2 00 $7,480 00
500 2300 $14,835 00
000 000 $0 00
000 5 00 $350 00
000 115 00 $1,265 00
000 33540 $29 850 60
000 000 $0 00

1 00 1 00 $105000

CUMULATIVE SA.LES

UNITS AMOUNT
3314 00 $288,318 00
2766 00 $271,068 00

0 00 $0 00
8 00 $1,800 00
0 00 $0 00
11 00 $2,937 00
62 00 $36,270 00
0 00 $000
27 00 $87,615 00
300 $11,220 00
28 00 $18,060 00
0 00 $0 00
5 00 $350 00

115 00 $1,265 00
33540 $29,850 60
0 00 $0 00

2 00 $2,100 00

I EARNED TO DATE: $750,853 60]



APPENDIX A
CONSTRUCTION COSTS

Reimbursement Construction Costs

#1 $ -

##2 $ 155,975.75

Totals $ 155,975.75



Clarietz
Engineering Quality of life < "-.

______,__L_

September 24, 2024

The City of Franklin
ATTN: Kelly Hersh, Director of Administration
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Re: 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project - MMSD Funding Agreement M10005FR01
Pay Application 1 and Change Order 1.

Dear Kelly Hersh:

Attached is Pay Application 1 for the 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project - MMSD Funding Agreement
M10005FR01 project from UPI, LLC. I have reviewed the pay application and agree with the amount of
$155,975.75 that they are asking for. It is expected that the total completed to date is eligible for reimbursement
from MMSD per our funding agreement. Our engineering fees for design were $196,150.83. The engineering fees
for construction to date are $17,175.00.

Also attached is Change Order 1 for a decrease in the contract price of $95,490.00. The original Contract Sum is
$1,415,839.00 with the revised Contract to be reduced to $1,320,349. This Change Order modifies the contract by
the following items:

Reduction of Unit Prices:
• The City of Franklin will complete CClV sewer inspection after installation of the 6-inch and 8-inch storm

sewer laterals. That unit price reduction is a result of the Contractor not providing that scope of work.
• Unit price change to complete restoration with seed and mulch rather than sod.
Plan modifications:
• Addition of 8515 W Willow Point Pkwy.
• Revised 8-lnch Storm Sewer alignment and restoration limits for 8411 &8417 W Willow Point Pkwy.
• Connect (2) two homes to existing storm structures rather than new structures due to field conditions.
• Add line item for structure modifications due to field conditions.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Clark Dietz, Inc.

% +$,
Andy Ashley, PE
Project Engineer
E-mail: andrew.ashley@clarkdietz.com

759 North Milwaukee Street, Suite 624 / Milwaukee, WI 53202 414.727.4990 / clarkdietz.com



enz 0 0
0 0 0
j::: 0 0

0, 0
(.) "q' st
::J I/') LO
0 0 c»
UJ El')- El')-

I I 00 0
0c»
t
I/')
0,

en El')-
Iz

0
i==
15
Cl
<(

CJ)
...J

>- Cl) $:::, ...0:: Q g (I)

$ ~
"E
0

:i? a. ij::J C .c:Cl) ·- - C:
er:: ~

C: co0 .c:w :i? (.)
Cl e 1/1 ~0:: a. ... :50 a. Q) Cl)cu C:
UJ Cl) == 'O UJQ) (!)(!) %,o >z i zC: > <(<( cu .0
I .c: 1/) I
(.) u ..c: u

E 3 I-
- 0 UJe z

LO LO LO
N ..... .....
a> ari LO
0 ..... .....
<'!. o 0
co LO LO

LO LO..- ..-
LO LOy N
0, t:")
0 .....4 t:")ex, -.i'

(.0....
.....

0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
a> c:i 0, ari
C") 0, ¢ coco "q' ('I) ,....
,ti ,ti i -.i'..- 0, N (Dv_ I e .....
..- .....

E
Q) -.:;t- -.:;t-o a 9 E

rr:  )-- N Nm-.2cu 0 0c:-s>o. N0 'i I!!-
~

N
.:, 0. ii - -8s= N (0..--- ..---ssG ( - -'E ~

O') O')
·- co "- £.·8e
C> 1!: I! d- 2 i1i Q)
e O IQ - +-'n, n,

+#j 0 0 roa
"" Q) .... i
U) '6. ~ <ii5± Cl£gso O.t::
0 U) ! i
1A»j

~63£°,If
I-9gA

1z¥ zw·° :&
?# %z"··; a.... -s = ir: 0.S ~ m >3 2 @ 0 w
ls LL Li: 0
6sz a:: w j:: z

0:: w0o 0 t- C, i...:32e%e c( w Q)I- 0 it: <6s3es (.) 0 C
8sS & u: I- w C, 3:z w z&sgs I- i= ::> z a 0
=z Se g z a:: 0 c3 z >-2a5ig 0 :::,:. w :i z >, ::> >, +-'

1-.000 u, (.) ID 0 ¢ w ID LL ID 0

.9 ~m ..... o
CJ) C u t5
UJ Q =9g
(!) - ; +
<( :::, o

.Q o8z8a.. ·;::
ti I I I I I IN i5

LL
0 "q'
UJ ~z $ 3 (D
0 Vo SUJ » 4
(!) e c 0

0) 0<( ..- o la..
UJ

:ii, Cl) zz 0 Cl
Qoz t;I- I- I-
<ao £2ou
...J - ""') I-
a.. 0:: 0 z
a.. UJ 0:: 0
<( ll. ll. (.)

1-z
w
:ii:

?
0::
0
LL.
w

5
i!
tw
(.)
Qz
<(
z
0z
(.)
:::i
C.
C.
<(



ell
0)
ns
Cs
a:::

0 0
I'-- C")

0> <f
t cOr t
C"l N

I.{)
l'-
aci
C")
t

I.{) 0 I.{)
I'-- 0 N
I.{) r---: ......
C") co <D..................
..-

0
I.{)

N
I.{)

I.{)
N
Cf)
0
N_
co

rn
Q)
Cl
U
CL

0000000000000000
0 0 0 o o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f ooo too uo oo o o o o uo

NC!lNO-stOCOI.ONCO,;tNONOl'--
1.0 C!l l.O co o r to - <0_..- i-... ~C"l -sto N. co - o o o co o oo co t o i
,;tl.O C"l vNNC"l CO
('I") ('I') T""" T"""

6
0
0
I!)
0

0 C
'<:t" C
';?. g
o
LD C
r (C

(/)

tu
LU
I
Tu
o:'.
<t:

"C "Ces .5? .s
0 0. U)
t- E "C

0 C
0 <

0 0
o o

@' o
... + Cf) coS o
e+ge.

0
0
I.{)
l'-
D
co

0 0 0
0 0 0
U") 0 U")
..- V N
I'--_ I'--_ N_
N C"l C")
N

0o
0
I.{)
0

0
0
U")
co..-
f
(0..-

;
-- LLl......
0 0
o

0
0
U")
co......

0
0
0
I.{)
0

0 0 0o o
LO O LO
...- V N
I'--_ N
N C"l C"l
N

0o
LO
l'--
1'--
co

00
00
~ c.o
(!) co
0 Do
f o
I'-- v

C:
0 a
CJ +
'g_o
2. <

"C
0·;::
ell

"zl%
... .s:.¢
E>--ol------+----------------------------------------1,-~
0 Ill...: :s... 0
o 5

o s: e
Cl.
Ee
LL

N
w
(.')
<(
CL
(/)
_J
<(
to
tea
:)
(/)

0
0
0
l{)
0
...-
(:17

0 0 0o o o
0 U") I.{)v O N
CO C"l -st
f o i
(0

..-NC"l,;tU"J(Of'--CO(!)O...-NC"l,;tlO(Of'--CO
r « r r ] ] ] ] ] ] ]

lD
N
9%

0 ......
0
lD

lD
9

88
g$
r---:- cho o
t O
cigg,

- v co r u o N- o o ?E ci
<( ~ z

-0
5.::
0.·;::
CJ
If)
ell
0

"C
ell:i ell

() "C :si5
CJ
U)



UPI, LLC 2180S. SPRINGDALE RD., NEW BERLIN, WI 53146

CITY OF FRANKLIN

PROJECT: Franklin 2024 Sump Lateral Project
PAY REQUEST #1 THROUGH 9/3/24

Date:
Job:

9/12/2024
2404

DESCRIPTION
Item
No. BID ITEM UNIT
1 6" pvc storm lateral l.f.
2 8" pvc storm l.f.
3 12" storm reinstall - slurry l.f.
4 15" storm reinstall - slurry I.t.
5 18" storm reinstall - slurry l.f.
6 12" rep storm - slurry l.f.
7 sump pump connect ea
8 private check valve ea
9 2' inlet ea
10 3' inlet ea
11 connect to existina struct ea
12 4" topsoil seed & mulch s.y.
13 replace curb l.f.
14 replace walk s.f.
15 replace concrete drive s.V.
16 asphalt patch s.y.

Change Order
1 Modify Inlet for larger pipe ea

Jo 0TY.

4845.0
4160.0

16.0
8.0
24.0
12.0
83.0
10.0
52.0
8.0
37.0

5325.0
10.0

420.0
745.0
15.0

0.0

UNIT PRICE

$87.00
$98.00
$220.00
$225.00
$210.00
$267.00
$585.00
$345.00

$3,245.00
$3,740.00
$645.00
$25.00
$70.00
$11.00
$89.00
$165.00

$1,050.00

WORK COMPLETED
PREVIOUS THIS AMOUNT
PERIODS PERIOD THIS PERIOD

0.00 862.00 $74,994.00
0.00 507.00 $49,686.00
0.00 0.00 $0.00
0.00 0.00 $0.00
0.00 0.00 $0.00
0.00 0.00 $0.00
0.00 15.00 $8,775.00
0.00 0.00 $0.00
0.00 7.00 $22,715.00
0.00 1.00 $3,740.00
0.00 5.00 $3,225.00
0.00 0.00 $0.00
0.00 0.00 $0.00
0.00 0.00 $0.00
0.00 0.00 $0.00
0.00 0.00 $0.00

0.00 1.00 $1,050.00

CUMULATIVE SALES

UNITS AMOUNT

862.00 $74,994.00
507.00 $49,686.00
0.00 $0.00
0.00 $0.00
0.00 $0.00
0.00 $0.00

15.00 $8,775.00
0.00 $0.00
7.00 $22,715.00
1.00 $3,740.00
5.00 $3,225.00
0.00 s0.00
0.00 $0.00
0.00 $0.00
0.00 $0.00
0.00 s0.00

1.00 $1,050.00

ii EARNED TO DATE: Si4.i5@0]

9/16/24- B. Specht approved payment
with changes as noted by AJA



Owner:
Engineer:
Contractor:
Contract Name:
Date Issued:

CHANGE ORDER NO.: 1 Agreed Upon Prices
City ofFranklin Owner's Project No ·
Clark Dietz, Inc. Engineer's ProjectNo F0520040
UPI Contractor's ProjectNo·
2024 PPII Sump Pump Project- MMSD Funding Agreement M10005FR01
9/10/2024

The Contract is modified as follows upon execution of thus Change Order:

Reduction of Unit Prices:
• The City of Franklin will complete CCTV sewer inspection after installation of the 6-inch and 8-inch storm

sewer laterals That unit price reduction is a result of the Contractor not providing that scope ofwork
• Umt price change to complete restoration with seed and mulch rather than sod.

Plan modifications
• Addition of8515 WWillow Point Pkwy pending Right of Entry Agreement signed by resident
• Revised 8-lnch Storm Sewer alignment and restoration limits for 8411 & 8417 WWillow Point Pkwy
• Addition of (2) two connect to existing storm structure due to field conditions
• Add line item for structure modifications due to field conditions

Attachments: Contract Quantities
hChange in Contract Price C ange in Contract Times

Original Contract Price: Original ContractTimes:
Substantial Completion: 7/17/24

$ 1,415,839 (BASE +ALL Alternates) Ready for final payment: 7/31/24
[Increase] [Decrease] from previously approved Increase from previously approved Change Orders
Change Orders No. 1 to No. 1: No.1 to No. 1:

Substantial Completion: N/A
$ N/A Ready for final payment: N/A
Contract Price prior to this Change Order: Contract Times prior to this Change Order:

Substantial Completion: 7/17/24
$ 1,415,839 (BASE +ALL Alternates) Ready for final payment: 7/31/24
Decrease this Change Order: lncrease this Change Order:

Substantial Completion: 11/22/2024
$ 95,490.00 Ready for final payment: 11/29/2024
Contract Price incorporating this Change Order: ContractTimes with all approved Change Orders:

Substantial Completion: 11/22/2024
$ 1,320,349.00 Ready for final payment: 11/29/2024

By:

Title:

Date: 9/12/2024

Authorized by Owner

. X", u. 2
me: l ca
ate:2/z/f

Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable)

Urban Water Program Manager
9/20/24

EJCDC9 c-941, Change Order.
Copyrlghtl> 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 1 of1



8
cig

Ir -
~ 11 lxl g 'Nn

l

co

0
0
i
V)
0...-

>a N

V) V) V>

rl
.-i
0u

±au
2
V,

.,::;
u
"'UJ

C

>V,
u..
V,

8
II ::j

8
6N

"l!JIU
V\

<I:
UJ

2
t!z
V\

£
B
V,
DD
C:

5
5z
UJ

B
g
·;:;
u
l!J
C:
C:
0u

o1I.,
E
.\:
o0
C:
'5:,
-E st
o., "'4» "g., 'E cz::"' .,:;

6 2
,._ l!J
.... l!Jz

o1!.,
Eg
u...,,
C:
'5:,u
.E iai V'l

25
5 ?
t: ~z

.,
>;;;
>
~.,
..r:::u
a.
E
:,
Cl.
Q,

E
:,
V,.,
:;;
>·;;;
Cl.

.,

C:
0·e.,
C:
C:
0u
Q,

E:,
Cl.
Q,

E:,
V\

Cl.u
CZ::

.;
"'IUV\

E
s
V\
.,:;u
£
rj
rl

u..
-'

±
C:
5
CZ::
'O
C:

"'.,
>0
E.,
0:.,
Q,a:
,:
u
C:

3

u..
-'

q
N

ll

u>
Cl.

.;
"'.,V\

E
5,:;;
,:
u
E
00

u>
Cl.

g
2l
3~
IU

l
V\

£g
V,
,:
u
E
J,

u..
-'



03zgtwugt3wee
ZCIUS u, 'B:,mo 1 1"

~,9--luns
H3\HS H}lln llft "f;6 'il lOl:HSOOO WJ 1N3Vv33!:J8\f id II8NIONn::I OSVvVv 1:::J3rO!:ld

dVvnd dVvns lldd VGOG ~ --~~- Nll>IN\f!:J::I ::10 All:) 2zot IIHII!±;£
Hi. !l 1:l 3rG lld a5d

\>'31:!\f M31/\!:J3/\0 SOOc

Cl
C:
'6
C:
UJ
-"Q)
Q)s:

"""N0
2
£2co

i□□□□

rlV Lt;'il t"ZOZ Ol ll ]l'<IG 107d l'l>I' c;1:9,;,:g czoz 01 IL ]rlll ],\'<IS ij]J.]8 r ij]Hd01SlijHJ :)N.O SNVld ]lJS SlJ]HS av:> NO!S30 i::>]TlO::> NM/0 d.-.ns lldd rzoz - Nn}!N'o-°ijj o,ooz,;,oJ ·d



a03t107wt2«e,±:#"
.IH'd!S BW10 l!ft "N 6H

Cl
-~ t t-a N Nc:: 0 0w £::! 2-"' 0
Q) al alQ)s:

ro□□~
<(
-"'
0s:

lOl:L:JS000lV'J 1N3V'J33t:18'v' id II 08NIONn.:::I OSV'JV'J D3rOt:ld i 6 : r---dV'Jnd dV'JnS lldd l>G0G 'v'3t:l'v' M31/\t:13/\0 c':We': - 0

iii: u i- Nll>iN'v't:1.:::1 .:JO All'.) +8IIHII lL

31J.U nlro\ld 31J.!J. !)~!MVl:10

i'IV 6S-II (ZOZ Ol l t ]1va 107d "'" s1:9s:11 (ZOZ 01 t I 3VI 3S 8338 T Ge0IS») 3d Se ]US SlJ]HS O'l'J N:llS]a lJ]llO:J NM!a di'lnS llrld ,zaz - NnJotNlf~B Ot-QOZSOJ d



I

I

" " " " " t t t ¢ ¢ ¢ " t r t T t tN S ~ Sl N (::! (::! N N (::! N (::! (::! (::! g £ £ ~ Sl (::!
~ 0 ± t:: 2 «5 «5 O "' CX) N

al al 3 c? 0 0 3 N !:::! M (::!t "' 0 0 0 0 0 ~ ~0 :,·c :, .c ·c :, 'O C Lt C Q) Q) :,;:;: .c f- u.. .c Q) 0 0 :, 'O ;f 'O 'O J: C :, :, .c 'O ;f Ef- f- s :a 5 f- Q) Q) Q) 0 .c f- f- Q)s z s :a f- z
t " t t " t t t " t t t ¢ t t t t t t ..,. ..,.
(::! (::! !:::! N (::! (::! (::! g !:::! (::! (::! N (::! N N !:::! (::! N

~ (::! sCX) "' <D «5 0 <D !1? ,.__ ;, ,.__ ;, co "' ii!S !:::! al al s (::! 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 s !:::!-:. CX) Lt "' 0 ~ ~
in 'O :, C Lt :, Q) C Q) 'O C ;f 'O ;f CQ) .c 0 .c :, 0 :, Q) 0 C :, :, C Q) Q) cz f- :a f- f- 5 f- z :a 0 .c .c 0 :, s 0 0:a f- f- 5 f- :a 5

C
0

"' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "'± >, >, >, >, >, >, >, >, >, >, >, >, >, >, >, >, >, >, >, >, >,"' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "'0 'O 'O 'O 'O 'O 'O 'O 'O 'O 'O 'O 'O 'O 'O 'O 'O 'O 'O 'O 'O 'O
N <D <D ..,. ..,. M ..,. <D <D "' M "' N M M N t "' "'

ii: <i:
=> """' ± t 5t: "" £"' iii., 0 "" "" £·o Cl

a. a. s 5A C Q) Q) a. 5 a. ...:s c c u .£ a. .s ...: Q)

iii 'O o u "" u-;;; a. ·o ·o Q) 5 0 "' c "'s "' a. a. c "" C 0 Q) ·o Q) Q) ...J .s 5 Cle "":c '!; '!; ·o le '!; .Q ~ "' a. c c C C C: 0

"' z 0 ...J Q) ·o "' ~.Q .Q a. M iii CX) Q) '" Q) Q) ·o ·o ...J...I
CX) ·;; .8 .2 C "" a. a. 'O a. "'

·;;
0.. "" :i: :i: '!; le N .c C u5 Q) "' 0 Q) ·;; s .9 CE "' .c g :5 "' .Q N 'O ...J Q) Q) ('.) "" f- "' .Q0 M Q) ~ 0 "" "" "' s Q)::, 0 ;:::: ..,. <D :i: CX) <i: 0 Cl'.'. s 0 N (.'.)

,.__ "' "' ...J f- Cl'.'. €VI N CX) "" (/) N ...J ...J ,.__ ;:t ¢» rt: "" "" 0 "" c 0 Cl'.'. "" "" c %LL N M "' ,.__ N 0) CX) Q) -;;; u.. , <D ..,. "' t <D "' "" Q)N £ ";" Q) Q)0 <( E <( "" "" 0 Ez Cl'.'. Cl'.'.N w "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' Q) w N N N N N M "' CX) Q)x 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 > 't: > 't:.!: n rt: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ro :, Cl'.'. 5 5 5 0 5 - z z "' :,:;;: {:. <( N N N N N N N N a. f- <( N N N N N <i: a. f-
C Ie Q - e ;: • £2 ;! ';' ';' E £ g 8 ;;; N M 3u.. N N



/Ms
PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT

9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

2024 PPII Sump Pump Project - Progress Meeting Agenda
Wednesday, August 21, 2024@ 9:00 AM
Teams Meeting

1) Attendance
CJ - Clark Dietz
Becky- MMSD
Mike - UPI
Kyle - Franklin

2) Approve Previous Meeting Notes
Minutes from 8/20 - No Changes.

3) Project Snapshot

o First day of work

o Substantial Completion Date 

o Ready for Final Payment

o Original Contract Amount 

o Change Orders to Date 

o Current Contract Amount 

8/22/24

7/17/2024 (Co 1:11/1/2024)

7/31/2024 (Co 1: 11/15/2024)

$1,415,839.00

0

$1,415,839.00

$1,605,000.00o M10005FR01 MMSD Funding Agreement Amount-

o Completed and Stored through Pay App. #1

4) Schedule

o Schedule Update (See attached)

o FR2005 (8/22 to 10/16)

o FR2012 (10/7 to 11/22)

o Plumbing inspections

$0.00 (0%)

5) Coordination with residents or other entities

o Clark Dietz does not have agreements on record for the following properties. City to
check their records.

■ 8835 W Silverwood Ct- ROE confirmed.
■ 8720 W Lake Pointe Dr - ROE confirmed.
■ 8832 W Willow Pointe Pkwy- Kyle to confirm ROE. Confirmed.
■ AII ROE's on record.

Clark)ietz
Engineering Quality of Life"



} City of Franklin - 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project - Progress Meeting
Page 2

o Additional sump locations:
• 8515 W Willow Pointe Pkwy - CDI confirmed this is feasible

• Kyle to get ROE on file prior to work.
• Change Order to be approved prior to work.

• 8513 W Willow Pointe Pkwy - Not feasible (rear sump)
■ Others: None currently

6) Traffic Safety/ Road Closures

o Storage Location at dead end of 834 Street
o All good.

7) Progress Payments

o Pay Application 1- TBD
• Reminder - MMSD funding requirements for number of applications.
• First Pay App after construction complete on Willow Point Pkwy.

8) Project Issues

o Inspector Requirements No longer considered project issue; however, will remain to
ensure scheduling of inspections are still occurring.

■ Plumbing Inspector: Justin Ligocki
JLigocki@fran kli nwi.gov
414-425-0084

• Check valves - only need if below grade Kyle & UPI foreman to verify
check valves installed. Expected locations to look are:

o 7649 S. 834 St.
o 8835 W. Silverwood Ct.
o 8705 W. Travis Ct.

• Pipe depth - 2.5ft depth minimum so insulation not required.
• Tracer wire - part of submittal package for private side
• Material Submittals - additional submittals needed

o No ADS for project
o Will submit RCP pipe

• Coring into back of inlets

9) Change Orders

o Change Order 1 pending.
• Decrease of $97,830.00



} City of Franklin - 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project - Progress Meeting
Page 3

• Switch from seed to sod.
• Remove CCTV from contract.
• Add homes discussed above.

■ New Contract price: $1,318,009.00 (Estimated value)
■ Updated Contract Completion Dates

o Future/Pending
■ Addition and Subtraction of properties to the project.

10)Safety

o Work Site Safety
■ Contractor primary safety contact:

Mike Dretzka Project Manager
24 hr Emergency Contact

■ Secondary Contact
Norb Dretzka Superintendent

o Accidents/ Emergency Incidents
■ None

262-894-2604 Mobile
Mike@upiconstruction.com

262-894-2605 Mobile

11) 0pen Discussion/Miscellaneous

o Chipped Concrete driveways to be restored to original condition. Contractor
responsible for repairs.

■ Potentially widen sidewalk an inch or 2 if ADA still met.
• Full panel replacement
■ Private side - discuss with homeowner/ public side - City decisions.

o Compaction and settling concerns. UPI to take additional measures.
o 8820 Whispering Oaks Ct- Dog Fence to be repaired.
o Next progress meeting will be Wednesday, August 28th, 2024 at 9:00 a.m.

Location: TBD



Clark)ietz
Engineering Quality of life <'
_______L.__

Weekly Inspection Report

CDI Project Number: F05224001
Project Name: 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project

Substantial completion Date: November 11, 2024
Final Pavement: November 292024

Weekly Report Prepared by: Tania Tkachuk
Week ending: August 30th, 2024

Progress ThisWeek
• 8801 Whispering Oaks
• 8784 Whispering Oaks
• 8802 Whispering Oaks
• 8820Whispering Oaks
• 8836 Whispering Oaks
• 8850 Whispering Oaks
• 8761 Whispering Oaks
• 8729 Whispering Oaks
• 7732 87Street
• 774487Street
• 7760 87th Street
• 8840 Willow Pointe

Additional Comments

Resident Notes:

8850 W WHISPERING OAK
CT He has irrigation and will be locating for us
8836 W WHISPERING OAK
CT Out of town week of, will move landscapinq

He may redirect his discharge pipe to avoid
7637 S 83RD ST landscaping
8802 W WHISPERING OAK
CT She will remove landscapina
7732 S 87TH ST She will remove rose bushes
8836 W WHISPERING OAK French drain west side of house
8802 W WHISPERING OAK French drain west side of house
8501 W WILLOW POINTE Locating irrigation lines
8411 W WILLOW POINTE Existing field inlets - reusing
8417 W WILLOW POINTE Existina field inlets - reusina
8254 W SOUTHVIEW DR Avoid tree

759 North Milwaukee Street, Suite 624 / Milwaukee, WI 53202 414.727.4990 clarkdietz.com



Ms
PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT

9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

2024 PPII Sump Pump Project- Progress Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, September 4, 2024@ 9:00 AM
Willow Pointe Pkwy and 87w Street

1) Attendance
Kelly Hersh - Franklin
Klye Baker - Franklin
Justin Ligocki - Franklin
Becky Specht - MMSD
Mike Dretzka - UPI
Andy Ashley - Clark Dietz - Note Taker

2) Approve Previous Meeting Notes
Minutes from 8/28 -Approved

3) Project Snapshot

o First day of work

o Substantial Completion Date 

o Ready for Final Payment

o Original Contract Amount

o Change Orders to Date 

o Current Contract Amount

o Completed and Stored through Pay App. #1

8/22/24

7/17/2024 (Co 1: 11/1/2024)

7/31/2024 (Co 1: 11/15/2024)

$1,415,839.00

0

$1,415,839.00

$1,605,000.00

$0.00 (0%)

o 0005FR01 MMSD Funding Agreement Amount-

4) Schedule

o Schedule Update

o Approximately 16 Pipe runs have been completed to date.

o Two homes removed because the sumps discharge to the rear of the property

• If homeowners wanted to reroute to the front of the property at their own
expense, they could be tied in. UPI requested that if they wanted to go that
route, plumbing work will need to be done by end of September before
contractor demobilizes in the area.

Kyle to reach out to residents to formally ask

o Contractor will keep working on pipe runs heading east

5) Coordination with residents or other entities

Clarkietz
Engineering Quality of Life



) City of Franklin - 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project - Progress Meeting
Page 2

o Additional sump locations:
■ 8515 W Willow Pointe Pkwy - ROE agreement status?

• Received and is in hand as of this morning.
■ Others: None

6) Traffic Safety/ Road Closures

o School started this week. Please be cautious of school buses/kids traveling to school
during drop off and pick up.

7) Progress Payments

o Pay Application 1- after construction complete on Willow Point Pkwy
■ UPI will submit their August application shortly.
■ Application needs funding agency signature line
■ When submitting to MMSD, dailies, test reports, and other deliverables must

accompany the pay application.
• Becky to send CDI a sample deliverable that works well for the

district.

8) Project Issues

o Inspector Requirements
■ Plumbing Inspector: Justin Ligocki

JLigocki@franklinwi.gov
414-425-0084

• Check valves - expected locations:
o 7649 S. 83rd St.
o 8835 W. Silverwood Ct.
o 8705 W. Travis Ct.

■ City said that for this project, these are the three that
require in home inspections for check valves.

• Pipe depth - 2.5ft depth minimum so insulation not required.
• Tracer wire- part of submittal package for private side
• Coring into back of inlets

o City said slurry backfill will not be required around structures
o DPW was unhappy with the amount of material that was delivered onsite and to try

and limit the amount delivered to the site at one time.
■ Contractor said that they are unable to split orders up and it all comes at

once. UPI to coordinate with Kevin from DPW prior to next delivery for staging
locations.



} City of Franklin - 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project - Progress Meeting
Page 3

9) Change Orders

o Change Order 1 pending.
■ Decrease of $97,830.00

• Switch from seed to sod.
• Add homes discussed above.
• Removed CCTB from contract

■ New Contract price: $1,318,009.00
■ Updated Contract Completion Dates
■ UPI has signed, working with City on execution.

o Future/Pending
■ Addition and Subtraction of properties to the project.
■ Structure modifications were needed due to larger pipe sizes. UPI has sent

Clark Dietz pricing. Status is under review.

10)Safety

o Work Site Safety
■ Contractor primary safety contact:

Mike Dretzka Project Manager
24 hr Emergency Contact

■ Secondary Contact
Norb Dretzka Superintendent

o Accidents/ Emergency Incidents
■ None

11) Open Discussion/Miscellaneous

262-894-2604 Mobile
M ike@u piconstruction .com

262-894-2605 Mobile

o Next progress meeting will be Wednesday, September 11th, 2024 at 9:00 a.m.
Location: TBD



Clark)ietz
-----•E•n•g•i n•e•e-ri-ng_Q_u a•l-it•y•o•f •L-if•e , (.... )•.._ _

Weekly Inspection Report

CDI Project Number: F05224001
Project Name: 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project

Substantial completion Date: November 11, 2024
Final Pavement: November 292024

Weekly Report Prepared by: Clark Dietz
Week ending: September 6th, 2024

Progress Ihis Week
• 8843 Willow Pointe
• 8816 Willow Pointe
• 8832 Willow Pointe
• 8787 Willow Pointe
• 8755 Willow Pointe
• 8523 Willow Pointe
• 8519 Willow Pointe
• 8515 Willow Pointe
• 8527 Willow Pointe
• 8501 Willow Pointe
• 8507 Willow Pointe

Additional Comments

• Added 8515 Willow Pointe
• Investigated 8513 Willow Pointe; however, rear discharge

759 North Milwaukee Street, Suite 624 / Milwaukee, WI 53202 414.727.4990 clarkdietz.com



Ms
PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT

9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

2024 PPII Sump Pump Project - Progress Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, September 11, 2024@ 9:00 AM
Willow Pointe Pkwy and 83rd Street

1) Attendance
2) Kelly Hersh - Franklin
3) Klye Baker - Franklin
4) Justin Ligocki - Franklin
5) Mike Dretzka - UPI
6) Andy Ashley - Clark Dietz - Note Taker

7) Approve Previous Meeting Notes
Minutes from 9/4-Approved

8) Project Snapshot

o First day of work

o Substantial Completion Date 

o Ready for Final Payment

o Original Contract Amount 

o Change Orders to Date 

o Current Contract Amount

o 0005FR01 MMSD Funding Agreement Amount-

o Completed and Stored through Pay App. #1

8/22/24

$1,415,839.00

0

$1,415,839.00

$1,605,000.00

$0.00 (0%)

7/17/2024 (Co 1:11/1/2024)

7/31/2024 (Co 1: 11/15/2024)

9) Schedule

o Schedule Update

Currently ahead of schedule. Anticipate wrapping up the first neighborhood by the
end of next week.

10) Coordination with residents or other entities

o Update regarding homes that discharged to the rear of the property.
• 8755 Kyle to check up with
• 8787 is not interested in re-routing
• Franklin to check the permits and move to new addresses

o Others:
8515 was added into the project and was connected.

Clarietz
Engineering Quality of Life



) City of Franklin - 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project - Progress Meeting
Page 2

11) Traffic Safety/ Road Closures

o Coordinate with Kevin (DPW) when bringing materials to the site for staging.

12) Progress Payments

o Pay Application 1- Submitted 9/6. Pending review and revisions.
UPI will look at comments and resubmit

13) Project Issues

o Inspector Requirements
• Plumbing Inspector: Justin Ligocki

JLigocki@franklinwi.gov
414-425-0084

• Check valves - expected locations:
o 7649 S. 83rd St.
o 8835 W. Silverwood Ct.
o 8705 W. Travis Ct.

• Pipe depth - 2.5ft depth minimum so insulation not required.
• Tracer wire - part of submittal package for private side
• Coring into back of inlets

o No current issues

14) Change Orders

o Change Order 1 pending.
• Decrease of $95,490.00

• Switch from seed to sod.
• Add homes discussed above.
• Removed CCTB from contract
• Structure Modifications

• New Contract price: $1,320,349.00
• Updated Contract Completion Dates
• Expected approval with pay application 1

o Future/Pending
• Addition and Subtraction of properties to the project.

15) Safety

o Work Site Safety
• Contractor primary safety contact:

Mike Dretzka Project Manager
24 hr Emergency Contact

• Secondary Contact

262-894-2604 Mobile
M ike@u piconstruction .com



} City of Franklin - 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project - Progress Meeting
Page 3

Norb Dretzka Superintendent 262-894-2605 Mobile

o Accidents/ Emergency Incidents
■ None

o Truck drivers need to slow down in the neighborhood. UPI to reach out.

16) Open Discussion/Miscellaneous

o Next progress meeting will be Wednesday, September 18th, 2024 at 9:00 a.m.
Location: TBD

o Concrete sub will contact homeowners individually regarding driveway closures.
■ Police Department has been notified about overnight parking.

o Mike will be unable to meet on Oct 24, Meeting will either be cancelled or moved
based on work site operations.



Clark)ietz
Engineering Quality of Life <'

________.L__

Weekly Inspection Report

CDI Project Number: F05224001
Project Name: 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project

Substantial completion Date: November 11", 2024
Final Pavement: November 29 2024

Weekly Report Prepared by: Clark Dietz
Week ending: September 13th, 2024

Progress This Week - All Newsump connections
• 7718 S Willow Pointe CT
• 7724 S Willow Pointe CT
• 7730 S Willow Pointe CT
• 7736 S Willow Pointe CT
• 8417 W Willow Pointe PKWY
• 8411 W Willow Pointe PKWY
• 8247 W Imperial DR
• 7831 S 83RD St
• 7819 S 83RD St
• 7807 S 83RD St
• 7855 S 83RD St
• 7758 S 83RD St
• 7744 S 83RD St
• 7730 S 83RD St

Additional Comments

None

759 North Milwaukee Street, Suite 624 Milwaukee, WI 53202 414.727.4990 clarkdietz.com



(is
PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT

9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

2024 PPII Sump Pump Project - Progress Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, September 18, 2024 @ 9:00 AM
Willow Pointe Pkwy and 83rd Street

1) Attendance
Kyle Baker - Franklin
Justin Ligocki - Franklin
Mike Dretzka - UPI
Andy Ashley - Clark Dietz - Note Taker

2) Approve Previous Meeting Notes
Minutes from 9/11 - Approved

3) Project Snapshot

o First day of work 

o Substantial Completion Date 

o Ready for Final Payment

o Original Contract Amount

o Change Orders to Date 

o Current Contract Amount

8/22/24

7/17/2024 (Co 1: 11/1/2024)

7/31/2024 (Co 1: 11/15/2024)

$1,415,839.00

0

$1,415,839.00

$1,605,000.00o 0005FR01 MMSD Funding Agreement Amount-

o Completed and Stored through Pay App. #1

4) Schedule

o Schedule Update

o Mobilizing Saw cutting tomorrow for next neighborhood.

o Concrete sub will start Monday or Tuesday next week.

• Kyle to mark out removals ahead of time.

5) Coordination with residents or other entities

o ROE received from 7843 834 Street and added into the project.
o Others: None

Clarkietz
Engineering Quality of Life

$0.00 (0%)



) City of Franklin - 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project - Progress Meeting
Page 2

6) Traffic Safety/ Road Closures

o Coordinate with Kevin (DPW) when bringing materials to the site for staging.
Contractor request to stage materials on the east end of the cul de sac of
Gloden Lake Ct. DPW said this acceptable.

o Franklin DPW is currently paving Puetz Rd. No construction traffic shall use Puetz.
• St Martins Rd to EIm Ct to 89h to access Golden Laken Lakes Way.

■

•

•

•

Clarification needed on if we are allowed to cross on Mon, Tues, Wed
next week while they are paving. Kyle to follow up with Kevin.
Need Payne and Dolan's schedule for timing and how long we are
supposed to stay off after its paved.
UPI mentioned the possibility of using a small 5-ton truck if allowed or
pulling off and not working those days if there is no other option.

7) Progress Payments

o Pay Application 1-($164,185.00)
■ Waiting for funding agency signature on C01

o There may have been unaccounted for pipe LF on pay application 1. Quantity will be
resolved and addressed on Pay Application 2.

8) Project Issues

o Inspector Requirements
■ Plumbing Inspector: Justin Ligocki

JLigocki@franklinwi.gov
414-425-0084

• Check valves - expected locations:
o 7649 S. 83rd St.
o 8835 W. Silverwood Ct.
o 8705 W. Travis Ct.

• Pipe depth - 2.5ft depth minimum so insulation not required.
• Tracer wire- part of submittal package for private side
• Coring into back of inlets

• There are at least two beehive grates that the City wants swapped out
for flat grates. Mike to reach out to Neenah for options and Frankin
DPW will check to see if they have anything that will work at their
shop.

• Noted to check the next subdivision incase there are more casting
that will need to be swapped.

o Beehive grates were a special order and if UPI replaces them,
it will be an additional cost.



) City of Franklin -- 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project - Progress Meeting
Page 3

9) Change Orders

o Change Order 1 pending.
• Decrease of $95,490.00
• New Contract price: $1,320,349.00
• Updated Contract Completion Dates
• Expected approval with pay application 1

• Need funding agency signature
o Future/Pending

■ Addition and Subtraction of properties to the project.

10) Safety

o Work Site Safety
■ Contractor primary safety contact:

Mike Dretzka Project Manager
24 hr Emergency Contact

■ Secondary Contact
Norb Dretzka Superintendent

262-894-2604 Mobile
Mike@upiconstruction.com

262-894-2605 Mobile

o Reminder for trucks to slow down and be cautious of residents traveling in and out of
the neighborhood.

o Accidents/ Emergency Incidents
• None

11) Open Discussion/Miscellaneous

o Next progress meeting will be Wednesday, September 25th, 2024 at 9:00 a.m.
Location: TBD

o Meeting on Oct 24 will be cancelled



Clark)ietz
Engineering Quality of Life <'
_______..£__

Weekly Inspection Report

CDI Project Number: F05224001
Project Name: 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project

Substantial completion Date: November 11", 2024
Final Pavement: November 29- 2024

Weekly Report Prepared by: Clark Dietz
Week ending: September 20th, 2024

Progress This Week - All New sump connections
• 7649 S 83RD ST
• 7625 S 83RD ST
• 7613 S 83RD ST
• 7637 S 83RD ST
• 8254 W SOUTHVIEW DR
• 8811 W SILVERWOOD CT
• 8819 W SILVERWOOD CT
• 8843 W SILVERWOOD CT
• 8851 W SILVERWOOD CT
• 8835 W SILVERWOOD CT
• 8842 W SILVERWOOD CT
• 8830 W SILVERWOOD CT

Additional Comments

• Starting second neighborhood with pipe.
• Starting Concrete Crews in first neighborhood.

759 North Milwaukee Street, Suite 624 / Milwaukee, WI 53202 414.727.4990 clarkdietz.com



/is
PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT

9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

2024 PPII Sump Pump Project- Progress Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, September 25, 2024@ 9:00 AM
Lake Pointe Drive and Golden Lakes Way

1) Attendance
Kelly Hersh - Franklin
Kyle Baker - Franklin
Justin Ligocki - Franklin
Becky Specht - MMSD
Mike Dretzka - UPI
CJ Beyer - Clark Dietz
Andy Ashley - Clark Dietz - Note Taker

2) Approve Previous Meeting Notes
Minutes from 9/18-Approved

3) Project Snapshot

o First day of work

o Substantial Completion Date 

o Ready for Final Payment

o Original Contract Amount 

o Change Orders to Date 

o Current Contract Amount -

o 0005FR01 MMSD Funding Agreement Amount-

o Completed and Stored through Pay App. #1

8/22/24

11/1/2024)

11/15/2024)

$1,415,839.00

1

$1,320,349.00

$1,605,000.00

$164,185.00 (12%)

4) Schedule

o Schedule Update

• Concrete work is being completed today for the first neighborhood. Driveways
will open back up on Monday.

Hoping to have all pipe in the ground by Oct 34.

■ Trying to avoid needing to work when trick or treat is happening

Trick or treat is 0ct 260.

5) Coordination with residents or other entities

o Others: None

Clark)ietz
Engineering Quality of Life



) City of Franklin - 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project - Progress Meeting
Page 2

6) Traffic Safety/ Road Closures

o Franklin DPW is currently paving Puetz Rd. No construction traffic shall use Puetz.
• St Martins Rd to EIm Ct to 89h to access Golden Laken Lakes Way.
• May have some conflicts with hauling due to paving on Friday 9/27. Update?

Kyle to follow up and check in with paving schedule and provide updates if
necessary. Seems like mid-day Friday may be the only access issue with hauling.

7) Progress Payments

o Pay Application 1-($164,185.00)
• There may have been unaccounted for pipe LF on pay application 1. Quantity

will be resolved and addressed on Pay Application 2.
• Measurement and Payment. This item will be paid for at the contract

unit price per lineal foot of storm sewer lateral as acceptably
installed. Lineal footage of laterals shall be measured as the full
length of 6-lnch pipe, including wye fitting, bends and fittings, from
five (5) feet of private sump pump connection (private residence) to
inside edge of main or structure. The price shall include the cost of all
excavation, bedding, cover, dewatering, furnishing and installing
storm sewer lateral pipe and fittings, temporary plywood, granular
backfill and compaction of lean concrete mix backfill material,
removal, hauling, and disposal of waste material, and televising after
completion.

o There may be some unused structures from homes dropping out that will need to be
compensated if we don't end up using them.

• Talk about possibility of using the structures for next year's PPII project. Kyle
to check with Kevin at DPW to see if they can store the unused structures
until they can be used for a future project.

o Pay Application 2- TBD Will cut off quantities for PA2 this Friday.

8) Project Issues

o Inspector Requirements
■ Plumbing Inspector: Justin Ligocki

JLigocki@franklinwi.gov
414-425-0084

• Check valves - expected locations:
o 7649 S. 83rd St.
o 8835 W. Silverwood Ct.
o 8705 W. Travis Ct.

• Pipe depth - 2.5ft depth minimum so insulation not required.
• Tracer wire - part of submittal package for private side
• Coring into back of inlets



) City of Franklin - 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project - Progress Meeting
Page 3

o Beehive grate to flat grate update?
■ Mike to provide price to supply and install flat top castings. City to keep

Beehives as inventory.
• Switching to flat tops will be a City expense. MMSD will only pay for

one casting.

9) Change Orders

o Change Order 1 pending.
■ Decrease of $95,490.00
■ New Contract price: $1,320,349.00
■ Updated Contract Completion Dates
■ Expected approval with pay application 1

• Need funding agency signature
o Future/Pending

■ Addition and Subtraction of properties to the project.

10) Safety

o Work Site Safety
■ Contractor primary safety contact:

Mike Dretzka Project Manager
24 hr Emergency Contact

■ Secondary Contact
Norb Dretzka Superintendent

262-894-2604 Mobile
Mike@upiconstruction.com

262-894-2605 Mobile

o Reminder for trucks to slow down and be cautious of residents traveling in and out of
the neighborhood. No issues since bring it up last meeting.

o Accidents/ Emergency Incidents
■ None

11) Open Discussion/Miscellaneous

o Next progress meeting will be Wednesday, October 9th 25th, 2024 at 9:00 a.m.
Location: TBD

o Meeting next week (Oct 2nd) will be cancelled.
o Becky asked for lessons learned as we approach end of project. Items discussed

were:
■ Future use to cost benefit for laying 4" pipe compared to 6" pipe.
■ 7" wall thickness for structures seems overkill. Consider 5" wall thickness.
■ Flat top grates and no beehive grates. Possibly swap out structures all
together to replace with clean outs.

■ Have residents provide proof of check valve installation.



Clark)ietz
-----•E•n•g•i n•e•e-ri.ng_Q_u a•l-it•y•o•f •L•if•e (...,.},..._ _

Weekly Inspection Report

CDI Project Number: F05224001
Project Name: 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project

Substantial completion Date: November 11", 2024
Final Pavement: November 2902024

Weekly Report Prepared by: Clark Dietz
Week ending: September 26th, 2024

Progress This Week - All New sump connections
o 8780 W LAKE POINTE DR
o 8476 S GOLDEN LAKE WAY
o 8490 S GOLDEN LAKE WAY
o 8720 W LAKE POINTE DR
o 8596 W LAKE POINTE DR
o 8590 W LAKE POINTE DR
o 8490 W LAKE POINTE DR
o 8621 W LAKE POINTE DR
o 8510 W LAKE POINTE DR

Additional Comments

None

759 North Milwaukee Street, Suite 624 / Milwaukee, WI 53202 414.727.4990 clarkdietz.com



I
t

Ct !
-:,,.~ f---+---+------+----+--.d---"'-!----\+r--1-1
L -+-++----+-f--+---!=i--+1--+-L"l-'--I- ! -t--i----1--r-t--t-----t-.=/1-H>-..dj---t-Jl
-~r---+--tl--t------t-----t--.t-t--+-'~ ·b"r--t--"lc-t- -l+l-1---t------'-- -+--+~+-- i=-

EHtEHIEEE]ElHl+Wttl

J

I ..
I

I I -~~-... \- ~ ~
~ ~-'" 2

~

-;t-
u \ C ~ ~ s

r- ~ ~
~ V-,- ..... . I..._ ·-' ·--- ~ /., ·:51 I ~ 1-- / ~

3 ~V- ~r - - -

ro p,/_ ..:: (',- '"')
-~

I

/ I \b{::::! ~s::. --:;z \ ri ..J J

1-.l ~ --. - <fl.. C' cs- -rs:. ( 0- ~ ):-~ , V J -
~

co - - :t j --U'\ - ~
) \ ~ \- -~ ll;v-, 2 \ 01 '1 (<- ) I

5s -6.) N l: 2 _, VJ ....J
3 j _,,..,_ \ I -, \
3 V'j s- \ \ ~

z. I
~

el I
c:l El ' - ·- ':? ~-:s-e - r- ..-

\.f) - .. --<t I 3 -n ,-.o T I - --- it- <' ~ ,::;t ?r s%~ -
~ € i'-- ~ - -~ $ --- "- h"'-

.,,,
\ -['I l ._J..,.._- . $$ f....'::> f<",

--:::r I-
S

I

~'\I, , - ' ±i I""
\ ' -1 \()- (r



I

-----

\)
t

--~.----r---,--.--.--,---.--,---.--,,---,-r- -~T - ' - -~ - -- ~-r--r--,----y---- - - I I
'-·-· .-1--1--~-l--+--l---+-l--l-+-+--+--!l-+-+--+--+-+-·+-(,-I"'-_ -I~ - -.-

I ,. r • , 1 it• ' , ~ ~' 1 , '
1 1

1
/. )~ ~-r ,~1Jl/ I {::~_,·.'I , 1 ['-' 1 , ! _I J/. 1i, I i D ;:;-i.---<F'-·+'-+--+--,~f-+--+--+--+-l

• 11() Ii L,'J:[_~_'_..J.J-,_+-_~_~_-tl (_-4J-_-J==c:_-j-~,T."\1Th"ii'•1
1
~_"f"i_~ \J _J 7_,.!_ -~~~/4

0
1-/_.,'<..Cf--/l-+-+--+-.. !-- -. --

jl~ 1·,v;-✓- - ·-·~•·<,,•J',11( l'. -.-"'I.,,
1L.. I I - '- V

i

·,

I ,. ,,.

'
}-- OJ L

'--1---+-- .;_I -1--1----1--~I -1--1---+-r-l--l-+-+--+-+-+--t

hp all%ch4d'hk [ell4/¢
-~-~:.J.---l--,l-+--+-+-~~+-~-+-+:..+-¥--+-+-t-1--+,-+-t--+++--J-t--t-t---t-

UL[ /4 pl1111
<t, Le_,')/ ~IS~

I-+-+---+-~,·-~H--,

··---

?. r.,(

:Ol o
----

---·---

I·.

'

t

- -· t ~-
..._
# r' ~ ' ,,~ - I'-..1 4/ -f1is>
--- -.J--- - __.,. -. - - -·

+

-



If

-

-
Ir)- --

\ Ir i(

el<'y
v/L L,r,(J

I
\
' r- )(

l

e
--,--,--,-,-+~-'-,-f:_. L(,--i) w l Ll {) [}1,f,,rlr'.. i)'

/

ah2l2«
-

l::'.il ucr
-

~-

)[

C vO t.1 i)'"( ho -
I

TJ.,,,-1----- -1-
l I - 'I

I
52- - [1

,,,,-
1=_!31 - )T---+----+------=--+---

I'r

.•.



J

j
I\ -

--::, '""' --- M---~ "''I-- ) r-:.... --!-od ::s ('/J

0 ~1 N' H,
I
Or

'-l \

> I::5::,

~ -
·<
<•

re
\.L

->-)

'· ~:::i
..-::,
-:r:..
I

l I

-"'

I I
Q

<:::,

r-, ..J
N "...._ - I'r-2: 5i.<r- 2 I":).,.,

'>
0-...

t-<·
..::,;i

1--l
I

<<;::-
=,,-..

I -
I \ .j
~

r-1'1
\- I~
.,.J.J ~ '
__)

2
\-\

I

"-

Ml/
SD



'l.,.>
""·
~

.,,,
..,,
.5,,

t:.

<:::i-

~
D

C-

_),-
(
;;

\-
--:s

2
0

... I r .

-:$

'-'""l re
-::;i

:, \J... v
c

).
V')

-:r
<-0
a



\-

..)-t----+----+

---'i--- --U--

' . I\J) -
>

C

I -:s--- - "'~ -; \S'\ >--
-y , --..., I'- e= ., I

-:S '1

<S
::,

V, \.,\ ·,
I

l. N1
0 I ' I • _J

""-1_s= r-.
,_

-...1 .... \-

...J ----~- '--- I -.)
( \ ;:,-t Q.._ \

f ~ I

-----r-
~ r° -

,___ o I ~-t .... I"- Iu "'--+-- I-r- .... ~--l s:----.r '.,._ ~
':. 'r-- 1-=::::: '- ~- _,, a :,- ,-
'- •,-.. --::, c± _J ._,

b
o \..... - l.l I

~. --:::.: +-1H--1 ,_ -J'
0 N "'17 0

1-£
l--1

~ I
...,

" I '-'-
- ,,-, i'' ' -

~(:::,

Iv-i-

r-l
I

r '»
I I

ttrEttl!r-_-_-t-f-_-j-_-_::l-+-t--l--l-,I,_~=r===t:__::==1--~4---i-...J____
•--

r-!
2 ')- 1.--
Q-~1 ----., -

·-.).._.)

--+-----=-----1-+---+---l--~-.l-1 \.~~r,,-t-rt-~+*~~~,+~&+-q.j,---l---+-L-L--



·- -- I

I u :-- -") I t- --- II

J
f-

V I
I \_...,...

'- - 5

---

, I\

"),,)
[0.324. ,,

~
r - 1 ·

I
·- I

j

3'I •. - l :I

L)r' I - a
,___

s'
I

• .... --- I
l

I

,·•

I

1Li; -
I

z I I1 r;

t -=- 7) I<:;" ·u,rJ1 ( ,-.

t
I . ,_

oto -· ,
--I-

I
I

I

,__ - --- ---1--1---+--+-+-I -+--+---4
I I

% )lo Lr- ) 1() " ,ri (: ' I 1I -- - . .
I-III,HQ$l I

H+III4yHi/o}·l,4IIIIIIll-
' ' I

ht {kt#wual']?ti±Li
IIpH/0bf} I+l+IIf2/#'] ,#]

,-: lftJ f rr

,__ -f--- I

I2/ -
d. -73r'

,
-

'

~ LJ '-/ 5
I

'

)- Er

.,

I



s
<-- ·
"l
3g

'-+=·2.-
'J
\--

~ \-
,:::, '--' I "
_J \_,. C'-- -.
3 - \..\
i

<:::,

Onr

L_-

!..:,.,.__ .:; l
3 I

7

2
-
r+

-:J
,:::,

-.3 _)- -
:1 ,-3
__::,
r

) r-
I



r

- -

~11.--,C--~•h_,__-t--t--+--+-+--+--l--+------l--l--+--+---l--+----i-~-~~--f-- I
.,_·R >--_.t----t--t--j--1--t---+-+---!--l--1-----!f--f--J--+--+-+---J..--;.._-J-_j._~

o
0
,:;::,

\-1-:, .., \;)
I

- ±\I I·,
t---

<S"' VJ

I"-.... I-N, "\..--' I II

I

I

; ' I I r i 'I'
< Ill ,' '4Ht4 I IL{ I ll I
v 1 '' Ts'w' 3'Io'

I-
t
...I

-· -

f
/

I

,LJ \ J
-+'!
g . ~ ~

'f lL <SQ

I
9

I
I

M I-s: '-... l-c.s- " rv\

" ~- \.)

n-- ' J I 'l I

' \ r-....--
==--I -

I
" ("'\

,- 1-----
t l- ')-

--.....::..1 l
<:s-' ~

I G
I

I



APPENDIX B
CONSULTANT COSTS

Reimbursement Consultant Services

#1 $ 142,454.58

##2 $ 70,871.25

Totals $ 213,325.83

Reimbursement InvoIce Invoice Invoice
Date Total

437354 4/12/2023 2,500.00
437415 5/10/2023 7,985.00
437820 6/7/2023 6,225.00
438169 7/12/2023 19,594.21

1 438436 8/9/2023 22,922.87
438919 10/11/2023 44,060.00
439184 11/8/2023 25,581.25

439505 12/6/2023 13,586.25

Total 142,454.58

438717 9/6/2023 37,812.50
439771 1/10/2024 11,137.50
440029 2/7/2024 836.25
440328 3/6/2024 595.00
440584 4/10/2024 765.00

2 440813 5/8/2024 2,210.00
441442 7/10/2024 340.00
441754 8/7/2024 8,325.00
442227 9/11/2024 8,850.00

Total 70,871.25



September 6, 2023
Project No:
Invoice No:

F0520040
438717

Mr Glen Morrow, PE
City Engineer
City of Franklin, WI
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Project: Franklin 2023 PPII Sump Drain Collection

Professional Services rendered for the period July 29, 2023 to August 25, 2023 for the above referenced project-------- -----
Phase
Labor

10 Outreach and consent management

Hours Rate Amount
Engineer 7

Emir, Mustafa
Totals
Total Labor

2.00
2.00

230.00 460.00
460.00

460.00

$460.00Total this Phase

Phase
Labor

20 Field ID of sump locations

Hours Rate Amount
Intern

Voegeli, Brandyn
Totals
Total Labor

14.00
14.00

85.00 1,190.00
1,190.00

1,190.00

$1,190.00Total this Phase

Phase 30 Design and Bidding
Labor

Hours Rate Amount
Engineer 7

Emir, Mustafa 4.00 230.00 920.00
Engineer 5

Foley, Thomas .50 200.00 100.00
Engineer 4

Ashley, Andrew 3.00 170.00 510.00
Beyer, Christopher 25.00 170.00 4,250.00

Engineer 2
Ross, Adam 39.00 140.00 5,460.00

Design Tech 5
Sharp, Owen 4.25 170.00 722.50

125 West Church Street / Champaign. IL61820 / 217.373.8900 / clarkdletz.com



Project F0520040 Franklin - 2023 PPII Sump Drain Collect Invoice 438717

Design Tech 3
Carlson, Devin

Totals
Total Labor

20.00
95.75

140.00 2,800.00
14,762.50

14,762.50

$14,762.50Total this Phase

Phase
Consultants

Baxter & Woodman

Subconsultant Fees

21,400.00
21,400.00

Total this Phase

21,400.00

$21,400.00

Total Consultants

ZZZSUB

Billing Limits
Total Billings

Limit
Remaining

Current
37,812.50

Prior
59,227.08

To-Date
97,039.58
226,440.00
129,400.42

Total this Invoice

Billings to Date
Current Prior Total

Labor 16,412.50 29,213.75 45,626.25
Consultant 21,400.00 30,013.33 51,413.33
Totals 37,812.50 59,227.08 97,039.58

125 West Church Street / Champaign. IL61820 / 217 373 8900 / clarkdletz.com

$37,812.50

Page 2



August 21, 2023
Project No: 0220603.40
InvoiceNo: 0249395

Christopher Beyer
Clark Dietz, Inc.
625 57th Street, 6th Floor
Kenosha, WI 53140

Client ID FKLIN

[Total This tnvoice: $21,400.00]

ClientManager
Project Manager
Project

Douglas Snyder
Jonathan Steinbach

0220603AO Cily ofFranklin PPII for Sewersheds FR2005, FR2006 & FR2012
Deliverable TASK2 Assessment ofExisting Sump PumpDischarges
Professional Services

#ours Rate Amount
Engineering

Engineer IV
Steinbach, Jonathan 8/8/2023 2.00 185.00 370.00
Steinbach, Jonathan 8/9/2023 1.00 185.00 185.00

Office & Administration
Engineering lntem

Perez, Juliet 8/1/2023 3.50 70.00 245.00
Perez, Juliet 8/3/2023 4.50 70.00 315.00

Totals 11.00 1,115.00
Total Labor 1,115.00

Total this Deliverable $1,115.00

Deliverable TASK3 Design ofSump DischargeCollection Drains
Professiona l Services

lours Rate Amount
Engineering

Engineer lV
Stelnbach,Jonathan 7/17/2023 4.75 185.00 878.75
Steinbach, Jonathan 7/18/2023 5.25 185.00 971.25
Steinbach, Jonathan 7/19/2023 7.25 185.00 1,341.25
Steinbach, Jonathan 7/20/2023 6.25 185.00 971.25
Steinbach, Jonathan 71'ZT/2023 1.00 185.00 185.00
Steinbach, Jonathan 7/28/2023 3.50 185.00 647.50
Steinbach, Jonathan 7/31/2023 5.25 185.00 971.25
Steinbach, Jonathan 8/1/2023 6.75 185.00 1,248.75
Steinbach,Jonathan 8/2/2023 7.50 185.00 1,387.50
Steinbach, Jonathan 8/8/2023 4.75 185.00 878.75
Steinbach, Jonathan 8/9/2023 6.75 185.00 1,248.75
Steinbach, Jonathan 8/10/2023 5.25 185.00 971.25

Make check payable to Baxter & Woodman, PO. Box 6192, Carol Stream, IL 60197 6192 or contact 8axter & Woodman's accounting
department for wiring instructions. Cal 815.459 1260with questions on this invoice.



Project 0220603.40 FKLIN City ofFranklin PPII Invoice 0249395
Steinbach, Jonathan 8/11/2023 2.00 185.00 370.00

Office & Administration
Engineenng lntem

Perez, Juliet 7/17/2023 8.75 70.00 612.50
Perez, Juliet 7/18/2023 8.75 70.00 612.50
Perez, Juliet 7/19/2023 8.75 70.00 612.50
Perez, Juliet 7/24/2023 8.75 70.00 612.50
Perez, Juliet 7/25/2023 4.75 70.00 332.50
Perez, Juliet 7/27/2023 4.75 70.00 332.50
Perez, Juliet 7/28/2023 5.00 70.00 350.00
Perez, Juliet 7/31/2023 6.75 7000 402.50

Totals 120.50 15,938.75
Total Labor 15,938.75

Total this Deliverable $15,938.75

Dellverable TASK4 Design Documentaion and Reporting to MMSD
Professional Services

Hours Rate Amount
CADD

Engineer Tech I
Harvey, Nathan 7124/2023 8.75 95.00 831.25
Harvey, Nathan 7/25/2023 8.25 95.00 783.75
Harvey, Nathan 7/26/2023 8.75 95.00 831.25
Harvey, Nathan 7/27/2023 8.75 95.00 831.25
Harvey, Nathan 7/28/2023 5.00 95.00 475.00
Harvey, Nathan 7/31/2023 6.25 95.00 593.75

Totals 45.75 4,346.25
Total Labor 4,346.25

Total this Deliverable $4,346.25

Contract Billing Limits Current Prior To-Date
Total Billings 21,400.00 30,013 33 51,413.33

Engineers' Fee 95,000.00
Remaining 43,586.67

Total this Invoice $21400.00

Outstanding Invoices
Number Date Balance
0248039 6/27/2023 12,169.21
0248360 7/25/2023 17,844 12
Total 30,013.33

Billings to Date
Current Prior Total

Labor 21,400.00 29,913.75 51,313.76
Unit 0.00 99.58 99.58
Totals 21,400.00 30,013.33 51,413.33

Make check payable to 8axter& Woodman, PO Box 6192, Carol Stream, IL 60197-6192 orcontact Baxter& Woodman's accounting
department for wiring instructions. Call 815.459.1260 with questions on this invoice

Page2



Engineering Quality of Life

January 10, 2024
Project No:
Invoice No:

F0520040
439771

Mr Glen Morrow, PE
City Engineer
City of Franklin, WI
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Project: Franklin 2023 PPII Sump Drain Collection

Professional Services rendered for the period November 25, 2023 to December 31, 2023 for the above referenced

~-------------------------------------------
Phase
Labor

000030 Design and Bidding

Engineer 4
Ashley, Andrew
Beyer, Christopher

Engineer 2
Tkachuk, Tania

Totals
Total Labor

Hours Rate Amount

2.00 170.00 340.00
44.00 170.00 7,480.00

9.00 140.00 1,260.00
55.00 9,080.00

9,080.00

Total this Phase $9,080.00

Phase
Labor

00MMSD MMSD Reimbursement

Hours Rate Amount
Engineer 4

Beyer, Christopher
Clerical

Klienmeyer, Michele
Totals
Total Labor

4.50

1.00
5.50

170.00

90.00

765.00

90.00
855.00

855.00

$855.00Total this Phase

Phase
Consultants

Baxter & Woodman

Subconsultant Fees

1,202.50
1,202.50

Total this Phase

1,202.50

$1,202.50

Total Consultants

ZZZSUB

125 West Church Street / Champaign, IL 61820 / 217.373.8900 / clarkdietz.com



Project F0520040 Franklin - 2023 PPII Sump Drain Collect Invoice 439771

Billing Limits
Total Billings

Limit
Remaining

Current
11,137.50

Prior
180,267.08

To-Date
191,404.58
226,440.00
35,035.42

Total this Invoice

Billings to Date
Current Prior Total

Labor 9,935.00 107,131.25 117,066.25
Consultant 1,202.50 73,135.83 74,338.33
Totals 11,137.50 180,267.08 191,404.58

125 West Church Street / Champaign. IL 61820 / 217373.8900 clarkdietz.com

$11,137.50

Page 2



Project F0520040 Franklin - 2023 PPII Sump Drain Collect Invoice 439771

Billing Backup
Clark Dietz, Inc. Invoice 439771 Dated 1/10/2024

Thursday, January 4, 2024
2:09:27 PM

----------------------------------------------
Phase 000030 Design and Bidding

Labor
Hours Rate Amount

Engineer 4
A15 Ashley, Andrew 11/28/2023 2.00 170.00 340.00
B65 Beyer, Christopher 11/27/2023 3.50 170.00 595.00

Contractor Bidding Questions
B65 Beyer, Christopher 11/28/2023 4.00 170.00 680.00

Addendum 1
B65 Beyer, Christopher 11/30/2023 4.00 170.00 680.00

Addendum 1
B65 Beyer, Christopher 12/1/2023 2.50 170.00 425.00

Bid Opening Preparation
B65 Beyer, Christopher 12/4/2023 4.00 170.00 680.00

Attend Bid Opening
B65 Beyer, Christopher 12/5/2023 3.00 170.00 510.00

Bid Tab Analysis and Funding
B65 Beyer, Christopher 12/7/2023 1.00 170.00 170.00

Talk to Apparent Low Bidder
B65 Beyer, Christopher 12/8/2023 2.00 170.00 340.00

Talk to Apparent Low Bidder
B65 Beyer, Christopher 12/11/2023 2.00 170.00 340.00

award recommendation
B65 Beyer, Christopher 12/13/2023 4.00 170.00 680.00

meeting with lowest apparent bidder
B65 Beyer, Christopher 12/14/2023 4.00 170.00 680.00

Ammending Funding agreement with low bid
B65 Beyer, Christopher 12/15/2023 2.00 170.00 340.00

recommending award
B65 Beyer, Christopher 12/18/2023 1.00 170.00 170.00

Change Order
B65 Beyer, Christopher 12/19/2023 3.00 170.00 510.00

Competetive Fund Application Documents
B65 Beyer, Christopher 12/20/2023 3.00 170.00 510.00

Competetive Fund Application Documents
B65 Beyer, Christopher 12/22/2023 1.00 170.00 170.00

Design Workload discussion with BW
Engineer 2

T33 Tkachuk, Tania 12/4/2023 2.00 140.00 280.00
T33 Tkachuk, Tania 12/14/2023 4.00 140.00 560.00

Bid tab, number adjustments
T33 Tkachuk, Tania 12/15/2023 1.00 140.00 140.00

Bid tab, number adjustments
T33 Tkachuk, Tania 12/26/2023 2.00 140.00 280.00

Competitive funding document
Totals 55.00 9,080.00
Total Labor 9,080.00

Total this Phase $9,080.00

125 West Church Street / Champaign. IL 61820 / 217.373.8900 / clarkdletz.com

Page 3



Project F0520040 Franklin - 2023 PPII Sump Drain Collect Invoice 439771

Phase

Labor

00MMSD MMSD Reimbursement

Hours Rate Amount

1.00 170.00 170.00

1.00 170.00 170.00

1.00 170.00 170.00

1.00 170.00 170.00

.50 170.00 85.00

1.00 90.00 90.00
5.50 855.00

855.00

Total this Phase $855.00

12/4/2023

12/6/2023

12/5/2023

Klienmeyer, Michele
Totals
Total Labor

Clerical
C39

B65 Beyer, Christopher
Billings

B65 Beyer, Christopher 12/15/2023
Assiting City uploading requirements

865 Beyer, Christopher 12/19/2023
Sub Invoices

865 Beyer, Christopher 12/28/2023
Baxter Woodman Invoices

Engineer 4
865 Beyer, Christopher

Billings

12/19/2023 Baxter & Woodman
Total Consultants

Phase

Consultants
Baxter & Woodman
AP 148530

ZZZSUB Subconsultant Fees

1,202.50
1,202.50

Total this Phase

Total this Project

Total this Report

1,202.50

$1,202.50

$11,137.50

$11,137.50

1.25 West Church Street / Champaign, IL 61820 / 217 373.8900 / clarkdletz.com

Page 4



Christopher Beyer
Clark Dietz , Inc.
625 57th Street, 6th Floor
Kenosha, WI 53140

December 19, 2023
Project No:
Invoice No:

Client ID

0220603.40
0253963

FKLIN

Client Manager

Project Manager

Project

Douglas Snyder

Jonathan Steinbach

0220603.40

[Total This Invoice:

City of Franklin PPII for Sewersheds FR2005, FR2006 & FR2012

$1,202.50]

Deliverable TASK3 Design of Sump Discharge Collect ion Drains
Professional Services

Office & Administration
Engineer IV

Steinbach, Jonathan
Steinbach, Jonathan
Steinbach, Jonathan
Steinbach, Jonathan

Totals
Total Labor

11/13/2023
12/5/2023
12/6/2023
12/8/2023

Hours Rate Amount

2.50 185.00 462.50
1.00 185.00 185.00
2.00 185.00 370.00
1.00 185.00 185.00
6.50 1,202.50

Total this Deliverable

1,202.50

$1,202.50

Contract Billing Limits
Total Billings

Engineers' Fee
Remaining

Current
1,202.50

Prior
73,135.83

To-Date
74,338.33
95,000.00
20,661.67

Outstanding Invoices
Number
0251593
0252567
Total

Billings to Date

Labor
Unit
Totals

Date
10/24/2023
11/20/2023

Current
1,202.50

0.00
1,202.50

Balance
3,561.25
7,816.25

11,377.50

Prior
73,036.25

99.58
73,135.83

Total this Invoice $1,202.50
----'-:

Total
74,238.75

99.58
74,338.33

Make check payable to Baxter & Woodman, P.O. B0x 6192, Carol Stream, IL 60197-6192 or contact Baxter & Woodman's accounting
department for wiring instructions. Call 815.459.1260 with questions on this invoice.



Project Detail
Baxter & Woodman, Inc.
Estimate Overhead

Transactions for 11/12/2023 through 12/9/2023
Total
Hours

Tuesday, December 19, 2023
11:26:.59 AM

Project Number: 0220603,40 FKLIN City of Franklin PPII
Deliverable Id: OVRBUD Overbudget
Subdeliverable Number: OVEROverbudget
Deliverable Id: TASK 1 Project Outreach & Communication with Re
Deliverable Id: TASK 2 Assessment of Existing Sump Pump Dlschar
Deliverable Id: TASK 3 Design of Sump Discharge Collection Dral
Labor
90000 Office & Administration

B 1733 Steinbach, Jonathan 11/13/2023 2.50
Correspond on, prepare and forward utility contact information to Clark Dietz. Download bid documents and update files.

B 1733 Steinbach, Jonathan 12/5/2023 1.00
Project meeting with CJ.

B 1733 Steinbach, Jonathan 12/6/2023 2.00
Review budgets and remaining scope items per O's. Review unbilled work in system. Project remaining work under current contract.

B 1733 Steinbach, Jonathan 12/8/2023 1.00
Correspond with CJ on budget and remaining work/steps.

Total for 1733 6.50
Total for Office & Administration 6.50

Total for Labor 6.50
Total for TASK 3 6.50
Deliverable Id: TASK 4 Design Documentaion and Reporting to MMS
Total for 0220603.40 6.50

vS.5.6.0 (Alexis Garza) - Cost and Billing, Estimate Overhead, Selected By : Projects, Deliverables, Subdeliverables with Page 1 of 1



February 7, 2024
Project No:
Invoice No:

F0520040
440029

Mr Glen Morrow, PE
City Engineer
City of Franklin, WI
9229 W Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Project: Franklin 2023 PPII Sump Drain Collection

Professional Services rendered for the period January 1, 2024 to January 26, 2024 for the above referenced project- --
Phase
Labor

000030 Design and Bidding

Hours Rate Amount
Engineer 2

Tkachuk, Tania
Totals
Total Labor

.50

.50
140.00 70.00

70.00
70.00

$70.00Total this Phase

Phase
Labor

00MMSD MMSD Reimbursement

Hours Rate Amount
Engineer 4

Beyer, Christopher
Totals
Total Labor

2.00
2.00

170.00 340.00
340.00

340.00

$340.00Total this Phase

Phase
Consultants

Baxter & Woodman

Subconsultant Fees

426.25
426.25

Total this Phase

426.25

$426.25

Total Consultants

ZZZSUB

Billing Limits
Total Billings

Limit
Remaining

Current
836.25

Prior
191,404.58

To-Date
192,240.83
226,440.00
34,199.17

Total this Invoice

125 West Church Street / Champaign. IL 61820 / 217.373 8900 / clarkdietz.com

$836.25



Project F0520040

Billings to Date
Franklin - 2023 PPII Sump Drain Collect Invoice 440029

Labor
Consultant
Totals

Current
410.00
426.25
836.25

Prior
117,066.25
74,338.33

191,404.58

Total
117,476.25
74,764.58

192,240.83

125 West Church Street / Champaign, IL 61820/ 217.373.8900 / clarkdietz.com

Page 2



Project F0520040 Franklin - 2023 PPII Sump Drain Collect Invoice 440029

Billing Backup
Clark Dietz, Inc. Invoice 440029 Dated 2/7/2024

Thursday, February 1, 2024
1:31 :05 PM

Phase

Labor

000030 Design and Bidding

Hours Rate Amount
Engineer 2

T33 Tkachuk, Tania 1/2/2024
competitive funding document

Totals
Total Labor

.50

.50

140.00 70.00

70.00
70.00

Phase

Labor

OOMMSD MMSD Reimbursement

Total this Phase $70.00

Hours
Engineer 4

B65 Beyer, Christopher 1/2/2024 1.00
Reimbursement Documents (Baxter/CDI)

B65 Beyer, Christopher 1/3/2024 1.00
Additional Reimbursement Documents to MMSD

Totals 2.00
Total Labor

Rate

170.00

170.00

Amount

170.00

170.00

340.00
340.00

Phase

Consultants
Baxter & Woodman
AP 148867

ZZZSUB

1/27/2024

Subconsultant Fees

Baxter & Woodman

Total this Phase

426.25
426.25

Total this Phase

Total this Project

Total this Report

$340.00

426.25

$426.25

$836.25

$836.25

Total Consultants

125 West Church Street / Champaign. IL 61820 217.3738900 / clarkdletz.com

Page 3



baxte rwoodm an. com

Christopher Beyer
Clark Dietz , Inc.
625 57th Street, 6th Floor
Kenosha, WI 53140

January 22, 2024
Project No:
Invoice No:

Client ID

0220603.40
0254536

FKLIN

Client Manager

Project Manager

Project

Douglas Snyder

Jonathan Steinbach

0220603.40

[Total This Invoice:

City of Franklin PPII for Sewersheds FR2005, FR2006 & FR2012

$426.25

Deliverable TASK2 Assessment of Existing Sump Pump Discharges
Professional Services

Office & Administration
Engineer IV

Steinbach, Jonathan
Totals
Total Labor

12/19/2023

Hours

.50

.50

Rate

195.00

Amount

97.50
97.50

97.50

$97.50Total this Deliverable

Deliverable TASK3 Design of Sump Discharge Collection Drains
Professional Services

Hours Rate Amount
Office & Administration

Engineer IV
Steinbach, Jonathan
Steinbach, Jonathan
Steinbach, Jonathan

Totals
Total Labor

Contract Billing Limits
Total Billings

Engineers' Fee
Remaining

12/14/2023
12/15/2023

1/4/2024

Current
426.25

1.00 185.00 185.00
.25 185.00 46.25
.50 195.00 97.50

1.75 328.75
328.75

Total this Deliverable $328.75

To-Date
74,764.58
95,000.00
20,235.42

Total this Invoice $426.25===========::::=:=

Prior
74,338.33

Make check payable to Baxter & Woodman, P.O. Box 6192, Carol Stream, IL 60197-6192 or contact Baxter & Woodman's accounting
department for wiring instructions. Call 815.459.1260 with questions on this invoice.



Project 0220603 40
Billings to Date

FKLIN City of Franklin PPII Invoice 0254536

Labor
Unit
Totals

Current
42625
000

426.25

Prior
74,238 75

9958
74,338.33

Total
74,665 00

9958
74,764.58

Make check payable to Baxter & Woodman, PO Box 6192, Carol Stream, IL 60197-6192 or contact Baxter & Woodman's accounting
department forwiring instructions. Call 815 459.1260 with questions on this invoice

Page 2



Project Detail
Baxter & Woodman, Inc. Job-to-Date through 1/31/2024

Regular Total
Hours OvtHrs

Total
Hours

Monday, January 22, 2024
4:55.26 PM

Project Number: 0220603.40 FKLIN City of Franklin PPII
Deliverable Id: OVRBUD OVerbudget
Subdeliverable Number: OVER Overbudget
Deliverable Id: TASK 1 Project Outreach & Communication with Re
Deliverable Id: TASK 2 Assessment of Existing Sump Pump Dischar
Labor
90000 B 1733 Steinbach, Jonathan 12/19/2023 .50

Invoice follow up. Correspond with Becky.
Total for TASK 2 .50
Deliverable Id: TASK 3 Design of Sump Discharge Collection Drat
Labor
90000 B 1733 Steinbach, Jonathan 12/14/2023

.50

.50

1.001.00
Invoice status follow up. Messages and calls with CJ and Becky. Accounting discussion.

90000 B 1733 Steinbach, Jonathan 12/15/2023 .25 .25
Review invoice information from accounting.

90000 B 1733 Steinbach, Jonathan 1/4/2024 .50 .50
Invoicing follow up. Correspond with CJ and Becky. Assemble reports for MMSD.

Total for Labor 1.75 1.75
Total for TASK 3 1.75 1.75

2.25
Deliverable Id: TASK 4 Design Documentaion and Reporting to MMS
Total for 0220603.40 2.25

vS.5.6.0 (Alexis Garza) - Cost and Bill ing, Selected By: Projects, Deliverables, Subdeliverables with Job-to-Date Activity Page 1 of 1



Fngireering Quality of Life

March 6, 2024
Project No:
Invoice No:

F0520040
440328

Mr Glen Morrow, PE
City Engineer
City of Franklin, WI
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Project: Franklin 2023 PPII Sump Drain Collection

Professional Services rendered for the period January 27, 2024 to February 23, 2024 for the above referenced

~-------------------------------------------
Phase
Labor

000030 Design and Bidding

Hours Rate Amount
Engineer 4

Beyer, Christopher
Totals
Total Labor

Billing Limits
Total Billings

Limit
Remaining

Current
595.00

3.50
3.50

170.00

Prior
192,240.83

595.00
595.00

To-Date
192,835.83
226,440.00
33,604.17

595.00

$595.00Total this Phase

Total this Invoice

Billings to Date
Current Prior Total

Labor 595.00 117,476.25 118,071.25
Consultant 0.00 74,764.58 74,764.58
Totals 595.00 192,240.83 192,835.83

125 West Church Street / Champaign. IL 61820 / 217.373.8900 / clarkdietz.com

$595.00



Project F0520040 Franklin - 2023 PPII Sump Drain Collect Invoice 440328

Billing Backup
Clark Dietz, Inc. Invoice 440328 Dated 3/6/2024

Thursday, February 29, 2024
3:29:07 PM

Phase 000030 Design and Bidding

Labor
Hours Rate Amount

Engineer 4
B65 Beyer, Christopher 2/13/2024 1.00 170.00 170.00

Discussing Award
B65 Beyer, Christopher 2/22/2024 1.00 170.00 170.00

Funding and award discussion
B65 Beyer, Christopher 2/23/2024 1.50 170.00 255.00

UPI contractor discussion
Totals 3.50 595.00
Total Labor 595.00

Total this Phase

Total this Project

Total this Report

$595.00

$595.00

$595.00

125 West Church Street / Champaign. IL 61820 / 217 373.8900 / clarkdletz.com

Page 2



April 10, 2024
Project No:
Invoice No:

F0520040
440584

Mr Glen Morrow, PE
City Engineer
City of Franklin, WI
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Project: Franklin 2023 PPII Sump Drain Collection

Professional Services rendered for the period February 24, 2024 to March 29, 2024 for the above referenced project

Phase
Labor

000030 Design and Bidding

Hours Rate Amount
Engineer 4

Beyer, Christopher
Totals
Total Labor

Billing Limits
Total Billings

Limit
Remaining

Current
765.00

4.50
4.50

170.00

Prior
192,835.83

765.00
765.00

To-Date
193,600.83
226,440.00
32,839.17

765.00

$765.00Total this Phase

Total this Invoice

Billings to Date
Current Prior Total

Labor 765.00 118,071.25 118,836.25
Consultant 0.00 74,764.58 74,764.58
Totals 765.00 192,835.83 193,600.83

125 West Church Street / Champaign. IL 61820 / 217.373 8900 / clarkdietz.com

$765.00



Project F0520040 Franklin - 2023 PPII Sump Drain Collect Invoice 440584

Billing Backup
Clark Dietz, Inc. Invoice 440584 Dated 4/10/2024

Thursday, April 4, 2024
2:02:42 PM

Phase 000030 Design and Bidding

Labor
Hours Rate Amount

Engineer 4
B065 Beyer, Christopher 2/26/2024 1.50 170.00 255.00

Discuss Award Further with Contractor
B065 Beyer, Christopher 3/13/2024 1.00 170.00 170.00

Award Discussion with City
B065 Beyer, Christopher 3/29/2024 2.00 170.00 340.00

Award and Resident Coordination
Totals 4.50 765.00
Total Labor 765.00

Total this Phase

Total this Project

Total this Report

$765.00

$765.00

$765.00

125 West Church Street / Champaign. IL 61820 / 217 373.8900 / clarkdletz.com

Page 2



May 8, 2024
Project No:
Invoice No:

F05200040
440813

Mr. Glen Morrow, PE
City Engineer
City of Franklin, WI
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Project: Franklin 2023 PPII Sump Drain Collection

Professional Services rendered for the period March 30, 2024 to April 26, 2024 for the above referenced project

Phase
Labor

000030 Design and Bidding

Hours Rate Amount
Engineer 4

Beyer, Christopher
Totals
Total Labor

Billing Limits
Total Billings

Limit
Remaining

Current
2,210.00

13.00
13.00

170.00

Prior
193,600.83

2,210.00
2,210.00

To-Date
195,810.83
226,440.00
30,629.17

2,210.00

$2,210.00Total this Phase

Total this Invoice

Billings to Date
Current Prior Total

Labor 2,210.00 118,836.25 121,046.25
Consultant 0.00 74,764.58 74,764.58
Totals 2,210.00 193,600.83 195,810.83

125 West Church Street / Champaign, IL 61820 / 217.373.8900 / clarkdletz.com

$2,210.00



Project F05200040 Franklin - 2023 PPII Sump Drain Collect Invoice 440813

Billing Backup
Clark Dietz, Inc. Invoice 440813 Dated 5/8/2024

Thursday, May 2, 2024
7-12:12 AM

Phase

Labor

000030 Design and Bidding

Engineer 4
B065 Beyer, Christopher 4/3/2024

Resident Coordination Planning
B065 Beyer, Christopher 4/10/2024

Coordination for Residents Meeting
B065 Beyer, Christopher 4/11/2024

Project Planning and Closeout
B065 Beyer, Christopher 4/12/2024

Project Planning and Closeout
B065 Beyer, Christopher 4/15/2024

UPI / Resident Coordination Call
Totals
Total Labor

Hours Rate Amount

2.00 170.00 340.00

4.00 170.00 680.00

4.00 170.00 680.00

2.00 170.00 340.00

1.00 170.00 170.00

13.00 2,210.00
2,210.00

Total this Phase $2,210.00

Total this Project $2,210.00

Total this Report $2,210.00

125 West Church Street / Champaign. IL 61820 / 217.373.8900 / clarkdietz.com

Page 2



July 10, 2024
Project No:
Invoice No:

F05200040
441442

Mr. Glen Morrow, PE
City Engineer
City of Franklin, WI
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Project: Franklin 2023 PPII Sump Drain Collection

Professional Services rendered for the period June 1, 2024 to June 28, 2024 for the above referenced project _

Phase
Labor

000030 Design and Bidding

Hours Rate Amount
Engineer 4

Beyer, Christopher
Totals
Total Labor

Billing Limits
Total Billings

Limit
Remaining

Current
340.00

2.00
2.00

170.00

Prior
195,810.83

340.00
340.00

To-Date
196,150.83
226,440.00
30,289.17

340.00

$340.00Total this Phase

Total this Invoice

Billings to Date
Current Prior Total

Labor 340.00 121,046.25 121,386.25
Consultant 0.00 74,764.58 74,764.58
Totals 340.00 195,810.83 196,150.83

125 West Church Street / Champaign. IL 61820 / 217.373.8900 clarkdletz.com

$340.00



Project F05200040 Franklin - 2023 PPII Sump Drain Collect Invoice 441442

Billing Backup
Clark Dietz, Inc. Invoice 441442 Dated 7/10/2024

Wednesday, July 3, 2024
10:52:52 AM

Phase

Labor

000030 Design and Bidding

Hours Rate
Engineer 4

B065 Beyer, Christopher 6/5/2024 2.00 170.00
Franklin's COi and Preliminary Discussions for Resident
Coordination and Award Status

Amount

340.00

Totals
Total Labor

2.00

Total this Phase

Total this Project

Total this Report

340.00
340.00

$340.00

$340.00

$340.00

125 West Church Street / Champaign. IL 61820 / 217.373.8900 / clarkdletz.com

Page 2



August7,2024
Project No:
Invoice No:

F05224001
441754

City of Franklin, WI
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Project: PPII Sump Collection Inspection
Professional Services rendered for the period June 29, 2024 to July 26, 2024 for the above referenced project _

Phase

Task
Labor

071040

100040

Ashley, Andrew
Beyer, Christopher
Carlson, Devin
Newcomb, Grace
Westall, Jacob

Totals
Total Labor

Construction Administration

Pre-Construction Coordination

Hours Rate Amount

12.00 180.00 2,160.00
11.00 180.00 1,980.00
10.00 165.00 1,650.00
7.00 135.00 945.00
10.50 100.00 1,050.00
50.50 7,785.00

Total this Task

7,785.00

$7,785.00

Task 200040 Construction Meetings
Labor

Hours Rate Amount

Ashley, Andrew 2.00 180.00 360.00
Beyer, Christopher 1.00 180.00 180.00

Totals 3.00 540.00
Total Labor 540.00

Total this Task $540.00

Total this Phase $8,325.00

Total this Invoice $8,325.00

Billings to Date
Current Prior Total

Labor 8,325.00 0.00 8,325.00
Totals 8,325.00 0.00 8,325.00

125 West Church Street / Champaign, IL 61820 / 217.3738900 / clarkdietz.com



Project F05224001 Franklin - PPII Sump Collection Inspect Invoice 441754

Billing Backup
Clark Dietz, Inc. Invoice 441754 Dated 8/7/2024

Tuesday, October 29, 2024
3:08:04 PM

Phase 071040 Construction Administration----------------------------------------------Task 100040 Pre-Construction Coordination
Labor

Hours Rate Amount

A015 Ashley, Andrew 7/8/2024 6.00 180.00 1,080.00
Pre Construction Meeting and Prep

A015 Ashley, Andrew 7/18/2024 2.00 180.00 360.00
Resident Letters

A015 Ashley, Andrew 7/19/2024 2.00 180.00 360.00
Home Owner Pre Inspection Form Creation

A015 Ashley, Andrew 7/23/2024 2.00 180.00 360.00
Resident Inspection Form Prep

B065 Beyer, Christopher 7/1/2024 1.00 180.00 180.00
Pre-Con Meeting Prep

B065 Beyer, Christopher 7/8/2024 2.50 180.00 450.00
Pre-Construction Preparation

B065 Beyer, Christopher 7/10/2024 1.00 180.00 180.00
B065 Beyer, Christopher 7/11/2024 2.00 180.00 360.00

Resident Coordination
B065 Beyer, Christopher 7/12/2024 .50 180.00 90.00

Construction App
B065 Beyer, Christopher 7/16/2024 1.00 180.00 180.00

construction set up for City
B065 Beyer, Christopher 7/18/2024 1.00 180.00 180.00

resident lettes
B065 Beyer, Christopher 7/22/2024 1.00 180.00 180.00

Resident Coordination
B065 Beyer, Christopher 7/25/2024 1.00 180.00 180.00

Resident Coordination
B062 Carlson, Devin 7/10/2024 4.00 165.00 660.00

project set up and preconstruction administration
B062 Carlson, Devin 7/11/2024 2.00 165.00 330.00

project set up and preconstruction administration
B062 Carlson, Devin 7/12/2024 2.00 165.00 330.00

project set up and preconstruction administration
B062 Carlson, Devin 7/22/2024 2.00 165.00 330.00

Project set up and preconstruction administration
N017 Newcomb, Grace 7/5/2024 2.00 135.00 270.00

Precon meeting agenda preparation.
N017 Newcomb, Grace 7/8/2024 1.00 135.00 135.00

Preparationof contracts for signatures.
N017 Newcomb, Grace 7/9/2024 2.50 135.00 337.50
N017 Newcomb, Grace 7/10/2024 1.00 135.00 135.00

Preconstruction Meeting agenda
N017 Newcomb, Grace 7/11/2024 .50 135.00 67.50

Prep Plot and Print change order set
W047 Westall, Jacob 7/23/2024 4.50 100.00 450.00

Preparation for resident communication

125 West Church Street / Champaign. IL 61820 / 217.373 8900 / clarkdletz.com

Page 2



Project

W047

F05224001

Westall, Jacob

Franklin - PPII Sump Collection Inspect

7/25/2024 6.00 100.00

Invoice 441754

600.00
Preparation for resident communication

Totals
Total Labor

50.50 7,785.00

Total this Task

7,785.00

$7,785.00

Task
Labor

200040 Construction Meetings

Hours Rate Amount

A015

B065

Ashley, Andrew 7/10/2024 2.00
Pre Construction Minutes and Resident Letters
Beyer, Christopher 7/8/2024 1.00
Pre-Construction Meeting

Totals 3.00
Total Labor

180.00

180.00

Total this Task

Total this Phase

Total this Project

Total this Report

360.00

180.00

540.00
540.00

$540.00

$8,325.00

$8,325.00

$8,325.00

125 West Church Street / Champaign, IL 61820/ 217.373.8900 / clarkdletz.com

Page 3



September 11, 2024
Project No:
Invoice No:

F05224001
442227

Kelly Hersch
Director of Administration
City of Franklin, WI
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Project: PPII Sump Collection Inspection
Professional Services rendered for the period July 27, 2024 to August 30, 2024 for the above referenced project--------
Phase

Task
Labor

Task
Labor

071040

100040

Ashley, Andrew
Beyer, Christopher
Carlson, Devin

Totals
Total Labor

200040

Ashley, Andrew
Beyer, Christopher

Totals
Total Labor

Construction Administration

Pre-Construction Coordination

Hours

5.00
16.00
4.00
25.00

Construction Meetings

Hours

11.50
7.00
18.50

Rate

180.00
180.00
165.00

Rate

180.00
180.00

Amount

900.00
2,880.00
660.00

4,440.00

Amount

2,070.00
1,260.00
3,330.00

4,440.00

$4,440.00

3,330.00

$3,330.00

Total this Task

Total this Task

Phase

Task
Labor

073040

300040

Construction RPR / Observation

Inspection Oversight

Total this Phase $7,770.00

Ashley, Andrew
Totals
Total Labor

Hours

6.00
6.00

Rate

180.00

Amount

1,080.00
1,080.00

1,080.00

125 West Church Street / Champaign. IL 61820 / 217.373.8900 1 clarkdletz.com



Project F05224001 Franklin - PPII Sump Collection Inspect Invoice

Total this Task

Total this Phase

Total this Invoice

442227

$1,080.00

$1,080.00

$8,850.00

Billings to Date
Current Prior Total

Labor 8,850.00 8,325.00 17,175.00
Totals 8,850.00 8,325.00 17,175.00

125 West Church Street/ Champaign. IL 61820 / 217.373.8900 / clarkdletz.com

Page 2



Project F05224001 Franklin - PPII Sump Collection Inspect Invoice 442227

Billing Backup
Clark Dietz, Inc. Invoice 442227 Dated 9/11/2024

Friday, September 6, 2024
7-16:44 AM

Phase 071040 Construction Administration----------------------------------------------
Task 100040 Pre-Construction Coordination
Labor

Hours Rate Amount

A015 Ashley, Andrew 8/1/2024 2.00 180.00 360.00
Resident Door Hangers

A015 Ashley, Andrew 8/27/2024 3.00 180.00 540.00
submittal reviews

B065 Beyer, Christopher 7/30/2024 1.00 180.00 180.00
Resident Coordination Assistance

B065 Beyer, Christopher 7/31/2024 2.00 180.00 360.00
Resident Coordination Assistance

B065 Beyer, Christopher 8/2/2024 1.00 180.00 180.00
Resident Coordination

B065 Beyer, Christopher 8/7/2024 2.00 180.00 360.00
Site Visit for Staking Discussion

B065 Beyer, Christopher 8/9/2024 2.00 180.00 360.00
Follow up to staking site visit

B065 Beyer, Christopher 8/12/2024 1.00 180.00 180.00
Staking Review

B065 Beyer, Christopher 8/14/2024 2.00 180.00 360.00
Contractor Schedule and COi

B065 Beyer, Christopher 8/20/2024 2.00 180.00 360.00
Initial Site Visit

B065 Beyer, Christopher 8/21/2024 1.00 180.00 180.00
Staking Check

8065 Beyer, Christopher 8/22/2024 1.00 180.00 180.00
1st Day of construction and new homes check

8065 Beyer, Christopher 8/26/2024 1.00 180.00 180.00
Submittals

8062 Carlson, Devin 8/1/2024 2.00 165.00 330.00
project set up and preconstruction administration

8062 Carlson, Devin 8/2/2024 2.00 165.00 330.00
project set up and preconstruction administration

Totals 25.00 4,440.00
Total Labor 4,440.00

Total this Task $4,440.00

Task 200040 Construction Meetings
Labor

Hours Rate Amount

A015 Ashley, Andrew 8/20/2024 4.00 180.00 720.00
Submittals and resident coordination forms

A015 Ashley, Andrew 8/21/2024 4.00 180.00 720.00

125 West Church Street / Champaign, IL 61820/ 217.373.8900 / clarkdietz.com

Page 3



Project F05224001 Franklin - PPII Sump Collection Inspect

Progress meeting and Construction Prep
A015 Ashley, Andrew 8/22/2024 3.50 180.00

Construction Coordination
B065 Beyer, Christopher 8/21/2024 2.00 180.00

Progress Meeting
B065 Beyer, Christopher 8/28/2024 2.00 180.00

Progress Meeting
B065 Beyer, Christopher 8/29/2024 2.00 180.00

Change order 1
B065 Beyer, Christopher 8/30/2024 1.00 180.00

Change order 1
Totals 18.50
Total Labor

Total this Phase

630.00

360.00

360.00

360.00

180.00

442227

3,330.00

$3,330.00

$7,770.00

Total this Task

3,330.00

Invoice

Phase 073040 Construction RPR / Observation

Task 300040 Inspection Oversight
Labor

Hours Rate Amount

A015 Ashley, Andrew 8/7/2024 2.00 180.00 360.00
construction staking coordination

A015 Ashley, Andrew 8/8/2024 2.00 180.00 360.00
construction staking coordination

A015 Ashley, Andrew 8/13/2024 2.00 180.00 360.00
Notices

Totals 6.00 1,080.00
Total Labor 1,080.00

Total this Task

Total this Phase

Total this Project

Total this Report

125 West Church Street / Champaign. IL 61820 / 217.373.8900 / clarkdietz.com

$1,080.00

$1,080.00

$8,850.00

$8,850.00

Page 4



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MEETING DATE

11/6/2024

REPORTS & Agreement for Professional Services to
provide Assessment Services between the

RECOMMENDATIONS City ofFranklin and Accurate Appraisal,
LLC. The Common Council may enter
closed session pursuant toWis. Stat.§

19.85(1)(e), for competitive and bargaining
reasons, to deliberate and consider terms
relating to the Agreement for Professional
Services to provide Assessment Services
between the City of Franklin and Accurate
Appraisal, LLC entered into on February
7, 2022, and the performance thereof, and

the investing ofpublic funds and
governmental actions in relation thereto,
and pursuant toWis. Stat.$ 19.851)g), to
confer with legal counsel for the Common

Council who is rendering advice
concerning strategy to be adopted by the
body with respect to litigation in which it
is likely to become involved, and to re-
enter open session at the same place
thereafter to act on such matters

discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

ITEM NUMBER

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
A motion to enter a closed session Agreement for Professional Services to provide Assessment
Services between the City of Franklin and Accurate Appraisal, LLC. The Common Council may
enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ I9.85(1)(e), for competitive and bargaining reasons,
to deliberate and consider terms relating to the Agreement for Professional Services to provide
Assessment Services between the City of Franklin and Accurate Appraisal, LLC entered into on
February 7, 2022, and the performance thereof, and the investing of public funds and
governmental actions in relation thereto, and pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(1 )(g), to confer with
legal counsel for the Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to be adopted
by the body with respect to litigation in which it is likely to become involved, and to re-enter open
session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems
appropriate.

Mayor - JRN; DOA - KH; Legal - JW



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

LICENSES AND

PERMITS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES

MEETING DATE
11/06/2024

ITEM 02/NUMBER

H.

See attached License Committee MeetingMinutes from the License Committee Meeting of
November 6, 2024.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Approval of the Minutes of the License Committee Meeting of November 6, 2024.

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE



License Committee Agenda*
Franklin City Alderman Room

9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, WI
November 6, 2024 - 5:30 p.m.

1. Call to Order & Roll Call Time:
2. Applicant Interviews & Decisions

Recommendations
Type/Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny

Operator Bradley Bautch
2024-2025 Country Lanes Bowling Center
New

Operator Castiven Jaime
2024-2025 St Martin Of Tours
New

Operator Maja Nikolic
2024-2025 Iron Mike's
New

Operator Keith Radtke
2024-2025 The Landmark
New

Operator Mindy Tigler
2024-2025 Hideaway Pub & Eatery
New

Operator Paige Zigner
2024-2025 Point After Pub & Grille
New

Mobile Home Franklin MHP Land LLC
2024-2025 DBA Franklin Mobile Home Park

6361 $ 278
On-Site Manager: William Johnson

3. Adjournment Time:
*Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item over which they have
decision-making responsibility. This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, even

though the Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting.



APPROVAL

9
Bills

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Vouchers and Payroll Approval

MEETING DATE

11/6/2024

ITEM NUMBER

I

Attached are vouchers dated October 11, 2024 through October 31, 2024, Nos. 199756 through Nos. 199990
in the amount of $ 5,047,679.98. Also included in this listing are EFT Nos. 5850 through EFT Nos. 5869,
Library vouchers totaling$ 32,805.48, Tourism vouchers totaling$ 64,819.99 and Water Utility vouchers
totaling$ 2,068,946.96. Voided checks in the amount of$ (586.61) are separately listed.

Early release disbursements dated October 11, 2024 through October 30, 2024 in the amount of
$1,029,750.54 are provided on a separate listing and are also included in the complete disbursement listing.
These payments have been released as authorized under Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022-7834.

The net payroll dated October 18, 2024 is$ 484,464.07, previously estimated at$ 500,000. Payroll
deductions dated October 18, 2024 are$ 510,143.25, previously estimated at$ 525,000.

The net payroll dated November 1, 2024 is $ 469,192.20, previously estimated at$ 465,000. Payroll
deductions dated November 1, 2024 are$ 249,895.75, previously estimated at$ 260,000.

The estimated payroll for November 15, 2024 is $ 490,000 with estimated deductions and matching
payments of$ 525,000.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion approving the following

• City vouchers with an ending date ofOctober 31, 2024 in the amount of $ 5,047,679.98

• Payroll dated October 18, 2024 in the amount of $ 484,464.07 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of $ 510,143.25 plus City matching payments and

• Payroll dated November 1, 2024 in the amount of$ 469,192.20 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of$ 249,895.75 plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated November 15, 2024 in the amount of$ 490,000 and payments of the various
payroll deductions in the amount of$ 525,000, plus City matching payments.

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED

Fmance Dept - SB


	Common Council Meeting Agenda Packet-Part 1-11-6-2024
	Common Council Meeting Agenda Packet-Part 2-11-6-2024

